
 

 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Jackie Dunbar, Convener; Councillor Yuill, Vice-Convener,   and 

Councillors Cameron, Cooney, Copland, Crockett, Donnelly, Flynn, Graham, 
Greig, Hutchison, Lawrence, Malik, Jean Morrison MBE, Nathan Morrison, 
Reynolds and Townson.  
  

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN Date Not Specified 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE are requested 
to meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on WEDNESDAY, 9 MARCH 2016 at 2.00 
pm. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
FRASER BELL 

HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 Determination of Exempt Business   
 

2 Minutes, Workplan and Decision Tracking Sheet   
 

 2.1  Minute of Previous Meeting of 26 November 2015  (Pages 5 - 16) 
 

 2.2  Workplan  (Pages 17 - 24) 
 

 2.3  Decision Tracking Sheet  (Pages 25 - 26) 
 

 2.4  Minute of the Corporate Health and Safety Committee of 28 August 2015  
(Pages 27 - 36) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 

 2.5  Minute of the Corporate Health and Safety Committee of 27 November 
2015  (Pages 37 - 46) 
 

 2.6  ALEO Governance Hubs - Report by the Interim Director of Corporate 
Governance  (Pages 47 - 106) 
 

3 Performance and Improvement   
 

 3.1  Internal Audit Progress and Performance - Report by the Internal Auditor  
(Pages 107 - 128) 
 

 3.2  Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 - Report by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 129 - 
140) 
 

 3.3  External Audit Progress Report - Report by the External Auditor  (Pages 
141 - 144) 
 

 3.4  External Audit Plan 2015/16 - Report by the External Auditor  (Pages 145 - 
170) 
 

4 Risk Management   
 

 4.1  Scottish Public Services Ombudsman Complaint Recommendations - 
Report by the Interim Director of Corporate Governance  (Pages 171 - 180) 
 

5 Control Environment and Assurance Internal   
 

 5.1  Cross Service - ALEO's - Report by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 181 - 192) 
 

 5.2  Adult Social Work/Integration Joint Board - Social Work Tendering - Report 
by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 193 - 208) 
 

 5.3  Health and Social Care Integration Pre-Integration Financial Assurance - 
Report by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 209 - 222) 
 

 5.4  Finance - Council Tax - Report by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 223 - 232) 
 

 5.5  Crematorium - Report by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 233 - 242) 
 

 5.6  Housing - Sheltered Housing - Report by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 243 - 
252) 
 



 

 
 
 

 5.7  Public Infrastructure and Environment - Trade Waste - Report by the 
Internal Auditor  (Pages 253 - 264) 
 

 5.8  Cross Service - Recruitment Procedures - Report by the Internal Auditor  
(Pages 265 - 290) 
 

6 Control Environment and Assurance - Audit Follow Up   
 

 6.1  Internal Audit Recommendations Outstanding pre 2015/16 (PWC) - Report 
by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 291 - 302) 
 

 6.2  Internal Audit Follow Up on Recommendations Against the 2015/16 Audit 
Plan - Report by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 303 - 306) 
 

 6.3  External Audit Outstanding Recommendations 2014/15 - Report by the 
External Auditor  (Pages 307 - 322) 
 

 6.4  Leased Community Centres - Progress Report - Report by the Director of 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure  (Pages 323 - 326) 
 

7 Financial Reporting   
 

 7.1  Annual Accounts 2015/16 - Action Plan and Key Dates - Report by the 
Interim Director of Corporate Governance  (Pages 327 - 332) 
 

8 Value for Money   
 

 8.1  Overview of Local Government 2015 - Report by the Chief Executive  
(Pages 333 - 346) 
 

 8.2  Local Scrutiny Plan 2016/17 - Report by the External Auditor - to follow   
 

9 Exempt Reports   
 

 9.1  Cross Service - Time Sheets - Report by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 347 - 
370) 
 

 9.2  Windows Replacements - Report by the Internal Auditor  (Pages 371 - 388) 
 

 9.3  Matters Under Investigation   
 



 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Karen 
Rennie, tel 01224 522723 or email karrennie@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 

ABERDEEN, 26 November 2015.  Minute of Meeting of the AUDIT, RISK AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE.  Present:-  Councillor Jackie Dunbar, Convener; 
Councillor Yuill, Vice-Convener;   and Councillors Allan (as substitute for 
Councillor Graham), Cameron, Cooney, Copland, Crockett, Donnelly, Flynn, 
Greig, Hutchison, Lawrence, Malik, Milne (as substitute for Councillor Nathan 
Morrison), Jean Morrison MBE, Townson and Young (as substitute for Councillor 
Reynolds). 

 
 

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be accessed via the 
following link: 
 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=507&MId=36
49&Ver=4  
 
 

DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
1. The Convener proposed that items 8.1 and 8.2 of today’s agenda (articles 26 
and 27 of this minute) be considered with the press and public excluded. 
 
The Committee resolved:-  
in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude 
the press and public from the meeting for articles 26 and 27 so as to avoid disclosure of 
exempt information of the class described in paragraph 1 (article 27) and paragraphs 1 
and 2 (article 26). 
 
 
DEPUTATION REQUEST - MR TOMMY CAMPBELL, UNITE AND MR STEVE 
DILLON , UCATT 
 
2. In terms of Standing Order 10(1), the Committee had before it a deputation 
request from Mr Campbell and Mr Dillon in relation to items 8.1 (Craft Workers Terms 
and Conditions) and 8.2 (Windows Replacement) on the agenda (articles 26 and 27 
refers). 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to agree to hear the deputations at the start of the meeting and discuss the reports at 
the appropriate time on the agenda. 
 
 
DEPUTATION IN RELATION TO AGENDA ITEMS 8.1 AND 8.2 
 
3. Mr Campbell and Mr Dillon requested that the exempt reports at items 8.1 (Craft 
Workers Terms and Conditions) and 8.2 (Windows Replacement) be shared with them 
to enable them to provide full comment in relation to both reports.  Mr Campbell advised 
that they would be focusing on agenda item 8.2 (Window Replacement).  The Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services advised that both reports contained information that 
may identify an individual and that the reports should not be issued as this would be a 
risk to the Council under Data Protection Legislation.   

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 5



2 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Councillors asked if the reports could be redacted in order for the deputation to receive 
a copy and whether they would accept a redacted copy of the reports.  Mr Dillon 
advised that the redacted report would be acceptable if the full report was not to be 
issued. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the information provided by Mr Campbell and Mr Dillon specifically in 

relation to agenda item 8.2; 
(ii) to note the legal advice provided that the exempt reports should not be shared 

due to the risk to the Council under Data Protection legislation; 
(iii) to request Committee Services to redact the report and provide a copy to Mr 

Campbell and Mr Dillon to allow them to continue with their deputation prior to 
consideration of the exempt report and that the redacted version be given to 
members in order for them to ask questions suitable for within the public session. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Committee adjourned for 15 minutes to enable the Clerk to have item 
8.2 (Windows Replacement) redacted. 
 
 

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 29 SEPTEMBER 2015 
 
4. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 29 September 
2015. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
WORKPLAN 
 
5. The Committee had before it the workplan prepared by the clerk which set out 
the future schedule of reports. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the workplan. 
 
 
DECISION TRACKING STATEMENT 
 
6. The Committee had before it the decision tracking statement as prepared by the 
clerk. 
 

Page 6



3 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

The Committee resolved:- 
 (i) in relation to items 5 (Compliance with Laws and Regulations) and 6 (Arm’s 

Length External Organisations), to note the update provided and agree to 
remove both items from the tracking sheet;  

(ii) to remove items 2 (Transfer of Site, Langdykes Road), 4 (PVG Checks, 
Community Centres), 8 (Housing Rent Assessment) and 10 (Community 
Centres) subject to the decisions taken later on the agenda; and 

(iii) to otherwise note the content of the tracking sheet. 
 
 
MINUTE OF CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE OF 22 MAY 2015 
 
7. The Committee had before it for information, the minute of meeting of the 
Corporate Health and Safety Committee of 22 May 2015. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the minute 
 
 
ELECTED MEMBER DEVELOPMENT - CG/14/095 
 
8. With reference to article 6 of the minute of its meeting of 29 September 2015, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director of Corporate Governance 
which provided an update on the training for all elected members in the area of Risk 
and Scrutiny. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the content of the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report. 
 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE 
 
9. The Committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor which provided an 
update on the progress against the 2015/16 Internal Audit Plan. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee review, discuss and comment on the issues raised within the report 
and the attached appendices. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the current programme had been delayed and that the remaining 

audits would be prioritised in order for them to be progressed; 

Page 7



4 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

(ii) to note that two audits relating to recruitment procedures would now be covered 
in the same report to Committee; 

(ii) to otherwise note the content of the report. 
 
 
EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
 
10. The Committee had before it a report by Audit Scotland, External Auditor, which 
provided an update on the progress with the external audit of the 2014/15 financial 
year. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report. 
 
 
DATA PROTECTION REPORTING JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2015 - CG/15/135 
 
11. With reference to article 9 of the minute of its meeting of 29 September 2015, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director of Corporate Governance 
which provided an overview of (1) Subject Access Requests statistics; (2) Data 
Breaches and Near Misses; (3) Data Protection training and (4) a general update for 
the period July to September 2015. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in response to a question from Councillor Flynn relating to the percentage of 

Subject Access Requests responded to within 40 days and what had been done 
to improve the figures, the Head of Legal and Democratic Services advised that 
he had requested services to provide information relating to these and that one 
service in particular struggled to meet the timescales due to the nature of the 
information sought; 

(ii) in response to a request from the Vice Convener for the figures to be provided 
by Service, to note that this would be included for future reports; and 

(iii) to otherwise note the content of the report. 
 
 
PROTECTING VULNERABLE GROUPS (PVG) SCHEME - REPORT BY THE 
INTERIM DIRECTOR FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
12. The Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director of Corporate 
Governance which provided details relating to the current policy and procedure’s for 
Protecting Vulnerable Groups (PVG) Scheme. 
 
The report recommended: 

Page 8



5 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

that the Committee note the detail of the report. 
 
Councillors raised various questions relating to whether all Councillors who were 
deemed to be undertaking regulated work with children or protected adults had been 
PVG checked and whether substitutes would require to be checked; and whether lay 
members of Committees or groups undertaking regulated work had been PVG 
checked. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that work was currently being undertaken to identify those Councillors or 

lay members that required to be PVG checked and that this information would be 
provided to the Committee; 

(ii) to note that substitutes to Committees that required Councillors to be PVG 
checked would be allowed however they would not be covered by PVG as the 
work would be incidental and not regulated work; 

(iii) to otherwise note the content of the report. 
 
 
HOUSING - RENT ASSESSMENT 
 
13. With reference to article 13, resolution (i) of the minute of its meeting of 29 
September 2015, the Committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor which 
presented an audit into whether the approved Rent Setting Policy as implemented in 
April 2013 was operating effectively.   
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for improvement. 
 
 
TRANSFER OF SITE, LANGDYKES ROAD 
 
14. With reference to article 2 of the minute of its meeting of 25 June 2015, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor which presented the outcome 
of work undertaken by Internal Audit following a referral from Finance, Policy and 
Resources Committee regarding the transfer of site at Langdykes Road. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee review, discuss and comment on the issues raised within the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



6 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
15. The Committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor which presented an 
audit into the Council’s adopted Risk Management procedures to identify its risks and 
ensure that they were adequately managed. 
 
Councillor Cameron sought clarification relating to the Health and Social Care 
Partnership Integration Scheme and the requirements within the Risk Management 
Strategy, wherein the Internal Auditor advised that they would be using the Health 
Board’s Risk Management Process which satisfied the requirements of the Scottish 
Government. 
 
Councillor Young sought clarification on how the risks would be reported and monitored 
in relation to the Integrated Joint Board, wherein the Internal Auditor advised that the 
Integrated Joint Board would be providing services on behalf of the Council and Internal 
Audit would be looking at the risks in place. 
 
The Vice Convener sought an update in relation to the Risk Management Strategy and 
when it would be reported to this Committee as the previous one was more than twelve 
months ago, wherein the Risk Manager advised that additional work was required to 
ensure all elements of risk and the broader governance statement were included in the 
Risk Management Strategy and that a report would be presented to this Committee 
within six months. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in response to a question from the Vice Convener relating to the Risk 

Management Strategy and Statement of Control Annual Report to this 
Committee, to note that the new broader governance statement was not 
reflected in the Risk Management Strategy and that further work was required to 
amend the Strategy and that a report would be submitted to this Committee at its 
meeting on 28 April 2016; 

(ii) to otherwise note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for 
improvement. 

 
 
COMMERCIAL AND PROCUREMENT - CREDITORS SYSTEM 
 
16. The Committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor, which presented an 
audit into whether appropriate control was being exercised over the Creditors System, 
including contingency planning and disaster recovery and that the interface to and from 
other systems were accurate and properly controlled. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for improvement. 
 
 

Page 10



7 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

HUMAN RESOURCES & CUSTOMER SERVICE - PAYROLL SYSTEM 
 
17. The Committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor, which presented an 
audit into whether appropriate control was being exercised over the Payroll System, 
including contingency planning and disaster recovery and that the payments made by 
the system were accurate. 
 
The Convener sought clarification in relation to a recommendation that had not been 
agreed relating to a PSe Manual, wherein the Head of Human Resources and 
Customer Service advised that the system would be replaced within a three/four year 
period and that a manual for the new operating system would be provided.   
 
The Vice Convener sought clarification on the number of staff that used the system 
wherein the Head of Human Resources and Customer Service advised that there were 
four members of staff.  The Convener requested that something be put in place in case 
those staff members were to leave the Council wherein it was agreed that a brief note 
on the system could be provided until the new system was in place and operational. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in response to a question from the Convener in relation to written procedures for 

the PSe System where agreement had not been met between the auditor and 
the service and whether this item would be included in outstanding 
recommendations report, to note that the auditor would always recommend best 
practice and to note that a brief outline of the system could be provided with a 
full manual being implemented for the replacement system; and 

(ii) to otherwise note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for 
improvement. 

 
 
SCOTTISH PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN COMPLAINT DECISIONS - 
CG/15/138 
 
18. The Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director of Corporate 
governance which provided details of all Scottish Public Services Ombudsman (SPSO) 
decisions relating to Aberdeen City Council complaints received during 2014/15 that 
were subsequently referred to the Ombudsman. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee review the content of the report, identify any systemic issues and 
recommend any additional actions as appropriate. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
To approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
 

Page 11



8 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

AUDIT SCOTLAND - AUDIT OF HOUSING BENEFIT - CG/15/129 
 
19. The Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director for Corporate 
Governance which advised the Committee of the outcome of Audit Scotland’s Housing 
Benefit - Performance Audit Risk Assessment. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the content of the report. 
 
Councillor Townson sought additional information relating to the operation of the Single 
Fraud Investigation Service, wherein the Head of Finance advised that they were based 
locally and the Council had retained its own counter fraud staff.  
 
Councillor Hutchison requested further information relating to the current amount of 
subsidy that the Council were unable to claim due to the value of local 
authority/administrative delay error overpayment being above DWP’s threshold of 
0.54%, the Head of Finance advised that he would provide Councillor Hutchison with 
the current figure. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in response to questions from Councillor Townson relating to the Single Fraud 

Investigation Service, to note that the Council had retained its counter fraud staff 
and they were based locally and to note that the Head of Finance would try to 
gain information on how the SFIS were structured and how they were operating 
across their full remit;  

(ii) in response to a question from Councillor Hutchison relating to the current 
amount of subsidy that the Council were unable to claim due to the value of local 
authority/administrative delay error overpayment being above DWP’s threshold 
of 0.54%, to note that the Head of Finance would provide Councillor Hutchison 
with the current figure; and 

(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
FOOD STANDARDS SCOTLAND CORE AUDIT - CHI/15/297 
 
20. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Communities, Housing 
and Infrastructure which presented the findings of the Food Standards Scotland Core 
Audit of Aberdeen City Council’s Official Controls in relation to Regulation (EC) 
852/2004 on the Hygiene of Foodstuffs in Food Business Establishments and the 
application of the Food Hygiene Information Scheme. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee notes the content of the audit report and the associated action plan 
prepared by the Environmental Health Service. 
 
 

Page 12



9 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the praise given to the team from the Manager and the Committee; and 
(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS OUTSTANDING PRE 2015/16 
 
21. The Committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor which advised on 
progress Services’ had made with implementing recommendations agreed in Internal 
Audit reports issued by the previous auditors, PWC. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee review, discuss and comment on the issues raised within the report 
and the attached appendices. 
 
Councillor Cameron sought clarification relating to Service Reviews and whether they 
would be completed by the 31 December 2015, wherein the Team Manager advised 
that each of the items should have a completion date and that he would liaise with the 
Head of Joint Operations to ensure the correct dates were added. 
 
Councillor Copland sought clarification in relation to the timing of the recommendations 
to be completed and the opportunity for the Integrated Joint Board to scrutinise the 
information prior to them operating from 1 April, wherein the Team Manager advised 
that he would liaise with the Chief Officer and provide the information to the Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the item relating to Compliance with Laws and Regulations would be 

removed in relation to the decision taken at article _ of this minute; 
(ii) in response to questions from Councillor Cameron in relation to Service Reviews 

and the additional time to complete the actions, to note that the Team Manager 
would liaise with the Head of Joint Operations to ensure the correct dates were 
added against each of the outstanding recommendations; 

(iii) in response to a question from Councillor Copland relating to the timing for the 
recommendations to be completed and whether the Integration Joint Board 
would have an opportunity to scrutinise the information prior to their inception on 
1 April 2016, to note that the Team Manager would liaise with the Chief Officer 
and provide the information to the Committee; 

(iii) to otherwise note the content of the report. 
 
 
INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
22. The Committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor which advised on 
the progress with implementing agreed recommendations contained in reports issued in 
relation to the 2015/16 Internal Audit Plan and any additional work undertaken. 
 

Page 13



10 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

The report recommended: 
That the Committee review, discuss and comment on the issues raised within the report 
and the attached appendices. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report. 
 
 
EXTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATION OUTSTANDING 14/15 
 
23. The Committee had before it a report by Audit Scotland, External Auditor, which 
presented the list of issues and risks that had been agreed by Management as part of 
the 2014/15 audit.  An update had been provided for the items due to be complete by 
February 2016. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report. 
 
 
MEASURES TO DETECT AND PREVENT FRAUD - CG/15/113 
 
24. The Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director of Corporate 
Governance which presented for information the Policy and Strategic Response to 
Fraud, Bribery and Corruption. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee –  
(a) note the content of the report and attached Policy and Strategic Response to 

Fraud, Bribery and Corruption document; and 
(b) note that the Finance, Policy and Resources Committee of 15 September 2015 

approved the Policy and Strategic Response to Fraud, Bribery and Corruption. 
 
Councillor Townson sought clarification as to when Police Scotland would be contacted 
for assistance, wherein the Head of Finance advised that if there was a suspected case 
of fraud then Police Scotland would be contacted for each occurrence. 
 
Councillor Townson requested an update in relation to the National Fraud Authority 
Self-Assessment Checklist and when the items listed as No would be actioned, wherein 
the Head of Finance advised that these were currently being looked at and that an 
annual report would be submitted to this Committee to provide details of any fraud 
activity. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in response to a question from Councillor Townson relating to when Police 

Scotland would be contacted, to note that they would be contacted for all 
instances where a suspected fraud has taken place; 

Page 14



11 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

(ii) to note that the Committee would receive an annual report to notify them of any 
activity in relation to fraud; 

(iii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
PVG CHECKS - COMMUNITY CENTRES - CHI/15/319 
 
25. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Communities, Housing 
and Infrastructure which advised on the progress made in relation to Protecting 
Vulnerable Groups (PVG) Checks for Leased Community Centres. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the content of the report. 
 
Councillor Cameron sought clarification as to who is able to vet the certificates, wherein 
the Communities and Partnership Service Manager advised that she thought it would 
be Volunteer Scotland however she would clarify the issue and advise the Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the Service manager would advise the Committee won who would 

be able to vet the PVG certificates for Community Centre members; and 
(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Committee adjourned for 15 minutes to allow the redacted report for 
item, 8.2 (Windows Replacement) to be circulated to Members and to Mr 
Campbell and Mr Dillon. 
 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
In accordance with the decision taken at article 1 of this minute, the 
following item of business was considered with the press and public 
excluded. 
 
 

WINDOW REPLACEMENTS - CG/15/147 
 
26. Prior to considering the exempt report, the Committee heard the deputation in 
public session.  Councillors asked various questions in relation to the redacted report 
and the presentation. 
 

Page 15



12 
 
 

AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
26 November 2015 

 
 

 
 
 

The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure which presented the outcome of an internal audit into replacement 
windows at a Council property. 
 
Councillors asked various questions to officers in relation to the full report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to thank Mr Campbell and Mr Dillon for their presentation; 
(ii) to defer the report for further information to be provided; and 
(iii) to request the Internal Auditor to undertake an audit into the process for dealing 

with complaints against officers and to determine if the process was followed 
correctly in this case, and to make any recommendations as appropriate. 

 
 
CRAFT WORKERS TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
27. The Committee had before it a report by the Internal Auditor which presented the 
outcome of an audit into Craft Workers Terms and Conditions. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for improvement. 
 
 

Page 16



1
 

  A
U

D
IT

, 
R

IS
K

 a
n

d
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 
 W

O
R

K
P

L
A

N
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

 9
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
0

1
6

  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
  

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

3
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

 

4
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

5
. 

 
S

S
P

O
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

E
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 

6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

T
im

e
 S

h
e
e
ts

/A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

(E
x
e
m

p
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

) 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 P
o
u
n
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 

p
la

n
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

  
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 

p
la

n
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
L
E

O
’s

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
  

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
0
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

/I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

J
o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
  

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 17



2
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 T
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 

1
1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

B
u
d
g

e
t 
S

e
tt
in

g
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
  

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 

p
la

n
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

V
A

T
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

D
e
la

y
e
d
 
d
u
e
 
to

 
H

M
R

C
 
In

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 
re

p
o
rt

  
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 m

o
v
in

g
 t
o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 I
A

 p
la

n
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
3
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
  

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 

V
e
h
ic

le
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
5
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

B
u
ild

in
g

 
M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 

p
la

n
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

P
u
b
lic

 
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

&
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

T
ra

d
e
 W

a
s
te

 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
8
. 

2
9
/0

9
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
In

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 P

re
-I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

A
rt

ic
le

 9
 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

2
0
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

re
 1

5
/1

6
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
1
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 
a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

A
u
d
it
 P

la
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
2
. 

2
9
/0

9
/1

5
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
, 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

Page 18



3
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

a
rt

ic
le

  
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

2
3
. 

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

–
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 K

e
y
 D

a
te

s
 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

2
4
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 
V

a
lu

e
 
fo

r 
M

o
n
e

y
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

3
5
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

2
8

 A
P

R
IL

 2
0

1
6

  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

3
. 

 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

to
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

4
. 

N
/A

 
–
 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
G

 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
/ 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
o
rs

  
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

5
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 

6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

re
la

te
d
 

L
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 

&
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

  
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 I

A
 

p
la

n
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

Page 19



4
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

B
u
d
g

e
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

B
a
n
k
 R

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
0
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
c
a
d
e
m

y
 V

is
it
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
2
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 P
a
y
ro

ll 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 S

u
p
p
ly

 
T

e
a
c
h
e
rs

 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
3
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

O
u
t 
o
f 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 P
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

R
e
n
t 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
5
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
in

g
 m

o
v
in

g
 t
o
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 

IA
 p

la
n
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 

C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 
In

te
rn

a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

/I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 J

o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 
S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
8
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

re
la

te
d
 

L
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 

&
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 &

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

F
a
m

ily
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 –
 

F
a
m

ily
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l A

u
d
it 

P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

Page 20



5
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

2
0
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

2
1
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

re
 1

5
/1

6
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
2
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 
a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e
 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
3
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

2
4
. 

 
 

 
 

V
a
lu

e
 F

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

2
5
. 

 
L
o
c
a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

2
6
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

2
7

 J
U

N
E

 2
0

1
6

  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

3
. 

 
D

a
ta

 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

in
g

 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

 
 

4
. 

2
6
/0

6
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
1
 

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

5
. 

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 
a
n
d
 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

6
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  

Page 21



6
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

In
te

rn
a
l 

–
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

7
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

8
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

9
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

re
 1

5
/1

6
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
0
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

1
1
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

1
2
. 

 
U

n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
o
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
th

e
 u

n
a
u
d
ite

d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

1
3
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 
In

te
ri
m

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
o
n
  

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 A

u
d
it
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

1
4
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 
V

a
lu

e
 
fo

r 
M

o
n
e

y
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

1
5
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

2
7

 S
E

P
T

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
1

6
  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

3
. 

 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 –

  
A

p
ri
l 
to

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 

 
 

Page 22



7
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 

–
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 I
N

T
E

R
N

A
L

 A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0
1
6
/1

7
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

5
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

6
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

8
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

9
. 

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
e
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

1
0
. 

 
A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 
to

 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u
d
it
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

A
u
d
it
 

 
- 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

1
1
. 

 
 

 
 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

1
2
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

2
4

 N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

1
6

  

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 

1
. 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

2
. 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 

a
n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

3
. 

 
D

a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 –

  
 

 

Page 23



8
 

 N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

It
e
m

 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

/ 
U

p
d

a
te

 
L

e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

 

J
u
ly

 t
o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 

4
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

S
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
R

is
k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
 

to
 

e
a
c
h
 

C
o
m

m
itt

e
e
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

R
is

k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
In

te
rn

a
l 
- 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
 A

U
D

IT
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 A

G
R

E
E

D
 

5
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 

6
. 

 
 

 
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 –

  
A

u
d

it
 F

o
ll

o
w

 U
p

 

7
. 

2
6
/0

2
/1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 9
 

A
u
d
it
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

8
. 

 
 

 
 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

9
. 

 
A

u
d
it
 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 
V

a
lu

e
 
fo

r 
M

o
n
e

y
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 &

 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

E
x
e
m

p
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

1
0
. 

 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 U
n
d
e
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta

n
d
in

g
 I
te

m
 

 

 

Page 24



 
 

A
U

D
IT

, 
R

IS
K

 a
n

d
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 
 

D
E

C
IS

IO
N

 T
R

A
C

K
IN

G
 S

H
E

E
T

 
 

9
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

 
P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 n
o
te

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 o

r 
to

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
is

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t

o
 t
ra

c
k
 t
h
a
t 

a
u
d
it
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
e
d
. 

 

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  A
,R

&
S

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r(

s
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 o
r 

U
p

d
a
te

 

1
. 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

1
1
 M

a
y
 1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 2
0
 

A
u

d
it

 S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
 V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

(i
) 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

 a
n
d
 T

re
a
s
u
ry

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 t
o
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
h
e
n
 F

in
a
n
c
e
, 

P
o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

S
 W

h
y
te

 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
 

2
. 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

2
5
 J

u
n
e
 1

5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
1
 

D
a
ta

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 
(i
i)
 

in
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 a

 c
o
m

m
e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

G
ra

h
a
m

, 
to

 n
o
te

 
th

a
t 
a
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
n
 

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 w
h
e
re

 n
o
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

re
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 

S
 I

n
g

lis
 

L
e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 

3
. 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

2
9
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
3
 

P
u

b
li

c
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 –

 
A

u
d

it
 S

c
o

tl
a
n

d
’s

 A
s
s
e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
T

 S
u
la

im
a
n
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 d
u
e
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 b

y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
 

4
. 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 

2
6
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

A
rt

ic
le

 

W
in

d
o

w
s
 R

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

ts
 

(i
i)

 
to

 d
e
fe

r 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 

D
 H

u
g

h
e
s
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

A
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 d

u
e
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
 

Agenda Item 2.3

Page 25



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  A
,R

&
S

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r(

s
) 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 o
r 

U
p

d
a
te

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

; 
a
n

d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 
th

e
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
o

r 
to

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
 a

n
 

a
u

d
it
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
d

e
a

lin
g
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
f 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

w
a

s
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 i
n

 
th

is
 c

a
s
e
, 

a
n

d
 t
o

 m
a

k
e
 

a
n

y
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 

 

Page 26



 
 

CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

 
 

ABERDEEN, Friday, 28 August 2015.  Minute of Meeting of the CORPORATE 
HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE.  Present:- Councillor Graham Chairperson; 
and Mike Middleton, Vice Chairperson. City Council Representatives:- Councillors 
Cameron, Finlayson and Greig. 
 
Trade Union Representatives:-  Joe Craig (UNITE), Karen Davidson (UNISON), 
George Ferguson (UNISON), Paul Nesbitt (UCATT), Steve Robb (UNITE), Sid 
Sandison (SSTA), Carole Thorpe (EIS) and David Willis (GMB). 
 
Officers in attendance:-  Angela Scott (Chief Executive), Ewan Sutherland 
(Director of Corporate Governance), Mary Agnew (Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Manager), Colin Leaver (Team Leader), Andrew Moat (Health and Safety 
Adviser), Neil Yacamini (Project Manager), Martin Allan (Business Manager), 
Bruce Findlater (Admin Officer), Michael Hearns (Directorate Support Manager), 
Lesley Kirk (Directorate Support Manager), Kate Mackay (Business Manager), 
Euan Couperwhite (Head of Policy, Performance and Resources) and Mark Reilly 
(Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment). 

 
 
AGENDA ORDER 
 
1. The Chairperson sought agreement to amend the order of the agenda so that 
item 4a (Corporate Health and Safety Report) (article 6 of this minute refers) was taken 
prior to item 3a (Adult Health and Social Care Annual Health and Safety Report) (article 
7 of this minute refers). 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the change to the agenda order. 
 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
2. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillor Donnelly. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 22 MAY 2015 
 
3. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 22 May 2015. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute subject to the amendment of a typographical error on page 1, 
article 3. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2.4

Page 27



2 

 
 

MATTERS ARISING 
 
4. With reference to articles 3 (resolution ii) and 4 resolution (ii), to note that the 
school security improvement plan was being developed and would be issued to the 
Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager prior to it being issued to the Committee. 
 
The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager enquired as to whether the Corporate 
Health and Safety Report (article 9) should be discussed at the Directorate Health and 
Safety Committee as well as the Service Health and Safety Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note that the Health and Safety report should be discussed at both the Service 
Health and Safety Committee and the Directorate Health and Safety Committee. 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
5. The Committee had before it a statement of outstanding business as prepared 
by the Clerk. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note that the school security improvement plan would be circulated to the Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing Manager prior to it being issued to the Committee. 
 
 
CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT - APRIL TO JUNE 
 
6. With reference to article 9 of the minute of its previous meeting of 22 May 2015, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director of Corporate Governance 
which presented details of the number and types of accidents, incidents and occurrence 
during the period April to June 2015. 
 
The report provided statistical information broken down into the following categories: 
 
Accidents, Incidents, Accidents Rates and Incidents 

• 105 accidents to employees were reported of which 7 were reportable to the 
enforcing authority 

• 94 accidents to third parties were recorded of which 2 were reportable to the 
enforcing authority 

• the accident (reportable) rate for the period was 0.88 

• 110 incidents were reported during the period with the highest attributed to 
verbal abuse (49) and threatening or menacing behaviour (43) 

 
Occupational Health and Wellbeing Events 

• the contract for occupational health provision was awarded to OH Assist and 
commenced on 3 August 

• a calendar of events and campaigns aimed to support employees and their 
families to make positive lifestyle choices was appended to the report 

• the Council had retained the RoSPA Gold Medal Award in 2014/15 in recognition 
of the Council’s  efforts, achievements and commitment to raining the standards 
of health and safety management throughout the organisation 

 
 

Page 28



3 

 
 

Enforcement Interventions – Health and Safety Executive (HSE) 

• HSE contacted the health, safety and wellbeing team relating to a concern raised 
by an employee that their injury had not been reported to the HSE, on which the 
information provided stated that the employee had been off for 5 days, returned 
to work and was then off for a further period of time with the injury being different 
to that initially reported.  The HSE accepted the explanation and no further action 
was required. 

• HSE myth buster line contacted the health, safety and wellbeing team relating to 
information provided by residents that the Evening Express had reported a story 
that contained comments from Council employees regarding unsafe play 
equipment in a park.  Residents had bought the equipment and installed it in an 
area however it was not of the correct standard for public access and would not 
be maintained by the Council.  The HSE accepted and confirmed the information 
and provided the residents with the information, therefore no further action was 
required. 

• On 28 June 2012, a pupil from an Aberdeen Primary School attended 
Stonehaven Open Air Pool and during the visit became submerged under water 
and was recovered unconscious.  On 12 August, the Council appeared at 
Aberdeen Sheriff Court and pled guilty to breaching Section 3(1) of the Health 
and Safety at Work Act 1974 and they received a fine. 

• An incident happened to an elderly tenant in his property on 5 August and full 
information will be reported at the next committee meeting. 

 
Health and Safety Training and Cancellations 

• 445 employees attended health and safety training 

• there were 41 late cancellations and no shows which resulted in a total of £ 
2,415 being back charged to Services with £97 of that total being charged to 
external Services 

• there had been 141 feedback responses received out of the 277 issued. 
 
Fire Risk Assessment 

• 45 fire risk assessments were carried out 

• A range of both positive and negative findings were reported to the premises 
responsible person and related directorate so that remedial action could be 
progressed and monitored via Service Management Committees 

 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee refer the report to the Corporate Management Team -  
(a) to discuss and encourage review of statistics by Heads of Service with Service 

level specifics detail to be discussed at Service Management Teams; 
(b) to support actions to reduce accidents and work related ill health in line with 

health and safety targets; and 
(c) to disseminate and take action on the health and safety information in the report. 
 
The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager provided the Committee with information 
relating to three incidents, two of which were still being investigated.  The third one 
related to an incident at Stonehaven Swimming Pool (as referred to on page 63). 
 
Sid Sandison referred to Fire Safety Training which all school staff had been advised 
about on return to school and enquired as to what was available.  The Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing Manager advised that there were various courses available online as 

Page 29



4 

 
 

well as evac chair training and fire extinguisher training and that following recent fire 
risk assessments, it had been identified that there was a need for staff to be trained. 
 
George Ferguson advised that in a previous job, he attended full day fire awareness 
training at the local fire station as well as on-site training which he found to be very 
useful and enquired as to whether this type of training had been considered.  The 
Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that she would see this this type of 
training was offered by the Fire and Rescue Service in Aberdeen. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in relation to information provided from George Ferguson (Unison) relating to a 

fire awareness course he attended in a previous role, to request the Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing Manager to determine whether a fire safety course could 
be provided by the local Fire and Rescue Service;  

(ii) in relation to article 4 of this minute to note that the report should be discussed at 
both the Directorate and Service level health and safety committees; and 

(iii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE ANNUAL HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT 
 
7. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Office for Adult Social Care 
which presented the annual health and safety report for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 
June 2015. 
 
Four Directorate health and safety meetings took place attended by management, 
union representatives and senior officers and there were no HSE interventions during 
the period. 
 
For the Older Adults Service 

• 39 accidents were reported by employees compared to 25 in 2013/14  

• 51 incidents were reported compared to 49 in 2013/14 

• The majority of accidents and incidents had been recorded for Balnagask Court 

• the scores for the individual elements of the health and safety matrix were: 100% 
for Housekeeping and Cleaning, First Aid, Slips Trip and Hazards, Machinery, 
Plant and Equipment, Welfare and Accidents/Incidents; and 93% for Emergency 
Precautions and Environment 

• 432 employees attended health and safety training 
 
For the Younger Adults and Criminal Justice Service 

• 3 accidents were reported by employees compared to 2 in 2013/14 

• 8 incidents were reported compared to 2 in 2013/14  

• the scores for the individual elements of the health and safety matrix were:100% 
for Emergency Precautions, Housekeeping and Cleaning, First Aid, Welfare and 
Accidents/Incidents; 97% for Slip, Trip and Hazards and Machinery, Plant and 
Equipment; and 87% for Environment 

• 62 employees attended health and safety training 
 
Sickness Absence for the Service 

• the number of episodes of absence in excess of 28 days had fluctuated during 
the period with a low of 10 in August 2014 and a peak of 17 in May 2015 

Page 30



5 

 
 

• the number of episodes of absence under 28 days had fluctuated during the 
period with a low of 47 in December 2014 and a peak of 77 in January 2015 

• the main reasons for absence were respiratory difficulties at 277 compared to 
188 in the previous period and gastrointestinal problems at 170 compared to 153 
in the previous period 

• the number of days lost was 1,678 which had decreased from 2,179 in the 
previous period 

 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the content of the report. 
 
Karen Davidson sought clarification as to whether the Children’s Services health and 
safety report in November would cover the period from June 2014, wherein the 
Business Manager advised that it would. 
Councillor Cameron sought clarification relating to staff safety in particular whilst lone 
working and whether the new systems in place were adequate and being monitored, 
wherein the Business Manager advised she would request that the Lead Service 
Manager provide a response directly to Councillor Cameron. 
 
George Ferguson asked if Airwatch, the system on phones that track GPS signals for 
lone working could be used, wherein the Business Manager advised that an update 
would be provided to the next Committee on the lone working procedures in place. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the Children’s Services statistics from June 2014 would be reported 

to this Committee in November; 
(ii) in response to questions relating to staff safety in relation to the implementation 

of the new lone working procedures, the Business Manager advised that she 
would request the Lead Service Manager to provide a response directly to 
Councillor Cameron; 

(iii) in response to a question from George Ferguson (Unison) relating to the use of 
Airwatch, the system on phones that track GPS signals for lone working, to note 
that an update would be provided to the next Committee on the lone working 
procedures in place; 

(iv) to otherwise approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
CORPORATE FLEET MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE 
 
8. With reference to article 18 of the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee of 25 June 
2015, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Communities, Housing 
and Infrastructure which (1) advised that the above mentioned Committee 
recommended that health and safety aspects relating to Fleet Governance would be 
reported to the Corporate Health and Safety Committee; (2) explained that the service 
were developing a robust performance framework for the monitoring, analysis and 
reporting of improvements for fleet compliance; and (3) provided information on the 
progress made to date on developing a suite of performance indicators. 
 
The report provided background information relating to the Traffic Commissioners 
Public Inquiries into the Council’s Goods Vehicle Operator’s Licence and also stated 
that a full review into the service was undertaken with measures put in place to improve 
service compliance, delivery and performance. 
 

Page 31



6 

 
 

The report contained information relating to the progress made to date in relation to the 
improvement action plan including developing a new operating structure for Fleet 
Services, improvements to vehicle workshops, comprehensive training for mechanics, 
drivers and supervisors, fleet compliance, improvements to health and safety, improved 
IT Systems, stock control and vehicle procurement.  Information relating to Vehicle 
Accidents and Incidents since February 2015 was also reported. 
 
The report presented the KPI’s for Fleet which included: 
(1) MOT % First Time Pass Rate (‘O’ Licence Vehicles) 
(2) Roadside Inspections/resulting prohibitions. 
(3) Value of Spare Parts Held as Stock 
(4) Outstanding ‘O’ Licence MOT’s/Inspections 
(5) Vehicles Over 5 Years Old 
(6) Number of Vehicles per Service 
(7) Licence Issues as % of License Checks 
 
Appended to the report were the results of a recent survey of employees’ awareness of 
Vehicle Compliance. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee notes the actions taken and measures put in place in Fleet Services 
for monitoring performance of corporate Fleet Compliance. 
 
In response to a question from Sid Sandison relating to the school mini buses and 
whether these were all recorded under the Fleet Service, the Head of Public 
Infrastructure and Environment advised that he was working with colleagues in 
Education to gather information on their requirements for any vehicles that they owned 
and that all vehicles should be managed in-house and those driving the vehicles should 
undertake the same checks as drivers of other Fleet vehicles and that there were some 
old arrangements still in place for external organisations which was currently being 
looked at. 
 
To note that in light of the incident in Glasgow relating to the Bin Lorry, a report would 
be presented to this Committee to outline what processes and procedures were being 
implemented to prevent a similar issue occurring in Aberdeen. 
 
To note the information provided by Joe Craig relating to a recent incident within 
Building Services and to request that a report be submitted to this Committee 
presenting the findings of the follow up meeting and checks. 
 
The Chairperson requested that for future reports the details within the action plan be 
included to provide assurance to the Committee that issues were being addressed. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to concur with the remarks from the Chief Executive, congratulating the team for 

the work done to date and for the comprehensive report; 
(ii) to request that the results from the staff survey and all future staff surveys are 

provided to this Committee; 
(iii) to request that for future reports only indicators 1, 2 and 7 are reported on to give 

assurance on compliance; 
(iv) to request that information be included in the next report relating to the actions 

the Council were taking in light of the incident in Glasgow, to ensure drivers were 
safe to drive vehicles; 

Page 32



7 

 
 

(v) in relation to concerns raised over mini buses used by schools and whether they 
were all monitored in line with those in Fleet Services, including the drivers, to 
request that the current process be reviewed and that a report on the findings be 
presented to this Committee; 

(vi) in relation to the results of the recent staff survey and the action plan 
implemented to address the issues, to request the Head of Public Infrastructure 
and Environment to include the actions in the next report to this Committee to 
provide assurance to this Committee and to staff that the issues were being 
addressed; 

(vii) in relation to a recent case, as highlighted by Unite, to request the Head of 
Public Infrastructure and Environment to meet with Joe Craig and the Head of 
Building Services to discuss the compliance and processes induction and to 
request that a report be provided to this Committee providing an update; and 

(viii) to otherwise approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
DIRECTORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PLANS 
 
9. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that templates had been 
issued to all Directorates and once those were complete and submitted, the information 
would be used to create the Corporate Improvement Plan.  These would be reported to 
the Corporate Management Team and then to this Committee in due course. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the verbal update provided. 
 
 
CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY ANNUAL REPORT - APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 
2015 
 
10. The Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director of Corporate 
Governance which summarised the health and safety activities for the period 1 April 
2014 to 31 March 2015. 
 
The report provided the following statistical information for the period in question: 
 
Accidents, Incidents and Training 

• 178 accidents to employees were reported of which 23 were reportable to the 
enforcing authority 

• 376 accidents to third parties were reported of which 10 were reportable to the 
enforcing authority 

• the reportable accident rate was 2.70 per 1000 employees which was a 
reduction from the previous year (3.41) 

• accident rate benchmark figures had been provided for 6 local authorities 
(anonymised) 

• 468 incidents to employees were reported with threatening and menacing 
behaviour being the highest cause with 146 reported 

• 1810 employees attended health and safety training  
 

Health and Safety Targets 

• target 1 (20% reduction in the incidence rate of all reportable employee 
accidents) – reportable accident rate per 1000 employees >3days was 0.18 
(2009/10 was 7.26) so a reduction from 2009/10 

Page 33



8 

 
 

• target 1 (20% reduction in the incidence rate of all reportable employee 
accidents) – reportable accident rate per 1000 employees >7days was 3.76 
(2013/14 was 3.06) so an increase from 2013/14 (when the 7 day figures started 
to be recorded) 

• target 2 (20% reduction of days lost from work related injury and ill health) – 
1837 days (2009/10 was 2682 days) so a 32% decrease from 2009/10 

• target 2 (stress related absence) 11002 days (2009/10 was 10175 days) so a 8% 
increase from 2009/10 

• target 3 (20% reduction of the reported cases of work related ill health) no new 
cases were reported 

 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee –  
(a) approve the report; 
(b) approve the publication of a summarised version of this report on the Council 

website; 
(c) support the actions to reduce accidents and work related ill health in line with 

health and safety targets; and 
(d) disseminate and take action on the health and safety information in the report. 
 
The Chief Executive sought clarification as to which local authority marked as A-F in the 
report was the most comparable to Aberdeen, wherein the Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Manager advised that she would provide the details of those local authorities 
to the Chief Executive and advise which one was most comparable. 
 
Councillor Finlayson sought clarification over the number of security breaches and 
whether there was a trend. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that she 
would provide details of the security breaches to Councillor Finalyson. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in response to a question from the Chief Executive relating to which authority 

from A-F would be the most comparable to Aberdeen, to note that the Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing Manager would provide the details of the authorities A-F to 
the Chief Executive and advise which one was the most pertinent for 
comparison; 

(ii) in response to a question from Councillor Finlayson relating to the number of 
security breaches and whether there was a trend, to note that the Health, Safety 
and Wellbeing Manager would provide details of the breaches to Councillor 
Finlayson; and 

(iii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
 
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMME REPORT - APRIL TO JUNE 2015 
 
11. With reference to article 11 of the minute of its previous meeting of 22 May 2015, 
the Committee had before it a report prepared by Time for Talking which presented (1) 
the utilisation of the Employee Assistance Programme for the period 1 April to 30 June 
2015; (2) feedback received from users of the Service; and (3) a breakdown of the 
reason for referral per directorate. 
 
The report advised that there had been 20 referrals during the period.  There had been 
12 face to face counselling sessions and 5 telephone counselling sessions. 

Page 34



9 

 
 

 
The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that the report style provided was 
not suitable and that she would discuss the content at her meeting with Time for 
Talking. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager would request Time for 

Talking to amend the report style for the next reporting period; and 
(ii) to otherwise note the content of the report. 
 
 
OH ASSIST 
 
12. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that the contract for the 
occupational health provision was awarded to OH Assist on 3 August and that the 
feedback so far was positive both from management and employees.  She further 
advised that the service would move to a telephone conference based system after the 
first three months, however if it is determined that a face to face appointment is more 
appropriate this will be arranged. 

 
The Committee were also informed that various briefings from OH Assist had taken 
place at different locations throughout the organisation and that information about the 
new provider and how to access the service was available on the zone. 
 
The Chief Executive asked whether Trade Union members would like the opportunity to 
meet with the new provider, wherein those in attendance unanimously welcomed the 
opportunity. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request that the new Occupational Health Provider, OH Assist, meet with 

Trade Union Colleagues; and 
(ii) to otherwise note the information provided. 
 
 
DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 27 NOVEMBER 2015 
 
13. The Committee noted that the next meeting was scheduled for Friday 27 
November 2015. 
 
- COUNCILLOR GORDON GRAHAM, Chairperson. 
 
 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

 
 

ABERDEEN, Friday, 27 November 2015.  Minute of Meeting of the CORPORATE 
HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE.  Present:- Councillor Graham Chairperson; 
and Mike Middleton, Vice Chairperson. City Council Representatives:- Councillors 
Cameron, Donnelly, Finlayson and Greig. 
 
Trade Union Representatives:-  Karen Davidson (UNISON), George Ferguson 
(UNISON), Sid Sandison (SSTA), Carole Thorpe (EIS) and David Willis (GMB). 
 
Officers in attendance:-  Angela Scott (Chief Executive), Ewan Sutherland 
(Director of Corporate Governance), Mary Agnew (Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Manager), Colin Leaver (Team Leader), Martyn Phillips (Health and Safety 
Adviser), Martin Allan (Business Manager), Bruce Findlater (Admin Officer), 
Michael Hearns (Directorate Support Manager), Lesley Kirk (Directorate Support 
Manager), Kate Mackay (Business Manager), Neil Yacamini (Project Manager), 
Euan Couperwhite (Head of Policy, Performance and Resources), John Quinn 
(Head of Land and Property Assets) and Mark Reilly (Head of Public Infrastructure 
and Environment). 

 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
1. Apologies were intimated on behalf of Gayle Gorman and Fraser Bell. 
 
 
APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRPERSON AND VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
2. The Clerk advised that in terms of the constitution the Committee were required 
to appoint a Chairperson from within the Trade Union members and a Vice Chairperson 
from within the Councillor membership.  She then called for nominations to the position 
of Chairperson, whereupon Councillor Graham, seconded by Karen Davidson 
nominated Mike Middleton.  There were no further nominations therefore Mike 
Middleton was appointed as Chairperson and took the Chair. 
 
The Clerk then called for nominations to the position of Vice Chairperson, whereupon 
Councillor Donnelly seconded by Mike Middleton, nominated Councillor Graham.  
There were no further nominations, therefore Councillor Graham was appointed as Vice 
Chairperson. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to appoint Mike Middleton as Chairperson and Councillor Graham as Vice Chairperson. 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 28 AUGUST 2015 
 
3. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 28 August 
2015. 
 

Agenda Item 2.5

Page 37



2 

 
 

The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
MATTERS ARISING 
 
4. With reference to article 5 of the previous meeting, the Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Manager advised that the School Security improvement plan had been 
submitted to her and that she had provided feedback on the document. 
 
With reference to article 10, resolution (ii), to note the request from Councillor Finlayson 
that the detail of the security breaches be re-issued to him. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager would re-issue the 

security breach information to Councillor Finlayson; and 
(ii) to otherwise note the information provided. 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
5. The Committee had before it a statement of outstanding business as prepared 
by the clerk. 
 
In relation to item 1 (School Security), Councillor Cameron requested that a date be 
added so the Committee knew when to expect a report on this issue.  The Chairperson 
advised that the Committee needed to see evidence that work was being done in this 
area as it has been an ongoing issue for a number of years.  The Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Manager advised that the Committee to date had received a workplan which 
gave dates and work to be carried out across a number of schools however an 
improvement plan was required to look at all aspects of school security.   
 
In relation to item 2 (Corporate Health and Safety Report – Training from Scottish Fire 
and Rescue Service), the Team Leader for Health, Safety and Wellbeing advised that 
he had spoken with them and that they didn’t provide fire safety training at their 
premises. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to request the Head of Policy, Performance and Resources to provide an interim 

report relating to the progress of School Security to the next meeting of this 
Committee; 

(ii) to remove items 2 (Corporate Health and Safety Report – Training from Scottish 
Fire and Rescue Service), 3 (Adult Health and Social Care Annual Report – 
Lone Working Procedures) and 4 (Corporate Fleet Management Performance 
and Compliance). 

 
 
SIGNIFICANT INCIDENT REPORT AT A DOMESTIC DWELLING 
 
6. The Committee had before it a significant incident report prepared by the Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing Team which provided details of an incident wherein a tenant fell 
into an open access hatch whilst a new gas central heating system was being installed 

Page 38



3 

 
 

in the property.  The report listed the causes of the accident and made various 
recommendations to prevent a similar incident. 
 
The report recommended: 
That the Service -  
1. Ensure that physical barriers are available and put in place before a hatch to sub 

floor is opened with improved signage on doors; 
2. After every incident a review of the risk assessments is required this should be 

carried out by a competent person with operational knowledge of gas installation 
work in consultation with employees; 

3. Ensure that employees who complete tasks are provided with updated 
information, instruction and training and implement a regime of periodic refresher 
arrangements and that they understand this; 

4. A review of onsite supervision to ensure that site visits include health and safety 
compliance; 

5. Review of pre work process to ensure that information is passed between 
Services to identify additional risk presented by vulnerable tenants such as the 
elderly and children; 

6. Review of the risk assessment training provided to staff including training on 
dynamic risk assessments for example the requirement is still for significant 
issues to be written down. 

 
Councillors and Trade Union members asked various questions relating to the health 
and safety arrangements and why employees had not followed correct procedures.  
The Head of Land and Property Assets advised that the majority of employees had 
received information via toolbox talks relating to the importance of having risk 
assessments in place and actions to mitigate those risks and that health and safety had 
to be followed at all times.   
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the additional information provided; and 
(ii) to endorse the recommendations for improvement. 
 
 
SIGNIFICANT INCIDENT REPORT AT A SHELTERED HOUSING COMPLEX - 
SOLAR PV FIRE 
 
7. The Committee had before it a significant incident report prepared by the Health, 
Safety and Wellbeing Team which presented details of an incident with a sheltered 
housing complex relating to a fire caused by electrical equipment associated with the 
solar photovoltaic (SPV) installation becoming overloaded.  The report advised that the 
cause of the fire was due to faulty installation as an isolator had not been fitted. 
 
The Head of Land and Property Assets provided an overview of the project and 
explained the current position with the contractor. 
 
Councillors and Trade Union members asked various questions relating to the safety of 
all other SPV installations. 
 
The report recommended: 
1. SPV contractor to check the design and installation of all SPV systems in 

Council buildings and that assurance was to be given that appropriate 

Page 39



4 

 
 

components had been used in accordance with industry standards and to 
prevent incidents; 

2. SPC contractor to produce individual system inspection reports with detailed 
findings and remedial actions; and that competent Council electricians were to 
accompany the SPV contractor; 

3. Inspection reports to be provided to the relevant officer within the Council 
responsible for the SPV contract. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that a meeting had been held between the Council and the SPV 

contractor where an agreement on the level of checks required had been 
reached; 

(ii) to note that an agreement was made to meet the following week after the checks 
had been carried out to review the results and agree an action plan, however the 
meeting did not happen; and 

(iii) to note that the contractor had entered administration and the Council were in 
discussions with another contractor to finish the identified actions. 

 
 
CORPORATE FLEET MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE - 
UPDATE - REPORT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES, HOUSING AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
 
8. With reference to article 8 of the minute of its meeting of 28 August 2015, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure which (1) presented the performance indicators relating to health and 
safety for Fleet; and (2) provided detailed responses in relation to the resolutions iv, v, 
vi and vii from the previous minute. 
 
The reported provided background information relating to the Traffic Commissioners 
Public Inquiries into the Councils Goods Vehicle Operators License. 
 
The report contained information relating to the second phase of improvement across 
the Fleet Service which had the aim of addressing the longer term efficiency and 
effectiveness of the service.  Part of the improvement plan was to ensure that the 
council had staff to manage the Fleet Service with three posts being advertised in 
December. 
 
The report presented the KPI’s for Fleet which included: 
(1) MOT % First Time Pass Rate (‘O’ Licence Vehicles) – year to date average 

98.11% 
(2) Roadside Inspections/resulting prohibitions – year to date roadside prohibitions 

7% 
(3) Value of Spare parts held as stock - £42,601 
(7) Licence Issues as % of Licence Checks – 1.36 
 
The report provided the following information in relation to resolutions from the meeting 
on 28 August 2015: 
 
Actions following the Glasgow Incident 

• A pro-active approach has been adopted to look at options following 
consideration of the information currently available around the Glasgow Incident 

Page 40



5 

 
 

• Once the Fatal Accident Inquiry had been completed, any recommendations 
would be considered and action taken where appropriate  

• A number of options had been identified and there had been early discussions 
with staff 

• A report would be presented to the Corporate Management Team detailing the 
options and outlining the necessary actions to implement them 

 
School Minibus Use and Compliance  

• The Public Transport Team had been working with Fleet Services to review their 
current procedures with regards to School minibuses 

• Appendix 1 to the report provided the findings of the review 
 
Fleet/Vehicle Compliance Awareness 

• The staff survey was undertaken between 30 April and 5 May 2015 and 411 
responses had been received 

• The responses were circulated to the previous report to this Committee on 28 
August 2015 

• Areas where respondents had concerns have been or are planned to be 
discussed in planned Team Briefs and training sessions and included: 
Overloading – covered in Loads and loading course, medical conditions – 
covered in driving licence team brief, highway code – covered by a full team 
brief, accident reporting – covered by a full team brief and Traffic Commissioner 
– covered in Operator Licence awareness training 

• Supervisors had been trained in daily walk round checks which would be 
cascaded down to all drivers 

• The surveys would be issued every six months to raise awareness of Fleet 
Compliance and to identify areas where there is a need to focus resources to 
improve awareness, performance and compliance 

 
Update on the Unite Case 

• The Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment and the Head of Land and 
Property Asset met with Joe Craig from Unite on 5 October to discuss 
compliance and induction processes within Building Services 

• It was identified that a driving induction was in place for any employee expected 
to drive a Council vehicle in accordance with the Building Services Transport 
Procedure 

• The induction process would be phased out as fleet developed their procedures 
and processes and that Building Services would fully comply with the policies 
and procedures which were being developed and implemented by Fleet Services 

 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee –  
(a) notes actions taken and measures put in place in Fleet Services, for monitoring 

performance of corporate Fleet Compliance; 
(b) request that for future reports only indicators 1, 2 and 7 and not indicator 3, are 

reported on giving assurance on compliance; 
(c) request that the Head of Human Resources and Customer Services brings a 

report to a future meeting of this Committee detailing the actions to be taken by 
this Council in light of the incident in Glasgow; 

(d) to note the review and findings of the Public Transport Team and Fleet Services, 
in relation to concerns raised over minibuses raised by this Committee; and to 

Page 41



6 

 
 

note the actions and measures put in place within the service for monitoring 
performance of safe minibus use and compliance; 

(e) to note the actions being taken to address staff issues raised in the recent staff 
survey on Fleet compliance; and 

(f) to note the report of the discussion between Unite, the Head of Land and 
Property Assets and the Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment with 
regard to the Fleet compliance and induction processes in Building Maintenance. 

 
Councillors and Trade Union colleagues asked various questions in relation to the 
report and specifically in relation to the process for minibus drivers within schools. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to thank the Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment for the robust report; 
(ii) in relation to a question from Councillor Finlayson regarding tests for minibus 

drivers, to request the Service Manager, Assets and Finance from Education and 
Children’s Services to provide a response advising on the type of test 
undertaken by drivers; 

(iii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT - OCTOBER 2014 TO 
SEPTEMBER 2015 
 
9. The Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director for Corporate 
Governance which presented the annual Health and Safety performance report for the 
Corporate Governance Directorate for the period 1 October 2014 to 30 September 
2015. 
 
The report contained the following statistics for the Directorate: 

• 4 incidents were reported none of which were reportable to the enforcing 
authority 

• 13 near misses were reported 

• the scores for the individual elements of the health and safety matrix were: 99% 
for Risk Assessment and Accidents and Incidents Reporting; and 96% for First 
Aid and Workplace Inspections 

• 119 employees attended health and safety training 

• the absence management figure was 7.2 days lost per employee, which 
although below the Council wide target of less than 10 days has increased from 
5.9 as recorded for October 2014 

 
The report appended the Corporate Governance Directorate Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Improvement Plan. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the content of the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



7 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT - OCTOBER 14 TO 
SEPTEMBER 15 
 
10. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education and Children’s 
Services which presented (1) the annual Health and Safety performance report for the 
period 1 October 2014 to 30 September 2015; and (2) additional information relating to 
the Children’s Services and Business Management sections of the former Social Care 
and Wellbeing Directorate for the period 1 July to 30 September 2014. 
 
The report provided the following statistical information: 
Education, Culture and Sport (Oct 14 – March 15) 

• 241 accidents were reported of which 3 were reportable to the enforcing 
authority 

• 71 incidents/near misses were reported 

• The number of days lost due to absence per employee is between 7 and 8 days 

• 2 Directorate health and safety meetings were held 
 
Social Care and Wellbeing – Children’s Services and Business Management (Oct 
14 – March 15) 

• 6 accidents were reported of which 1 was reportable to the enforcing authority 

• 16 incidents/near misses were reported 
The number of days lost due to absence per employee was between 6 and 12 

• 3 Directorate health and safety committees were held 
 
Education and Children’s Services (April to September 15) 

• 320 accidents were reported of which 9 were reportable to the enforcing 
authority 

• 174 incidents/near misses were reported 

• The number of days lost due to absence per employee was between 7 and 12 

• 2 Directorate health and safety committees were held 
 

Overall 

• Physical assault accounted for 25% of all accidents  

• 95% of these occurred in schools as a result of agitated behaviour by pupils 
against staff 

• The employee accident rate was 1.2% per 1000 employees 

• Over 500 employees received the flu vaccinations in November 2014 

• 1267 employees attended health and safety training 

• The average (across the three business areas) scores for the individual 
elements of the health and safety matrix were: 100% for First Aid; 99% for 
Machinery, Plant and Equipment; 98% for Welfare and Housekeeping and 
Cleaning; 96% for Emergency Precautions and Environment; 87% for Risk 
Assessment and 86% for Slip and Trip Hazards 

 
Children’s Services and Business Management (July to September 2014) 

• 5 accidents were reported (Children’s Services), none of which were reportable 
to the enforcing authority 

• 1 accident to third parties was reported 

• 4 incidents were reported 

• The number of days lost due to absence per employee was between 6 (Business 
Management) and 15 (Children’s Services) 

 

Page 43



8 

 
 

The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the content of the report. 
 
Councillor Finlayson stated that the number of assaults on staff was worrying and 
sought assurance that action was being taken, whereupon the Directorate Support 
Manager advised that every incident was investigated and that the Quality Improvement 
Officers were involved to ensure that Risk Assessments for children that required them 
were in place with an action plan completed for each child.  She further advised that de-
escalation training was in place across all schools. 
 
The Chairperson requested that staff were encouraged to report all incidents and that 
support was in place to assist them to deal with issues and incidents. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
To approve the recommendation as contained in the report. 
 
 
CORPORATE HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT - JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2015 - 
REPORT BY THE INTERIM DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
11. Prior to consideration of the report, the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager 
provided an overview of the Health and Safety Dashboard which was available for 
anyone to access on the zone.  She navigated through the different areas to show the 
Committee where to find the information. 
 
With reference to article 6 of the minute of its previous meeting of 28 August 2015, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Interim Director of Corporate Governance 
which presented details of the number and types of accidents, incidents and 
occurrences during July to September 2015. 
 
The report provided statistical information broken down into the following categories: 
 
Accidents, Incidents, Accident Rates and Incidents 

• 100 accidents to employees were reported of which 6 were reportable to the 
enforcing authority 

• 109 accidents to third parties were reported of which 2 were reportable to the 
enforcing authority 

• The reportable accident rate was 0.98 per 1000 employees which was a 
reduction from the previous year (1.13) 

• 169 incidents to employees were reported with threatening and menacing 
behaviour being the highest cause with 70 reported 

 
Enforcement Interventions – Health and Safety Executive (HSE) 

• Work was being undertaken in an elderly tenants home to replace the central 
heating system and the tenant fell through an open hatch as no barriers were in 
place (article 6 pf this minute provides more detail) 

 
Health and Safety Training and Cancellations 

• 216 employees attended health and safety training  

• there were 35 late cancellations and no shows which resulted in £1672.00 being 
back charged to Services  

• there had been 28 feedback responses received out of the 50 issued 
 

Page 44



9 

 
 

Fire Risk Assessments 

• 31 fire risk assessments were carried out 

• A range of both positive and negative findings were reported to the premises 
responsible person and related directorate so that remedial action could be 
progressed and monitored via Service Management Committees 

 
The report recommended: 
That the Committee refer the report to the Corporate Management Team –  
(a) to discuss and encourage review of statistics by Heads of Service with Service 

specific detail to be discussed at Service Management Teams; 
(b) to support actions to reduce accidents and work related ill health in line with 

health and safety targets; and 
(c) to disseminate and take action on the health and safety information in the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH REPORT - AUGUST TO SEPTEMBER 2015 - OH 
ASSIST 
 
12. The Committee had before it a report by OH Assist, the Council’s Occupational 
Health provider, which presented the utilisation statistics for the period 3 August to 30 
September 2015. 
 
The report provided the following statistics: 

• 143 referrals had been received 

• the highest number of referrals came from the Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure Directorate (41) 

• 37 % of referrals related to Mental Health and Behavioural Disorders 

• 13% of referrals related to Low Back Pain 

• 9% of referrals related to Nervous System – Other 

• 19 physiotherapy assessments had taken place 

• there were 4 short notice cancellations  

• training for Head Teachers had taken place to support vista referrals 

• case conferencing had been introduced to review the top absence cases 

• online guidance for managers that been produced 

• OH Assist were working with the Council to development a strategic plan to 
support the top 3 Health and Wellbeing objectives 

 
Sid Sandison requested that the statistics for Mental Health referrals be split to show 
work related and non-work related, whereupon the Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Manager advised that she has requested this information and that the format for the 
report may change. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



10 

 
 

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAMME REPORT - JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2015 
 
13. With reference to article 11 of the minute of its previous meeting of 28 August 
2015, the Committee had before it a report prepared by Time for Talking which 
presented the utilisation of the Employee Assistance Programme for the period 1 July 
to 30 September 2015. 
 
The report provided the following statistics: 

• 26 referrals had been received 

• 21 referrals were related to personal issues 

• 5 referrals were related to work issues 

• there were 21 face to face referrals 

• there were 3 telephone referrals 

• 1 feedback form had been received 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the content of the report 
 
 
HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PLAN - VERBAL UPDATE FROM THE 
HEATH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING MANAGER 
 
14. The Health, Safety and Wellbeing Manager advised that colleagues across the 
Directorates had requested that they produce a health and safety workplan and that 
these would formulate the Corporate Health and Safety Action Plan. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note the information. 
 
 
FUTURE MEETING DATES 
 
15. The Committee had before it a schedule of meetings for 2016. 
 
The Clerk advised that the date in November may require to be changed due to the 
parent Committee, Audit, Risk and Scrutiny meeting the day before and that notification 
would be issued in due course. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that the date in November may change and that notification would be 

circulated to the Committee; and 
(ii) to agree the dates for 2016, those being: 

Friday 19 February 
Friday 20 May 
Friday 26 August 

 
- MIKE MIDDLETON, Chairperson 

 
 
 

Page 46



 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee 
 
DATE  9 March 2016 
 
DIRECTOR  Richard Ellis 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  ALEO Governance Hubs 
 
REPORT NUMBER CG/16/027 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED     Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report summarises the significant matters raised at the December 
round of Arm’s Length External Organisation (ALEO) Governance Hub 
meetings. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
That the Committee:- 
 
(1) Considers the issues raised in both the report and minutes and 

identifies any areas of concern; 
(2) Notes the report and the appended minutes;  
(3) Notes that the Governance Hub will begin meeting quarterly during 

2016 and will commence scrutiny of tier 2 ALEOs in May; and 
(4) Refers the individual minutes, with a specific covering report to be 

prepared by the responsible Head of Service, to the appropriate 
service committee to consider ALEO performance against agreed 
performance indicators and contract. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report although 
the role of the hub is to ensure that good governance and scrutiny of the 
Council’s ALEOs provides an assurance that risks, including financial ones, 
are identified and managed. 

 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
 

4.1 By identifying possible risks to the Council, through scrutiny by 
appropriate Council managers, the hub provides assurance that the Council’s 
exposure through services delivered by its ALEOs is managed appropriately. 

 

Agenda Item 2.6

Page 47



 

2 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 The review schedule introduced following the most recent review of the 
operation of the Governance Hub comprised biannual meetings, initially 
involving the four main tier 1 ALEOs (Aberdeen Exhibition and Conference 
Centre Ltd, Aberdeen Sports Village Ventures Ltd, Bon Accord Care Ltd and 
Sport Aberdeen). The timetable for the December 2015 round of Hub 
meetings is attached as Appendix 1 to illustrate to members the process 
involved in selecting areas for scrutiny, identifying the appropriate 
documentation and involving relevant conveners and vice conveners in the 
pre agenda process. 
 
5.2 Following a recent audit report into ALEO governance, the Chief 
Executive has asked that the cycle be held on a quarterly basis and this will 
be introduced this year; the next round of Hubs will be held in May and the 
following cycle in August, and this process will lead to a contraction of that 
shown in Appendix 1. 
 
5.3 Beginning with the May 2016 round, it is also intended that consideration 
will be given to tier 2 ALEOs (Aberdeen Performing Arts, Aberdeen Heat and 
Power Company Ltd and Garthdee Alpine Sports). 
 
5.4 When considering business to be discussed with ALEO representatives, 
the Hub members take account of best practice, legislative and regulatory 
change, internal and external audit reports, matters raised at previous hub 
meetings and external reports, reviews and consultations. 
 
5.5 The following bullet points summarise the main issues arising from each 
of the December hub meetings, as detailed more fully in the appended 
minutes.  
 
Aberdeen Sports Village – Appendix 2, 7th December, 2015 
 

• Outstanding audit recommendations being reviewed by ASV senior 
management team 

• Business continuity procedures being revised and would require to be 
retested following recent incident 

• Proposals by ASV to increase number of board members resisted by 
Council; to be discussed at January ASV Partnership meeting 

• Meeting to be arranged to discuss statutory compliance with new 
procurement legislation 

• Implications of reduction in core funding planned for 

• Staff increments/turnover/Living Wage/Zero Hours contracts 

• Temporary closure of 25m pool 

• Phase Three development to be ready to go to tender in late January 

• New KPIs to be added to performance management framework 

• Management of complaints and staff absence/use of monthly 
performance data 

• Falling swimming pool use 

• Commonwealth Games legacy – increase in para sports use, fall in 
child participation 

Page 48



 

3 
 

• Fall in energy use/establishment of ASV Energy Sub Group 

• Training of casual staff 

• Balancing needs of clubs and service users 
 
Aberdeen Exhibition and Conference Centre – Appendix 3, 8th December 
2015 
 

• Business Plan for 2016/17 to be submitted to Board in spring, 
challenging year expected, difficulties in forecasting revenue from 
entertainment events, staff headcount expected to reduce 

• Analysis of strengths and weaknesses of Board members 

• Meeting to be arranged to discuss statutory compliance with new 
procurement legislation 

• Business continuity planning/aspiration for ISO accreditation 

• Implications of reduction in core funding planned for 

• Casual staff/Living Wage 

• Risk Register not updated since October 2014 – risk workshop now 
scheduled, new venue implications discussed 

• New venue considerations – ongoing programme of events, staff 
morale, tendering plans 

• No up to date SLA in place, two years since last reviewed, discussions 
ongoing 
 
 

Bon Accord Care – Appendix 4, 8th December, 2015 
 

• Bespoke financial procedures to be developed during 2016 

• Procurement policy revised, further changes necessary to comply with 
new procurement legislation, meeting to be arranged to discuss 
compliance 

• Extent to which internal audit procedures sufficiently independent, 
associated risk and need for impartiality/ internal audit performance 

• Health and safety performance, no facility scoring above 75% 

• New health and safety policy and action plan being developed to 
comply with HSE guidance, to be in place prior to May Hub meeting 

• Risk Register standing item on each Board agenda 

• Possible reduction in core funding not issue as BAC receives funding 
for services delivered in terms of contract, difficulties arising from 
Council being unable to determine categorically short/medium term 
funding 

• £1m efficiency savings made, profit of £52,000 to be recorded for 
2015/16 

• SLA constrains development of new funding streams 

• Staff reduction in previous year, increment impact 

• Proposed City Home Help trading company 

• Pensions deficit 

• Business Continuity Workbook reviewed annually, to be updated prior 
to May Hub meetings 

• Service Performance Working Group to be established to review BAC 
performance reporting, provide more context and analysis and 

Page 49



 

4 
 

recommend how reporting can be streamlined and improved, to assist  
BAC Board and provide increased assurance to Council 

• Enablement programme – second tranche of training beginning  

• Value for money/delivery of services exceeding contract 
 
 

Sport Aberdeen – Appendix 5, 14th December 2015 

• Draft Business Continuity Plan to be considered by Corporate 
Governance Committee in January 

• Risk Management Strategy updated following internal audit 
recommendations and reflected best practice 

• Assessment of strategic and operational risk, priority 2 
recommendations by internal auditors actioned  

• Business Plan 2016/17 – 2018/19 to be presented to Board in 
December, finalisation dependent upon confirmation of core funding by 
Council  

• Strategic approach to health and safety/establishment of Health and 
Safety Committee 

• Meeting to be arranged to discuss statutory compliance with new 
procurement legislation 

• Swimming pool condition/impact on service delivery/overprovision in 
local market 

• Community Planning Partnership framework, alignment with Single 
Outcome Agreement, lead role in Active Aberdeen Partnership 

• Balancing swimming provision - high performance/grassroots services, 
impact of pool closures 

• Discussions with Council on 25 year service provision agreement, long 
term planning benefits 

• Performance management/benchmarking 

• Business Plan 2016/17 assumptions  - no reduction in core funding 
assumed 

• Year End surplus of £30-50,000 forecast 

• Implications of emergency repairs and maintenance of ageing property 
portfolio 

• Biggest threats to Business Continuity, role of SA in civil contingency 
planning 

• Possible role in Prevent Strategy 
  
6. IMPACT 

 
Improving Customer Experience – 

6.1 The report summarises recent discussions at the Governance Hub, which 
are explained in greater detail in the appended minutes. By providing an 
assurance to the Council that high level scrutiny of ALEO performance is 
undertaken in such a way as to mitigate risks, the monitoring of service 
provision can ensure that service delivery meets targets and performance 
indicators. Service delivery and performance will be scrutinised by operational 
service staff in each case. 
 

Improving Staff Experience –  

Page 50



 

5 
 

6.2 The manner in which the Hub operates allows senior managers to 
scrutinise high level service delivery within the areas of their own expertise, 
which will increase the confidence of officers in addressing the more detailed 
operational aspects of provision against contract for each ALEO. 
 

Improving our use of Resources –  
6.3 The Council establishes ALEOs to improve its use of resources and so 
having an efficient and effective high level monitoring process in place 
provides assurance that the ALEOs funded with public money are operating 
appropriately and delivering in terms of contract, thereby providing value for 
money. 

 
Corporate –  

6.4 The Governance Hub helps meet the Smarter Aberdeen priority of 
openness through public reporting of the high level monitoring of the operation 
of the Council’s ALEOs, which in turn supports the priorities of public access 
to sport and leisure facilities.  ALEOs are required in terms in contract to 
deliver against the Single Outcome Agreement and KPIs for service delivery 
are monitored by each service individually. 
 

 
Public –  

6.5 Although there are no direct recommendations arising from this report, 
there is likely to be public interest in the scrutiny of the performance of ALEOs 
against contract, particularly in view of ongoing questions about a perceived 
reduction in public access to facilities compared to hours for schools and 
clubs, the availability of particular services and their costs and ongoing 
budgetary concerns for each ALEO. 
 
 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 

 
7.1 The Governance Hub has been established to provide the Council with an 
assurance that the risks associated with each ALEO are being monitored and 
scrutinised at a high level, and that any identified are addressed by each 
service through its own Risk Register. 
 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
8.1 There are none other than those specified in each minute in the 
Appendices. 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Roderick MacBeath 
Senior Democratic Services Manager 
Legal and Democratic Services 
 
rmacbeath@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(01224) 523054 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                            APPENDIX 1 

 

 ALEO Governance Schedule: December 2015 

 

29 July 2015 – Proposed timetable cascaded to officers for comment 

5 August 2015 – Deadline for officers to amend December 2015 timetable 

10 August 2015 – ALEOs sent December 2015 timetable 

17 August 2015 – Deadline for ALEOs to amend December 2015 timetable 

18 August 2015 – Clerk sends out meeting appointments to Officers, ALEOs and internal 

and external audit 

5 October 2015 - ALEO Officers Pre Meeting (selection of topics for scrutiny and documents 

required as evidence) 

7 October 2015 – Clerk emails ALEOs to request documentation for agenda and outlines 

areas of scrutiny to ALEOs 

13 November 2015 – Deadline for ALEOs to return documentation to the Clerk 

20 November 2015 – Clerk to compile and cascade agendas 

27 November 2015 – Pre Meeting with Conveners and Vice Conveners of Audit, Risk and 

Scrutiny; Communities, Housing and Infrastructure; Education and Children’s Services and 

Shadow Integration Joint Board 

7 December 2015 – Governance Hub Meeting 1: 9am -11am (ASV) 

8 December 2015 – Governance Hub Meeting 2: 9am – 1pm (AECC; BAC) 

14 December 2015 – Governance Hub Meeting 3: 11am – 1pm (SA) 

1 February 2016 – Minutes produced and cascaded to Officers and ALEOs for comment 

5 February 2016 – Deadline for Officers and ALEO minutes comments 

8 February 2016 –Covering report and Hub minutes sent to Clerk of Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 

Committee 

25 February 2016 – Audit and Risk Committee 

14 March 2016 – Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Committee 

24 March 2016 – Education and Children’s Services Committee 

 

 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

1
 

 

 
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

, 
7
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 M
in

u
te

 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 

th
e
 A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

. 
P

re
s
e
n
t :
- 

 R
o
d
e
ri
c
k
 M

a
c
B

e
a
th

 (
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
),

 C
h
a
ir
p
e
rs

o
n
; 

a
n
d
 N

e
il 

B
u
c
k
 (

IT
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
),

 E
u
a
n
 C

o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 (

P
o
lic

y
, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

a
n
d
 P

a
u
l 
D

ix
o

n
 

(F
in

a
n
c
e
) 

a
n
d
 J

a
n
 G

ri
ff

it
h
s
 (

S
p
o
rt

s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r)

, 
K

e
n
n
y
 G

u
n
n
y
e
o
n
 (

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r)

 D
u
n
c
a
n
 S

in
c
la

ir
 (

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
),

 S
u
e

 S
te

p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 (

F
in

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r)

 a
n
d
 J

a
n
e
 T

h
o
m

s
o
n
 (

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
M

a
n
a
g

e
r)

 (
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 S

p
o
rt

s
 V

ill
a
g

e
 

V
e
n
tu

re
s
 L

td
 (

A
S

V
))

. 
 A

ls
o
 i
n
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
: 
Ia

in
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 (

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

a
n
d
 M

a
rk

 J
o
h
n
s
to

n
e
 (

A
u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
).

 
 A

p
o
lo

g
ie

s
: 

M
a
ry

 A
g

n
e
w

 (
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
),

 J
e
ff

 C
a
p
s
ti
c
k
 (

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

a
n
d
 J

o
a
n
 

M
c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 (

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
).

 
 

 
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
. 

C
h
a
ir
’s

 O
p
e
n
in

g
 

R
e
m

a
rk

s
 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 a

 
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

L
E

O
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 p

a
re

n
t 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

n
 1

8
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

a
n
d
 2

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 
H

e
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

o
u
ld

 p
u
b
lis

h
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 A

L
E

O
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g

 h
o
ld

in
g

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 H

u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
c
y
c
le

 o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

w
e
e
k
 b

e
g

in
n
in

g
 9

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
6
. 
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

N
/A

 

Page 55



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

2
 

 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

2
. 

M
in

u
te

 o
f 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 –
 1

5
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
5
 

A
L
E

O
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 H

u
b
 m

in
u
te

 –
 

1
5
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
 

W
it
h
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 i
te

m
 5

 o
f 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

m
in

u
te

, 
P

a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 (

F
in

a
n
c
e
) 

a
s
k
e
d
 i
f 

a
n
y
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 t

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 A

S
V

’s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

u
d
it
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

S
u
e
 S

te
p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 

(F
in

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r,

 A
S

V
) 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
A

S
V

 
h
a
d
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
n
e
 t
h
e
ir
 y

e
a
r-

e
n
d
 

a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

e
n
io

r 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 (
S

M
T

).
 

  

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 m

in
u
te

 
a
s
 a

 c
o
rr

e
c
t 
re

c
o
rd

; 
a
n
d
 

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 
 

 

I 
R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

3
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
) 

 

N
/A

 
N

e
il 

B
u
c
k
 (

IT
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
) 

a
s
k
e
d
 

h
o
w

 A
S

V
’s

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

la
n
s
 w

e
re

 
te

s
te

d
. 

S
u
e
 S

te
p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 w
a
s
 u

s
u
a
lly

 d
o
n
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 d
e
s
k
to

p
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
. 

K
e
n
n
y
 G

u
n
n
y
e
o
n
 (

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r,

 A
S

V
) 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 

th
a
t 
A

S
V

’s
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

e
re

 h
o
s
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
n
e
 a

 r
e
a
l 
ti
m

e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
t 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 A

q
u
a
ti
c
 C

e
n
tr

e
’s

 f
ib

re
 l
in

k
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

u
t 

w
h
ic

h
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 

in
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
’s

 I
T

 s
o
ft

w
a
re

 b
e
in

g
 o

ff
lin

e
 f

o
r 

e
ig

h
t 
d
a
y
s
. 

H
e
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 t
h
is

 
in

c
id

e
n
t,

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

w
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

o
u

ld
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
te

s
te

d
. 
 

 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

 
 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

Page 56



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

3
 

 

4
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
) 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 i
te

m
 w

a
s
 o

n
 

to
d
a
y
’s

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 u

n
d
e
r 

it
e
m

 3
. 

 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

 
 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

5
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(A
C

C
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
A

S
V

 
B

o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
) 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
A

S
V

’s
 C

h
a
ir
 h

a
d
 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 h

is
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

te
p
 d

o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 1

1
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 h

is
 l
a
s
t.
 T

h
e
 

C
h
a
ir
 a

s
k
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

A
S

V
's

 r
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t
h
e
 o

u
tg

o
in

g
 C

h
a
ir
: 

D
u
n
c
a
n
 S

in
c
la

ir
 (

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

A
S

V
) 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o
r 

M
ik

e
 G

re
a
v
e
s
 

w
o
u

ld
 C

h
a
ir
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 
p
e
ri
o
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

lo
o
k
 t

o
 a

p
p
o
in

t 
a
 

m
o
re

 p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
C

h
a
ir
. 

 T
h
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

s
k
e
d
 h

o
w

 A
S

V
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t

h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
B

o
a
rd

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
y
 c

o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 

m
a
k
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
. 

D
u
n
c
a
n
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 J

o
in

t 
V

e
n
tu

re
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

h
a
d
 m

a
n
d
a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 b
e
 f
o
u
r 

A
C

C
 a

n
d
 

fo
u
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
a
n
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
is

 p
ri
s
m

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
d
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 t

o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 

b
a
s
e
 w

h
ils

t 
a
ls

o
 b

e
in

g
 m

in
d
fu

l 
o
f 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
s
o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 g

e
n
d
e
r 

b
a
la

n
c
e
. 

S
u
e
 

S
te

p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a

t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
B

o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 
b
u
t 

in
it
ia

l 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
s
is

te
d
 b

y
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 

n
e
x
t 

A
S

V
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 w
it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 

to
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

S
V

 B
o
a
rd

 a
t 
th

e
 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

R
 M

a
c
B

e
a
th

 

Page 57



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

4
 

 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
o
 t
h
is

 p
o
in

t 
E

u
a
n
 

C
o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 (

P
o
lic

y
, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

s
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
s
u
e
 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

A
S

V
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
6
. 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

6
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

) 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
J
o
a
n
 M

c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 

(C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

h
a
d
 s

e
n
t 
h
e
r 

a
p
o
lo

g
ie

s
 f
o
r 

to
d
a
y
’s

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 
b
u
t 

h
a
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 a

 n
o
te

 o
n
 A

S
V

’s
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 h

e
 

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

u
b
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

h
a
d
 c

o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
n
 1

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

fo
r 

fa
ir
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
rd

 
c
ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

v
e
r 

£
5
0
,0

0
0
. 
H

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
a
 b

id
d
e
r 

to
 f
a
ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
, 
a
n
d
 m

u
s
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t,
 

re
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
te

rm
s
 o

f 
e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 s

k
ill

s
 

u
ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
, 
jo

b
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
M

s
 

M
c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
 a

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

w
it
h
 A

S
V

 i
n
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 A

c
t 

c
a
m

e
 

in
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

in
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 

 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

a
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 b
e
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 

in
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 Y
e
a
r 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

S
V

 a
n
d
 

A
C

C
’s

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

th
a
t 
A

S
V

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
R

e
fo

rm
 

(S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 
2
0
1
4
 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
t’
s
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 d

a
te

 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

  

J
 M

c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

7
. 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
-1

8
 

P
a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 a

s
k
e

d
 t
h
e
 A

S
V

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
6
-1

7
. 

S
u
e
 S

te
p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
e
re

 t
o
 b

e
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
 D

ix
o
n

 

Page 58



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

5
 

 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 b

o
th

 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
th

e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 t
o
 r

e
v
e
rt

 t
o
 a

 d
e
fi
c
it
 b

y
 

2
0
1
7
-1

8
. 
S

h
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

is
 

d
e
fi
c
it
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 b

ri
d
g
e
 f

u
tu

re
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

g
a
p
s
. 

D
u
n
c
a
n
 S

in
c
la

ir
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

w
e
re

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
n
g
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 f

o
u
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

is
c
o
u
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

th
a
t 
A

S
V

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t

o
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 A

C
C

 
s
ta

ff
, 
in

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 s

c
a
lin

g
 b

a
c
k
 d

e
s
ir
a
b
le

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
w

e
re

 n
o
t 
a
n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 
T

o
 t

h
is

 p
o
in

t,
 N

e
il 

B
u
c
k
 

s
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 r

is
k
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
a
p
tu

re
d
 i
n
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
ir
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
a
n
d
 r

is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 P
a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 A

S
V

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 w

it
h
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

in
c
re

m
e
n
ta

l 
d
ri
ft

 p
o
s
it
io

n
. 
K

e
n
n
y
 

G
u
n
n
y
e
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
is

 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 e

v
e
n
 o

u
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

w
a
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

q
u
a
ti
c
s
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 h

e
a
d
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
. 
M

r 
G

u
n
n
y
e
o
n
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 h

a
d
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 l
o
w

 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 a
t 
th

e
 t
o
p
 

o
f 

th
e
ir
 s

a
la

ry
 g

ra
d
e
s
. 
H

e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

th
a
t 
A

S
V

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 s

ta
ff
 u

n
d
e
r 

z
e
ro

 h
o
u
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t

h
is

 w
a
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 
c
o
n
fi
n
e
d
 t

o
 s

p
o
rt

s
 c

o
a
c
h
e
s
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 f

o
r 

tw
o
 h

o
u
rs

 a
 w

e
e
k
; 
a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 p

a
id

 t
h
e
 L

iv
in

g
 W

a
g
e
 t

o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 

 

P
h
a
s
e
 T

h
re

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
t 
th

e
 

n
e
x
t 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1
6
; 

(i
ii)

 
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

A
S

V
 B

o
a
rd

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 s

c
a
lin

g
 b

a
c
k
 o

r 
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

o
 

b
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
ir
 

ri
s
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
a
n
d
 r

is
k
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
v
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 
 

Page 59



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

6
 

 

T
h
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

P
a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 i
f 

th
e
 o

il 
d
o
w

n
tu

rn
 h

a
d
 h

a
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
. 

S
u
e
 S

te
p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
 

n
o
ti
c
e
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

h
a
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
 

in
te

rn
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 w
h
ic

h
 f

o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 
D

u
n
c
a
n
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
 w

a
s
 o

p
ti
m

is
ti
c
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 
w

a
s
 a

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

b
a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 

to
 s

u
s
ta

in
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

fr
o
m

 h
is

 p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
 A

S
V

 a
n
d
 S

p
o
rt

 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 t

o
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
t 

w
e
re

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
to

rs
 i
n
 

th
e
 s

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 m

a
rk

e
t 
b
u
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
y
 

w
o
rk

e
d
 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 E

u
a
n
 C

o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

c
lo

s
u
re

 d
u
ri
n
g
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 o

f 
A

S
V

’s
 

2
5
 m

e
tr

e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 p

o
o
l.
 D

u
n
c
a
n
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
a
 l
e
a
k
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
te

c
te

d
 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 p

o
o
l 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

lo
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic

 f
o
r 

e
ig

h
t 

d
a
y
s
 w

h
ils

t 
in

te
ri
m

 r
e
p
a
ir
s
 

h
a
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
H

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
p
a
ir
 

c
o
s
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

e
t 
b
y
 G

ra
h
a
m

 
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 m

a
in

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
o
f 

th
e
 

A
q

u
a
ti
c
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 

 M
r 

C
o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 a

ls
o
 a

s
k
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

S
V

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 w

it
h
 a

n
 

u
p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

h
a
s
e
 

T
h
re

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 D

u
n
c
a
n
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 

Page 60



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

7
 

 

th
e
ir
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
 a

 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

in
 l
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

/F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 
b
u
t 
th

a
t 
n
o
 w

o
rk

 w
o
u
ld

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 u

n
ti
l 

fu
n
d
in

g
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

b
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
H

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

h
e
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 

th
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 A

C
C

 a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 w

o
u
ld

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
o
f 

th
is

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 b
o
th

 a
n
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
. 
  

  

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

8
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
 

S
e
lf
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
–
 A

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 A

S
V

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
S

u
e
 S

te
p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
ir
 

K
P

Is
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
ir
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 h
a
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
K

P
Is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
n
e
w

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

w
h

ic
h
 w

o
u
ld

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
S

h
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

S
M

T
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
 N

e
il 

B
u
c
k
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

ra
ft

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 a
s
 a

t 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 

n
o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 

s
ta

ff
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 h

a
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
n
y
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
J
a
n
 G

ri
ff

it
h
s
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
d
 t
o
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
a
s
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
a
n
d
 

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

Page 61



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

8
 

 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
e
re

 
c
o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 f
e
w

 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r,

 w
it
h
 4

8
3
 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 

u
s
a
g

e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

o
n
e
 m

ill
io

n
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

; 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

b
y
 o

v
e
r 

3
0
0
,0

0
0
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 S
h
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 

th
a
t 
e
v
e
ry

 c
o
m

p
la

in
t 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 w

it
h
in

 f
iv

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
. 

K
e
n
n
y
 G

u
n
n
y
e
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

s
ta

ff
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 h

a
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
u
rt

h
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

a
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
s
u
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
d
 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

 E
u
a
n
 C

o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

c
o
rr

e
la

ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 h

o
w

 m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
u
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

. 
D

u
n
c
a
n
 S

in
c
la

ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
w

e
re

 l
in

k
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
re

v
is

in
g

 t
h
e
 

H
o
w

 g
o
o
d
 i
s
 o

u
r 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

th
re

e
 n

e
w

 K
P

Is
 a

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 n

e
x
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
. 

S
u
e
 S

te
p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 

th
a
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 h
a
d
 p

ro
v
e
n
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 u

s
e
fu

l 
in

 d
e
te

rm
in

in
g
 t
re

n
d
s
 i
n
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

u
s
a
g

e
 a

n
d
 o

c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
a
s
. 

 M
r 

C
o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 a
s
 a

t 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 

n
o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

o
o
l 

Page 62



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

9
 

 

u
s
e
rs

 h
a
d
 f

a
lle

n
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 K
e
n
n
y
 G

u
n
n
y
e
o
n
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
h
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
 f

o
o
tf

a
ll 

b
u
t 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

lw
a

y
s
 r

o
o
m

 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h

e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

p
o
o
ls

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 m

o
re

 o
ft

e
n
 b

y
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 t
h
a
n
 p

a
y
 a

s
 y

o
u
 p

la
y
 u

s
e
rs

 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 
a
lig

n
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 

th
e
y
 h

a
d
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t.
 J

a
n
 G

ri
ff

it
h
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

q
u
a
ti
c
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
d
 p

ro
v
e
n
 t

o
 b

e
 

v
e
ry

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
d
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 a

 
ta

k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
6
0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 p

e
r 

w
e
e
k
 b

u
t 
th

e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
fi
g

u
re

 s
to

o
d
 a

t 
o
v
e
r 

1
3
0
0
. 

 M
r 

C
o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 i
f 

th
e
 2

0
1
4
 

C
o
m

m
o
n
w

e
a
lt
h
 G

a
m

e
s
 h

a
d
 h

a
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 s

p
o
rt

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

. 
S

u
e
 

S
te

p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
it
 w

a
s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
rr

e
la

ti
o
n
 b

u
t 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
it
 w

a
s
 a

 m
ix

e
d
 p

ic
tu

re
, 

w
it
h
 

a
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

a
ra

 s
p
o
rt

s
 b

e
in

g
 

o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

h
ild

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 

in
 s

p
o
rt

s
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
1
4
. 
 

 M
r 

C
o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 a
s
 a

t 
J
u
ly

 2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 

n
o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
A

S
V

’s
 e

n
e
rg

y
 u

s
a
g

e
 h

a
d
 f
a
lle

n
 

in
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
is

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 

S
u
e
 S

te
p
h
e
n
s
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
ir
 s

ta
ff

 e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
d
 

fo
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 s

h
e
 j
u
d
g

e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 b
o
tt
o
m

-u
p
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 h

a
d
 p

ro
v
e
n
 t

o
 b

e
 

Page 63



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

1
0

 

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
. 

S
h
e
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

w
in

te
r 

o
f 

2
0
1
4
-1

5
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 
m

ild
 b

u
t 
in

te
rn

a
l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

d
im

m
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 p

o
o
l 
lig

h
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

u
b
 G

ro
u
p
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 e

n
e
rg

y
 u

s
a
g

e
 t
o
 S

M
T

 o
n
 a

 
m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 h
a
d
 a

ls
o
 h

e
lp

e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
  

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

9
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

D
ra

ft
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
5
 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

s
k
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

S
V

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 s

ta
ff

 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 

if
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
d
 a

n
y
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 

th
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

h
ig

h
ly

 
tr

a
in

e
d
 c

a
s
u
a
l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 l
if
e
g

u
a
rd

s
 

e
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
ir
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 A

S
V

 a
t 

s
h
o
rt

 
n
o
ti
c
e
. 

K
e
n
n
y
 G

u
n
n
y
e
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
a
ll 

c
a
s
u
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

n
e
 

m
o
n
th

’s
 n

o
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 A

S
V

 c
o
u
ld

 a
d
v
e
rt

is
e
 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
is

 n
o
ti
c
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 

J
a
n
e
 

T
h
o
m

s
o
n
 (

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r,

 A
S

V
) 

a
d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 h

a
d
 t

o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
u
rs

 o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

a
n
d
 a

b
le

 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t

h
e
ir
 r

o
le

s
; 
a
n
d
 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

s
tr

in
g

e
n
t 
fo

r 
lif

e
g

u
a
rd

s
. 

 E
u
a
n
 C

o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 h

o
w

 A
S

V
 h

a
d
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 b

o
o
k
in

g
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

c
lu

b
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 h

e
 m

a
d
e
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
w

im
m

in
g

 p
o
o
ls

. 
K

e
n
n
y
 G

u
n
n
y
e
o
n
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
A

S
V

 h
a
d
 s

tr
u
c
k
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

  
  
 t

o
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
a
n
d
 

(i
i)
  
  
 t

o
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
  

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

 

E
 C

o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 

Page 64



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

1
1

 

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 d
e
g
re

e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 s
w

im
m

in
g

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
a
ll 

ti
m

e
s
 

w
h

ic
h
 w

a
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
t 
to

 t
h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
o
f 

m
o
s
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 p

o
o
ls

. 
J
a
n
e
 T

h
o
m

s
o
n
 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

d
, 

a
n
d
 s

h
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

n
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
o
l 

te
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 L

e
a
rn

 t
o
 S

w
im

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 T
h
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

M
r 

C
o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 i
f 

A
S

V
 w

e
re

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

L
e
is

u
re

 S
c
h
e
m

e
. 
D

u
n
c
a
n
 S

in
c
la

ir
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
A

S
V

 o
p
e
ra

te
d
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

a
s
 i
t 

w
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 A

C
C

. 
  
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
0
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
’s

 
C

lo
s
in

g
 R

e
m

a
rk

s
 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 t
h
a
n
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 S

p
o
rt

s
 V

ill
a
g

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 

a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
le

rk
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 m

in
u
te

s
 f
ro

m
 

to
d
a
y
’s

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

5
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 t
h
e
n
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t

o
 a

 
c
lo

s
e
. 

 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

N
/A

 

  

Page 65



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
A

B
E

R
D

E
E

N
 S

P
O

R
T

S
 V

IL
L

A
G

E
 V

E
N

T
U

R
E

S
 L

T
D

 
 

1
2

 

  If
 

y
o

u
 

re
q

u
ir

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
a
b

o
u

t 
th

is
 

m
in

u
te

, 
p

le
a
s
e
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

Ia
in

 
R

o
b

e
rt

s
o

n
 

te
l.
 

0
1
2
2
4
 

5
2
2
8
6
9
 

o
r 

e
m

a
il
 

ia
ir

o
b

e
rt

s
o

n
@

a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

Page 66



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

1
 

 

 
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

, 
8

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 M
in

u
te

 o
f 

M
e

e
ti
n
g

 o
f 

th
e
 A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

. 
 P

re
s
e
n
t :
- 

 R
o
d
e
ri
c
k
 M

a
c
B

e
a

th
 (

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
),

 C
h
a
ir
p
e
rs

o
n
; 

a
n
d
, 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 (

IT
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
),

 S
a
n
d
ra

 B
u
th

la
y
 (

F
in

a
n
c
e
),

 P
a
u
l 

D
ix

o
n
 (

F
in

a
n
c
e
) 

a
n
d
 S

c
o
tt

 R
a
m

s
a
y
 

(E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

; 
a
n
d
 G

ra
e
m

e
 C

u
m

m
in

g
 (

In
te

ri
m

 M
a
n
a
g

in
g

 D
ir
e
c
to

r/
F

in
a
n
c
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
(A

E
C

C
 L

td
))

. 
 A

ls
o
 i
n
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
: 
Ia

in
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 (

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
),

 S
te

v
e
n
 I
n
g

lis
 (

L
e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

a
n
d
 M

a
rk

 J
o
h
n
s
to

n
e
 (

A
u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
).

 
 A

p
o
lo

g
ie

s
: 

M
a
ry

 A
g

n
e
w

 (
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
),

 J
e
ff

 C
a
p
s
ti
c
k
 (

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
),

 J
o
a
n
 

M
c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 (

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

a
n
d
 R

ic
h
a
rd

 S
w

e
e
tn

a
m

 (
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

. 
 

 
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
. 

C
h
a
ir
’s

 O
p
e
n
in

g
 

R
e
m

a
rk

s
 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 a

 
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

L
E

O
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 p

a
re

n
t 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

n
 1

8
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

a
n
d
 2

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 
H

e
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

o
u
ld

 p
u
b
lis

h
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 A

L
E

O
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g

 h
o
ld

in
g

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 H

u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
c
y
c
le

 o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

w
e
e
k
 b

e
g

in
n
in

g
 9

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
6
. 
 

  

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

N
/A

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

Page 67



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

2
 

 

2
. 

M
in

u
te

 o
f 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 –
 1

5
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
5
 

A
L
E

O
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 H

u
b
 m

in
u
te

 –
 

1
5
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

to
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 m

in
u
te

 a
s
 a

 
c
o
rr

e
c
t 
re

c
o
rd

. 
 

I 
R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

3
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
) 

 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
  

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 i
te

m
 w

a
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 u

n
d
e
r 

it
e
m

 3
. 

 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

4
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r)
 

 

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 i
te

m
 w

a
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 u

n
d
e
r 

it
e
m

 4
. 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r.
 

 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

5
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
) 

 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt

 
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

u
p
d
a
te

) 
fr

o
m

 
A

E
C

C
 

B
o
a
rd

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 
–
 

2
0
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 

P
a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 (

F
in

a
n
c
e
) 

e
n
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

n
e
x
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 i
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 M

r 
C

u
m

m
in

g
 t
o
 

s
p
e
a
k
 t

o
 t
h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
d
a
te

d
 2

0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 
G

ra
e
m

e
 

C
u
m

m
in

g
 (

In
te

ri
m

 M
a
n
a
g

in
g

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r/
F

in
a
n
c
e
 d

ir
e
c
to

r,
 A

E
C

C
) 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
6
-1

7
 w

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

p
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g
. 

H
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

o
v
e
rh

e
a
d
 c

o
s
ts

 
w

e
re

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
ta

b
le

 w
it
h
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 c

o
s
ts

 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
fo

re
c
a
s
ts

 w
e
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 a

n
d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
re

, 
th

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

fi
t 
m

a
rg

in
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
. 

H
e
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
fo

re
c
a
s
ti
n
g
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 f
o
r 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 2

0
1
6
-1

7
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 a

t 
th

e
 

n
e
x
t 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

P
 D

ix
o
n

 

Page 68



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

3
 

 

e
n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
e
v
e
n
ts

 w
a
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

in
g
 a

s
 5

0
%

 o
f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
s
 t

e
n
d
e
d
 

to
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 b

o
o
k
in

g
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

p
u
b
lic

is
e
d
. 

 M
r 

C
u
m

m
in

g
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

A
E

C
C

 w
e
re

 o
n
 

ta
rg

e
t 
to

 b
e
 w

it
h
in

 b
u
d
g

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
1
5
-1

6
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

b
u
t 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

ff
 

h
e
a
d
c
o
u
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

H
e
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
A

E
C

C
 h

a
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
tt
e
d
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 S

N
P

 C
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 b

u
t 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 

o
f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 o

il 
a
n
d
 g

a
s
 s

e
c
to

r.
 H

e
 

a
ls

o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
re

v
e
n
u
e
 f
ro

m
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

d
u
e
 t

o
 l
e
s
s
 t
ra

ff
ic

 f
ro

m
 n

e
a
rb

y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
; 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
re

v
e
n
u
e
 f

ro
m

 f
o
o
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
v
e
ra

g
e
 

s
a
le

s
 a

t 
e
n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
e
v
e
n
ts

 h
a
d
 a

ls
o
 

fa
lle

n
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

6
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(B
o
a
rd

 
C

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 

R
e
v
ie

w
) 

 

a
) 

B
o
a
rd

 S
e
lf
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
  

Q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
; 

a
n
d
 

b
) 

S
c
o
ri
n
g
 M

a
tr

ix
 f

o
r 

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 

D
ir
e
c
to

rs
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 t

h
a
t 
h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
 

th
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 u
s
e
fu

l 
a
n
d
 

a
s
k
e
d
 M

r 
C

u
m

m
in

g
 t

o
 s

p
e
a
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

re
p
o
rt

s
. 
M

r 
C

u
m

m
in

g
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
 h

a
d
 

fo
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
s
 h

a
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 h

a
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 p

e
rt

in
e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 
H

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

s
c
o
ri
n
g
 m

a
tr

ix
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
lp

fu
l 
in

 
p
in

p
o
in

ti
n
g

 a
n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
s
 

a
n
d
 w

e
a
k
n
e
s
s
e
s
 o

f 
B

o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

  

R
 M

a
c
B

e
a
th

 

Page 69



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

4
 

 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 g

a
p
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

s
 a

 
re

s
u
lt
. 
 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 

P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 o
n
 A

L
E

O
 

B
o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 w

h
a
t 

h
e
 d

e
e
m

e
d
 t

h
e
 

ro
le

 o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 A

E
C

C
 B

o
a
rd

 t
o
 

b
e
. 

M
r 

C
u
m

m
in

g
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

’ 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
a
ly

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

in
g
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
n
g
 a

s
 a

d
v
o
c
a
te

s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 A

E
C

C
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 v

e
ry

 u
s
e
fu

l.
  

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

7
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

) 
 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
J
o
a
n
 M

c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 

(C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

h
a
d
 s

e
n
t 
h
e
r 

a
p
o
lo

g
ie

s
 f
o
r 

to
d
a
y
’s

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 
b
u
t 

h
a
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 a

 n
o
te

 o
n
 A

E
C

C
’s

 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 h

e
 

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

u
b
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

h
a
d
 c

o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
n
 1

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

fo
r 

fa
ir
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
rd

 
c
ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

v
e
r 

£
5
0
,0

0
0
. 
H

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
a
 b

id
d
e
r 

to
 f
a
ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
, 
a
n
d
 m

u
s
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t,
 

re
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
te

rm
s
 o

f 
e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 s

k
ill

s
 

u
ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
, 
jo

b
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
M

s
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

a
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 b
e
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

E
C

C
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

e
a
m

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

N
e
w

 Y
e
a
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

A
E

C
C

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
R

e
fo

rm
 

(S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 
2
0
1
4
 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 A

c
t 
c
a
m

e
 

in
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

in
 A

p
ri
l 

J
 M

c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 

Page 70



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

5
 

 

M
c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 h

a
d
 m

e
t 
w

it
h
 M

r 
C

u
m

m
in

g
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
 a

n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 w
it
h
 h

im
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N

e
w

 
Y

e
a
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 h

im
 w

it
h
 A

C
C

’s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 

in
te

rn
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 a
n
d
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 A

E
C

C
’s

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 A

c
t 
c
a
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

in
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
6
. 

 

2
0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

8
. 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

 

a
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

o
lic

y
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t;
 

b
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 M

a
jo

r 
In

c
id

e
n
t 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
; 

c
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

H
ie

ra
rc

h
y
; 

d
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

P
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t;
 a

n
d
 

e
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 D

ra
ft

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 D
e
b
ri
e
f.

 
 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 (

IT
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
) 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 t
h
a
t 
h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 b
e
 u

s
e
fu

l 
a
n
d
 h

e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t
h
e
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 
M

r 
B

u
c
k
 

a
s
k
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 o
ft

e
n
 t
h
e
y
 w

e
re

 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.
 G

ra
e
m

e
 C

u
m

m
in

g
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 

th
a
t 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
s
 w

e
re

 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

o
n
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
d
 o

n
 f
o
rt

h
c
o
m

in
g

 
e
v
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 

w
o
u

ld
 h

e
lp

 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

H
e
 a

ls
o
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

im
e
d
 

to
 a

tt
a
in

 I
S

O
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
t 
th

is
 w

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g

e
ta

ry
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

 P
a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 w

h
a
t 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 

A
E

C
C

 h
a
d
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 t
o
 c

o
re

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
6
-1

7
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
y
 h

a
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
d
e
l 
th

a
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

n
o
 c

o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 
M

r 
C

u
m

m
in

g
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

N
 B

u
c
k
/P

 
D

ix
o
n

 

Page 71



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

6
 

 

a
 5

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
m

o
u
n
te

d
 t

o
 £

7
5
,0

0
0
 i
n
 r

e
a
l 
te

rm
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 n
e
e
d
 t

o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

£
1
5
0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
n
e
w

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
te

 
fo

r 
th

e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 

o
v
e
rh

e
a
d
 c

o
s
ts

. 
H

e
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 f
a
c
ili

ty
, 
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 t

o
 a

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
4
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
o
p
e
ra

te
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

c
o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 b

u
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 v
e
n
u
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

in
 a

 m
o
re

 a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
o
u
s
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
 

a
s
 i
ts

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f

lo
o
r 

s
p
a
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 a
tt

ra
c
t 

g
lo

b
a
l 
e
n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ts

 a
n
d
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

m
u
lt
ip

le
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 s
im

u
lt
a
n
e
o
u
s
ly

. 
M

r 
C

u
m

m
in

g
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 

h
a
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 a

 f
o
u
r 

y
e
a
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
fo

re
c
a
s
t 

th
a
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

£
2
7
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 s

ta
ff
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 p

e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

 a
n
d
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

A
E

C
C

 w
o
u

ld
 b

re
a
k
 e

v
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 

P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 i
f 

A
L
E

O
s
 p

a
id

 t
h
e
ir
 s

ta
ff

 t
h
e
 L

iv
in

g
 W

a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 h

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 

A
E

C
C

 h
a
d
 a

 p
o
lic

y
 t

o
 d

o
 

s
o
. 

M
r 

C
u
m

m
in

g
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 

n
o
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 p

o
lic

y
 t

h
a
t 
s
ta

te
d
 t

h
is

 
c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

b
u
t 
th

is
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 f

o
r 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
s
ta

ff
. 

H
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 

th
a
t 
A

E
C

C
 h

a
d
 o

v
e
r 

6
0
0
 c

a
s
u
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

th
e
ir
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

th
e
 L

iv
in

g
 W

a
g
e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
d
 

o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 a

g
e
. 
H

e
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 v

a
s
t 

m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

c
a
s
u
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 

o
f 

2
5
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
t 
to

 a
p
p
ly

 t
h
e
 L

iv
in

g
 

W
a
g
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 t

o
 

Page 72



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

7
 

 

b
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u
d
g

e
ta

ry
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 

 M
r 

C
u
m

m
in

g
 a

ls
o
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 A

E
C

C
, 

th
e
 c

it
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 a

ir
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
s
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
e
n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n
t 

e
v
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
d
 a

s
 

m
u
c
h
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
, 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
n
d
 v

ib
ra

n
c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
s
t 
c
it
y
 a

s
 t

h
e
 v

e
n
u
e
 

it
s
e
lf
 a

n
d
 h

e
 w

a
s
 m

in
d
fu

l 
o
f 

th
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

fo
s
te

ri
n
g
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

lie
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
p
e
o
p
le

 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 u

p
o
n
. 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

9
. 

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
R

is
k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

A
E

C
C

’s
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
h
a
d
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 3

1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 a

n
d
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
e
x
is

ti
n
g

 r
is

k
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 

th
e
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t;
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 
th

o
s
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 t

e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

ls
o
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 

m
it
ig

a
te

d
. 
G

ra
e
m

e
 C

u
m

m
in

g
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 r

is
k
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 t
o
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
w

 r
is

k
s
 

re
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

n
e
w

 v
e
n
u
e
 w

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

H
e
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 h

is
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 t
h
a
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
th

e
re

 
w

a
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

h
e
a
d
h
u
n
te

d
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 a

 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
; 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

  
  
  
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
  

re
g

is
te

r;
 

(i
i)
  
  
  
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

A
E

C
C

 B
o
a
rd

 g
iv

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 

re
g

is
te

r 
a
n
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

o
f 

ri
s
k
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

te
n
d
e
ri
n
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 H

u
b
’s

 
n
e
x
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

  
  
 t
o
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

Page 73



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

8
 

 

M
r 

B
u
c
k
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 r

is
k
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r.
 

 

  

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
0
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

A
E

C
C

 B
o
a
rd

 P
a
p
e
rs

 –
 2

0
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 

S
c
o
tt
 R

a
m

s
a
y
 (

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

 
fi
rs

tl
y
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
d
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

in
g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 A

E
C

C
 d

u
ri
n
g

 
th

e
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 v
e
n
u
e
 

a
n
d
 h

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 

M
r 

C
u
m

m
in

g
 c

o
u
ld

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 d

a
te

 
fo

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 v
e
n
u
e
. 

G
ra

e
m

e
 C

u
m

m
in

g
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 v
e
n
u
e
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 

a
 s

o
ft

 o
p
e
n
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
8
 

a
n
d
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
9
 a

n
d
 h

e
 w

a
s
 m

in
d
fu

l 
th

a
t 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
n
 o

p
e
n
 d

a
te

 t
o
 f
a
c
ili

ta
te

 
O

ff
s
h
o
re

 E
u
ro

p
e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
9
. 

 M
r 

R
a
m

s
a
y
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

s
ta

ff
 m

o
ra

le
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 M

r 
C

u
m

m
in

g
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
s
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
jo

b
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 
w

e
re

 o
n
g

o
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 T

U
P

E
. 

H
e
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 o

f 
h
is

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

 t
h
a
t 

s
e
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 h

e
a
d
h
u
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 w

it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 t
o
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g

 a
n
d
 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
 

b
e
in

g
 l
o
s
t.
 H

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
re

g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 s

ta
ff

 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 

m
a
tt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
n
 h

o
n
e
s
t 

a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re

n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
. 

 M
r 

R
a
m

s
a
y
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 t

e
n
d
e
ri
n
g
 

p
la

n
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
to

 w
h
ic

h
 M

r 
C

u
m

m
in

g
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 a

n
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

  
  
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
(i
i)
  
  
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 

a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 A

E
C

C
’s

 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g

 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 

n
e
x
t 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

  
 t
o
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

    

S
 R

a
m

s
a
y
 

Page 74



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

9
 

 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

to
 a

v
o
id

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

th
e
y
 h

a
d
 a

ls
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

 t
e
n
d
e
r 

s
u
b
 

g
ro

u
p
 t
h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

id
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
7
. 
  
  

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 

a
n
 

u
p
d
a
te

 t
o
 d

a
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

(S
L
A

) 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

A
E

C
C

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 a

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
r 

d
e
la

y
 s

in
c
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 

to
 A

C
C

, 
a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 

th
is

 h
a
d
 h

a
d
 a

 
d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 

M
r 

C
u
m

m
in

g
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

L
A

 n
e
e
d
e
d
 

to
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 
th

e
 t
e
n
d
e
ri
n
g

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
v
e
n
u
e
. 

H
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
h
e
 w

o
u
ld

 f
a
v
o
u
r 

a
n
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

L
A

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 

ro
b
u
s
tn

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 a

s
 i
t 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
to

 h
a
v
e
 A

E
C

C
’s

 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 c

le
a
rl
y
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
ir
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
: 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

it
 w

a
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y
 o

r 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
, 

h
e
 a

ls
o
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 h

is
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 h

a
d
 c

o
n
fl
ic

te
d
 i
n
 c

e
rt

a
in

 
a
re

a
s
. 
M

r 
R

a
m

s
a
y
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 H

u
b
 t

h
a
t 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 o
n
g

o
in

g
 w

it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 t

o
 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
A

E
C

C
’s

 S
L
A

 a
n
d
 h

e
 w

a
s
 

h
o
p
e
fu

l 
th

a
t 
th

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

t 
a
n
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 s

ta
g

e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

in
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6
. 

  
 

Page 75



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 E
X

H
IB

IT
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 C
E

N
T

R
E

 (
A

E
C

C
) 

L
T

D
 

 

1
0

 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
1
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
’s

 
C

lo
s
in

g
 R

e
m

a
rk

s
 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 t
h
a
n
k
e
d
 M

r 
C

u
m

m
in

g
 f
o
r 

h
is

 
a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

le
rk

 
a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 m

in
u
te

s
 f
ro

m
 t
o
d
a
y
’s

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

5
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 1

5
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 t
h
e
n
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

to
 a

 c
lo

s
e
. 

 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

N
/A

 

   If
 

y
o

u
 

re
q

u
ir

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
a
b

o
u

t 
th

is
 

m
in

u
te

, 
p

le
a
s
e
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

Ia
in

 
R

o
b

e
rt

s
o

n
 

te
l.
 

0
1
2
2
4
 

5
2
2
8
6
9
 

o
r 

e
m

a
il
 

ia
ir

o
b

e
rt

s
o

n
@

a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

Page 76



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

1
 

 

 
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

, 
8

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 M
in

u
te

 o
f 

M
e

e
ti
n
g

 o
f 

th
e
 A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

. 
 P

re
s
e
n
t :
- 

 R
o
d
e
ri
c
k
 M

a
c
B

e
a

th
 (

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
),

 C
h
a
ir
p
e
rs

o
n
; 

a
n
d
 N

e
il 

B
u
c
k
 (

IT
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
),

 J
e
ff

 C
a
p
s
ti
c
k
 (

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
),

 P
a
u

l 
D

ix
o
n
 

(F
in

a
n
c
e
),

 M
a
rt

in
 K

a
s
p
ro

w
ic

z
 (

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 P
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

) 
a
n
d
 C

o
lin

 L
e
a

v
e
r 

(H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
);

 a
n
d
 

A
lis

ta
ir
 M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 (

F
in

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r)

 a
n
d
 S

a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 (

M
a
n
a

g
in

g
 D

ir
e
c
to

r)
 (

B
o
n
 A

c
c
o
rd

 C
a
re

 L
td

 (
B

A
C

))
. 

 A
ls

o
 i
n
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
: 
Ia

in
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 (

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
),

 J
e
s
s
 A

n
d
e
rs

o
n
 (

L
e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

a
n
d
 M

a
rk

 J
o
h
n
s
to

n
e
 (

A
u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
).

 
 A

p
o
lo

g
ie

s
: 

M
a
ry

 
A

g
n
e
w

 
(H

u
m

a
n
 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 
a
n
d
 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
),

 
T

o
m

 
C

o
w

a
n

 
(H

e
a
lt
h
 
a
n
d

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

) 
a
n
d
 
J
o
a
n
 

M
c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 (

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
).

 
 

 
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
. 

C
h
a
ir
’s

 O
p
e
n
in

g
 

R
e
m

a
rk

s
 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 a

 
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

L
E

O
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 p

a
re

n
t 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 B

o
n
 A

c
c
o
rd

 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 A

C
C

 o
n
 1

8
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 

2
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

H
e
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

o
u
ld

 p
u
b
lis

h
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 A

L
E

O
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g

 h
o
ld

in
g

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 H

u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
c
y
c
le

 o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

w
e
e
k
 b

e
g

in
n
in

g
 9

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
6
. 
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

N
/A

 

Page 77



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

2
 

 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

2
. 

M
in

u
te

 o
f 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 –
 1

5
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
5
 

A
L
E

O
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 H

u
b
 m

in
u
te

 –
 

1
5
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
. 

(i
) 

W
it
h
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 i
te

m
 6

 (
ii)

 (
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
) 

A
lis

ta
ir
 M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 

(F
in

a
n
c
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r,
 B

A
C

) 
a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

b
e
s
p
o
k
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

e
re

 
b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

2
0
1
6
; 

(i
i)
 

W
it
h
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 i
te

m
 7

 (
B

o
a
rd

 
C

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
) 

S
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 

(M
a
n
a
g

in
g

 D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 B

A
C

) 
re

it
e
ra

te
d
 

th
a
t 
B

A
C

 h
a
d
 n

o
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 o
n
 i
ts

 
B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
e
 w

a
s
 b

o
th

 
c
o
m

fo
rt

a
b
le

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 h
a
d
 t

h
e
 

re
q

u
is

it
e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
s
e
c
to

rs
 t
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

h
o
ld

 d
ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 t
o
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t;
 a

n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
W

it
h
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 i
te

m
 1

5
 (

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

L
e
a
d
) 

th
e
 C

h
a
ir
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

M
s
 R

o
s
s
 

th
a
t 
T

o
m

 C
o
w

a
n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
J
o
in

t 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

) 
w

a
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 B

A
C

. 
  

 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 m

in
u
te

 
a
s
 a

 c
o
rr

e
c
t 
re

c
o
rd

; 
a
n
d
 

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

I 
R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

3
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
) 

 

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
a
s
 a

t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 (

IT
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
) 

a
s
k
e
d
 i
f 

B
A

C
 h

a
d
 b

e
g

u
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 

b
ro

a
d
e
r 

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

S
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 w

a
s
 h

e
r 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 R

is
k
 

R
e
g

is
te

r;
 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

B
A

C
’s

 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

Page 78



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

3
 

 

re
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 p

o
lic

y
 h

a
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 
b
e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
e
 w

o
u
ld

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
n
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 

fo
r 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

’ 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
. 
 

 

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y
 b

e
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
d
 t

o
 

H
u
b
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

; 
a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

4
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
in

g
 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

) 
 

a
) 

A
u
d
it
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
/S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 f
o
r 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 

a
n
d
 

b
) 

A
u
d
it
 S

c
o
re

s
 2

0
1
5
-1

6
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 i
te

m
 w

a
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 u

n
d
e
r 

it
e
m

 3
. 

 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

5
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(C
o
re

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 R

is
k
 

In
d
ic

a
to

r)
 

 

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
a
s
 a

t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 i
te

m
 w

a
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 u

n
d
e
r 

it
e
m

 4
. 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 R

is
k
 R

e
g

is
te

r.
 

 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

6
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

) 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y
 a

s
 a

t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 B

A
C

’s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 i
ts

 B
o
a
rd

 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

a
n
d
 h

e
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
 h

a
d
 m

e
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

H
u
b
’s

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
, 

J
o
a
n
 M

c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 

(C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

w
h
o
 h

a
d
 s

e
n
t 

h
e
r 

a
p
o
lo

g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

to
d
a
y
’s

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 

w
o
u

ld
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t
h
e
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
R

e
fo

rm
 (

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

2
0
1
4
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 r

e
g

u
la

te
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

fa
ir
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
. 

H
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 

th
a
t 
s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 a
c
ti
v
e
 o

n
 A

C
C

’s
 

P
E

C
O

S
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

o
lic

y
; 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

a
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 b
e
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 B

A
C

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

th
a
t 
B

A
C

 w
ill

 b
e
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
R

e
fo

rm
 

(S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 
2
0
1
4
 

J
 M

c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 

Page 79



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

4
 

 

“a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

u
p
p
lie

rs
” 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

ls
o
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 c

a
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n
 1

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
B

A
C

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

e
a
m

 w
h
o
 w

o
u
ld

 a
d
v
is

e
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
is

t 
th

e
m

 o
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 A

c
t 

c
a
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

in
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 

 A
lis

ta
ir
 M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 M

s
 

M
c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
’s

 i
n
p
u
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y
 d

u
ri
n
g
 d

ra
ft

in
g

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
h
e
 

w
o
u

ld
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
 t

o
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 a

ft
e
r 

th
is

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 a

n
y
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
. 

 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 A

c
t 
c
a
m

e
 

in
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

in
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

  

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

7
. 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
a
) 

A
u
d
it
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
/S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 f
o
r 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
; 

b
) 

A
u
d
it
 S

c
o
re

s
 2

0
1
5
-1

6
; 

a
n
d
 

c
) 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

u
d
it
 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 D

a
te

s
 2

0
1
5
. 

 

P
a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 (

F
in

a
n
c
e
) 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

a
tt

a
c
h
e
d
 A

u
d
it
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
/S

c
h
e
d
u
le

 f
o
r 

A
ll 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
B

A
C

 
m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
s
 e

v
e
ry

 f
o
u
r 

m
o
n
th

s
 o

n
 a

 r
o
lli

n
g
 b

a
s
is

 
a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 
th

e
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 w
e
re

 
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t.
  

 S
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
w

e
re

 b
o
th

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 r

ig
o
ro

u
s
 a

s
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 p

a
ra

m
e
te

rs
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
b
y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

 
a
n
d
 s

c
o
ri
n
g
 t

e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
v
e
 a

s
 

B
A

C
 w

e
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 b
ia

n
n
u
a
l,
 

u
n
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

a
re

 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

m
o
re

 i
m

p
a
rt

ia
l 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

; 
(i
ii)

 
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

B
A

C
’s

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

lia
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

Page 80



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

5
 

 

In
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t
h
is

, 
M

s
 R

o
s
s
 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 w
e
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 a
d
d
re

s
s
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 

th
a
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
. 

 N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 
c
o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
s
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 a

 r
is

k
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
 w

o
u
ld

 
e
x
p
e
c
t 

to
 s

e
e
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

im
p
a
rt

ia
lit

y
 g

o
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t

h
is

, 
h
e
 a

s
k
e
d
 h

o
w

 
fr

e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
. 

 S
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 c

ro
s
s
 c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
ir
 K

P
Is

 a
n
d
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 p
e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

e
re

 
fr

e
q

u
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 o

n
 a

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

b
a
s
is

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 s

h
a
p
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

c
o
p
e
 

to
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r.
 S

h
e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

m
is

c
o
n
d
u
c
t,
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
c
c
id

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
lly

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

C
a
re

 I
n
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

p
la

n
s
 

w
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 

im
p
a
rt

ia
lit

y
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

to
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

. 
  

 C
o
lin

 L
e
a
v
e
r 

(H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

m
a
d
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
B

A
C

’s
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 w

h
y
 

n
o
 f

a
c
ili

ty
 s

c
o
re

d
 a

b
o
v
e
 7

5
%

. 
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
t 
th

e
 

n
e
x
t 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1
6
; 

(i
v
) 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

B
A

C
’s

 
n
e
x
t 

a
u
d
it
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

H
u
b
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
h
e
a
d
 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

H
u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
 

(v
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

Page 81



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

6
 

 

A
lis

ta
ir
 M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 r

e
p
lie

d
 t

h
a
t 
a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
, 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 u

n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
. 

H
e
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 c

a
re

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
c
o
re

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 a

u
d
it
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 w

it
h
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

6
0
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 1

4
 a

u
d
it
 a

re
a
s
, 
a
n
d
 h

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

a
d
 p

ro
v
e
n
 t
o
 b

e
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
ly

 o
n
e
ro

u
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 

c
a
s
e
s
 h

a
d
 s

k
e
w

e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
M

r 
M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
a
 n

e
w

 H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

S
a
fe

ty
 P

o
lic

y
, 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 
d
ir
e
c
t 

a
n
d
 m

a
p
 t
h
e
 p

a
th

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
ir
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
6
. 

H
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 p

la
n
s
 w

o
u
ld

 t
a
rg

e
t 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 O
T

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 A

rc
h
ib

a
ld

 S
im

p
s
o
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 g

a
p
s
 w

h
ic

h
 e

x
is

te
d
 

a
m

o
n
g

s
t 
s
ta

ff
. 
M

r 
M

a
c
L
e

a
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
a
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

a
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 e

a
rl
y
 

s
p
ri
n
g
 o

f 
2
0
1
6
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

H
u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6
. 

 M
r 

L
e
a
v
e
r 

a
ls

o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 B

A
C

’s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 i
f 

B
A

C
 c

o
u
ld

 s
u
b
m

it
 t

h
e
ir
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

o
n
g

o
in

g
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
a
s
 b

e
in

g
 

Page 82



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

7
 

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 
 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

8
. 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
) 

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
a
s
 a

t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

b
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
-1

8
; 

c
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 a
s
 a

t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

a
n
d
 

d
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

W
o
rk

b
o
o
k
 a

s
 a

t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 r

is
k
 

re
g

is
te

r 
a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 h

o
w

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e
 

re
g

is
te

r 
w

a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
. 

S
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
w

a
s
 a

 s
ta

n
d
in

g
 

it
e
m

 o
n
 e

v
e
ry

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 f

o
r 

B
o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 w
e
re

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

 
fu

ll 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

a
re

a
s
 t
h
a
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

h
e
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
IT

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
d
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

 P
a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 B

A
C

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

to
 t
a
lk

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 i
f 

th
e
y
 h

a
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
te

d
 

fo
r 

o
n
g

o
in

g
 a

u
s
te

ri
ty

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 a

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 
M

s
 

R
o
s
s
 r

e
p
lie

d
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
(S

L
A

) 
a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 o

n
ly

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
lly

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r.

 
A

lis
ta

ir
 M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

in
 t
h
e
 

a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
y
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 A

C
C

 
re

g
a
rd

in
g

 f
u
tu

re
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 a

n
d
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
tl
y
 f

u
tu

re
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
th

e
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

s
 q

u
o
 a

s
 n

o
 o

th
e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
w

ill
in

g
 t

o
 b

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 o

n
 u

n
if
o
rm

e
d
 g

u
e
s
s
e
s
. 
M

r 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 T

U
P

E
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r,
 

e
q

u
a
l 
p
a
y
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 p

e
rt

in
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
 H

o
m

e
 H

e
lp

 
tr

a
d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 a

t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

; 
(i
ii)

 
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

B
A

C
 B

o
a
rd

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
p
e
n
s
io

n
 d

e
fi
c
it
s
 a

n
d
 

p
e
n
s
io

n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

a
s
 i
te

m
s
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r;
 

(i
v
) 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

a
 

p
o
p
u
la

te
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

la
n
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

; 
a
n
d
 

(v
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

P
 D

ix
o
n
/N

 
B

u
c
k
 

Page 83



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

8
 

 

M
a
c
L
e
a
n
 e

x
p

la
in

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 d
e
liv

e
r 

£
1
m

ill
io

n
 i
n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 e

x
p
lo

ri
n
g

 n
e
w

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 

M
r 

M
a
c
L
e
a
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
s
te

d
 a

n
d
 h

e
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
B

A
C

 w
o
u
ld

 r
e
c
o
rd

 a
 

£
5
2
,0

0
0
 n

e
t 

p
ro

fi
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 2

0
1
5
-1

6
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 
 T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

S
c
o
tt

is
h
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 r

a
is

e
d
 

th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
A

L
E

O
s
 s

o
u
rc

in
g

 n
e
w

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

s
tr

e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
n
g

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 w

h
a
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 B

A
C

 h
a
d
 m

a
d
e
 

in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
. 
M

s
 R

o
s
s
 r

e
it
e
ra

te
d
 t

h
a
t 

B
A

C
 

w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 S

L
A

 a
n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 
o
n
ly

 d
e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
lly

 f
u
n
d
e
d
. 
S

h
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

m
a
d
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

in
g

 a
s
 

n
e
w

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 S

L
A

 
h
a
d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 A

C
C

. 
S

h
e
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

 C
it
y
 H

o
m

e
 H

e
lp

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
o
u

ld
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

u
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

o
u
ld

 s
tr

u
g
g

le
 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
la

c
e
 a

s
 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 w

e
re

 
a
ro

u
n
d
 £

1
8
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
r,

 a
n
d
 h

e
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 

th
a
t 
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 S

L
A

 w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 

in
 t

h
is

 r
e
g

a
rd

. 
A

lis
ta

ir
 M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

B
A

C
 h

a
d
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
d
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 t
o
 o

ff
s
e
t 
c
o
s
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 c

o
re

 

Page 84



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

9
 

 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

n
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

o
 d

a
te

 h
e
 c

it
e
d
 B

A
C

’s
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

s
ta

ff
 p

o
o
l 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
’s

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
g

e
n
c
y
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

n
d
 h

a
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 £

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 
M

r 
M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 a

ls
o
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

B
A

C
 h

a
d
 b

e
g

u
n
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
ly

 
s
ta

ff
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

a
n
d
 h

e
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 

a
n
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 B

A
C

 
b
e
n
e
fi
tt

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
is

 n
e
w

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
. 

 
 P

a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

B
A

C
’s

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 B

A
C

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

u
n
d
e
rl
y
in

g
 i
n
c
re

m
e
n
ta

l 
s
a
la

ry
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
. 

A
lis

ta
ir
 M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h
a
t 

in
c
re

m
e
n
ta

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 s

ta
ff

 p
a
y
 w

a
s
 a

 r
e
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 m

o
d
e
l 
a
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs

 n
e
w

 
s
ta

rt
s
 h

a
d
 o

u
tn

u
m

b
e
re

d
 l
e
a
v
e
rs

 b
u
t 

n
o
te

d
 

th
a
t 
in

c
re

m
e
n
ta

l 
p
a
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 b

u
d
g

e
te

d
 

fo
r 

h
a
d
 f
a
lle

n
 f

ro
m

 £
2
8
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
-1

6
 t

o
 

£
1
9
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 2

0
1
6
-1

7
. 
M

r 
M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
8
0
%

 o
f 

B
A

C
 c

o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 
re

la
te

d
 t
o
 s

ta
ff

 p
a
y
 a

n
d
 i
f 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
u
d
g

e
t 
c
u
ts

, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 

in
 s

ta
ff

 h
e
a
d
c
o
u
n
t 
w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 h

e
 a

s
s
e
rt

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

w
o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
H

e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 

B
A

C
 h

a
d
 n

e
g

lig
ib

le
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
. 
M

s
 

R
o
s
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fu

ll 
ti
m

e
 

s
ta

ff
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

Page 85



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

1
0

 

 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 s

ta
ff

 w
e
re

 
m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n
d
 f

le
x
ib

le
; 

a
n
d
 h

a
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
k
ill

s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
s
e
c
to

rs
. 

 J
e
ff

 C
a
p
s
ti
c
k
 (

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 

H
o
m

e
 H

e
lp

 t
ra

d
in

g
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
s
 B

A
C

 h
a
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 t
o
 

T
U

P
E

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
, 

e
q
u
a
l 
p
a
y
, 

a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r’
s
 s

ta
tu

s
. 
S

a
n
d
ra

 
R

o
s
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

w
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
d
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t
ra

d
e
 u

n
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 l
e
g
a
l 

a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r.

 
 T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 

P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 

A
L
E

O
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 d

e
fi
c
it
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

p
a
re

n
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 e

x
p
o
s
u
re

 t
o
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 h

e
 

a
s
k
e
d
 t

h
e
 B

A
C

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 i
f 

th
is

 w
a
s
 

a
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 f
o
r 

th
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
S

a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 

re
p
lie

d
 t

h
a
t 
e
v
e
ry

 A
L
E

O
 h

a
d
 a

 p
e
n
s
io

n
 

d
e
fi
c
it
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

o
f 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 
to

 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
h
e
s
e
 f

u
n
d
s
 

s
im

u
lt
a
n
e
o
u
s
ly

. 
S

h
e
 d

id
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

B
o
a
rd

 w
a
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 2

.1
%

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

p
e
n
s
io

n
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 A

lis
ta

ir
 M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 

Page 86



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

1
1

 

 

re
c
e
n
t 
p
e
n
s
io

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 

p
e
n
s
io

n
 d

e
fi
c
it
 o

v
e
r 

1
9
 y

e
a
rs

. 
M

r 
M

a
c
L
e
a
n
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

y
e
a
rs

 G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

G
ilt

 Y
ie

ld
s
 h

a
d
 f
a
lle

n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
 

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 B

A
C

’s
 n

e
t 

lia
b
ili

ty
 

w
a
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 £

8
m

ill
io

n
. 

H
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

is
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 w

a
s
 a

 s
n
a
p
 s

h
o
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

fu
n
d
 a

t 
Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 w
it
h
 t

ri
-a

n
n
u
a
l 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
to

rs
 t

o
 s

e
t 
th

e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

. 
T

o
 t

h
is

 p
o
in

t,
 N

e
il 

B
u
c
k
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 

th
e
 d

e
fi
c
it
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r;
 a

n
d
 M

s
 R

o
s
s
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 h

a
d
 n

o
t,
 a

s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 a

re
a
 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

A
C

C
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
y
 

c
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
tt

e
r,

 t
h
o
u
g

h
 t

h
e
y
 

h
a
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 l
e
g

a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
. 

 N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 t
h
e
n
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 W

o
rk

b
o
o
k
 t

e
m

p
la

te
 

a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 t
im

e
lin

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

to
 p

o
p
u
la

te
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

b
o
o
k
. 

S
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
d
 a

n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
y
 

w
e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 a
n
d
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

a
 p

o
p
u
la

te
d
 p

la
n
 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 M

a
y
 

2
0
1
6
. 

Page 87



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

1
2

 

 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

9
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
 

K
P

I 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 2
0
1
5
-1

8
. 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 K

P
I 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 2
0
1
5
-1

8
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
. 

S
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
K

P
I 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 h

a
d
 p

ro
v
e
n
 t

o
 

b
e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
ly

 o
n
e
ro

u
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 

a
re

a
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 
o
u
td

a
te

d
 o

r 
n
o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t.

 T
o
 t
h
is

 
p
o
in

t 
M

a
rt

in
 K

a
s
p
ro

w
ic

z
 (

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
H

S
C

P
))

 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

W
o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
e
 s

e
n
io

r 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 f

ro
m

 B
A

C
 

a
n
d
 H

S
C

P
 w

it
h
 a

 r
e
m

it
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
e
p
e
r 

c
o
n
te

x
t 

a
n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 h

o
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g

 c
a
n
 b

e
 

s
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 

w
o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 o

ff
e
r 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 c

la
ri
ty

 t
o
 b

o
th

 B
A

C
 a

n
d
 A

C
C

 o
n
 

B
A

C
’s

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
. 
 

 M
s
 R

o
s
s
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t

h
is

 j
o
in

t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 a

 
m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f

o
r 

s
tr

e
n
g

th
e
n
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

’ 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
M

r 
K

a
s
p
ro

w
ic

z
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
’s

 
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
g

in
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 

C
h
ri
s
tm

a
s
 b

re
a
k
 a

n
d
 h

e
 a

im
e
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 

g
ro

u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

H
u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6
. 

H
e
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

W
o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p
 a

h
e
a
d
 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

H
u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

Page 88



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

1
3

 

 

th
a
t 
th

e
 f

o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 

w
o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 a

d
d
 a

n
 e

x
tr

a
 l
a
y
e
r 

o
f 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

o
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
0
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

 

a
) 

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
5
; 

b
) 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
4
-1

5
; 

c
) 

A
D

L
 S

m
a
rt

c
a
re

 W
e
e
k
ly

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 -
 A

u
g

u
s
t 
–
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

d
) 

E
n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
W

e
e
k
ly

 R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 

A
u
g

u
s
t 

–
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

e
) 

C
a
re

 I
n
s
p
e
c
to

ra
te

 R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

f)
 

O
T

 R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

g
) 

O
T

 E
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re
 M

o
n
th

ly
 

D
a
ta

  
- 

M
a
y
 –

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

h
) 

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
o
n
th

ly
 R

e
p
o
rt

 –
 2

0
1
5
; 

i)
 

In
te

ri
m

 B
e
d
 P

la
c
e
s
 W

e
e
k
ly

 
R

e
p
o
rt

s
 –

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

j)
 

W
e
e
k
ly

 O
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 R

e
p
o
rt

s
 

–
 2

0
1
5
; 

k
) 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
C

a
re

 H
o
u
rs

 W
e
e
k
ly

 
R

e
p
o
rt

 –
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 
a
n
d
 

l)
 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
rs

 
W

e
e
k
ly

 R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 

M
a
rt

in
 K

a
s
p
ro

w
ic

z
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 R
e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 t

h
e
 B

A
C

 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 t

a
lk

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
ir
 u

s
e
 o

f 
b
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 o

c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

s
. 

S
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 1

0
0
%

 o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 r

a
te

 t
a
rg

e
t 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 S

L
A

 b
u
t 
th

a
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 

o
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l 

ra
te

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 

le
ft
 n

o
 s

c
o
p
e
 f
o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

 M
r 

K
a
s
p
ro

w
ic

z
 a

ls
o
 a

s
k
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

w
it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

m
b
e
d
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 M

s
 R

o
s
s
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 t
ra

n
c
h
e
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 w

a
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 u

n
p
la

n
n
e
d
 c

a
re

. 
S

h
e
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

a
s
 

to
 b

ro
a
d
e
n
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 a

n
d
 a

llo
w

 s
ta

ff
 t
o
 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 c
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

liv
in

g
. 

S
h
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 S

e
n
io

r 
O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
T

h
e
ra

p
is

t 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
e
 

s
tu

d
ie

s
 w

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 

P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 a

ls
o
 m

a
d
e
 

 
M

 K
a
s
p
ro

w
ic

z
 

Page 89



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

1
4

 

 

e
n
q

u
ir
ie

s
 i
n
to

 A
L
E

O
s
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 v
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 p

a
re

n
t 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 h

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 
B

A
C

 f
e
lt
 t
h
e
y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 s

u
c
h
 v

a
lu

e
. 

S
a
n
d
ra

 R
o
s
s
 

re
it
e
ra

te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 r
e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 b

y
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 i
t 

w
a
s
 h

a
z
a
rd

o
u
s
 t

o
 

m
a
k
e
 l
ik

e
 f
o
r 

lik
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

. 
S

h
e
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 

B
A

C
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

h
a
d
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

it
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 6

3
0
0
 h

o
u
rs

 o
f 

c
a
re

 
re

la
ti
v
e
 t

o
 t
h
e
 6

0
0
0
 h

o
u
rs

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
te

d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

 5
%

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l.
 S

h
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 

th
a
t 
B

A
C

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 l
e
g

a
l 
h
ig

h
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
a
d
u
lt
s
. 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
1
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
’s

 
C

lo
s
in

g
 R

e
m

a
rk

s
 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 t
h
a
n
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 B
o
n
 A

c
c
o
rd

 C
a
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

le
rk

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 m

in
u
te

s
 f
ro

m
 t
o
d
a
y
’s

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

5
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 

th
e
n
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t

o
 a

 c
lo

s
e
. 

 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

N
/A

 

 

Page 90



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
B

O
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

 C
A

R
E

 L
T

D
 

 

1
5

 

  If
 

y
o

u
 

re
q

u
ir

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
a
b

o
u

t 
th

is
 

m
in

u
te

, 
p

le
a
s
e
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

Ia
in

 
R

o
b

e
rt

s
o

n
 

te
l.
 

0
1
2
2
4
 

5
2
2
8
6
9
 

o
r 

e
m

a
il
 

ia
ir

o
b

e
rt

s
o

n
@

a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

1
 

 

 
 

A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

, 
1
4
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 M
in

u
te

 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

. 
 P

re
s
e
n
t :
- 

 R
o
d
e
ri
c
k
 M

a
c
B

e
a
th

 (
D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
),

 C
h
a
ir
p
e
rs

o
n
; 

a
n
d
 M

a
ry

 A
g

n
e
w

 (
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

) 
, 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 (

IT
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
),

 J
e
ff

 C
a
p
s
ti
c
k
 

(H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
),

 E
u
a
n
 C

o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e

 (
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

a
n
d
 P

a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 (

F
in

a
n
c
e
);

 a
n
d
 J

ill
 

F
ra

n
k
s
 (

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r)
, 

D
o
n
a
ld

 M
a
c
k
ie

 (
F

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r)

 a
n
d
 A

lis
ta

ir
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 (

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 D
ir
e
c
to

r)
 

(S
p
o
rt

 A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
(S

A
))

. 
 A

ls
o
 i
n
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
: 
Ia

in
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 (

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

a
n
d
 M

a
rk

 J
o
h
n
s
to

n
e
 (

A
u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
).

 
 A

p
o
lo

g
ie

s
: 
J
o
a
n
 M

c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 (

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
).

 
 

 
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
. 

C
h
a
ir
’s

 O
p
e
n
in

g
 

R
e
m

a
rk

s
 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 a

 
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

L
E

O
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 p

a
re

n
t 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

n
 1

8
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

a
n
d
 2

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 
H

e
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

o
u
ld

 p
u
b
lis

h
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 A

L
E

O
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g

 h
o
ld

in
g

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 H

u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
c
y
c
le

 o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

w
e
e
k
 b

e
g

in
n
in

g
 9

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
6
. 

 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

N
/A

 

Page 93



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

2
 

 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 S

A
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

q
u
a
n
ti
ty

 a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
e
y
 

h
a
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

n
d
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 w

o
u
ld

 s
e
t 

a
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 H

u
b
 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 c

it
y
’s

 A
L
E

O
s
. 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

2
. 

M
in

u
te

 o
f 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 –
 1

5
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
5
 

 

A
L
E

O
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 H

u
b
 m

in
u
te

 –
 

1
7
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
. 

N
A

 
T

o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 m

in
u
te

 a
s
 a

 
c
o
rr

e
c
t 
re

c
o
rd

. 
I 

R
o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

3
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
) 

 

a
) 

L
e
is

u
re

 M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

L
M

IS
) 

F
a
ilu

re
 R

e
p
o
rt

; 
b
) 

P
la

n
n
e
d
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 D
o
w

n
 T

im
e
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

; 
c
) 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 –

 
F

ir
e
 a

n
d
 E

v
a
c
u
a
ti
o
n
 (

B
e
a
c
h
 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
);

 a
n
d
 

d
) 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 –

 
V

a
ri
o
u
s
. 

 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 (

IT
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
) 

n
o
te

d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 d

ra
ft
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 P

la
n
 

w
a
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 S

A
’s

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 1

5
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

v
e
ry

 h
e
lp

fu
l 
if
 H

u
b
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
 a

ft
e
r 

it
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
; 

J
ill

 F
ra

n
k
s
 (

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 S

A
) 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
e
 w

o
u
ld

 
lia

is
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

le
rk

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 

p
la

n
 t

o
 H

u
b
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 

P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
A

L
E

O
 B

o
a
rd

s
 a

t 
it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 1

8
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 h

e
 

a
s
k
e
d
 w

h
a
t 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 h
a
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

s
 S

A
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 
A

lis
ta

ir
 

R
o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 w
e
re

 
u
s
e
fu

l 
fo

r 
o
p
e
n
in

g
 d

o
o
rs

 a
n
d
 e

x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

S
A

’s
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

P
la

n
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 

H
u
b
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
ft

e
r 

it
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
b
y
 S

A
’s

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 1

5
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
6
; 
a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

Page 94



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

3
 

 

S
A

’s
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
b
a
s
e
. 
T

h
e
y
 h

a
d
 a

ls
o
 o

ff
e
re

d
 

in
s
ig

h
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 h

a
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t;
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

le
g

is
la

ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 c
h
a
n
g

e
. 
 

  

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

4
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r)
 

 

a
) 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
a
s
 a

t 
2
2
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

b
) 

C
h
ie

n
e
 a

n
d
 T

a
it
 (

In
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
) 

R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 1

1
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

a
n
d
 

c
) 

R
is

k
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
s
 a

t 
7
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 R

is
k
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

it
s
 

fo
rm

a
tt
in

g
 w

a
s
 f

a
m

ili
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 

H
e
 a

ls
o
 

re
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 

R
e
g

is
te

r 
a
n
d
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

m
a
d
e
 b

y
 S

A
’s

 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 H

u
b
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
. 

 T
h
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

J
ill

 F
ra

n
k
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 r
is

k
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 a

 
s
ix

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

; 
w

h
e
re

a
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

ri
s
k
s
 w

e
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 b

a
s
is

 
b
y
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 a

 s
ta

n
d
in

g
 i
te

m
 o

n
 t
h
e
 S

M
T

 a
g

e
n
d
a
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

S
A

’s
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

 h
a
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

w
o
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 2
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
n
d
 r

is
k
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 
th

e
s
e
 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

J
ill

 F
ra

n
k
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

a
c
ti
o
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

h
e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t’
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 

p
a
c
k
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 a

s
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 H

u
b
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
; 
a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

Page 95



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

4
 

 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 

P
a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t’
s
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 h

a
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
d
 

th
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
A

L
E

O
s
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 w

it
h
 a

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 i
n
 

m
in

d
 h

e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 a

s
 

a
 r

is
k
 o

n
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r.
  

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

ls
o
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 
S

A
’s

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

P
la

n
 (

2
0
1
6
-1

7
- 

2
0
1
8
-1

9
) 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

; 
A

lis
ta

ir
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 

(M
a
n
a
g

in
g

 D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 S

A
) 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 

w
a
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 

1
5
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 b

u
t 
it
s
 f

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
re

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 A

C
C

 w
h

ic
h
 w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

o
u
tl
in

e
d
 i
ts

 
b
u
d
g

e
t 

o
n
 4

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
. 

M
r 

R
o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
 m

e
t 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 t

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
6
-1

7
. 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

5
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
) 

 

D
ra

ft
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
. 

M
a
ry

 A
g

n
e
w

 (
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

n
o
te

d
 t

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

d
ra

ft
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 O

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
s
k
e
d
 t

h
e
 S

A
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

J
ill

 F
ra

n
k
s
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 w

a
s
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
B

o
a
rd

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

H
u
b
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 

S
A

’s
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 

a
n
d
 m

in
u
te

s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

M
 A

g
n
e
w

 

Page 96



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

5
 

 

h
a
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 
S

h
e
 a

ls
o
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
S

A
 h

a
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 

c
h
a
ir
e
d
 b

y
 a

 B
o
a
rd

 m
e
m

b
e
r 

w
it
h
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
. 
A

lis
ta

ir
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 w

a
s
 a

 
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 i
te

m
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

M
T

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 b

u
t 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

S
A

 h
a
d
 i
n
s
ti
lle

d
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

c
u
lt
u
re

 w
h
ic

h
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 

a
s
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
. 

 

m
o
s
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

S
a
fe

ty
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
it
s
 n

e
x
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

; 
a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

6
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

) 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
J
o
a
n
 M

c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 

(C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
) 

h
a
d
 s

e
n
t 
h
e
r 

a
p
o
lo

g
ie

s
 f
o
r 

to
d
a
y
’s

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 
b
u
t 

h
a
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 a

 n
o
te

 o
n
 S

A
’s

 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 h

e
 

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

u
b
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

h
a
d
 c

o
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
n
 1

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

fo
r 

fa
ir
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

w
a
rd

 
c
ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

v
e
r 

£
5
0
,0

0
0
. 
H

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 o

f 
a
 b

id
d
e
r 

to
 f
a
ir
 w

o
rk

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 

m
u
s
t 
b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
, 
a
n
d
 m

u
s
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

n
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t,
 

re
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
te

rm
s
 o

f 
e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t,
 s

k
ill

s
 

u
ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
, 
jo

b
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
M

s
 

M
c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
 a

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

w
it
h
 S

A
 i
n
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 A

c
t 

c
a
m

e
 

in
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 

in
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 

 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

a
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 b
e
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 

in
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 Y
e
a
r 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 S

A
 a

n
d
 

A
C

C
’s

 C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

a
n
d
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

th
a
t 
S

A
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
R

e
fo

rm
 

(S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 
2
0
1
4
 

a
h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
t’
s
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 d

a
te

 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
  

(i
i)
 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

J
 M

c
C

lu
s
k
e
y
 

Page 97



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

6
 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

7
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

) 
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 I

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t:

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 T

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

G
ro

u
p
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 i
te

m
 w

a
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 u

n
d
e
r 

it
e
m

 3
. 

T
o
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

E
 C

o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

8
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 I

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t:

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 T

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

G
ro

u
p
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

 

E
u
a
n
 C

o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 (

P
o
lic

y
, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
) 

a
s
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 S

A
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 p

o
o
r 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 p

o
o
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 
J
ill

 
F

ra
n
k
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
o
ls

 
w

e
re

 n
o
t 
fi
t 
fo

r 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 w

it
h
 o

u
td

a
te

d
 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 

c
o
n
s
ta

n
t 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 a

 
d
e
tr

im
e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
A

lis
ta

ir
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
fr

o
m

 t
im

e
 

to
 t
im

e
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
d
 t
o
 c

lo
s
e
 p

o
o
ls

 d
u
e
 t

o
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

a
ilu

re
 o

f 
a
g

e
in

g
 a

s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

S
A

 h
a
d
 k

e
p
t 
re

c
o
rd

s
 o

f 
p
o
o
l 

in
c
o
m

e
 l
o
s
t 
d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
s
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

s
. 
M

s
 

F
ra

n
k
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w

a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

S
A

 
h
a
d
 s

tr
u
g
g

le
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
e
te

 w
it
h
 R

o
b
e
rt

 
G

o
rd

o
n
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

R
G

U
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 S

p
o
rt

s
 V

ill
a
g

e
 (

A
S

V
) 

in
 a

n
 

o
v
e
rp

ro
v
is

io
n
e
d
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 
fo

r 
p
u
b
lic

 s
w

im
m

in
g

. 
S

h
e
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 t

h
e
 L

e
a
rn

 t
o
 S

w
im

 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 p
o
o
ls

 c
lo

s
e
, 
in

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g

e
 t

o
 S

A
. 

 M
r 

C
o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 S

A
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 H

u
b
 w

it
h
 a

n
 

in
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
; 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 j
o
in

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 S

A
 a

n
d
 A

C
C

 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

w
e

llb
e
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

in
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
; 
  

(i
ii)

 
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 A

A
P

 a
t 
th

e
 

n
e
x
t 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
v
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

E
 C

o
u
p
e
rw

h
it
e
 

Page 98



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

7
 

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
y
 h

a
d
 a

lig
n
e
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 S

in
g

le
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t.
 A

lis
ta

ir
 

R
o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
S

A
 h

a
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 t
h
e
 

le
a
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
A

A
P

) 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

 m
u
lt
i 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
 t
h
a
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 

u
n
iv

e
rs

it
ie

s
, 

A
S

V
, 

A
F

C
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 T

ru
s
t,
 

s
p
o
rt

s
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 E

x
tr

e
m

e
 w

it
h
 

a
 r

e
m

it
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 s
e
t 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

C
it
y
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 u

p
d
a
ti
n
g

 b
o
th

 t
h
e
 

‘P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
’.
  

H
e
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 A

A
P

 a
im

e
d
 t
o
 c

o
-

o
rd

in
a
te

 a
n
d
 c

a
p
it
a
lis

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 
e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
 w

h
ic

h
 e

x
is

te
d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

in
to

 a
 m

o
re

 a
c
ti
v
e
 c

it
y
 a

n
d
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

a
s
 a

 r
e
g

io
n
a
l 
c
e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
. 

 M
r 

R
o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 A

A
P

 w
o
u
ld

 
a
lig

n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 

A
c
ti
v
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 b

o
d
ie

s
 f
o
r 

s
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
n
g
 h

ig
h
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 g

ra
s
s
ro

o
ts

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 

o
rd

e
r 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

g
re

a
te

r 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 d

e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 s
p
e
c
tr

u
m

. 
H

e
 

a
ls

o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 A

A
P

 w
o
u
ld

 a
lig

n
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

Page 99



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

8
 

 

a
n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 M
a
ry

 A
g

n
e
w

 (
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

e
n
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

S
A

’s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 h

ig
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

g
ra

s
s
ro

o
ts

 s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 

J
ill

 F
ra

n
k
s
 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

S
A

 h
a
d
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
in

 t
h
is

 r
e
g

a
rd

 a
n
d
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 s

p
o
n
s
o
rs

h
ip

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

fr
e
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 
fr

o
m

 m
u
lt
ip

le
 d

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s
. 

M
s
 F

ra
n
k
s
 

re
it
e
ra

te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
rp

ro
v
is

io
n
 

o
f 

s
w

im
m

in
g

 p
o
o
ls

 i
n
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 
e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

ta
in

, 
a
n
d
 

th
a
t 
s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 w
e
re

 i
n
 

d
e
c
lin

e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
. 
 

 A
lis

ta
ir
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

A
C

C
 h

a
d
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 a

n
 A

q
u
a
ti
c
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

D
u
ri
n
g

 i
ts

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

it
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t

h
e
 

o
v
e
rp

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 b

u
t 

S
A

 w
e
re

 w
a
ry

 o
f 

c
lo

s
in

g
 p

o
o
ls

 a
s
 t
h
is

 
w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 c

lu
b
s
. 

H
e
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
S

A
 w

e
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 A

C
C

 o
n
 a

 2
5
 y

e
a
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

lo
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 

a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

O
A

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 g
re

a
te

r 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

P
P

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
M

r 
R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 2
5
 y

e
a
r 

Page 100



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

9
 

 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
s
c
o
p
e
 f

o
r 

e
x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

in
c
o
m

e
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
. 

H
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

S
A

 a
n
d
 c

o
lle

a
g

u
e
s
 f
ro

m
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
re

a
ti
n
g

 a
 £

5
m

ill
io

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

fi
tn

e
s
s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 S

p
o
rt

 A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 

c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

9
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

 

a
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
5
-1

6
 –

 
2
0
1
7
-1

8
; 

b
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 Q

1
 R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 –

 4
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

c
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 Q

1
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
5
-

1
6
; 

d
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 Q

2
 R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 -

6
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

e
) 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 Q

2
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
5
-

1
6
; 

f)
 

S
p
o
rt

 S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 T

e
rm

 T
h
re

e
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 A

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 Y

e
a
r 

2
0
1
4
-1

5
; 

g
) 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 Q

1
 R

e
p
o
rt

 
2
0
1
5
-1

6
 t
o
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 –

 4
 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 n

o
te

d
 

th
a
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 s

y
s
te

m
 

a
n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

e
t 
ta

rg
e
ts

. 
J
ill

 
F

ra
n
k
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

is
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 t

h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
c
u
rr

in
g
 o

r 
s
e
t 
a
n
n
u
a
lly

 a
n
d
 s

h
e
 

e
x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 
w

e
re

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

re
a
s
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 c

o
re

 
fu

n
d
in

g
. 

 M
r 

B
u
c
k
 a

ls
o
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
S

A
 w

e
re

 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g

 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
k
e
d
 i
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 
re

la
ti
v
e
 t

o
 p

e
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

r 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 
M

s
 

F
ra

n
k
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 H

u
b
 t

h
a
t 
ta

rg
e
ts

 w
e
re

 
s
e
t 

a
ft

e
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 
a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 w

a
s
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 S

A
’s

 b
u
d
g

e
ta

ry
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 

N
 B

u
c
k
 

Page 101



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

1
0

 

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
; 

h
) 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 R

e
p
o
rt

 Q
2
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 2
0
1
5
-1

6
 t
o
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
; 

i)
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
K

P
I 

R
e
p
o
rt

 Q
1
 

2
0
1
5
-1

6
; 
a
n
d
 

j)
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
K

P
I 

R
e
p
o
rt

 Q
2
 

2
0
1
5
-1

6
. 

 

to
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
ir
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
 P

a
u
l 
D

ix
o
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 S

A
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

to
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
e
y
 

h
a
d
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
6
-

1
7
. 

S
A

 a
s
s
u
m

e
d
 t

h
a
t:
 

 (i
) 

th
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
re

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
6
-1

7
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r;

 
(i
i)
 

p
ri
c
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

p
o
p
u
la

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

; 
(i
ii)

 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 

a
n
d
 s

p
o
n
s
o
rs

h
ip

 w
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

s
 a

 
re

s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 p
o
s
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r;

 
(i
v
) 

m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 

w
it
h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
; 

(v
) 

p
a
y
ro

ll 
c
o
s
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 b

y
 8

%
 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 p
o
s
ts

 i
n
 

g
o
lf
, 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t;
 a

n
d
 

(v
i)
 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
, 

p
e
n
s
io

n
 a

u
to

 e
n
ro

lm
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

liv
in

g
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

fa
c
to

re
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
. 

 M
r 

D
ix

o
n
 a

ls
o
 a

s
k
e
d
 h

o
w

 S
A

 h
a
d
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
ir
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

a
n
d
 i
f 

in
c
o
m

e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
ta

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 D
o
n
a
ld

 M
a
c
k
ie

 

Page 102



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

1
1

 

 

(F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r,

 S
A

) 
a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
s
 a

t 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 S

A
 w

e
re

 
£
1
9
2
,0

0
0
 a

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
d
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

a
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

3
0
,0

0
0
 -

 
£
5
0
,0

0
0
 a

t 
Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
. 

H
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
S

A
 

h
a
d
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 a

 s
u
rp

lu
s
 e

v
e
ry

 y
e
a
r 

s
in

c
e
 

in
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
lf
-s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
. 
W

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
M

r 
M

a
c
k
ie

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

m
a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 o

n
 

a
n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 b

a
s
is

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
it
h
 

n
o
ta

b
le

 e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
s
p
o
rt

s
 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 g

o
lf
. 

 A
lis

ta
ir
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 s

ta
b
le

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 b
e
in

g
 

la
rg

e
ly

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 

in
 t

h
a
t 
ti
m

e
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
 i
n
-

d
e
p
th

 k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
’ 
in

c
o
m

e
 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 c

a
s
c
a
d
in

g
 t
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
rs

. 
M

r 
R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 v

ig
ila

n
t 

a
b
o
u
t 

s
h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
h
o
c
k
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
n
 a

g
e
in

g
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 b
u
t 
a
d
d
e
d
 

th
a
t 
S

A
 h

a
d
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
 t
o
 

m
it
ig

a
te

 a
n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
d
e
fi
c
it
. 
 

 

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
0
. 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y
 

a
) 

L
e
is

u
re

 M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

L
M

IS
) 

N
e
il 

B
u
c
k
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 S

A
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 b

ig
g

e
s
t 
th

re
a
ts

 t
o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

T
h

e
 H

u
b

 r
e
s
o

lv
e
d

:-
 

(i
) 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 

P
 D

ix
o
n
/M

 
A

g
n
e
w

 

Page 103



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

1
2

 

 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

 
F

a
ilu

re
 R

e
p
o
rt

; 
b
) 

P
la

n
n
e
d
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 D
o
w

n
 T

im
e
 

P
ro

c
e
d
u
re

; 
c
) 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 –

 
F

ir
e
 a

n
d
 E

v
a
c
u
a
ti
o
n
 (

B
e
a
c
h
 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
);

 a
n
d
 

d
) 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 –

 
V

a
ri
o
u
s
. 

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
: 

A
lis

ta
ir
 R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
 w

a
s
 m

o
s
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
; 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r;

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 b
e
y
o
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 v

ia
b
ili

ty
; 

a
n
d
 a

n
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
 

m
a
lf
u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

H
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

o
n
e
 o

r 
a
 

c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g

e
 t
o
 S

A
. 

 M
r 

B
u
c
k
 a

ls
o
 e

n
q

u
ir
e
d
 i
f 
S

A
’s

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

w
e
re

 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
: 
M

r 
R

o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 
b
e
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
ir
 

S
L
A

 b
u
t 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 h

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
it
ia

l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 A

C
C

 c
o
lle

a
g

u
e
s
 o

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 S

A
’s

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 c

iv
il 

c
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 w

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 p

la
n
n
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

S
A

’s
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 w
e
re

 b
e
y
o
n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 l
if
e
 a

n
d
 h

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 b

o
d
y
 

w
a
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

M
r 

R
o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

S
A

 h
a
d
 a

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
re

p
a
ir
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n
d
 w

e
re

 p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 

w
e
re

 w
in

d
 a

n
d
 w

a
te

rt
ig

h
t.
 H

e
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 a

 
m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f

o
r 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 2

5
 

y
e
a
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 A

C
C

. 
 M

a
ry

 A
g

n
e
w

 a
s
k
e
d
 i
f 

S
A

 h
a
d
 w

o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 

P
o
lic

e
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 o

n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 S

A
’s

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 c
iv

il 
c
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
ii)

 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

 

Page 104



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

 
A

L
E

O
 G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 H

U
B

 
S

P
O

R
T

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 
 

1
3

 

 

ra
d
ic

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
: 

M
r 

R
o
b
e
rt

s
o
n
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

A
C

C
 w

e
re

 p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
is

 
is

s
u
e
 b

u
t 
h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a
t 
S

A
 w

o
u
ld

 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

P
re

v
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
f 

in
v
it
e
d
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
. 
  
  

N
o
 

It
e
m

 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 S
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
/D

e
c
is

io
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

1
1
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ir
’s

 
C

lo
s
in

g
 R

e
m

a
rk

s
 

 

N
/A

 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 t
h
a
n
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 S
p
o
rt

 A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
ir
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

le
rk

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 m

in
u
te

s
 f
ro

m
 t
o
d
a
y
’s

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

5
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 2

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
. 
T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 

th
e
n
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
th

e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t

o
 a

 c
lo

s
e
. 

 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 

N
/A

 

  If
 

y
o

u
 

re
q

u
ir

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
a
b

o
u

t 
th

is
 

m
in

u
te

, 
p

le
a
s
e
 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

Ia
in

 
R

o
b

e
rt

s
o

n
 

te
l.
 

0
1
2
2
4
 

5
2
2
8
6
9
 

o
r 

e
m

a
il
 

ia
ir

o
b

e
rt

s
o

n
@

a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee 
 
DATE  9 March 2016 
 
DIRECTOR  N/A 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Internal Audit Progress 
 
REPORT NUMBER N/A 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED Yes 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 This report advises the Committee of Internal Audit’s progress against the 
approved 2015/16 Internal Audit plan.   

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Committee is requested to review, discuss and comment on the issues 
raised within this report and the attached appendices. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report. 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS 

4.1 The Internal Audit plan for 2015/16 was approved by this Committee on 26 
February 2015.  The plan included an indicative quarter in which it was 
planned to undertake each audit.   

4.2 The plan includes two audits relating to the Pension Fund and it was 
previously noted that the outcomes of these would be reported to the Audit, 
Risk and Scrutiny Committee.  However, the Committee’s Orders of 
Reference specifically exclude Internal Audit reports relating to the Pension 
Fund.  Responsibility for receiving these reports is reserved to the Pensions 
Committee and the outcomes of the audits will be reported to that 
Committee.  As a result, these audits, which are nearing completion, are no 
longer included in the following table or appendix to this report. 

4.3 The appendix to this report shows the plan along with progress achieved as 
at the date of this report.  Where audits have been finalised and reported to 
Committee before the date of this Committee, the date on which they were 
presented is the only detail shown.  Where comments included have 
already been reported to Committee, these are shown in italics.  A 
summary is shown in the following table: 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 107



Item:          Page:  2 
 

 

 

Planned 
Audit Status 

As at 29 February 2016 
by Original Target Committee Date 

%age 

29.09.15 26.11.15 25.02.16 28.04.16 Total 

Complete 
 

5 5 2 0 12 37.5 

Draft Report 
Issued 

2 1 2 0 5 15.6 

Work in 
Progress 

0 1 3 3 7 21.9 

To be 
Commenced 

0 0 0 1 1   3.1 

Cancelled / 
Moved to 
2016/17 

1 1 3 2 7 21.9 

Total 8 8 10 6 32 100.0 

4.4 Progress with planned work has been slower than anticipated when 
developing the plan.  As reported to Committee previously, this was initially 
as a result of: 

• The Team focusing on completing Aberdeenshire work from 2014/15 in 
quarter one; 

• Time taken to gain access to Aberdeen City systems and familiarisation 
with those different systems and personnel; 

• Additional work undertaken which has delayed progress with some 
planned works.  

4.5 The have also been delays in Services providing some of the information 
required for audit work to progress, and in responding to some draft reports 
when issued.  Some reviews have taken longer to complete than 
anticipated when setting the Internal Audit plan.  It has also taken Internal 
Audit longer than anticipated to understand the different systems.  The 
agreed plan had an assumption that all systems to be audited would be 
adequately documented, detailing the controls put in place by 
management, and that testing would identify that these controls were being 
complied with.  It was stated that if this was not the case, there would be an 
impact on the time taken to review planned areas and on the plan’s 
achievability.  Not all systems have been found to be fully documented or to 
be operating as expected.  These factors have had an impact on the 
Section’s ability to progress as quickly as anticipated. 

4.6 In addition to the above, the Internal Audit Section has been operating at 
less than full establishment due to higher than usual sickness absence, 
whilst one member of staff has been called-up by the armed forces for a 
year from mid-November 2015.  A new member of staff, on a fixed-term 
contract, commenced at the beginning of January to cover this.  However, 
another member of staff resigned with effect from mid-January and that 
post is in the process of being filled.  Up to the end of January 2016, the 
Section’s capacity due to the foregoing factors was reduced by almost 
10%. 

Page 108



Item:          Page:  3 
 

 

4.7 As mentioned above, in addition to planned audits, the Internal Audit plan 
has a contingency for additional works and investigations.  The following 
table provides a summary of these to date whilst more details are shown in 
the attached appendix: 

 

Additional Work Status As at 29 February 2016 
 

Complete 7 

Draft Report Issued 0 

Work in Progress 1 

Total 8 

5. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
David Hughes, Chief Internal Auditor 
David.Hughes@aberdeenshire.gov.uk 
(01224) 664184 

Page 109



 

 

APPENDIX A 
 
PROGRESS WITH INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015/16 

CROSS SERVICE AUDITS    

   

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

Corporate Policies and 
Procedures in Aberdeen 
City and Aberdeenshire 
Councils (joint audit) 

To undertake a "stock take" of the 
policies and procedures in existence 
within Aberdeen City and 
Aberdeenshire Councils with a view 
to ascertaining the scope for 
standardisation and rationalisation. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

17.08.15 
13.08.15 

Green The draft Internal 
Audit Report was 

discussed by 
Aberdeen City and 
Aberdeenshire’s 

Joint Senior 
Management Team 

on 09.12.15.   

Management response due 
Reminder sent 
Various Management responses 
received between 

14.09.15 
14.12.15 
21.12.15 

and 
19.01.16 

Amber 

Updated draft report issued 
Requests from management regarding 
report content 
Revised draft issued 

20.01.16 
01.02.16 

 
16.02.16 

Green 

Original target Committee date 
Revised submission to Committee 

29.09.15 
TBC 

Amber 

 

Risk Registers Council-wide review of procedures in 
place to consider whether risks are 
identified and adequately managed. 

Presented to Committee 26.11.15   

  

P
a
g

e
 1

1
0



 

5 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

CROSS SERVICE AUDITS (continued)    

 

Recruitment Procedures 
across all Services 
(excluding Teaching staff)  
 
NOTE: Work conjoined 
with Teachers 
Recruitment Audit 

Consider whether all Services are 
complying with Policy relating to 
recruitment and document retention, 
and that recruitment is being 
undertaken in the most efficient 
manner. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

22.08.15 
21.08.15 

Green  

Management response due 
Management response received – HR 
Management response – E&CS 

21.09.15 
21.09.15 
09.11.15 

 
Green 
Red 

On issue of final 
report on 16.11.15, 

the Director of E&CS 
requested that 

further changes be 
made.   

 
The response from 
E&CS necessitated 

further validation 
work being 

undertaken by 
Internal Audit in 

consultation with HR 
who confirmed to 
Internal Audit that 

they had discussed 
the issue with E&CS. 

Final report issued 16.11.15 Green 

Reminder issued to E&CS 
 
 
 
Response from E&CS 
 
Reminder issued to E&CS 
 
Response from E&CS 
 

17.12.15 
11.01.16 
18.01.16 

 
29.01.16 

 
15.02.16 

 
17.02.16 

Red 

Final report issued 25.02.16   

Original target Committee date 
Actual submission to Committee 

29.09.15 
09.03.16 

Red  

 
  

P
a
g
e
 1

1
1



 

6 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

CROSS SERVICE AUDITS (continued)    

 

ALEOs To review the governance 
arrangements in place between 
Aberdeen City Council and its 
ALEOs, including determination of 
sources of assurance regarding risk 
management, internal controls, and 
staff and information governance. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

18.01.16 
18.01.16 

 Delayed to allow 
Governance Hubs to 

meet before 
commencing audit. 

Management response due 
Management response received 
Corporate Governance 
 
Reminder to Other Services 
Responses 
 

28.01.16 
 

27.01.16 
 

11.02.16 
22.02.16 

 
 
 
 

Amber 

Final report issued 23.02.16 Green 

Original target Committee date 
Anticipated submission to Committee 
Actual submission to Committee 

26.11.15 
26.02.16 
09.03.16 

Amber 

 

Compliance with 
Procurement related 
Legislation and Financial 
Regulations. 

To review sample of payments in 
excess of £5,000 to ensure that they 
have been made in full compliance 
with Legislation and Financial 
Regulations and that, where 
appropriate, Value for Money has 
been achieved. 

Audit 1 
Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued  
 

 
25.02.16 

N/A 

 Obtaining access to 
the data, and in the 
format, required to 
undertake the audit 

took longer than 
anticipated but 

detailed testing has 
now commenced.  In 

view of this it is 
planned to cancel 

the second audit and 
include a similar 

review in 2016/17. 

Original target Committee date 
Anticipated submission to Committee 
 

26.11.15 
28.04.16 

Amber 

Audit 2 
Original target Committee date 
 

 
28.04.16 

 

 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
2



 

7 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

CROSS SERVICE AUDITS (continued)    

 
Timesheets / Allowances Consider whether terms and 

conditions are being complied with 
and that timesheets submitted for 
payment are accurate.  Where 
appropriate, confirm claims to 
Service documentation and 
challenge management regarding 
overtime / additional hours worked. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

15.12.15 
10.12.15 

Green  

Management response due 
Response from HR&OD 
Response from Finance 
Responses from Roads 

11.01.16 
08.01.16 
19.01.16 
13.01.16 

 
Green 
Amber 
Amber 

Final report issued 19.01.16 Green 

Original target Committee date 
Actual submission to Committee 

25.02.16 
09.03.16 

 
Green 

 

Following the Public 
Pound 

Review arrangements in place to 
ensure that public funds are awarded 
against set criteria which complies 
with the principles of following the 
public pound requirements. 

Original target Committee date 
 

25.02.16 
 

Amber Delayed at request 
of Head of Finance 

due to new 
procedures being 

introduced.  Propose 
moving to 2016/17 IA 

plan. 

 

Data Protection Review arrangements in place 
across the Council to consider 
whether Data Protection legislation is 
complied with. 

Original target Committee date 
 

25.02.16 Green Delayed due to 
additional work (see 
end of report) and 
resource issues 
detailed above.  

Propose moving to 
2016/17 IA plan. 

  

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3



 

8 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

  

Commercial and Procurement Services 
 

  

 
Creditors System Consider whether appropriate control 

is being exercised over the Creditors 
System, including contingency 
planning and disaster recovery, and 
that interfaces to and from other 
systems are accurate and properly 
controlled. 

Presented to Committee 26.11.15   

Finance 
 

  

  

Budget Setting Process Review procedures used in setting 
the Council’s budget. 

Original target Committee date 
 

29.09.15 Amber Delayed due to work 
being undertaken on 

Health and Social 
Care Integration. 

Propose moving to 
2016/17 IA plan. 

 

Council Tax Consider whether billing and 
collection arrangements are robust 
and adequately applied. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

20.11.15 
23.12.15 

Amber  

Management response due 
Management response received 

15.01.16 
15.01.16 

Green 

Final draft report issued 
Management response received 

21.01.16 
25.01.16 

Green 

Final report issued 28.01.16 Green 

Original target Committee date 
Actual submission to Committee 

26.11.15 
09.03.16 

Amber 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
4



 

9 
 

 
SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  

29 February 2016 
Red 

Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued) 

 

  

Finance (continued) 
 

  

  

Bank Reconciliations Review procedures to ensure that 
accurate, timely reconciliations are 
produced using a robust 
methodology. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

12.02.16 
N/A 

Amber Delays in Internal 
Audit caused by 

Auditor leaving the 
Council Original target Committee date 

Anticipated submission to Committee 
25.02.16 
28.04.16 

Amber 

 
VAT Consider whether VAT returns are 

accurately and timeously prepared 
and that appropriate reconciliations 
are completed to ensure accuracy. 

Original target Committee date 
 

25.02.16 
 

Amber Delayed due to 
HMRC Inspection. 
Internal Audit will 

seek to take 
assurance from the 

output from that 
inspection when 

provided by the Head 
of Finance. 

 
Budget Monitoring  Review procedures used for 

monitoring the Council's revenue 
budget. 

Original target Committee date 
 

28.04.16 
 

Green  

  

P
a
g
e
 1

1
5



 

10 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued) 

 

  

Finance (continued) 
 

  

 
Benefits Consider whether benefits being paid 

to claimants are supported by 
appropriate documentary evidence, 
that the calculation of benefit is 
accurate, and that it has been 
properly recorded for subsidy 
purposes.  To use Audit Scotland 
documentation to allow specific 
reliance to be placed on work done. 

Original target Committee date 
 

28.04.16 
 

Green  

 
Human Resources and Organisational Development 

 

 

 

Payroll System Consider whether appropriate control 
is being exercised over the payroll 
system, including contingency 
planning, disaster recovery and 
interfaces, and that payments made 
by the system are accurate.  To 
include system data reconciliations 

Presented to Committee 26.11.15   

  

P
a
g

e
 1

1
6



 

11 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

  

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

  

  

Recruitment Procedures 
NOTE: Work conjoined 
with Council-wide review 

Consider whether Service is 
complying with Policy relating to 
recruitment of teaching staff, and that 
recruitment is being undertaken in 
the most efficient manner. 

See Recruitment Procedures audit 
under Cross-Service audits. 

   

 

Academy Visits Consider whether income and 
expenditure, payroll records, 
inventories, and computer security 
are adequately controlled and 
completed.  

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

30.10.15 
26.10.15 

Green  

Management response due 
Management response received 

23.11.15 
05.01.16 

Red 

Final draft issued 
Reminders issued to Service 
 
 
Management response received 

07.01.16 
21.01.16 
15.02.16 

 
N/A 

Green 
Red 

Original target Committee date 
Anticipated submission to Committee 

25.02.16 
TBC 

Amber 

 

Family and Community 
Support – Family Centres 

Consider whether income and 
expenditure, payroll records, 
inventories, and computer security 
are adequately controlled and 
completed.  

Draft report due to be issued 11.03.15  Delays in Internal 
Audit caused by 
additional work 
undertaken and 
resource issues. 

Original target Committee date 
Anticipated submission to Committee 

25.02.16 
28.04.16 

Amber 

  

P
a
g
e
 1

1
7



 

12 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES (continued) 
 

  

 

Teachers Payroll 
including Supply Teaches 

Consider whether all aspects of 
payroll administration are adequately 
controlled and that payment is being 
made accurately to bona-fide 
employees. 

Draft report due to be issued 04.03.16   

Original target Committee date 
 

28.04.16 Green 

 

Out of Authority 
Placements 

Consider whether system used to 
make placements is robust and that 
alternatives are considered before 
decisions are made which commit 
expenditure. 

Original target Committee date 
 

28.04.16 Green Commencement of 
audit under 

discussion with 
Service. 

 
  

P
a
g

e
 1

1
8



 

13 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

COMMUNITIES, HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES   

Housing 
  

  

Rent Assessment Consider whether the scheme is 
robust and is operating satisfactorily 
in relation to rent setting. 

Presented to Committee  29.09.15   

 
Rent Collection Consider whether rent collection and 

arrears processes are robust and are 
being complied with. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

25.09.15 
27.01.16 

Red Delays in Internal 
Audit 

Management response due 29.02.16  

Original target Committee date 
Anticipated submission to Committee 

29.09.15 
28.04.16 

Amber 

 
Building Maintenance 
Procurement  

Consider whether adequate control is 
in place regarding procurement of 
materials.  

Original target Committee date 
 

26.11.15 
 

Amber Delayed due to 
volume of additional 

works being 
undertaken by 

Internal Audit in the 
Service (see General 

Section below). 
Propose moving to 
2016/17 IA plan. 

  

P
a
g
e
 1

1
9



 

14 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

COMMUNITIES, HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES (continued)   

Housing (continued) 
  

 
Sheltered Housing To review the implementation of 

revised arrangements following the 
January 2013 report on Housing for 
Varying Needs Review. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

09.10.15 
30.10.15 

Amber Information 
requested not 
provided timeously 
and Service not 
responding fully and 
timeously to audit 
queries. 

Management response due 
Reminders issued 
 
Management response received 

30.11.15 
22.12.15 
18.01.16 
25.01.16 

Green 
 
 

Red 

Final report issued 15.02.16 Green 

Original target Committee date 
Anticipated submission to Committee  
Actual submission to Committee 

26.11.15 
25.02.16 
09.03.16 

Amber 

 

Transportation 
 

  

  

Vehicles Ensure that the procedures put in 
place to address concerns raised by 
the Traffic Commissioner have been 
implemented and are operating in a 
satisfactory manner.  To include 
random, unannounced visits to check 
vehicles. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

23.12.15 
22.01.15 

 
Amber 

 

Management response due 
Reminder issued 
 
Management response received 

08.02.16 
15.02.16 

 
N/A 

 

Original target Committee date 
Anticipated submission to Committee 

25.02.16 
28.04.16 

Amber 

  

P
a
g

e
 1

2
0



 

15 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 
COMMUNITIES, HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES (continued) 

  

Transportation (continued)   

 
Crematorium Ensure that procedures put in place 

to address concerns raised in 
2014/15 have been embedded in the 
Crematorium and ascertain where 
assurance over operation will be 
obtained from in future. 

Draft report due to be issued  
Draft report issued 

04.12.15 
18.11.15 

Green  

Management response due 
Management response received 

18.12.15 
25.11.15 

Green 

Final report issued 30.11.15 Green 

Original target Committee date 
Actual submission to Committee 

25.02.16 
09.03.16 

Green 

 
Tendering Procedures Consider whether robust tendering 

procedures are in place and are 
operating satisfactorily. 

Original target Committee date 
 

28.04.16 Amber  New procedures 
being introduced by 
Service and some 
elements of audit 

have been covered 
in the Vehicles audit 
referred to above.   
Propose moving to 
2016/17 IA plan. 

  

P
a
g
e
 1

2
1



 

16 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 
COMMUNITIES, HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES (continued) 

  

Public Infrastructure and Environment 
 

  

  

Trade Waste Consider whether adequate control is 
in place covering income and 
expenditure, that appropriate 
agreements and other paperwork is 
in place, and that accounting 
arrangements are robust. 

Draft report due to be issued  
Draft report issued 

13.10.15 
26.10.15 

Amber  

Management response due 
Management response received 

23.11.15 
23.11.15 

Green 

Final draft issued 
Management response received 

24.11.15 
13.01.16 

Green 
Red 

Final report issued 14.01.16 Green 

Original target Committee date 
Actual submission to Committee 

26.11.15 
09.03.16 

Amber 

  

P
a
g

e
 1

2
2



 

17 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 
ADULT SOCIAL WORK / INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD 

 

  

  

Social Work Tendering Consider whether robust, 
documented procedures are in place 
to adequately control tendering and 
selection processes. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

02.10.15 
01.12.15 

Amber Additional work 
being undertaken in 
respect of Children’s 
Services requested 
by Chief Executive 

Management response due 
Management response received 

22.12.15 
22.12.15 

Green Response resulted in 
further consultation 
with other Services. 

Further draft issued 
Management response (partial) 
received 

15.01.16 
22.01.16 

  

Updated draft issued 
Management response due 
Management response received 

12.02.16 
26.02.16 

N/A 

  

Original target Committee date  
Anticipated submission to Committee  

26.11.15 
28.04.16 

Amber  

  

Self Directed Support Consider whether adequate control is 
exercised over direct payments made 
in advance to clients. 

Draft report due to be issued 
Draft report issued 

04.03.16  Audit delayed at 
request of Service 

due to external 
inspection 

Original target Committee date 
Anticipated submission to Committee 

25.02.16 
28.04.16 

Amber 

 
  

P
a
g
e
 1

2
3



 

18 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 
ADULT SOCIAL WORK / INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD (continued) 

 

  

  

Integration of Health and 
Social Care 

Internal Audit provision for Health 
and Social Care Partnership to 
include consultancy on arrangements 
being introduced covering risk 
management, staff and information 
governance, and provision of 
assurance to stakeholders. 
 

 As required N/A  

Additional audit (ie outwith detailed 
planned work) providing pre-
integration financial assurance 
agreed by Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 
Committee on 26.09.15 

Draft report due to be issued  
Draft report issued 

30.10.15 
04.11.15 

Amber Delays in Services 
responding to 

requests for required 
information 

Management response due 
Management response received 

04.12.15 
03.12.15 

Green 

Final draft issued 
Management response received 

11.12.16 
12.01.16 

 
Amber 

Final report issued 15.01.16 Green 

Submission to Committee 09.03.16 Green 

  

P
a
g

e
 1

2
4



 

19 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

GENERAL   

 
Follow up of 
recommendations 
agreed in previously 
issued Internal Audit 
reports. 

To provide assurance that agreed 
actions have been implemented.  
Reporting will be by way of regular 
updates to Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 
Committee.  To include reporting of 
agreed PWC recommendations. 

Target Committee Date 
Actual Committee Date 

29.09.15 
29.09.15 

Green  

Target Committee Date 
Actual Committee Date 

26.11.15 
26.11.15 

Green 

Target Committee Date 
Actual Committee Date 

25.02.16 
09.03.16 

Green 

 
Reporting Internal Audit 
outputs to Audit, Risk 
and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

To provide Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 
Committee with assurance regarding 
the areas examined by Internal Audit. 

Target Committee Date 
Actual Committee Date 

29.09.15 
29.09.15 

Green  

Target Committee Date 
Actual Committee Date 

26.11.15 
26.11.15 

Green 

Target Committee Date 
Actual Committee Date 

25.02.16 
09.03.16 

Green 

 
Commercial and 
Procurement Services - 
PACE Projects. 

To provide consultancy regarding 
issues arising from proposed projects.  

N/A N/A  

 
Shared Services as 
they arise. 

To provide consultancy regarding 
issues arising from shared service 
proposals. 

N/A N/A  

 
  

P
a
g
e
 1

2
5



 

20 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

GENERAL (continued)   

 

Contingency - 
Investigations and 
additional works. 

To undertake investigations and 
additional works as they arise during 
the year and to provide a contingency 
should systems subject to audit not be 
adequately documented by Services 
prior to audit. 

Additional works undertaken / being undertaken are detailed in the following tables. 

 
Council Tax Billing 
2014/15 

Establish reasons why incorrect bar 
codes had been recorded on Council 
Tax Bills and the controls in place to 
prevent duplicate bills being issued. 

Presented to Committee  29.09.15   

 
Craft Workers Terms and 
Conditions 

To review the completion of 
timesheets and compliance with 
agreed terms and conditions. 

Presented to Committee 26.11.15   

 
 
 

Window Replacements To review the circumstances 
regarding window replacements. 

Submission to Committee 26.11.15   

 
  

P
a
g

e
 1

2
6



 

21 
 

 
SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  

29 February 2016 
Red 

Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

GENERAL (continued)   

 
Window Replacements 2 To establish the process for dealing 

with complaints against officers and 
to determine if the process was 
followed correctly in this case, and to 
make any recommendations as 
appropriate. 

Anticipated submission to Committee 
Submission to Committee 

09.03.16 
09.03.16 

  

 
Langdykes Road To review whether officers have 

complied with Council policy / 
procedure in respect of granting of 
planning permission for the 
development of a Hydrogen Power 
Station. 

Presented to Committee 26.11.15 
 

  

 

Building Services 
Recharges 

To evaluate controls in place to 
ensure costs (materials and labour) 
charged to jobs are accurate. 

Draft report issued N/A Amber Delays in Internal 
Audit and prioritising 

other works. 
Anticipated submission to Committee 
Changed to 

25.02.16 
28.04.16 

Amber 

 
  

P
a
g
e
 1

2
7



 

22 
 

SUBJECT / SCOPE OBJECTIVE Progress as at  
29 February 2016 

Red 
Amber 
Green 

Comment where 
applicable 

 

GENERAL (continued)   
 

 
Payment Controls in 
Children’s Social Work  

To evaluate controls in place. Draft report issued 16.11.15 Green  

Management response due 
Management response (partial) 
received 

30.11.15 
25.11.15 

Green  

Further draft issued 
Management response (partial) 
received 

11.12.15 
11.01.16 

Green Key Service officer 
off until 11.01.16 

Final draft issued 
Management responses received 
between 

15.01.16 
21.01.16 

and 
27.01.16 

Amber On issue of final 
report, the Director of 
E&CS requested that 
further changes be 

made, specifically to 
the action plan and 

implementation 
dates.   

Final report issued 
 
Updated final report issued 

27.01.16 
 

25.02.16 

Green 

Submission to Committee 
 

09.03.16 Green  

 

P
a
g

e
 1

2
8



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee 
 
DATE  9 March 2016 
 
DIRECTOR  N/A 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 
 
REPORT NUMBER N/A 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED Yes 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the attached Internal Audit 
plan for 2016/17. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

 
It is recommended that the Committee approve the attached Internal Audit 
Plan for 2016/17. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report. 

4. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

4.1 It is one of the functions of the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee to review 
the activities of the Internal Audit function, including the approval of the 
Internal Audit Plan.  The plan for 2016/17 is attached as appendix B. 

4.2 All audits included in the attached plan, as well as those in future plans, will 
help familiarise Internal Audit with the Council’s control environment and 
governance arrangements, allowing assurance to be provided regarding 
those arrangements.  Where opportunities for improvement in controls and 
their application, or improvements in value for money, are identified these 
will be reported along with recommendations for management to consider.  

4.3 A small number of audits contained in the attached plan are to be 
undertaken across both Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils.  Where 
possible, it is planned that these audits will be undertaken simultaneously so 
that good practice can be shared through the audit process.  

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 129



 

2 
 

4.4 The plan for Aberdeenshire is being consulted on and will be presented to 
that Council’s Scrutiny and Audit Committee on 30 March 2016.  The time 
allocation for all audits assumes that systems to be reviewed are adequately 
documented, detailing the controls put in place by management, and that 
testing identifies that these controls are being complied with.  If this is not 
the case, there will be an impact on the time taken to review planned areas 
and on the plan’s achievability.   

4.5 It is planned to have rolling three year plans in future, with those of both 
Councils linked as far as possible to improve efficiency and help share best 
practice.  

4.6 The plan has been discussed with Service Directors to ensure that they are 
aware of what Internal Audit is planning to audit and to allow them to identify 
areas which they consider to be of risk to their business operations which 
Internal Audit has not identified.  Each audit has been allocated to a target 
Committee date.  

4.7 Some audits planned to be completed in 2015/16 have been deferred to the 
2016/17 plan.  The reasons for this are detailed in the Internal Audit 
Progress report on today’s agenda. 

4.8 The above considerations, and those detailed in Appendix A, have resulted 
in a draft Internal Audit plan being produced (Appendix B).  The plan details 
what Internal Audit expects to be able to review in the year, assuming 
stability in resources available to the Section.  The plan is flexible and can 
be amended to reflect changes in priority or because of new risks being 
introduced or identified. 

4.9 In order to undertake the attached plan, Internal Audit has an establishment 
of thirteen posts and an annual budgeted cost for 2016/17 of £582,000.  It is 
anticipated that this will be split between Aberdeenshire and Aberdeen City 
Councils on a 2:1 ratio. 

5. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
David Hughes, Chief Internal Auditor 
David.Hughes@aberdeenshire.gov.uk 
(01224) 664184 

  

Page 130



 

3 
 

Appendix A 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016/17 
STRATEGY AND RISK ASSESSMENT 
 

This document details the process adopted for developing the Internal Audit plan for 
2016/17, which is the same as approved by the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee 
on 26 February 2015 in relation to the 2015/16 Internal Audit Plan.   
 
It is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards that the Internal Audit 
plan is based on a risk assessment.  Many Internal Audit Sections will define the 
whole audit universe (all auditable Services or systems) and apply a score against 
each component for various criteria including the inherent risk in the system, and the 
quality of management and mitigating controls in place.   
 
Whilst an audit universe has been identified, based on previous work undertaken by 
Internal Audit in Aberdeenshire, to apply scores against various criteria is considered, 
by Internal Audit, to be too subjective and adds little value to the process.  
Assessment of the quality of management and mitigating controls, especially in the 
first years of any new Internal Audit arrangements will be more subjective than in later 
years and would be based on an insufficient knowledge base. 
 
In developing the plan consideration was given to the Council’s risk registers, the 
Council’s Strategic Priorities, the Assurance and Improvement Plan 2014-17, and a 
listing of previous audits undertaken within Aberdeenshire Council, and the outcome 
of these.  Where possible, discussions were held with relevant senior officers to help 
inform the areas to review.   
 
In order to achieve its strategic priorities and outcomes, the Council allocates its 
budget to Service Directorates and enables service delivery through delegated 
authority detailed in its governance arrangements. 
 
For Internal Audit to fulfil its objective of providing assurance over the Council’s 
control environment, the internal controls put in place to protect the Council’s assets 
have to be evaluated and tested.  Taking this into account, along with the contents of 
the documents detailed above, Internal Audit considers that the main risks to the 
Council’s control environment and achieving its Strategic Priorities and Outcomes 
relate to the key areas detailed in the following table.   
  

Page 131



 

4 
 

 
Key Area Risk Internal Audit’s 

Inherent Risk 
Assessment 

Before Mitigating 
Controls Applied 

Internal Audit’s 
Risk 

Assessment 
Based on 

Evaluation of 
Mitigating 
Controls  

Corporate 
Governance 

Failure to have arrangements in 
place that specify the overall control 
environment and delegated 
authority across the whole Council. 
 

High Low 

Failure to comply with the 
requirements of the corporate 
governance arrangements including 
Financial Regulations, the Officers 
Scheme of Delegation, and other 
Council Policies. 
 

High Medium 

Budget Setting Failing to ensure that a sustainable 
budget is set which allows for 
delivery of a defined service 
including everything that will be 
required to deliver that service.   
 

High Medium 

Budget 
Monitoring 

Failing to ensure that budgets are 
monitored with the involvement of 
Service staff involved in service 
provision.   
 

Medium TBC 

Budget 
Management 

Failing to ensure that budgets are 
used only for service provision and 
are not spent because they exist.   
 

High TBC 

Failing to have outcome measures 
to demonstrate service provision.   
 

Medium TBC 

Failing to achieve Best Value / 
Value for Money. 
 

High Medium 

Procurement Failing to comply with procurement 
legislation. 
 

High Medium 

  

Page 132



 

5 
 

Key Area Risk Internal Audit’s 
Inherent Risk 
Assessment 

Before Mitigating 
Controls Applied 

Internal Audit’s 
Risk 

Assessment 
Based on 

Evaluation of 
Mitigating 
Controls  

Payments Failing to ensure that the correct 
suppliers are paid for services or 
goods supplied. 
 

Low Low 

Failing to ensure that payment of 
statutory benefits are controlled in 
accordance with legislative 
requirements. 
 

High High 

Payroll Failing to ensure that employees 
are paid correctly. 
 

Medium Medium 

Income Failing to collect statutory income 
(Council Tax, Business Rates, 
Housing Rent). 
 

High Low 

Failing to identify and recover 
sundry debts due to the Council. 
 

Medium Medium 

Failing to control cash income 
received. 
 

Medium Medium 

Assets Failing to ensure that assets are 
managed, recorded and protected. 

Medium Medium 

 
 
NOTE – Internal Audit’s risk assessment based on evaluation of mitigating controls is 
based on Internal Audit work undertaken during 2015/16, a review of Internal Audit 
work completed in previous years (in particular Continuous Financial Controls work), 
and external audit work on Benefits and the associated annual subsidy return.  
 

Page 133



 

6 
 

Risk: 
 
High There is a high probability, before mitigating controls are applied, of 

errors being made which would expose the Council to an unacceptable 
level of risk which may impact on the Council’s finances and or 
reputation, and its ability to achieve its Strategic Priorities. 

 
Medium There is a risk, before mitigating controls are applied, of errors being 

made which would expose the Council to an element of risk which may 
impact on the Council’s finances and or reputation, and its ability to 
achieve its Strategic Priorities. 

 
Low There is a low probability, before mitigating controls are applied, of errors 

being made which would expose the Council to an unacceptable level of 
risk which may impact on the Council’s finances and or reputation, and its 
ability to achieve its Strategic Priorities.  

 
Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 
 
Having considered the above issues, and looking to the future when it is anticipated 
that conjoined three year plans covering Aberdeenshire and Aberdeen City will be 
produced, it has been determined that audits will be developed in the detailed Internal 
Audit plan to ensure that periodic assurance is provided over the following areas as 
detailed. 
 
Various aspects of procurement, payroll, and income collection will be reviewed on an 
annual basis. 
 
Various aspects of Budget Setting, Monitoring and Management will be covered 
across all Services on a rolling basis throughout the three year period. 
 
The main financial and business systems of the Council (Financial Ledger, Council 
Tax System, Business Rates, Receivables, Housing Rents, Payroll, Payables, 
Housing Benefit, Care First, etc) will each be covered once in the three year period. 
 
Audits will be designed to audit specific key areas across Services or the Council, 
whilst Service or location oriented audits will also be undertaken to test a range of key 
areas.  In doing so, assurance will be gained as to whether controls in place are 
operationally effective and efficient, and whether they are being complied with.  Whilst 
undertaking audits, Internal Audit will consider opportunities to improve systems and 
processes, effect change and achieve value for money. 
 
All audits will feed into an overall evaluation of the Corporate Governance 
arrangements and compliance. 

  

Page 134



 

7 
 

Appendix B 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2016/17 
 

CROSS SERVICE AUDITS 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Council Owned Land 
and Property 

Council Owned Land 
and Property 

Review systems / procedures in place 
across the whole Council estate for 
ensuring that the Council has surety over 
the land and buildings it owns including 
title. 

February 
2017 

ALEOs ALEOs Consider how Services manage their 
ALEOs including payments and 
performance. 

February 
2017 

Compliance with 
Procurement related 
Legislation and 
Financial Regulations. 

Payments made via 
Creditors System. 

To review payments made via the 
Creditors System to ensure that a sample 
of payments in excess of £5,000 have 
been made in compliance with Legislation 
and Financial Regulations and that, where 
appropriate, Value for Money has been 
achieved by challenging management 
regarding the purchase.  This review will 
also focus on orders placed close to year 
end deadlines to ensure that they 
represent essential spend. 

September 
2016 

Timesheets / 
Allowances 

Timesheets and 
Allowance claim forms 

Consider whether terms and conditions are 
being complied with and that timesheets 
submitted for payment are accurate.  
Where appropriate, confirm claims to 
Service documentation and challenge 
management regarding overtime / 
additional hours worked. 

February 
2017 

Following the Public 
Pound 

Grants Review arrangements in place to ensure 
that public funds are awarded against set 
criteria which complies with the principles 
of following the public pound requirements. 

June 2016 

Data Protection Data Protection Review arrangements in place across the 
Council to consider whether Data 
Protection legislation is complied with. 

June 2016 

  

Page 135



 

8 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

   

Commercial and Procurement Services 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Infosmart System Infosmart System Consider whether appropriate control is 
being exercised over the system, including 
contingency planning and disaster 
recovery, and its data input, and that 
interfaces to and from other systems are 
accurate and properly controlled. 

September 
2016 

Finance 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Budget Setting Process Council Budget Review procedures used in setting the 
Council’s budget. 

November 
2016 

Treasury Management Treasury Management Consider whether the Council's Treasury 
Management Policy complies with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice and if the Policy is 
complied with. 

February 
2017 

Business Rates Business Rates Consider whether billing and collection 
arrangements are robust and adequately 
applied. 

November 
2016 

Cash Receipting 
System 

Cash Receipting 
System 

Consider whether appropriate control is 
being exercised over the system, including 
contingency planning and disaster 
recovery, and that interfaces to and from 
other systems are accurate and properly 
controlled. 

November 
2016 

Scottish Welfare Fund Scottish Welfare Fund Consider whether administration 
arrangements are robust and being 
complied with. 

September 
2016 

Benefits Rent Allowances, 
Rebates and Council 
Tax Reduction 

Consider whether benefits being paid to 
claimants are supported by appropriate 
documentary evidence, that the calculation 
of benefit is accurate, and that it has been 
properly recorded for subsidy purposes.  
To use Audit Scotland documentation to 
allow specific reliance to be placed on 
work done. 

April 2017 

 
  

Page 136



 

9 
 

Human Resources and Organisational Development 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Disclosure Checks Disclosure Checks Consider whether arrangements in place 
to ensure that appropriate employees / 
volunteers have been checked are 
adequate.  Specific testing will be targeted 
at staffing groups working with particularly 
sensitive groups. 

April 2017 

Agency Staff Agency Staff Ensure that agency staff are being 
appointed through appropriate channels 
and that arrangements for their induction 
are robust.  Partial follow up to a previous 
audit and extended to include roads 
specifically. 

November 
2016 

IT and Transformation 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Public Records 
(Scotland) Act 

Public Records 
(Scotland) Act 

The scope of a previous IA review was 
restricted due to limited progress having 
been made by the Council in some 
respects of implementation.  This review 
will consider whether arrangements in 
place to ensure compliance with the Act 
are adequate.   

September 
2016 

 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Commissioning of 
Children's Social Work 
Services 

Commissioning of 
Children's Social Work 
Services 

Consider whether arrangements in place 
are adequate. 

April 2017 

Primary School Visits Selection of Primary 
Schools 

Consider whether income and expenditure, 
payroll records, inventories, and computer 
security are adequately controlled and 
completed.  

February 
2017 

Fostering and Adoption 
Allowances 

Fostering and Adoption 
Allowances 

Consider whether adequate procedures 
are in place to control calculation, award 
and payment of allowances, that correct 
rates are applied and any overpayments 
are recovered timeously. 

April 2017 

Note: Internal Audit will be reviewing school transport tendering procedures in Aberdeenshire Council and, 
whilst the full details will not be released to Aberdeen City Council, assurance will be able to be taken from 
this work. 

 

  

Page 137



 

10 
 

COMMUNITIES, HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES 

  

Housing 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Building Maintenance Procurement Consider whether adequate control is in 
place regarding procurement of materials.  

June 2016 
 

 

Land and Property Assets 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Cleaning Payroll Cleaning Payroll Consider whether adequate controls and 
procedures are operating in relation to new 
starts / leavers and levels of additional / 
overtime hours.  To include the co-
ordination of additional hours to minimise 
overtime costs. 

June 2016 

 

Transportation 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Vehicles Vehicle and Driver 
records 

Ensure that the procedures put in place to 
address concerns raised by the Traffic 
Commissioner have been implemented 
and are operating in a satisfactory manner.  
To include random, unannounced visits to 
check vehicles. 

February 
2017 

Tendering Procedures Internal Transport Consider whether robust tendering 
procedures are in place and are operating 
satisfactorily. 

April 2017 

Public Infrastructure and Environment 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Roads Payroll Roads Payroll Consider whether adequate controls and 
procedures are operating in relation to new 
starts / leavers and levels of additional / 
overtime hours. 

September 
2016 

  

Page 138



 

11 
 

ADULT SOCIAL WORK / INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Purchasing and 
Creditors 

Purchasing and 
Creditors 

Consider whether robust documented 
procedures are in place and are 
satisfactorily complied with throughout the 
service.  Consider whether Value for 
Money is being achieved.  

June 2016 

Carefirst Carefirst Consider whether appropriate control is 
being exercised over the system, including 
contingency planning and disaster 
recovery, and its data input, and that 
interfaces to and from other systems are 
accurate and properly controlled. 

November 
2016 

Integration of Health 
and Social Care 

Health and Social Care 
Partnership 

Post Integration review of Health and 
Social Care Intervention as required by 
Integration Resource Advisory Group 
(IRAG) Guidance. 

February 
2017 

Integration of Health 
and Social Care 

Health and Social Care 
Partnership 

Internal Audit provision for Health and 
Social Care Partnership to include 
consultancy on arrangements being 
introduced covering risk management, 
staff and information governance, and 
provision of assurance to stakeholders. 

As Required 

 

GENERAL 

SUBJECT SCOPE OBJECTIVE Target 
Committee 

Follow up of agreed 
recommendations. 

Follow up of 
recommendations 
agreed in previously 
issued Internal Audit 
reports. 

To provide assurance that agreed actions 
have been implemented.  Reporting will be 
by way of regular updates to Audit, Risk 
and Scrutiny Committee. 

Continuous 

Reporting Internal Audit 
outputs to Audit, Risk 
and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Reporting Internal Audit 
outputs to Audit and 
Risk Committee. 

To provide Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 
Committee with assurance regarding the 
areas examined by Internal Audit. 

Continuous 

Contingency Investigations and 
additional works. 

To undertake investigations and additional 
works as they arise during the year and to 
provide a contingency should systems 
subject to audit not be adequately 
documented by Services prior to audit. 

As Required 

 

Page 139



Page 140

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
 E

x
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s
s

 U
p

d
a

te
 

P
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

  

1
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
, 
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y

o
n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

n
 9

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 i
s
 o

u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 A

u
d
it
. 
 S

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 w

ill

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

a
t 
p
la

n
. 
T

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
’s

 B
e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

th
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

w
h
o

le
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

.

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i

n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

’s
 2

0
1
5
 b

e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 a

u
d

it
 

2
. 

T
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
5
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

th
e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
re

a
s
 s

in
c
e
 t

h
e
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

e
lf
-a

w
a

re
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

in
g

 h
o
w

 i
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
, 

it
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

a
 g

re
a
t 

d
e
a
l 
m

o
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
. 
 I

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
e
 

•
 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 v

is
io

n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
 t
ra

n
s
la

te
d
 i
n
to

 c
le

a
r 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h
 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 

•
 

in
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
b
e
tt

e
r 

u
s
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 t

h
e
ir
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 r

o
le

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

•
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
e
d
.

1
 

E
x

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d

it
 P

ro
g

re
s
s

 U
p

d
a

te
 –

 2
0
1

5
/1

6
 A

u
d

it
  
  

P
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
u
d
it

a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 (

A
R

S
C

) 
w

it
h
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 p

ro
g
re

s
s

o
n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

n
 9

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 i
s
 o

u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 A

u
d
it
. 
 S

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 w

ill

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

a
t 
p
la

n
. 
T

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 h

a
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 h

o
w

 w
e
 w

ill
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
’s

 B
e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

5
. 
 I

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 o

u
tl
in

e
 f
o
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
ils

. 
  

in
g

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i

n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

’s
 2

0
1
5
 b

e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 a

u
d

it
  

T
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
5
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

th
e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
re

a
s
 s

in
c
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

b
e
s
t 
v
a
lu

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 2

0
0
9
. 
 W

h
ile

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

a
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

in
g

 h
o
w

 i
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
, 

it
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

a
 g

re
a
t 

d
e
a
l 
m

o
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s
: 
  

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 v

is
io

n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
 t
ra

n
s
la

te
d
 i
n
to

 c
le

a
r 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h
 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
 

in
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

, 
b
e
tt

e
r 

u
s
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 t

h
e
ir
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 r

o
le

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
e
n
e
d
. 

A
u

d
it

  
  

 

P
re

p
a
re

d
 f
o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 

o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

t 
e
a
c
h
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 I
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 o

n
 9

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 i
s
 o

u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 A

u
d
it
. 
 S

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

to
 u

s
e
 t

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 h

o
w

 w
e
 w

ill
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 o

u
tl
in

e
 f
o
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 b
e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
e
 t

o
 a

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

u
r 

T
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
5
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 

la
s
t 

b
e
s
t 
v
a
lu

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 2

0
0
9
. 
 W

h
ile

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 w

a
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

in
g

 h
o
w

 i
t 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
, 

it
 a

ls
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

a
 g

re
a
t 

d
e
a
l 
m

o
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 v

is
io

n
 n

e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
 t
ra

n
s
la

te
d
 i
n
to

 c
le

a
r 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h
 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
s
  

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

Agenda Item 3.3

Page 141



 

2
 

 

3
. 

T
h
e
 ‘
a
re

a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t’
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
ta

il 
o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
 

• •••
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 –

 b
u
ild

 o
n
 t
h
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
c
ro

s
s
-p

a
rt

y
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 m
a
in

ta
in

 p
o
lit

ic
a
l 
c
o
n
s
e
n
s
u

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 l
o
n
g

-t
e
rm

 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

• •••
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
  

- 
e
n
s
u
re

 c
le

a
r 

lin
k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 f
o
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
s
 

• •••
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

–
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a
ry

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
a
d
in

e
s
s
 f

o
r 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

4
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 u
s
 t

o
 k

e
e
p
 i
n
 t

o
u
c
h
 

w
it
h
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 w

h
e
n
 i
t 

b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
  
  
 

• •••
 

re
g

u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

re
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 w

it
h
 k

e
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 l
e
a
d

in
g

 o
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

• •••
 

o
b
s
e
rv

in
g

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 h

u
b
  

• •••
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

  

5
. 

W
h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
fu

tu
re

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 u

p
d
a
te

s
  
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
rt

 u
p
d
a
te

s
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 
 O

u
r 

m
a
in

 c
h
a
n
n
e
l 
fo

r 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 o
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

lo
n
g

s
id

e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
. 

  B
e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 –

 n
e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

  

6
. 

D
u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
4
, 
th

e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
it
s
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 i
n
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
’s

 c
o
u
n

c
ils

. 
It
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u
ty

 f
o
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 
It
 b

e
lie

v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

B
e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 a

re
 f
u
n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
to

 g
o
o
d
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 a

re
 a

s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

d
a
y
 a

s
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
h
e
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
3
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
 n

e
w

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 i
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
, 

it
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
: 
 

• •••
 

T
h
e
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
s
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
a
n
d
 c

ri
ti
c
a
lly

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

d
a
y
 a

s
 w

h
e
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 f

ir
s
t 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 

s
o
m

e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
  

Page 142



 

3
 

 

• •••
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e
a
l 
n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

a
c
e
, 
d
e
p
th

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

ri
v
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 

b
e
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
re

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
  

• •••
 

T
h
e
re

 c
a
n
 b

e
 n

o
 c

o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
g

o
o
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 

th
a
t 
c
o
n
ta

in
 t

h
e
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 a

n
d
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 l
ie

 a
t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
 

• •••
 

A
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 a
n
d
 r

is
k
-b

a
s
e
d
 a

u
d
it
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u
e
n
t 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

n
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
3
2
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

  

• •••
 

A
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 

7
. 

F
ro

m
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
, 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
fi
v
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t,
  

a
 m

o
re

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 b

e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 a

u
d
it
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g

  
lo

c
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 

b
e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

  
w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
 T

h
is

  
w

ill
 :

  
 

• •••
 

H
a
v
e
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 d

ri
v
in

g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 c
o

u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 b

e
 l
e
s
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 ‘
s
h
o
rt

c
o
m

in
g
s
’ 

• •••
 

R
e
m

a
in

 p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 a
n
d
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e
d
  

• •••
 

B
e
 a

 j
o
in

t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 t

e
a
m

s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

 

• •••
 

In
v
o
lv

e
 j
o
in

t 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

t 
a
n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

le
v
e

l 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 f

iv
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
 

• •••
 

In
v
o
lv

e
 m

o
re

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
e
n
g
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

d
u
ri

n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 b
u
ild

in
g
 m

o
re

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 c
o
n
te

x
t 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

 

• •••
 

 I
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
c
e
 i
n
 a

 f
iv

e
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 

8
. 

T
h
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
a
n
 t
h
a
t 
e
v
e
ry

 f
iv

e
 y

e
a
rs

 a
t 
e
a
c
h
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

th
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 f
u
ll 

b
e
s
t 
v
a
lu

e
 a

u
d
it
. 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

iv
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 
a
 

p
u
b
lic

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
v
o

lv
e
 a

n
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 b
u
t 
w

ill
  

la
rg

e
ly

 r
e
ly

 o
n
 a

n
 a

g
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
c
u
s
e
d
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
. 
  
It
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 u

s
e
 i
n
te

lli
g

e
n

c
e
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

w
o
rk

, 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 s

e
lf
-e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 C
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

, 
th

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt

. 

Page 143



 

4
 

 

9
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

, 
c
o
lle

a
g

u
e
s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 w

it
h
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t,
 C

O
S

L
A

 a
n
d
 S

O
L
A

C
E

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 k

e
e
p
 y

o
u
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

 A
n
n
e
 M

a
c
D

o
n
a
ld

, 
 

S
e
n
io

r 
A

u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
  

  
 

 

Page 144



  

    

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 

A
n
n
u
a

l 
A

2
0
1
5
/1

6

   

P
re

p
a
re

d
 f

o
r

 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

 

 
 

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

A
n
n
u
a

l 
A

u
d
it
 P

la
n
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

re
d

 f
o

r 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 

 

Agenda Item 3.4

Page 145



   

K
e

y
 c

o
n

ta
c

ts
 

S
te

p
h
e
n

 B
o

y
le

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
s
b
o

y
le

@
a
u

d
it
-s

c
o
tl
a
n
d

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

 A
n
n

e
 M

a
c
D

o
n
a

ld
, 

S
e
n
io

r 
A

u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

a
m

a
c
d
o
n
a
ld

@
a
u

d
it
-s

c
o
tl
a
n

d
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 M
a
rk

 J
o
h
n
s
to

n
e
, 

S
e

n
io

r 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

m
jo

h
n
s
to

n
e
@

a
u

d
it
-s

c
o
tl
a
n

d
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 A
u
d

it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 H

u
b
 1

5
, 

3
rd

 F
lo

o
r 

S
o
u

th
 

M
a
ri
s
c
h
a

l 
C

o
lle

g
e

 
B

ro
a
d

 S
tr

e
e
t 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n

  
A

B
1
0
 1

A
B

 

T
e
le

p
h
o

n
e
: 

0
1
3

1
 6

2
5
 1

5
0
0

 

W
e
b
s
it
e
: 

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-s

c
o
tl
a

n
d
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 T
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

o
d

y
 w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p
o

in
ts

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it
o
rs

 t
o

 S
c
o
tt

is
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

b
o
d

ie
s
 (

w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-s

c
o
tl
a

n
d

.g
o

v
.u

k
/a

b
o
u
t/

a
c
/)

. 
 A

u
d

it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n

d
 i
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

o
d

y
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

u
d

it
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n

ts
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 A
u
d
it
o
r 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
( w

w
w

.a
u
d

it
-s

c
o
tl
a

n
d
.g

o
v
.u

k
/a

b
o
u
t/

).
 

 T
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 S

te
p

h
e
n
 B

o
y
le

 a
s
 t
h

e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u

d
it
o
r 

o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 t
o
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 

 
 T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
re

p
a

re
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 n

o
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 a

n
y
 m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
r 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
c
a

p
a
c
it
y
 o

r 
a

n
y
 t

h
ir
d
 p

a
rt

y
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 
  

 .  

 
C

o
n

te
n

ts
 

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 
3

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

 5
 

A
u

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 
6

 

A
u

d
it

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
s
 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
 1

1
 

F
e
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
 1

6
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 
1
8

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a
u

d
it

 r
is

k
s
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 
2
1

 

 

 
 

 

Page 146



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 3

 

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

1
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
s
 f
a
c
in

g
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 

to
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 a

u
d
it
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
l 
y
e
a
r 

o
f 

o
u
r 

fi
v
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

A
u
d
it
o
r 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
is

 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

p
p
o

in
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
fi
v
e
 y

e
a
r 

c
y
c
le

. 
 D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 n

e
w

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
r 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

p
ri
n
g

. 
  
 

2
. 

O
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 i
s
 f

o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 

ri
s
k
s
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
in

 A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
  

3
. 

O
u
r 

p
la

n
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

: 

•
 

th
e
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

a
c
in

g
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

•
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

to
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 

•
 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

c
h
a
n
g

in
g

 i
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
u
d
it
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ti
n
g

 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

•
 

o
u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
r 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

•
 

is
s
u
e
s
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 f
ro

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
. 

 

4
. 

T
h
e
 C

h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 (
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
0
6
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

s
 t
h
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 r

u
le

s
 f

o
r 

S
c
o
tt

is
h
 r

e
g

is
te

re
d
 c

h
a

ri
ti
e
s
. 
 

Ir
re

s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
ri
ty

, 
a
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
(S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

1
9
7
3
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
, 

a
 f

u
ll 

a
u
d
it
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

f 
a
ll 

re
g

is
te

re
d
 

c
h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 t
h
e
 s

o
le

 t
ru

s
te

e
. 

 I
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
, 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
d
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 c

h
a
ri
ti
e

s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 o

n
e
 s

e
t 

o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

a
ll 

o
f 

it
s
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
t 

a
s
s
e
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 

c
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

 a
m

o
u
n
t 
to

 a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 £

7
.6

 m
ill

io
n
. 

 A
c
c
o
rd

in
g

ly
, 

w
e
 w

ill
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

 i
n
 p

a
ra

lle
l 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

 a
c

ti
v
it

y
 

5
. 

O
u
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
: 

•
 

a
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 

o
n
 w

h
e
th

e
r:

 

−
 

th
e
y
 g

iv
e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f
a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 s

ta
te

 o
f 

a
ff

a
ir
s
 o

f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 g
ro

u
p
 a

s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6

 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
n
 e

n
d
e

d
 

−
 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e

 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
(S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 
1
9
7
3
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

2
0
1
5
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

th
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g

d
o
m

 (
th

e
 C

o
d
e
) 

Page 147



S
u

m
m

a
ry

 

  P
a
g

e
 4

 
A

b
e

rd
e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 

•
 

a
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 t

h
e
 s

o
le

 

tr
u
s
te

e
 

•
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
n
 

a
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

la
n
. 

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d
/o

r 
a
n
y
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 N

e
tw

o
rk

’s
 (

L
A

N
’s

) 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
s
in

c
e
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

•
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
fo

llo
w

 u
p
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
s
 

•
 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

a
u
d
it
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 K

e
y
 a

re
a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

, 
a
d
e
q

u
a
c
y
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
a
u
d
it
, 
th

e
 I
T

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

A
rm

’s
 L

e
n
g

th
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

(A
L
E

O
s
) 

 

•
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
g

ra
n
t 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 

re
tu

rn
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 W

h
o
le

 o
f 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

•
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

ra
u
d
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 

•
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
’s

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 

•
 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

u
b
lic

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
. 

 

 
 

Page 148



R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 5

 

 R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 

6
. 

T
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
re

lie
v
e

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
r 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 

a
s
 t

h
e
 b

o
d
y
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r 

7
. 

O
u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 

a
s
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
u
d
it
o
r,

 a
re

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
(S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

1
9
7
3
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 g

u
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
’s

 e
th

ic
a
l 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

8
. 

A
u
d
it
o
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
g

iv
e
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
 W

e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 s
e
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 b

o
d
y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

o
f 

it
s
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
ff

a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 i
ts

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 I

n
 d

o
in

g
 t

h
is

, 
w

e
 a

im
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e

  

9
. 

It
 i
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 

‘p
ro

p
e
r 

o
ff

ic
e
r’
, 
to

 p
re

p
a
re

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
. 
 T

h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
: 

•
 

m
a
in

ta
in

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 

•
 

p
re

p
a
ri
n
g

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 g

iv
e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 s

ta
te

 o
f 

a
ff

a
ir
s
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 g
ro

u
p
 a

s
 a

t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
n
 

e
n
d
e
d
. 

F
o

rm
a

t 
o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c

o
u

n
ts

 

1
0

. 
T

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n

c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

C
o
d
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

te
s
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
 

1
1

. 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
re

p
a
re

s
 a

 W
h
o
le

 o
f 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n
 p

a
c
k
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

  
T

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 

s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
, 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
o

rm
a
ts

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 u

s
e
d
. 

 

Page 149



A
u

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 

  P
a
g

e
 6

 
A

b
e

rd
e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 A
u

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 

O
u

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 

1
2

. 
O

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
, 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 

p
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 g
ro

u
p
. 
 

W
e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 k

e
y
 a

u
d
it
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
s
e
c
to

r 
g

e
n
e
ra

lly
. 

 T
h
is

 a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
: 

•
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 

g
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 e

x
p
o
s
u
re

 w
h
ic

h
 c

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l,
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g

 

h
o
w

 r
is

k
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 c

o
u
ld

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 m

a
jo

r 
tr

a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
, 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 h

o
w

 A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

  

•
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

in
 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 n

a
tu

re
, 
ti
m

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 u

s
 w

it
h
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
u
d
it
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 

fa
ir
 v

ie
w

. 

1
3

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

a
k
e
 b

e
s
t 
u
s
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 

to
 f
o
c
u
s
 a

u
d
it
 t
e
s
ti
n
g
 o

n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

ri
s
k
 a

re
a
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l.
  

P
la

n
n
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
lie

d
 o

n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
: 

•
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 c

lo
s
e
d
o
w

n
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 g

ro
u

p
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y
 a

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 a

ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

s
ta

ff
 

•
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

u
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 p
a
c
k
a
g

e
 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 a

u
d
it
 o

v
e
r 

a
 

p
h
a
s
e
d
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

 

•
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

•
 

a
 l
e
tt

e
r 

o
f 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

u
b
s
id

ia
ri
e
s
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 

1
4

. 
A

u
d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d

it
o
rs

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 

c
lo

s
e
ly

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 m

a
k
e
 b

e
s
t 

u
s
e
 o

f 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
u
d
it
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
 

F
ro

m
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

e
n
te

re
d
 i
n
to

 a
n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 f

e
lt
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
u
ld

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 
 W

e
 s

e
e
k
 t
o
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

w
e
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
n
 e

a
rl
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

Page 150



A
u

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 7

 

 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

it
 h

a
s
 s

o
u
n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
lie

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
e
c
to

r 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 (

P
S

IA
S

).
  

1
5

. 
H

a
v
in

g
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 c

a
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
rm

a
l 
re

lia
n
c
e
 o

n
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
, 
w

e
 p

la
n

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s
, 
to

 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

: 

•
 

b
a
n
k
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

c
re

d
it
o
rs

 

•
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 

•
 

p
a
y
ro

ll.
 

1
6

. 
In

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

o
u
r 

w
id

e
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 w
e
 

a
ls

o
 p

la
n
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

•
 

A
rm

’s
 L

e
n
g
th

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

A
L
E

O
s
) 

•
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 P
o
u
n
d
 

G
ro

u
p

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

  

1
7

. 
O

u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
e
a
rl
ie

r 
c
o
v
e
r 

b
o
th

 o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 g
ro

u
p
. 
 I

n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 g

iv
e
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

g
ro

u
p
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
w

e
 n

e
e
d
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

u
b
s
id

ia
ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r,

 g
ro

u
p
 w

id
e
 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 t
h
e

 c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
  

1
8

. 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
n
 A

u
d
it
in

g
 6

0
0
 (

IS
A

6
0
0
):

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

a
u
d
it
o
r 

fo
c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

le
a
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

a
re

 a
g
re

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 I
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 o

u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
w

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r,

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 a
s
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

u
b
s
id

ia
ri
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 s

e
e
k
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
m

 o
n
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
m

a
tt
e
rs

 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
e
, 

c
o
n
d
u
c
t,
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
. 
W

e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
. 
  

1
9

. 
H

a
v
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

’ 
re

p
o
rt

s
, 
a
lo

n
g
 

w
it
h
 a

n
y
 u

n
a
d
ju

s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 
w

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 

o
n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 e

n
ti
ti
e
s
’ 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 

M
a

te
ri

a
li

ty
 

2
0

. 
M

a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 c

a
n
 b

e
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

 b
e
lie

v
e
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

is
s
ta

te
d
 a

n
d
 s

ti
ll 

n
o
t 

b
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

ff
e
c
t 
th

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 o

f 
u
s
e
rs

 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
 A

 m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

o
m

is
s
io

n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

n
o
rm

a
lly

 

b
e
 r

e
g

a
rd

e
d
 a

s
 m

a
te

ri
a
l 
b
y
 a

m
o
u
n
t,
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

fo
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 (

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 f

a
ilu

re
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

o
r,

 a
n
 i
te

m
 c

o
n
tr

a
ry

 t
o
 l
a
w

).
  

In
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

o
f 
s
u
c
h
 a

n
 i
te

m
 a

ri
s
in

g
, 
it
s
 

m
a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 h

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 a

 n
a
rr

o
w

e
r 

c
o
n
te

x
t;

 s
u

c
h
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 

w
o
u

ld
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 f
a
ll 

to
 b

e
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 a

n
 e

x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 

Page 151



A
u

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 

  P
a
g

e
 8

 
A

b
e

rd
e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 2
1

. 
W

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

m
a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 a

u
d
it
 r

is
k
 w

h
e
n
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

a
tu

re
, 
ti
m

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
t 
o
f 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
d
u
c
ti
n
g
 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 S

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 w
it
h
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o
 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

, 
w

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 o

f 
u
n
c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

b
o
th

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 a
n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
  

2
2

. 
B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
t 

o
u
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 m

a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 a

t 
£
7
,8

3
7
,0

0
0
 (

1
%

 o
f 

g
ro

s
s
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

).
  
 

2
3

. 
W

e
 s

e
t 

a
 l
o
w

e
r 

le
v
e
l,
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
lit

y
, 

w
h
e
n
 

d
e
fi
n
in

g
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

u
n
c
o
rr

e
c
te

d
 

a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
te

c
te

d
 a

u
d
it
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

e
x
c
e
e
d
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

m
a
te

ri
a
lit

y
. 

 T
h
is

 l
e
v
e
l 
d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

c
to

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
: 

•
 

e
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 j
u
d
g

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

n
a
tu

re
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

n
t 
o
f 

p
ri
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

e
x
te

n
t 

o
f 

a
u
d
it
 t

e
s
ti
n
g

 c
o
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 

2
4

. 
F

o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

a
t 

£
5
,4

8
6
,0

0
0
. 
 

W
e
 w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
to

 t
h
o
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 
a
ll 

m
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 £

1
0
0
,0

0
0
. 
 I
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
, 

a
m

o
u
n
ts

 b
e
lo

w
 t

h
is

 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 n
e
e
d
 n

o
t 
b
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d
. 
  

2
5

. 
W

e
 s

e
t 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
le

v
e
ls

 o
f 

m
a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
th

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 

tr
u
s
ts

. 
F

o
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

, 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

m
a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 (

S
F

A
) 

a
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 

S
h
e
e
t 

(B
S

) 
d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

is
p
a
ri
ty

 i
n
 v

a
lu

e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
. 
T

h
e
 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a
lit

y
, 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

th
re

s
h
o
ld

 a
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 E

x
h
ib

it
 1

. 
 

E
x
h

ib
it

 1
: 

M
a
te

ri
a
li
ty

 l
e
v
e
ls

 

 
M

a
te

ri
a
li
ty

 

 £
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

M
a
te

ri
a
li
ty

 

£
 

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 

T
h

re
s
h

o
ld

 

  
£
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

7
,8

3
7
,0

0
0
 

5
,4

8
6
,0

0
0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

G
ro

u
p
 

7
,2

6
6
,0

0
0
 

3
,6

3
3
,0

0
0
 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 

C
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 

T
ru

s
ts

 

2
,0

7
0
 (

S
F

A
) 

7
5
,8

1
0
 (

B
S

) 

1
,4

4
9
 (

S
F

A
) 

5
3
,0

6
7
 (

B
S

) 

1
0
0
 (

S
F

A
) 

3
,0

0
0
 (

B
S

) 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

2
6

. 
T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 (
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
1
4
 (

2
0
1
4
 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
) 

re
q

u
ir
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 u

n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n

ts
 a

re
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
o
r 

n
o
 l
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 3

0
 J

u
n
e
 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
o
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

h
o
s
e
 r

e
m

it
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

a
u
d
it
 o

r 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
) 

is
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 u

n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
t 
a
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 b

y
 3

1
 A

u
g

u
s
t.
 

2
7

. 
L
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 m

u
s
t 
p
u
b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 u

n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 g

iv
e
 p

u
b
lic

 n
o
ti
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

e
ri
o
d

. 
 

 

Page 152



A
u

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 9

 

 2
8

. 
T

h
e
 2

0
1
4
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
o
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

w
h
o
s
e
 r

e
m

it
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

u
d
it
 o

r 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
) 

to
 m

e
e
t 

b
y
 3

0
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

to
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
ig

n
a
tu

re
. 
 I
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft

e
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l,
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

ig
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

a
te

d
 b

y
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u
d
it
 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

u
d
it
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
u
d
it
o
r'
s
 

re
p
o
rt

 (
o
p
in

io
n
) 

b
y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r.

 

2
9

. 
T

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 p

u
b
lis

h
 o

n
 i
ts

 w
e
b
s
it
e
 i
ts

 s
ig

n
e
d
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

, 
b
y
 3

1
 O

c
to

b
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 p

u
b
lis

h
 a

 c
o
p
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 o
f 

it
s
 

s
u
b
s
id

ia
ri
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 b

y
 3

1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

 

3
0

. 
E

x
h
ib

it
 2

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 d

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
, 
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
a
k
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

3
1

. 
M

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 

w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
. 
 D

ra
ft
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

is
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 h

e
a
d
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 f
a
c
tu

a
l 
a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
. 
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t

o
 d

ra
ft

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
re

e
 w

e
e
k
s
 o

f 
s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
. 
 A

 c
o
p
y
 o

f 
a
ll 

fi
n
a
l 
a
g
re

e
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

w
ill

 b
e
 s

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
, 

In
te

ri
m

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
, 
In

te
rn

a
l 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
's

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 G

ro
u
p
. 
  

 

E
x
h

ib
it

 2
: 

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
c
c

o
u

n
ts

 a
u

d
it

 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 –
 k

e
y
 d

a
te

s
 

K
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
 

D
a
te

 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
  

o
f 

u
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 b
y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
, 
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
7
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 

A
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

u
n
s
ig

n
e
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

fo
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

p
re

-

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 

A
u
d
it
, 
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
  

2
9
 A

u
g

u
s
t 
2
0
1
6
 

P
la

n
n
e
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

a
u
d
it
e
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
ig

n
a
tu

re
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 b
y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
, 
R

is
k
 

a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
7
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 s
ig

n
e
d
 

B
y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

 

3
2

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

  

3
3

. 
A

ll 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

re
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
's

 

w
e
b
s
it
e
: 

w
w

w
.a

u
d
it
-s

c
o
tl
a
n
d
.g

o
v
.u

k
. 
  

3
4

. 
P

la
n
n
e
d
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 a

t 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
. 

 
 

Page 153



A
u

d
it

 A
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 

  P
a
g

e
 1

0
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

3
5

. 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
n
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
(U

K
 a

n
d
 I

re
la

n
d
) 

1
 

(I
S

Q
C

1
) 

re
q

u
ir
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
q

u
a
lit

y
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
is

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 a
n
d
 

le
g

a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

a
u
d
it
o
r’
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 f
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

u
r 

A
u
d
it
 

G
u
id

e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
a
u
d
it
in

g
, 

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 e

th
ic

a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 

b
y
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 
 T

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
, 

A
u
d
it
 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 c

o
n
d
u
c
ts

 p
e
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
q

u
a
lit

y
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

In
s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
C

h
a
rt

e
re

d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
ts

 o
f 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 (

IC
A

S
).

 

3
6

. 
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 

A
u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 w

ill
 p

e
ri
o
d
ic

a
lly

 s
e
e
k
 y

o
u
r 

v
ie

w
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
. 

 W
e
 d

o
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 w
e
lc

o
m

e
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a

t 
a

n
y
 t

im
e
 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 m
a
y
 b

e
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
le

a
d
, 
S

te
p

h
e
n
 B

o
y
le

. 

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c

ti
v
it

y
 

3
7

. 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

 a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 m

u
s
t 
c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 

th
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
 W

h
e
n
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

, 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

 m
u
s
t 

a
ls

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

(F
R

C
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
c
y
 b

o
d
ie

s
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
m

p
o
s
e
 s

tr
in

g
e
n
t 
ru

le
s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
o
rs

. 
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

h
a
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
‘f
it
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
e
r’
 d

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
. 
 T

h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 o
v
e
rs

e
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

A
u
d
it
o
r 

G
e
n
e
ra

l,
 w

h
o
 s

e
rv

e
s
 a

s
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
’s

 E
th

ic
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r.

 

3
8

. 
A

u
d
it
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

th
ic

a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

to
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 a
n
y
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
y
 a

ff
e
c
t 
th

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e

n
d
e
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 s

ta
ff

. 
 I

n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
a
s
e
s
 w

e
 w

o
u
ld

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
 t

e
a
m

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 

n
o
t 
fu

n
d
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
to

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
, 

w
e
 a

d
v
is

e
 t

h
e
 s

e
n
io

r 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

te
p
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 

to
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 t
h
is

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g

ly
, 

in
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 i
m

p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

C
it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

 
 

Page 154



A
u

d
it

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
s
 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 1

1
 

 A
u

d
it

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 r

is
k

s
 

A
u

d
it

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 a
n

d
 r

is
k

s
 

3
9

. 
B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 s

ta
ff

, 
a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

n
d
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 m

a
in

 r
is

k
 a

re
a
s
 f

o
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 

c
a
te

g
o
ri
s
e
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

is
k
s
 i
n
to

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d
 w

id
e
r 

d
im

e
n
s
io

n
 

ri
s
k
s
. 
 T

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
u
d
it
 t

e
s
ti
n
g
, 
a
re

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

il 
c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 i
n
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
. 

  

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

is
s

u
e
s

 a
n

d
 r

is
k

s
 

4
0

. 
F

a
ir

 V
a
lu

e
 M

e
a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t:
 T

h
e
 2

0
1
5
 C

o
d
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 I

n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

  
  
 

(I
F

R
S

) 
1
3
. 
F

a
ir
 v

a
lu

e
 i
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 

b
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t

o
 s

e
ll 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
t 

o
r 

p
a
id

 t
o
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
a
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 i
n
 a

n
 o

rd
e
rl
y
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 m

a
rk

e
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
a
te

. 

E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 t
o
 w

h
ic

h
 f

a
ir
 v

a
lu

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
lie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

s
u
rp

lu
s
 a

s
s
e
ts

, 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

 h
e
ld

 f
o
r 

s
a
le

, 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 a

n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

s
tr

u
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

if
 i
ts

 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 a

n
y
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
lie

d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

4
1

. 
C

o
u

n
c
il

 d
w

e
ll
in

g
s
 r

e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

: 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 a

re
 r

e
v
a
lu

e
d
 

e
v
e
ry

 5
 y

e
a
rs

, 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

b
a
s
is

 o
f 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 f

a
ir
 v

a
lu

e
, 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

u
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 u

s
e
 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 (

E
U

V
-S

H
).

 A
s
 a

t 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
, 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
e
t 

b
o
o
k
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 w

a
s
 

£
6
8
9
,6

5
5
 m

ill
io

n
. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 b
e
a
c
o
n
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

s
 a

 b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
a
ll 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 t

o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 o
u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 

fi
n
a
l 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
m

a
te

ri
a
lly

 m
is

s
ta

te
d
. 
  

4
2

. 
H

ig
h

w
a
y
s
 a

s
s
e
ts

: 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 w

it
h
in

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
s
s
e
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 s

h
e
e
t 

a
t 

d
e
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 h

is
to

ri
c
 c

o
s
t.
 T

h
e
 

2
0
1
6
/1

7
 C

o
d
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 

o
n
 a

 d
e
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
s
t 

b
a
s
is

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 

th
e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 a

s
s
e
ts

. 

W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

h
e
a

d
 t
o
 c

o
lla

te
 

th
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 f
u
ll 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
 

fr
o
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 

4
3

. 
C

h
a
ri

ti
e
s
 S

O
R

P
: 

F
ro

m
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
, 
c
h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 a

p
p
ly

 

e
it
h
e
r 

th
e
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

S
m

a
lle

r 
E

n
ti
ti
e
s
 

(F
R

S
S

E
) 

o
r 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 (
F

R
S

) 
1
0
2
 w

h
e
n
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g

 

th
e
ir
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 o
n
 a

n
 a

c
c
ru

a
ls

 b
a
s
is

. 
T

w
o
 n

e
w

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 (

S
O

R
P

s
) 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 c

h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 a

p
p
ly

 e
it
h
e
r 

th
e
 F

R
S

S
E

 o
r 

F
R

S
 1

0
2
. 

T
h
e
y
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 S

O
R

P
 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
. 

C
h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 

w
h

ic
h
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 t
h
re

s
h
o
ld

 f
o
r 

s
m

a
ll 

c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

to
 f
o
llo

w
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 S

O
R

P
 (

F
R

S
S

E
),

 a
n
d
 w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 

th
a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 

Page 155



A
u

d
it

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
s

 

  P
a
g

e
 1

2
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 

a
p
p
ly

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

. 
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 S
O

R
P

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
s
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
, 
m

a
in

ly
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
a
l,
 b

u
t 
a
ls

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
te

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 t
ru

s
te

e
s
’ 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
te

rm
e
d
 ‘
s
o
c
ia

l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t’
. 
 

4
4

. 
F

ra
u

d
 R

is
k
: 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 a

n
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fr

a
u
d
 r

is
k
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
, 
fo

r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

: 

•
 

In
c
o

m
e
: 
 A

u
d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 (

IS
A

 2
4
0
 T

h
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r’
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

fr
a
u
d
 i
n
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

) 
re

q
u
ir
e
s
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

 t
o
 p

re
s
u
m

e
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
fr

a
u
d
 w

h
e
re

 

in
c
o
m

e
 s

tr
e
a
m

s
 a

re
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t.
  
W

h
ile

 A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
e
iv

e
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t,
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
, 

N
o
n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 r

a
te

s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 

e
x
te

n
t/

c
o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
h
e
re

n
t 

ri
s
k
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
lly

 m
is

s
ta

te
d
. 
 T

h
e
 I
S

A
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 

a
u
d
it
o
rs

 t
o
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 w
h
ic

h
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
re

v
e
n
u
e
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n

s
 g

iv
e
 

ri
s
e
 t

o
 s

u
c
h
 r

is
k
s
. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 a
u
d
it
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

. 
  

•
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

v
e
rr

id
e
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

: 
 I

S
A

 2
4
0
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r,

 o
n
 a

ll 
a
u
d
it
s
, 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t’
s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

a
n
ip

u
la

te
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 r
e
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
ra

u
d
u
le

n
t 

o
r 

b
ia

s
e
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 b
y
 o

v
e
rr

id
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 t
h
a
t 
o
th

e
rw

is
e
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 

a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
s
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

re
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

4
5

. 
S

e
v
e
ra

n
c
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
: 

D
u
e
 t

o
 t
h
e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
in

 

s
e
v
e
ra

n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r,
 i
t 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

th
a
t 
a
ll 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 j
u
s
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
th

a
t 
th

e
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

s
e
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
  
 

W
id

e
r 

d
im

e
n

s
io

n
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
s
 

4
6

. 
B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 a

u
d

it
: 

In
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
5
, 

th
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 i
ts

 r
e
c
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 w

h
ile

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
re

a
s
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
, 
th

e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w

a
s
 t

o
o
 e

a
rl
y
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 
 

4
7

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u
d
it
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 n

o
te

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 i
f 

th
e
re

 i
s
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 o

r 
e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
s
 f
o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
h

ic
h
 a

re
 b

ro
a
d
ly

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 
b
e
lo

w
 w

ill
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p

o
rt

 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
. 
  

•
 

V
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 

•
 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 

•
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
  

•
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

Page 156



A
u

d
it

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
s
 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 1

3
 

 4
8

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 A
rm

’s
-L

e
n

g
th

 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
O

rg
a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 (

A
L

E
O

s
):

  
A

s
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
5
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 o
f 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 h

u
b
s
 f

o
r 

it
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

A
L
E

O
s
 –

 B
o
n
 A

c
c
o
rd

 C
a
re

, 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 S

p
o
rt

s
 V

ill
a
g

e
, 

S
p
o
rt

 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 a

n
d
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 E

x
h
ib

it
io

n
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 (

A
E

C
C

) 

–
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
 

re
m

it
 o

f 
th

e
 h

u
b
s
 i
s
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
, 

th
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 d

a
ta

 s
e
t,
 a

 h
ig

h
 

le
v
e

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 A

L
E

O
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 

th
e
ir
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

f 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

w
it
h
 a

 

v
ie

w
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

a
t 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

m
e
t,
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
s
 t
o
 t
h
a
t 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
re

 

m
it
ig

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
d
. 
 

4
9

. 
M

in
u
te

s
 o

f 
th

e
 h

u
b
s
 a

re
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
. 
T

o
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
 h

u
b
s
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
t 
tw

ic
e
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 

o
f 

h
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 t
o
 4

 p
e
r 

y
e
a
r.

 

5
0

. 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 h

a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 g

ro
u
p
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
w

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 

5
1

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 

re
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 r

e
m

it
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
. 
 T

h
e
 f
o
rm

a
t 

o
f 
re

p
o
rt

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
, 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 v

a
ry

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
c
o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

is
 u

s
e
d
 b

u
t 
tr

e
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 u

s
e
d
. 
 

5
2

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e
 c

a
lle

d
 

‘A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 P

e
rf

o
rm

s
’ 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 r
e
p
o
s
it
o
ry

 o
f 

a
ll 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ra
n
g

in
g
 f
ro

m
 i
ts

 C
o

rp
o
ra

te
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
s
, 

it
s
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

, 

it
s
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d
 a

 l
in

k
 t

o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 L
o
c
a
l 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

B
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
m

o
n
g
 o

th
e
rs

. 
 

5
3

. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
o
 

re
v
ie

w
 p

u
b
lic

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 

th
e
 B

e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 a

n
d
 w

e
 w

ill
 

re
v
ie

w
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 a

u
d
it
. 
  

5
4

. 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
P

re
s
s
u

re
s
: 

In
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
5
, 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

 

b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
5
/1

6
. 
T

h
e
 5

 y
e
a
r 

in
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

a
t 
th

a
t 
ti
m

e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
re

d
ic

te
d
 a

 c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

a
t 

2
0
1
9
/2

0
 o

f 

£
5
2
 m

ill
io

n
 a

s
s
u
m

in
g

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
th

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
p
ts

 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f
u
tu

re
 c

o
s
t 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
in

g
 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 
fu

tu
re

 s
h
o
rt

fa
lls

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 h

a
v
e
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
. 

P
la

n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 b

u
d
g

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 P

A
C

E
 (

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
E

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
).

  

5
5

. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
a
c
ti
n
g

 o
n
 t

h
is

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 s

e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 
 T

h
is

 c
o
v
e
re

d
 

o
n
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
ly

 a
n
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
, 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 d
e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
3
.5

%
. 
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g

 a
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
6
/1

7
 a

n
d
 l
im

it
e
d
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 p

re
p
a
re

 5
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
d
g

e
ts

. 
In

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

Page 157



A
u

d
it

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
s

 

  P
a
g

e
 1

4
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 o

n
ly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

 o
n
e
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

in
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0
1
6
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 c
a
n
n
o
t 
b
e
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll.

 

5
6

. 
H

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

: 
T

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 B
o
d
ie

s
 (

J
o
in

t 

W
o
rk

in
g

) 
(S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 
2
0
1
4
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d

. 
T

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 j
o
in

t 
b
o
a
rd

 

(I
J
B

) 
m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
. 
 A

 s
h
a
d
o
w

 I
J
B

 i
s
 i
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
n
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
‘g

o
in

g
 l
iv

e
’ 
d

a
te

 o
f 

1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 
  

5
7

. 
B

o
th

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 a

t 
s
e
p
a
ra

te
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o

n
 

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
5
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 i
t 

w
a
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
fi
n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
5
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
. 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 s

h
a
d

o
w

 I
J
B

 

h
a
s
 u

n
ti
l 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 t

o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 t

h
e
 I

n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
. 

5
8

. 
T

h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 I

J
B

 w
a
s
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 6

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0
1
6
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
  
  
 

1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

d
a
te

 t
o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 
th

e
 I

J
B

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
g

a
rd

e
d
 a

s
 a

 

jo
in

t 
v
e
n
tu

re
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

fo
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

w
it
h
in

 i
ts

 g
ro

u
p
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
 

5
9

. 
T

h
e
 I

J
B

s
 a

re
 r

e
g

a
rd

e
d
 a

s
 l
o
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

b
o
d
ie

s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
u
d
it
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

lo
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
o
r.

  
In

 A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
’s

 

c
a
s
e
, 
th

e
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

w
ill

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 S

te
p
h
e
n

 B
o
y
le

. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 

p
re

p
a
re

 a
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 a

u
d
it
 p

la
n
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
o
u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 I
J
B

’s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
  
  

6
0

. 
In

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
5
, 

th
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
is

s
u
e
d
 f

in
a
l 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

In
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 a

t 
b
o
th

 p
re

- 
a
n
d
 p

o
s
t-

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

s
ta

g
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 s
e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 f
ro

m
 a

u
d
it
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

b
o
d
ie

s
, 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 I
J
B

 w
h
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 

 P
ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 I
J
B

, 

w
h
e
re

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l,
 i
t 

is
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
, 
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

b
ta

in
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
: 
 

•
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

•
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r

is
k
 

•
 

th
a
t 
le

s
s
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
e
a
rn

e
d
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

•
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

e
tr

ic
s
 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 m

e
t 
it
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

o
b
ta

in
in

g
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

6
1

. 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 e

m
b
e
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h

e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

a
g

e
n
d
a
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 p

la
n
s
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

p
la

n
 w

a
s
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
g

u
la

r 

re
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 
 W

e
 w

ill
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

Page 158



F
e
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 1

5
 

 6
2

. 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t:
  
 T

h
ro

u
g

h
 i
ts

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 P

la
n
 

(S
IP

) 
a
n
d
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 (

C
C

M
),

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 t

a
k
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 p

la
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
 C

it
y
 R

e
g

io
n
 D

e
a
l.
  
 

6
3

. 
T

h
e
 U

K
 a

n
d
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1

6
 t
h
a
t 

a
 d

e
a
l 
w

o
rt

h
 £

2
5
0
 m

ill
io

n
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
 y

e
a
rs

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

  
A

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
is

, 

th
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 
£
2
5
4
 

m
ill

io
n
 f

o
r 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 r

e
g

io
n
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
 a

 J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t
o
 o

v
e
rs

e
e
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
a
l.
 T

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 a

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 t

o
 

d
a
y
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 d

e
a
l 
h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

s
 a

h
e
a

d
. 
  

6
4

. 
In

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
, 
w

e
 e

x
a
m

in
e
d
 t

h
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 q
u
it
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
in

 n
a
tu

re
 t

o
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 

h
is

to
ri
c
a
lly

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

. 
 O

n
e
 s

u
c
h
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 

M
a
ri
s
c
h
a
l 
S

q
u
a
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 a

 p
u
b
lic

/p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
c
o

lla
b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 M

u
s
e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 a

 s
a
le

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
s
e
b
a

c
k
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a

 3
5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
  

6
5

. 
W

h
ile

 w
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 g

o
o
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

ri
s
k
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 i
s
 m

a
n
a
g

in
g

 t
h
e
m

 a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

ly
, 

w
e
 p

la
n
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 w

a
tc

h
in

g
 b

ri
e
f 

o
n
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 a

u
d
it
 t

o
: 
 

•
 

m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

v
o
lv

in
g

 r
is

k
s
 

•
 

b
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 t
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 i
n
te

re
s
t.
  

6
6

. 
U

s
in

g
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
w

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d

’s
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
M

a
jo

r 
C

a
p
it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

, 
in

it
ia

lly
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
. 
 T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
a
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

u
d
it
 b

u
t 
in

 r
e
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
 o

f 
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
re

fr
e
s
h
 o

f 
it
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

, 
w

e
 

d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

a
 y

e
a
r 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

th
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
. 
  

6
7

. 
C

y
b

e
r 

S
e
c
u

ri
ty

: 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

s
e
v
e
ra

l 
S

c
o
tt
is

h
 p

u
b
lic

 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 o

f 
c
y
b
e
r-

a
tt

a
c
k
s
. 
 A

ll 
p
u

b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 

b
o
d
ie

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

a
 c

y
b
e
r-

a
tt
a
c
k
 a

n
d
 t
a
k
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
a
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
tt

a
c
k
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

y
b
e
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
u
r 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 

R
e
p
o
rt

. 

  
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 a

u
d

it
 s

tu
d

ie
s
 

6
8
. 

A
u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
’s

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 G

ro
u
p

 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
tu

d
ie

s
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
o
r 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 

a
n
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
. 
 I

n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
’s

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 
w

e
 w

ill
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 c

o
lle

c
t 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

in
fo

rm
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
’s

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
. 
In

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

a
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
's

 P
u
b
lic

 

S
e
c
to

r 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
.  

Page 159



F
e
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 

  P
a
g

e
 1

6
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 F
e

e
s

 a
n

d
 r

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

A
u

d
it

 f
e

e
 

6
9

. 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
fo

u
r 

y
e
a
rs

, 
A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 a

u
d
it
 f
e
e
s
 b

y
 

2
4
%

 i
n
 r

e
a
l 
te

rm
s
, 
e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 o

u
r 

2
0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t.
  

D
u
e
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

re
fi
n
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 

in
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 a

u
d
it
 f

e
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
s
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
is

 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

a
l 
te

rm
 f

e
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
.6

%
. 

7
0

. 
In

 d
e
te

rm
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
 f
e
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

is
k
 

e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

re
lia

n
c
e
 w

e
 p

la
n
 t

o
 t
a
k
e
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
. 
 I

n
 s

e
tt
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
e
e
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f
o
r 

e
a
rl
ie

r 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 c

e
rt

a
in

 w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 s

e
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 u

n
a
u

d
it
e
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 a

 p
h
a
s
e
d
 b

a
s
is

 u
p
 t
o
 3

0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
. 

7
1

. 
T

h
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

u
d
it
 f
e
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

 i
s
 £

4
0
9
,8

7
0
 (

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 £

4
1
6
,0

0
0

).
  
T

h
is

 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
1
.5

%
. 
 O

u
r 

fe
e
 c

o
v
e
rs

: 

•
 

th
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
, 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

u
d
it
o
r’
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

t 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 

•
 

a
n
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

tu
d
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o
f 

A
u
d
it
 

•
 

a
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a

u
d
it
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 (

e
.g

. 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

F
ra

u
d
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
),

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
o
rs

’ 
tr

a
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 

s
u
b
s
is

te
n
c
e
 e

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
. 

7
2

. 
W

h
e
re

 o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 c

a
n
n
o
t 
p
ro

c
e
e
d
 a

s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 

la
te

 r
e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 

u
n
a
u
d
it
e
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

b
e
in

g
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
, 
a
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 

fe
e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 l
e
v
ie

d
. 

 A
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fe

e
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
s
 o

u
tw

it
h
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 a

u
d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

A
u

d
it

 t
e

a
m

 

7
3

. 
S

te
p
h
e
n
 B

o
y
le

, 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r,
 A

u
d
it
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 y

o
u
r 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 

a
u
d
it
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 l
e
d
 b

y
 A

n
n
e
 M

a
c
D

o
n
a

ld
 w

h
o
 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

d
a
y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 w

h
o
 

w
ill

 b
e
 y

o
u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
o
n
ta

c
t.
  

D
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n

c
e
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 o

f 

o
u
r 

te
a
m

 a
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
n
 E

x
h
ib

it
 3

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
re

 t
e
a
m

 w
ill

 c
a
ll 

o
n
 o

th
e
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
ta

ff
 a

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 

       

Page 160



F
e
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 1

7
 

 E
x
h

ib
it

 3
: 

 A
u

d
it

 t
e
a
m

 

N
a
m

e
 

E
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e
 

S
te

p
h
e
n
 B

o
y
le

 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
(a

n
d
 c

e
rt

if
y
in

g
 a

u
d
it
o
r)

 

S
te

p
h
e
n
 h

a
s
 1

9
 y

e
a
rs

’ 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
fi
n
a
n

c
e
. 

H
e
 t
ra

in
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t 
w

it
h
 a

 B
ig

 

4
 f

ir
m

, 
b
e
fo

re
 j
o
in

in
g
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
2
. 
H

e
 r

e
-j

o
in

e
d
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
3
, 

a
ft

e
r 

s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 w
it
h
 G

la
s
g

o
w

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 a

s
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
. 
 

A
n
n
e
 M

a
c
D

o
n
a
ld

 

S
e
n
io

r 
A

u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

A
n
n
e
 h

a
s
 m

a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

 o
f 
p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 m

a
in

ly
 i
n

 l
o
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g

 b
o
th

 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 b

e
s
t 
v
a
lu

e
 a

u
d
it
. 

M
a
rk

 J
o
h
n
s
to

n
e
 

S
e
n
io

r 
A

u
d
it
o
r 

M
a
rk

 h
a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

y
e
a
rs

 o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
u
d
it
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
, 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t,
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t,
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
c
to

rs
. 
 

E
d
w

a
rd

 S
ta

n
s
fe

ld
 

S
e
n
io

r 
IC

T
 A

u
d
it
o
r 

E
d
w

a
rd

 t
ra

in
e
d
 a

s
 a

n
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

in
 p

ri
v
a
te

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 9

0
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 w

o
rk

e
d
 i
n
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

y
 f

o
r 

fi
v
e
 y

e
a
rs

. 
H

e
 j
o
in

e
d
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
1
 a

s
 a

n
 I
T

 a
u
d
it
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t.
 

D
e
ir
d
re

 S
im

 

A
u
d
it
o
r 

D
e
ir
d
re

 h
a
s
 1

9
 y

e
a
rs

 p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
u
d
it
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
c
lie

n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
c
to

rs
. 

S
te

v
e
n
 C

a
ld

w
e
ll 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
T

ra
in

e
e
 

S
te

v
e
n
 j
o
in

e
d
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
's

 g
ra

d
u
a
te

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 a

n
d
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 h

is
 I

C
A

S
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
. 

A
d
e
b
a
y
o
 L

a
d
e
jo

b
i 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
T

ra
in

e
e
 

A
d
e
b
a
y
o
 q

u
a
lif

ie
d
 a

s
 a

 C
h
a
rt

e
re

d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
t 
in

 N
ig

e
ri
a

. 
H

e
 j
o
in

e
d
 A

u
d
it
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
's

 g
ra

d
u
a
te

 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 a

n
d
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 h

is
 I
C

A
S

 q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
. 

Page 161



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

  P
a
g

e
 1

8
 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

: 
P

la
n

n
e

d
 a

u
d

it
 o

u
tp

u
ts

1
. 

T
im

e
li

n
e
 -

 T
h

e
 d

ia
g

ra
m

 b
e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 

 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
6

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 
P

la
n

: 
P

la
n
n
e
d

 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 

w
o
rk

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

2
0
1
5

/1
6
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

. 
 

In
te

ri
m

 R
e
p

o
rt

:
a
ri
s
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 
ro

u
ti
n
e
 

a
u
d

it
 

w
o
rk

 
a
ro

u
n
d

 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 
a

n
d
 
in

te
rn

a
l 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 
c
a
rr

ie
d

 
o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 t
o

 M
a

y
 2

0
1
6
.

: 
P

la
n

n
e

d
 a

u
d

it
 o

u
tp

u
ts

  
T

h
e
 d

ia
g

ra
m

 b
e
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
s
 t

h
e
 k

e
y
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
A

b
e

rd
e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 i
n

 2
0
1
5
/1

6
.

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6

A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
6

J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
6

J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
6

M
a
y
 

2
0
1
6

A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
6

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0
1
6

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
a
u

d
it

o
r’

s
 

re
p

o
rt

: 
 

P
ro

v
id

e
s
 

a
u
d

it
 

o
p
in

io
n
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
p

o
rt

a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

a
u

d
it
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 
c
h
a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 s

ig
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
a

u
d

it
o
r’
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

.

In
te

ri
m

 R
e
p

o
rt

: 
S

u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

o
u
r 

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 

a
ri
s
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 
ro

u
ti
n
e
 

a
u
d

it
 

w
o
rk

 
a
ro

u
n
d

 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 
a

n
d
 
in

te
rn

a
l 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 
c
a
rr

ie
d

 
o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 t
o

 M
a

y
 2

0
1
6
. M
a
jo

r 
C

a
p

it
a
l 

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 
C

o
u

n
c
il
s
: 

F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
u
d
it
 

re
p
o
rt

, 
fo

c
u
s
in

g
 
o

n
 
a
 
s
a
m

p
le

 
o
f 

c
a
p
it
a

l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

. 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

in
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
. 

 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6 W

G
A

: 
P

ro
v
id

e
s
 

a
u
d

it
 

o
p
in

io
n

 
o
n
 
th

e
 
W

h
o
le

 
o
f 

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
u

d
it

 R
e
p

o
rt

: 
D

ra
w

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

m
a
tt
e
rs

 
a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

a
u

d
it
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
e
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 
d

 w
it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 s

ig
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
a

u
d

it
o
r’
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 

Page 162



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 1

9
 

 

2
. 

T
im

e
li

n
e
 –

 D
e
ta

il
e
d

 l
is

ti
n

g
 o

f 
a
ll
 a

u
d

it
 o

u
tp

u
ts

  
 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 f
o

r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

y
  

  
  

A
R

S
C

* 

S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 d

a
te

 

fo
r 

re
tu

rn
s
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 

S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
 /
 S

c
o

tt
is

h
 

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

la
n
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 

9
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

In
te

ri
m

 R
e
p
o
rt

  
2
7
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
  

3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 

M
a
n
a
g

in
g

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 –
 f

o
llo

w
 u

p
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
  

2
7
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  

E
a
c
h
 A

R
S

C
* 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

  
N

/A
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

  
E

a
c
h
 A

R
S

C
* 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

N
/A

 

 
 

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 A

u
d

it
  

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

ra
u
d
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 –

 D
a
ta

 R
e
tu

rn
 

N
/A

 
2
9
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 

F
ra

u
d
 R

e
tu

rn
s
  

N
/A

 
3
1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
6
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 –

 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

N
/A

 
3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
  

N
/A

 
3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 R
e
p
o
rt

 –
 D

a
ta

 R
e
tu

rn
  

N
/A

 
3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

 
 

 

*A
R

S
C

 =
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
  

 
 

Page 163



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
: 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 a
u

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

  P
a
g

e
 2

0
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 f
o

r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

y
  

  
  

A
R

S
C

* 

S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 d

a
te

 

fo
r 

re
tu

rn
s
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 

S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
 /
 S

c
o

tt
is

h
 

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 A

u
d
it
, 
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 –

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 t
o
 

th
o
s
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 -

 A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

r 

o
f 

a
u
d
it
 o

n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 a

u
d
it
 

2
7
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

B
y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
o
r'
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 
2
7
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

B
y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

A
u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 c

h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 t
ru

s
ts

 
2
7
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

B
y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

A
u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 W

h
o
le

 o
f 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 
N

/A
 

B
y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

G
ra

n
ts

 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e
  

N
/A

 
3
1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
6
 

C
ri
m

in
a
l 
J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 R

e
tu

rn
s
  
 

N
/A

 
3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 

S
u
b
s
id

y
  
 

N
/A

 
3
0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o
n
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 R

a
te

s
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
tu

rn
  

N
/A

 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

 
 

Page 164



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

s
 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 2

1
 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

: 
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
u

d
it

 r
is

k
s

 
T

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 a

u
d
it
 r

is
k
s
, 
th

e
 r

e
la

te
d
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 w
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 

ri
s
k
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

. 

 

N
o

 
A

u
d

it
 R

is
k
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

A
u

d
it

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
s
 

1
 

F
a
ir

 v
a
lu

e
s
 

T
h
e
 2

0
1
5
 C

o
d
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
fa

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 

a
n
d
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 I

F
R

S
 1

3
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 

a
s
 p

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
re

 m
is

s
ta

te
d
. 

•
 

E
a
rl
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 h

is
 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 n

e
w

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

•
 

R
e
g

u
la

r 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

•
 

A
g

re
e
d
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

d
ra

ft
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 

2
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 d
w

e
ll
in

g
s
 r

e
v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 a

re
 r

e
v
a
lu

e
d
 e

v
e
ry

 5
 

y
e
a
rs

, 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

b
a
s
is

 o
f 

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 f
a
ir
 

v
a
lu

e
, 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 

u
s
e
 f

o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 (

E
U

V
-S

H
).

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
, 
re

q
u
ir
in

g
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 j
u
d
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 i
s
 m

a
te

ri
a
lly

 m
is

s
ta

te
d
. 

 

•
 

In
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
r 

a
n
d
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

re
p
o
rt

/c
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
. 

•
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 t
e
s
t 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 o

f 
a
m

o
u
n
ts

 t
o
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

c
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
 

•
 

T
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
r 

fa
lls

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 o
f 

a
n
 

e
x
p
e
rt

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 w
e
 w

ill
 p

la
c
e
 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
r 

in
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

u
d
it
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 

Page 165



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

s
 

  P
a
g

e
 2

2
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 

N
o

 
A

u
d

it
 R

is
k
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

A
u

d
it

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

3
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 a

s
s
e
ts

 

T
h
e
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 C

o
d
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 o

n
 a

 d
e
p
re

c
ia

te
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
t 

b
a
s
is

 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 b

a
s
is

 

fo
r 

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 t

h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 a

s
s
e
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 v
a

lu
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 

n
o
t 

b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 w
h
e
n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 o

r 
th

a
t 
th

e
y
 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
lly

 m
is

s
ta

te
d
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 a

 

q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
6
/1

7
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
  
  
  

•
 

O
n
g

o
in

g
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 g

a
th

e
r 

th
e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
  

•
 

M
o
n

it
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 i
n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
h
e
a
d
 t

o
 c

o
lla

te
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 f
u
ll 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 C

o
d
e
. 

4
 

C
h

a
ri

ti
e
s
 S

O
R

P
 (

F
R

S
S

E
) 

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 f
o
r 

c
h
a
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 t

o
 t
h
e
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 
m

e
t.
 

•
 

E
a
rl
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 h

is
 t
e
a
m

 t
o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 n

e
w

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

•
 

R
e
g

u
la

r 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

•
 

A
g

re
e
d
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

d
ra

ft
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

. 

5
 

In
c
o

m
e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
  

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
e
iv

e
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

in
c
o
m

e
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 e

x
te

n
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 

in
c
o
m

e
 m

e
a
n
s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
h
e
re

n
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 

fr
a
u
d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 I
S

A
2
4
0
. 
 

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

s
s
is

ts
 i
n
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
te

c
t 

fr
a
u
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
v
e
 t

e
s
ti
n
g
 o

f 
re

v
e
n
u
e
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

in
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
. 
  

Page 166



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

s
 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 2

3
 

 

N
o

 
A

u
d

it
 R

is
k
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

A
u

d
it

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

 
•
 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 i
ts

 

a
n
ti
-f

ra
u
d
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 

‘P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 F

ra
u
d
, 

B
ri
b
e
ry

 a
n
d
 C

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
’.
  
  

6
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

v
e
rr

id
e
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 

A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n
 I

S
A

2
4
0
, 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 a
ll 

e
n
ti
ti
e
s
 i
s
 i
n
 a

 u
n
iq

u
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 p

e
rp

e
tr

a
te

 

fr
a
u
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
it
s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 m

a
n
ip

u
la

te
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 r
e
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
ra

u
d
u
le

n
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 b
y
 o

v
e
rr

id
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 

th
a
t 
o
th

e
rw

is
e
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 

•
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
te

c
t 

fr
a
u
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
. 

•
 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 t

e
s
ti
n
g
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
e
n
tr

ie
s
 

•
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 f

o
r 

b
ia

s
 

•
 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
n
g

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
tr

a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 n

o
rm

a
l 
c
o
u
rs

e
 o

f 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

7
 

S
e
v
e
ra

n
c
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 

o
f 

s
e
v
e
ra

n
c
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

R
e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
n
io

r 
s
ta

ff
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 

le
ft

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

d
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

w
h
e
re

 s
u
c
h
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 
a
n
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 h

a
v
e
 

n
o
t 

b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
. 

   

•
 

H
R

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

•
 

A
u
th

o
ri
s
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

•
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
  

•
 

A
u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

u
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 

Page 167



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

s
 

  P
a
g

e
 2

4
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 

N
o

 
A

u
d

it
 R

is
k
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

A
u

d
it

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

W
id

e
r 

d
im

e
n

s
io

n
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
is

k
s
 

8
 

B
e
s
t 

V
a
lu

e
 

T
h
e
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
’s

 

a
u
d
it
 o

f 
B

e
s
t 
V

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 f
o
u
r 

a
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
- 

V
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
, 

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

n
d
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 i
t 
is

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
ts

 b
e
s
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
. 

•
 

R
e
g

u
la

r 
u
p
d
a
te

s
 o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s
 

•
 

R
e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 

•
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

e
in

g
 s

c
o
p
e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

in
it
ia

te
 a

n
 1

8
 m

o
n
th

 p
ie

c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 

•
 

M
o
n

it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 

th
e
y
 e

v
o
lv

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

. 
  
 

9
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
A

L
E

O
s

 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

b
y
 A

L
E

O
s
. 
 W

h
ile

 t
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 g

re
a
te

r 

fl
e
x
ib

ili
ty

 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 m

e
t 
o
r 

th
a
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 

•
 

A
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

le
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 h

u
b
s
, 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 a

 s
ix

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

, 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 g

ro
u
p
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 a

n
d
 A

L
E

O
s
 

w
it
h
 s

u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 

 

•
 

M
o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 n

e
w

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 

•
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 L

o
c
a
l 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 f

o
r 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 

P
o
u
n
d
. 

1
0
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

u
b
lic

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
. 

•
 

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
‘A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 P

e
rf

o
rm

s
’ 
is

 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

•
 

A
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

 

•
 

M
o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 n

e
w

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

. 

Page 168



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

s
 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

P
a
g

e
 2

5
 

 

N
o

 
A

u
d

it
 R

is
k
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

A
u

d
it

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
u
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e
n
 t
im

e
o
u
s
ly

. 
 P

u
b
lic

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
a
s
ily

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
rs

. 
 

1
1
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

re
s
s
u

re
s
 

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
6
/1

7
, 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
, 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 g

a
p
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 

£
3
5
 m

ill
io

n
 t

o
 £

5
2
 m

ill
io

n
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a
t 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 w
ill

 n
o
t 

b
e
 

m
e
t 
im

p
a
c
ti
n
g
 o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
im

s
. 

•
 

R
e
g

u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
it
h
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

H
e
a
d
s
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 a

ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

•
 

In
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 C

M
T

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
ll 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
d
 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

2
0
1
6
/1

7
 b

u
d
g

e
t.
 

•
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 

b
u
d
g

e
t 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

. 

•
 

O
n
g

o
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 o
f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
s
, 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ta

ry
 i
n
 o

u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

. 

1
2
 

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

  

A
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
, 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 e

m
b
e
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
n
d
a
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
  

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

p
la

n
s
. 
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 

•
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
 

•
 

S
h
a
d
o
w

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 J

o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

•
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

in
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 

th
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 

c
a
re

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

•
 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 t

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 a

p
p
o
in

t 
a
 c

h
ie

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

o
ff

ic
e
r.

  
In

te
ri
m

 c
h
ie

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

is
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
. 
 

  

•
 

M
o
n

it
o
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

Page 169



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
: 

S
ig

n
if

ic
a
n

t 
a

u
d

it
 r

is
k

s
 

  P
a
g

e
 2

6
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

 

N
o

 
A

u
d

it
 R

is
k
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

A
u

d
it

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

 

1
3
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
 

T
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 R

e
g

io
n
 D

e
a
l,
 i
ts

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 P

la
n
 (

S
IP

) 
a
n
d
 C

it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

M
a
s
te

rp
la

n
 (

C
C

M
),

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 t

a
k
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

. 
 S

e
v
e
ra

l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
/o

r 

in
v
o

lv
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 
 

C
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
, 

th
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 m
a
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
ri
s
k
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 m

o
re

 

tr
a
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g

. 
 

W
h
e
re

 m
o
re

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

tr
a
n
s
p
a
re

n
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 u

n
iq

u
e
 o

r 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
 

n
a
tu

re
. 
 I

n
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
, 
th

is
 a

tt
ra

c
ts

 g
re

a
te

r 

p
u
b
lic

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 

e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
is

 r
is

k
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

o
re

 a
c
u
te

 i
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 f
a
ll 

o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
  

•
 

D
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 S

IP
 

•
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

A
s
s
e
t 
G

ro
u
p
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 

•
 

M
a
ri
s
c
h
a
l 
S

q
u
a
re

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p
 

m
e
e
ts

 o
n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 u

p
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 

•
 

C
it
y
 R

e
g

io
n
 D

e
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 

•
 

W
a
tc

h
in

g
 b

ri
e
f 

o
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 

in
v
o

lv
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 

•
 

F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 o

f 
p
re

v
io

u
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 M

a
jo

r 
C

a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 S
tu

d
y
 

•
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

p
ro

je
c
ts

. 
  

 

 

Page 170



 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 
 
DATE  9th March 2016 
 
DIRECTOR  Richard Ellis (interim) 
 
TITLE OF REPORT   Scottish Public Services Ombudsman 

Complaint Recommendations 
 
REPORT NUMBER CG/16/040 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
This report provides details of all Scottish Public Services Ombudsman 
(SPSO) decisions received during 2015/16 Q1, Q2 and Q3 relating to 
Aberdeen City Council complaints and also the SPSO Local Authority 
2014/15 annual statistics table. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that Committee notes the details of the report and 
recommends any additional actions as appropriate. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
N/A 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

The Scottish Complaints Handling Procedure (CHP) has three stages: 

• Stage 1 - Frontline Resolution  

• Stage 2 - Formal Investigation  

• Stage 3 - Independent External Review (SPSO) 

The first two stages of the complaints handling process are dealt with 

internally by the council.  The SPSO considers complaints from people 

who remain dissatisfied at the conclusion of the council’s complaints 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 171



 

2 
 

procedure.  The SPSO looks at issues such as service failures and 

maladministration (administrative fault), as well as the way the council 

has handled the complaint. 

The ombudsman has the authority to make a final decision on the 

complaint.  Following their investigation, the SPSO write to the council 

and the complainant with the outcome of their decision.  Where 

necessary the SPSO will make recommendations that the council must 

implement to address a customer’s dissatisfaction and / or to prevent 

the same problems that led to the complaint from happening again.  

The SPSO also instruct the timescales for implementing their 

recommendations. 

During 2015/16 Q1, Q2 and Q3, the SPSO has made decisions relating 

to 10 Aberdeen City Council complaints that were referred to the 

Ombudsman for consideration.  5 complaints were not upheld, 3 

complaints were partially upheld and 2 complaints were upheld. 

Details of the complaints and any subsequent recommendations are 

provided in Appendix A, B and C.  All recommendations have been 

implemented by Aberdeen City Council within the timescales required 

by the SPSO. 

In addition, Appendix D provides the recently published annual 

statistics for all Local Authority complaints received by the Ombudsman 

during 2014/15.  The table details the volume of complaints referred to 

the SPSO for each Local Authority in Scotland, broken down into 

subject groups. 

6. IMPACT 
 
Improving Customer Experience – 

Complaints are a valuable source of information about council services, 

which can help to identify recurring or underlying problems and 

potential improvements.  It is important to take action to try to stop the 

problem from happening to any customers again.  Lessons can be 

learnt from identifying common and recurring causes of complaints but 

another important approach is to identify lessons that can be learnt 

from individual complaints.  

As part of the complaints handling procedure, services should identify 
learning points so that they can be recorded and acted upon to improve 
the customer experience. This is particularly important where 
complaints are upheld, but even a complaint which is not upheld could 
still highlight the need for us to improve communications or the way in 

Page 172



 

3 
 

which we manage the customer's expectations.  All SPSO decisions 
are therefore shared with the appropriate service(s). 
 
Where appropriate, actions should be implemented across the Council, 
and not just in the service area that was the subject of the individual 
complaints. Complaints information can also be reviewed to improve 
service delivery for customers in the future. 

 
Improving Staff Experience –  
 
The outcomes of complaint decisions should be fed back to relevant 
staff.  This includes both upheld and not upheld decisions to engage 
staff in complaints handling and ensure they are fully informed of 
outcomes.  Complaint information can be used to inform changes in 
working practices and training provision for staff to improve their 
experience as well as that of the customer.  SPSO recommendations 
relating to complaints handling are fed back to the responding officers 
to help develop the key skills required for good complaints handling. 
 
Improving our use of Resources –  
 
The organisation should look to solve the core issue which led to the 
complaint and learn from the outcome of complaints so to reduce the 
potential for more / similar complaints.  This should lead to a reduction 
in repeat complaints and complaints investigation and handling time 
which can be a lengthy process for those involved. 
 
Corporate -  
 
This recommendation supports the Shaping Aberdeen ‘triple aim’ 
triangle in terms of improving the staff experience, improving the 
customer experience and improving the use of resources in 
delivering outcomes. 

 
This requirement to share learning from complaints supports the 
Single Outcome Agreement; providing joined up working across the 
organisation that will provide overall, an excellent customer 
experience. 
 
It supports the smarter priorities of ‘Smarter Governance – 
Participation’.  Specifically; 

 
“Smarter Governance – Participation: acknowledging the role that 
citizens can play in the evolution of the city.  
Priority: we will encourage citizens to participate in the development, 
design and decision making of services to promote, civic pride, active 
citizenship and resilience.  
Outcome: Citizens feel they can influence their communities through 
engagement in the development, design and decision making of 
services.” 

 

Page 173



 

4 
 

Senior management should review the information gathered from 
complaints regularly and lessons learnt from complaints should be fed 
back into individual service improvement plans.   

 
 
Public –  
N/A  
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

No risks have been identified in this report. 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
N/A 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Lucy McKenzie, 
Customer Experience Officer 
LucyMcKenzie@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 34976 
 

 

Page 174



 

Appendix A - Upheld Decisions 

  

Complaint 
Received 
Date 

SPSO 
Decision 
Date 

Complaints Investigated by the 
SPSO 

Directorate  SPSO Recommendations 

29 January 
2015 
 
 

11 
September  
2015 

The Council did not provide an 
effective repair to windows at his 
property within a reasonable 
timescale. 

Communities, 
Housing and 
Infrastructure 

1. The council apologise for the failures identified in 
investigation. 

2. The council remind appropriate staff to check 
responses to complaints make appropriate 
reference to all council actions relevant to the 
subject of the complaint. 

3. The council remind appropriate staff that 
correspondence indicating the complaint process 
has been completed should not be provided to 
complainants whilst investigations are ongoing. 

4. The council should provide the complainant with 
a goodwill payment equivalent to 4 weeks rent in 
recognition of the inconvenience suffered due to 
not providing an effective repair to windows at the 
property within a reasonable timescale.  

 

9 January 
2015 
 
 

26 May 
2015 

1. The council did not reasonably 
follow their recharge procedures, 
when the tenancy was terminated. 
2. The final bill was, unreasonably, 
significantly higher than the estimate. 

Communities, 
Housing and 
Infrastructure 

1. Apologise for the failings identified. 
2. Cancel the outstanding invoice.  
3. Reflect on the failings identified and how to 

prevent them occurring again.  
4. Review the rechargeable repairs appeals 

procedure and ensure that it refers to SPSO at 
the end of the process.  

5. Provide SPSO with a copy of the standardised 
tool for estimating repair costs. 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
5



 

6 
 

Appendix B - Partially Upheld Decisions 

Complaint 
Received 
Date 

SPSO 
Decision 
Date 

Complaints Investigated Directorate  SPSO Recommendations 

15 
September 
2014 
 
 

22 
December 
2015 

1. The school did not deal effectively 
with reported incidents of physical 
and verbal bullying (not upheld) 

2. The Council failed to ensure that 
effective measures were taken at 
the school to protect the child in line 
with anti-bullying policies (upheld) 

Education and 
Children’s 
Services 

1. The council should issue the complainant with a 
written apology for the issues identified during their 
investigation of the effectiveness of action taken by 
the School. 
2. The council should update the SPSO on the 
outcome of the recommendations made to the 
School following the Council’s investigation and how 
these have addressed the issues identified. 
3. The council should consider the potential benefits 
of drawing the School’s policy to the attention of 
parents reporting bullying incidents. 
4. The council should review how the available 
electronic resources are used to record and track 
bullying incidents, including those reported by 
parents or sometime after the event itself. 

23 July 
2014 
 

28 
November 
2015 

1. ASBIT failed to manage the 
customer’s complaints about 
antisocial behaviour reasonably 
(not upheld)     

2. ASBIT unreasonably withdrew 
their services (not upheld) 

3. The council unreasonably failed to 
investigate the complaint in 
accordance with the Council’s 
complaint procedure (upheld) 

 

 

Communities, 
Housing and 
Infrastructure 

None 

P
a
g

e
 1

7
6



 

7 
 

 

Complaint 
Received 
Date 

SPSO 
Decision 
Date 

Complaints Investigated Directorate  SPSO Recommendations 

25 June 
2014 
 

13 August 
2015 

1. The school failed to provide 
adequate supervision during a 
school trip (not upheld) 

2. The school did not give medication 
as instructed (upheld) 

3. The school failed to keep a record 
of controlled drugs given to 
children (upheld) 

4. The school gave controlled drugs 
that had been prescribed for 
another child (upheld) 

5. The school unreasonably failed to 
consult with a psychiatrist before 
removing a child from school trip 
(not upheld) 

6. The school failed to reasonably 
address the concerns raised 
(upheld) 

Education and 
Children’s 
Services 

1. The council should issue the complainant and 
their family with an apology for the failure to keep an 
accurate record of the medications administered 
during the trip.             
2. The council should provide evidence of how the 
arrangements for medication on trips have been 
improved to avoid a recurrence of such failings in 
future.                               
3. The council should consider whether there are 
merits in consulting other professionals involved in a 
pupils care when completing person specific risk 
assessments and report back to the ombudsman.             
4. The council should apologise to the complainant 
for failing to address their concerns appropriately in 
response to their complaints.                                         
5 The council should ensure all relevant staff are 
aware of the need to provide a full response to 
complaints in line with the complaints handling 
procedure. 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
7



 

8 
 

Appendix C - Not Upheld Decisions 

Complaint 
Received 
Date 

SPSO 
Decision 
Date 

Complaints Investigated Directorate  SPSO Recommendations 

8 May 2015 
 

22 
December 
2015 

The council unreasonably told the 
complainant to pursue the sub-
contractor’s insurers for compensation 
in relation to alleged poor workmanship. 

Communities, 
Housing and 
Infrastructure 

The complaint was not upheld.  However, some 
recommendations were made:- 
1. The council should ensure that the complainant has 
been provided with the relevant contact information for 
the contractors and ensure that the complainant is aware 
of how to submit a claim. 
2. The council should consider how they can improve 
ease of access for tenants in making such claims against 
contractors in the future (e.g. updating relevant leaflets, 
correspondence and / or paperwork) 
3. The council should provide the Ombudsman with 
evidence to demonstrate what process they follow to 
ensure they are content with the standard of work carried 
out by the contractors. 

13 June 
2014 
 

25 June 
2015 

The council unreasonably failed to carry 
out successful repairs to prevent leaks 
in the communal roof of the building 
where the complainant lives.  

Communities, 
Housing and 
Infrastructure 

None 

3 June 
2014 
 

5 June 
2015 

The council unreasonably removed 
items from a cemetery gravestone.  

Communities, 
Housing and 
Infrastructure 

None 

21 January 
2015 
 

26 May 
2015 

The failure of the council to ensure that 
the complainant was rehoused due to 
their disability. 

Communities, 
Housing and 
Infrastructure 

None 

17 
February 
2015  

19 May 
2015 

The unreasonable length of time that 
the complainant has been on the 
housing transfer list. 

Communities, 
Housing and 
Infrastructure 

None 

P
a
g

e
 1

7
8



 

9 
 

 
Appendix D – Ombudsman Annual Statistics for all Local Authority Complaints 2014/15 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

7
9



Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



Date of Issue:  February 2016  Report No. AC1621 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Report 
 

Corporate Governance 
 

Arm’s Length External Organisations 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issued to: 
Richard Ellis, Director of Corporate Governance 
Steven Whyte, Head of Finance 
Craig Innes, Head of Commercial and Procurement Services 
Roddy MacBeath, Senior Democratic Services Manager 
Neil Buck, Performance & Risk Manager 
Anne MacDonald, Audit Scotland 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 181



 1 Report No. AC1621 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Local Authorities may elect to provide services through Arm’s Length External 
Organisations (ALEOs), where it is considered that this will be the best option for 
delivery of these services and providing Best Value.  Typically these are 
arrangements which fall outwith normal direct service delivery, grant funding or 
commercial contractual relationships, but where there remains an element of control 
exercised over service delivery.   

Whilst aspects of service delivery have been assigned to various ALEOs, the 
responsibility for statutory service provision remains with the Council.  Discretionary 
services also carry an element of reputational risk through association.  It is therefore 
important that the relationship between the Council and ALEOs is managed 
effectively.   

The objective of this audit was to review the governance arrangements in place 
between the Council and its ALEOs, including determination of sources of assurance 
regarding risk management, internal controls, and staff and information governance.   

The lack of a nationally agreed definition of an ALEO means there is a risk of differing 
interpretation of the arrangements and their governance requirements.  A local 
definition will be considered for adoption by the Council.    

Funding arrangements are categorised into Tiers under the Council’s Following the 
Public Pound procedure.  Introduction of the Governance Hub process has improved 
assurance over these areas for Tier 1 ALEOs (those considered to have the highest 
risk and funding profiles), and it is intended to extend this process to Tier 2 
arrangements.   

Services have not all included the implications of their ALEO arrangements within 
their risk registers.  ALEOs could present a significant risk in respect of finance and 
service delivery, therefore Services will be asked to do so.  Further consideration of 
how assurance over risk identification and management can be provided will be taken 
through the governance review being carried out by Corporate Governance.   

Relationships with each ALEO are governed by Service Level Agreements (SLAs).  
Although these are in place, recommendations to update these to improve 
consistency and to ensure they can be and are used to manage performance and 
payments have been made in the report.  Commercial and Procurement Services will 
assist Services to re-draft their SLAs to incorporate all relevant requirements.   

 

Page 182



 2 Report No. AC1621 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Local Authorities may elect to provide services through Arm’s Length External 
Organisations (ALEOs), where it is considered that this will be the best option for delivery 
of these services and providing Best Value.  Typically these are arrangements which fall 
outwith normal direct service delivery, grant funding or commercial contractual 
relationships, but where there remains an element of control exercised over service 
delivery.   

1.2 Whilst aspects of service delivery have been assigned to various ALEOs, the responsibility 
for statutory service provision remains with the Council.  Discretionary services also carry 
an element of reputational risk through association.  It is therefore important that the 
relationship between the Council and ALEOs is managed effectively.   

1.3 The objective of this audit was to review the governance arrangements in place between 
the Council and its ALEOs, including determination of sources of assurance regarding risk 
management, internal controls, and staff and information governance.     

1.4 The factual accuracy of this report and action to be taken with regard to the 
recommendations made have been agreed with Roddy MacBeath, Senior Democratic 
Services Manager, Neil Buck, Performance and Risk Manager, and Sandra Buthlay, 
Accounting Manager. 

Page 183



 3 Report No. AC1621 

2. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 Background 

2.1.1 In 2013/14, an Internal Audit identified weaknesses in the identification and management 
of risks posed by Arm’s Length External Organisations (ALEOs), and in their reporting 
arrangements.  The Council’s Audit and Risk Committee agreed to address this, and a 
series of changes to Committee Orders of Reference were agreed, followed by the 
creation of a Governance Hub.   

2.1.2 The Governance Hub has responsibility for obtaining assurance from ALEOs on the 
strength of their systems for governance, risk management, internal controls, and 
operational performance, and for disseminating the results to the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 
Committee and to the relevant Service Committee.  The Governance Hub also acts as a 
central point of contact for representatives of the ALEOs.  The Hub consists of experts 
from a range of Services within the Council, including:  Finance, Health and Safety, and 
Risk Management, in addition to associated Service representatives. 

2.1.3 However, the issues raised have still not been fully addressed.  In May 2015, the remit of 
the Governance Hub was agreed, and potential areas of risk were identified.  Services 
were asked to identify potential risks posed by each of the ALEOs administered, and to 
include them on their Service’s risk register.  This has still not been completed which 
means that the risks to the Council have not been fully considered and where appropriate 
mitigated.   

 

Recommendation 
Services should update risk registers to include relevant risks in respect of services 
delivered through ALEOs. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  ALEOs could present a significant risk in respect of finance and service 
delivery, however it is an operational decision as to which risks to include in the risk 
registers.  Risk registers are updated annually, and reviewed by the Audit, Risk and 
Scrutiny Committee.  The Risk Manager will propose the inclusion of ALEO risks within 
these to the Corporate Management Team.  A governance review is being taken forward 
by Corporate Governance which will include a review of areas of risk and assurance 
provided to elected members, including ALEO arrangements. 
 
Implementation Date 
June 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Risk Manager (Neil Buck) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.1.4 The Following the Public Pound procedure, updated in September 2015, sets out key 
controls and sources of assurance over various levels of funding relationship between the 
Council and ALEOs or grant funded organisations.  Four tiers of funding have been 
identified: 

• Tier 1 comprises ALEOs which are either:  a) significant in size, and over which the 
Council exercises substantial control.  They are sufficiently significant that their annual 
results are included in the financial statements or Group Accounts or b) there is no 
Group relationship but more than £7 million of public funds are provided by the 
Council in the delivery of the organisation’s services. 

• Tier 2 organisations are either:  a) smaller in operational scale, but over which the 
Council exercises substantial control, and not sufficiently material in size to be in 

Page 184



 4 Report No. AC1621 

included in the financial statements of the Group Accounts or b) financially supported 
with more than £300,000 of public funds, but less than £7 million.  

• Tier 3 covers funding between £75,000 and £300,000; and Tier 4 between £15,000 
and £75,000.  Whilst there are likely to be some more formal relationships between 
the Council and external organisations at these levels, it is typically limited to awarding 
deficit funding.  

2.1.5 The first Governance Hub meetings were held in June 2015, and focused on four Tier 1 
ALEOs:  Bon Accord Care, AECC, Sport Aberdeen and Aberdeen Sports Village.  The 
remit of the meetings was to ensure that each of the organisations has satisfactory 
processes and procedures with regard to risk, business continuity, operational 
performance, financial management, human resources, health and safety, and internal 
and external audit.   

2.1.6 It is anticipated that the Hub will add review of Tier 2 ALEOs to its agenda in June 2016.  
Although key ALEOs have been identified, it has not yet been determined whether there 
are others which may fall within the definition, which should also be subject to review. 

2.1.7 There is no single national definition of an ALEO.  Interpretation of which arrangements 
should be included within the definition varies in terms of how arrangements are funded, 
how they are managed, and how they have been set up.  The Council has not set out how 
it defines an ALEO, however as set out above the Following the Public Pound procedure 
differentiates between levels of funding, and the appropriate level of review required.  
Whilst this should ensure all funding arrangements are categorised, this is not currently 
linked to the additional scrutiny provided by the Governance Hub process.   

 

Recommendation 
The Council should develop and adopt a formal definition of what is an ALEO 
arrangement.   
 
All funding relationships should be categorised to ensure all funding arrangements have 
been scheduled for an appropriate level of review.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Democratic Services will review and consider a formal definition of an ALEO 
to be adopted by the Council.  Funding relationships are already being reviewed by 
Finance through Following the Public Pound procedures, and material funding of related 
parties is considered annually as part of developing the Group Accounts.  Any changes 
to funding levels will be considered and advised to the Governance Hub as appropriate.  
 
Implementation Date 
April 2017 

Responsible Officer 
Senior Democratic 
Services Manager 
(Roderick MacBeath) 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.2 Service Level Agreements (SLAs) 

2.2.1 Although service delivery has been delegated to ALEOs, the Council retains an interest 
and bears a significant proportion of the risk.  The Council will be held to account in respect 
of service delivery through, for example, its Single Outcome Agreement with the Scottish 
Government, as well as by its electorate.  It is important therefore that the relationships 
are appropriately managed to provide assurance over service delivery.   

2.2.2 An essential element of all contractual arrangements is a written agreement which clarifies 
the responsibilities of all parties.  It would be expected that this should set out expectations 

Page 185



 5 Report No. AC1621 

in respect of risk management, health and safety, access to information, performance 
indicators and funding.  There is limited consistency between existing agreements, 
particularly in terms of the links between performance, outcomes and funding.  Whilst 
agreements will vary in content due to the differing nature of the relationship between the 
parties and the anticipated outcomes, the agreement should confirm any reporting 
requirements, and it should include a condition to allow for funding to be withheld if 
performance is not satisfactory.  Without such terms, it will be difficult to ensure the 
delivery of outcomes in line with the Council’s requirements and to demonstrate that Best 
Value is being obtained from funds transferred to ALEOs.   

2.2.3 Officers are in the process of reviewing and revising agreements with the Tier 1 ALEOs.  
Further review is anticipated to take place as part of the Corporate Governance 
governance review.   

2.2.4 A revised SLA with Aberdeen Exhibition and Conference Centre (AECC) has been drafted, 
and emphasises the requirement for AECC to be accountable to the Council.  The new 
SLA has yet to be agreed between the relevant bodies. 

2.2.5 Revised SLAs have also been drafted for the agreements with Aberdeen Sports Village 
and Sport Aberdeen.  There have been material changes to the SLA with Aberdeen Sports 
Village to include swimming facilities.  The SLA has been endorsed by all parties to the 
agreement, but at the time of the audit had not yet been formally signed.  The SLA with 
Sport Aberdeen is under review by Commercial and Procurement Services, and it was 
intended to present this at the next Education and Children’s Services Committee.  

2.2.6 The SLA with Bon Accord Care is not presently being reviewed by the Service because it 
is intended to engage an external contractor to do so.  Officers wish to investigate whether 
the organisation has demonstrated achievement of its objectives and if the Council is 
achieving value for money through the ALEO relationship.  The review is expected to last 
at least six months.   

 

Recommendation 
Services should ensure that there is an up to date Service Level Agreement with each 
ALEO. 
 
Services should ensure all ALEO SLAs confirm performance reporting requirements, 
and state that ongoing funding is subject to evidenced satisfactory performance.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Commercial and Procurement Services will support Services to update their 
SLA’s to ensure they can hold ALEOs to account for delivery of agreed services.  
Resource issues within the Service, and scheduling of SLA revisions, means that this 
may take some time to implement.   
 
Implementation Date 
June 2017 

Responsible Officer 
Head of Procurement 
(Craig Innes) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.3 ALEO Governance Hub Meetings 

2.3.1 Four Tier 1 ALEOs were reviewed at the ALEO Governance Hub meetings in June 2015 
to provide assurance over the policies and procedures applied by the organisations.  
Relevant documents were submitted by the ALEOs in advance of the meetings, and 
representatives from the ALEOs attended the Hub meetings to provide further 
explanations as required.   

Page 186



 6 Report No. AC1621 

2.3.2 Each organisation’s policies and procedures, including key arrangements for risk 
management, internal and financial controls, internal audit and inspection, procurement, 
HR, health and safety, and business continuity, were scrutinised in depth by the relevant 
specialists on the Hub.  Where they were not entirely satisfied with the results, either 
support was offered (in the case of procurement), or further clarification was requested in 
advance of the next meeting in December 2015. 

2.3.3 It is intended that the elements of each organisation or its performance will be reviewed 
in rotation at the Hub meeting to ensure a comprehensive overview is obtained. 

2.3.4 In order to ensure that the objectives of each agreement are being achieved, and that the 
organisations are complying with the contractual requirements of their agreements, these 
should be included in the routine monitoring of ALEOs.  It is the responsibility of the 
Service with which the ALEO has an agreement to monitor both operational performance 
and contractual compliance.   

2.3.5 Operational performance is monitored and reported for Aberdeen Sports Village, and 
Sport Aberdeen in terms of the organisations’ performance against their KPIs.  This 
information has, historically, been fed into the bi-annual meeting schedule and partnership 
meetings between Education and Children’s Services (E&CS) Directorate and ALEO 
management.  The Directorate will also contribute, where appropriate, to discussions at 
Hub meetings regarding governance, finance and organisational effectiveness.   

2.3.6 Operational performance of AECC and Bon Accord Care is also monitored at regular 
meetings between the Service and the ALEO.  It is anticipated that the results will be fed 
into future meetings of the ALEO Governance Hub. 

2.3.7 Services have indicated that it is unlikely that payments would be withheld pending receipt 
of performance information, or in the event of performance not meeting defined standards 
– instead they seek to work with ALEOs to resolve any issues.  Whilst it is important that 
Services work together with their delivery partners, part of the rationale for transferring 
responsibility to an ALEO is so that it can be held to account for performance.    

2.3.8 The terms of an agreement can only be enforced if compliance is monitored and 
controlled.  However, contractual compliance is not monitored for any of the ALEOs.  By 
not monitoring contractual compliance of the ALEOs, the Council may not be aware of any 
breaches to the terms of the agreements with ALEOs which could increase risk to 
outcomes, service delivery, finances and the Council’s reputation.   

 

Recommendation 
Services should ensure that contractual compliance by ALEOs is monitored on a regular 
basis, breaches addressed, and the implications for ongoing funding considered prior to 
releasing payment.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.   
 
For Bon Accord Care, an officers working group is being set up to improve review of 
performance information and ensure contractual compliance is being demonstrated. 
 
Economic Development is in the process of agreeing a new SLA with AECC, with input 
from Legal Services.   
 
For Education and Children’s Services, before any payment is released to ALEOs, their 
performance against the Annual Business Plan and SLAs are monitored.  Only upon 
satisfaction and review of KPIs is payment released. 

Page 187



 7 Report No. AC1621 

 
Implementation Date 
On-going 

Responsible Officer 
Heads of Service 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.4 Finances 

2.4.1 The sums awarded to the ALEOs are agreed as part of the annual budget setting process.  
Each organisation typically sets out its requirements within its business plan, however, the 
amounts actually paid to the organisations are at variance with the agreed amounts due 
to the timing of finalisation of their business plans.  There are therefore differences 
between the amounts required and the budgets set in February each year.   

2.4.2 For example, Full Council approved funding of £1,170,000 for AECC in 2015/16.  The 
report indicated that this was the same value of the funding awarded to the organisation 
in 2014/15.  However, the draft SLA indicates that only £1,021,348 will be paid.  The 
Finance Partner has confirmed that the budget for the AECC funding contribution was set 
to £1,020,000 in March 2015 following discussion with the budget manager, prior to 
financial monitoring for the financial year commencing, and in line with the draft SLA.  The 
budget for Projects Partnerships and Funding within Economic Development has not been 
reduced or adjusted to account for the difference.   

2.4.3 The Council also agreed to award £5,270,000 to Sport Aberdeen at its budget setting 
meeting, but their business plan shows that only £5,251,309 was required, and payments 
are being based on this lower figure.  It is not clear whether Sport Aberdeen could request 
the additional funding as agreed by the Council, or whether it was made available for 
anything else.  The Education and Children’s Services budget has not been adjusted for 
this difference. 

2.4.4 If business plans could be coordinated to feed into the budget process, a more accurate 
budget could be produced, and cost pressures within other service areas addressed at an 
earlier stage.  Alternatively, virements should be completed through the approval process 
outlined in the Financial Regulations to reflect anticipated expenditure and update budgets 
following agreement of ALEO funding levels.   

 

Recommendation 
Services, in conjunction with Finance, should ensure budget allocations for ALEOs are 
aligned with planned expenditure.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The budget monitoring process already identifies potential underspends, and 
allows for budgets to be vired to a different service if required.  Finance has put a process 
in place to identify and process adjustments to budgets as appropriate following 
conclusion of ALEO funding agreements. 
 
Implementation Date 
Implemented 

Responsible Officer 
Accounting Manager 
(Sandra Buthlay) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.4.5 The draft SLA for the agreement with AECC states that the £1,021,348 will be paid over 
four equal instalments of £255,337.  Due to a clerical error, payments of £255,387 are 
being made each time which, if continued, will result in an overpayment of £200 over the 
course of the year.  The Senior Finance Officer agreed to advise Economic Development 
of the need for these errors to be corrected.    

Page 188



 8 Report No. AC1621 

2.4.6 The payments being made to Aberdeen Sports Village are not in line with the agreement 
because the clause regarding a revenue cap is being disregarded.   

2.4.7 Paragraph 11.2.2 of the SLA states that:  “The Annual Grant Funding to be paid by each 
Shareholder in a Contract Year shall be calculated on an annual basis by reference to the 
Business Plan as at the start of the Contract Year and, subject to clause 11.2.3, shall be 
50% of the net operating cost of the Facility for that Contract Year as projected by the 
Business Plan”.  Using this formula, only £954,000 would be payable. 

2.4.8 Paragraph 11.2.3 of the SLA then states that:  “The Annual Grant Funding to be paid by 
each Shareholder in a Contract Year shall not exceed the sum of £748,000 (indexed) (the 
“Revenue Cap”).”  The indexed revenue cap for 2015/16 was £955,488.   

2.4.9 The Council however agreed funding of £1,200,000 for 2015/16.  A revised SLA is due to 
be agreed, therefore the Service should ensure that any clauses governing payments to 
the ALEO accurately reflect the desired arrangements.    

 

Recommendation 
Services should ensure financial clauses in all SLAs accurately reflect the partners’ 
intentions.  
 
Services, in conjunction with Finance, should ensure that payments to ALEOs are in 
accordance with their SLAs.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Commercial and Procurement Services will incorporate this into revised SLAs 
where appropriate (see 2.2.6 above).   
 
Finance will continue to review expenditure as part of the monthly budget monitoring 
process.   
 
Economic Development is in the process of agreeing a new SLA with AECC, with input 
from Legal Services.   
 
For Bon Accord Care an officers working group is being set up to improve review of 
performance information and ensure contractual compliance is being demonstrated. 
 
For Aberdeen Sports Village (ASV), the operating agreement has recently been 
concluded and this reflects the ALEOs performance intension. 
 
The SLA for Sport Aberdeen is in process of being updated and financial clauses will 
reflect their performance intensions. 
 
For Aberdeen Performance Arts (APA), the SLA will be reviewed in line with the 
recommendations. 
 
Implementation Date 
June 2017 
 
On-going 

Responsible Officer 
Head of Procurement 
(Craig Innes); 
Heads of Service 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.4.10 The Governance Hub identified that Bon Accord Care did not have satisfactory Internal 
Audit arrangements in place at its June 2015 meeting and sought assurances from 
management that these would be put in place.  It was highlighted by management that 
this requirement had not been set out in the Service Level Agreement, though in the 

Page 189



 9 Report No. AC1621 

agreement (as with most of the other ALEO SLAs) it does state that the Council’s Internal 
and External Auditors should be provided with access to relevant data.   

2.4.11 At the December 2015 Hub meeting it was intimated that checks had been put in place by 
managers.  There is a risk that without suitably independent professional review, the 
Council (and Bon Accord Care itself) may not have a sufficient level of assurance over the 
organisation’s internal control environment.   

 

Recommendation 
Services should ensure all material ALEO SLAs contain a requirement for Internal Audit 
arrangements, and facilitate reporting of assurance gained through these arrangements 
to the Council.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The Governance Hub has already raised this with relevant ALEOs and 
continues to press for arrangements to be put in place.  Commercial and Procurement 
Services will incorporate this into revised SLAs where appropriate (see 2.2.6 above).   
 
Implementation Date 
June 2017 

Responsible Officer 
Head of Procurement 
(Craig Innes) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

 
 

AUDITORS: D Hughes 
  C Harvey 
  A Taylor   

Page 190



 10 Report No. AC1621 

Appendix 1 – Grading of Recommendations 
 
 
GRADE 
 

 
DEFINITION 

 
Major at a Corporate Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss, or loss of reputation, to the Council. 
 

 
Major at a Service Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss to the Service/area audited. 
 
Financial Regulations have been consistently breached. 
 

 
Significant within audited area 

 
Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls. 
  
An element of control is missing or only partial in nature.   
 
The existence of the weakness identified has an impact on 
a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.   
 
Financial Regulations have been breached. 
 

 
Important within audited area 

 
Although the element of internal control is satisfactory, a 
control weakness was identified, the existence of the 
weakness, taken independently or with other findings does 
not impair the overall system of internal control.    
 

 
 

Page 191



Page 192

This page is intentionally left blank



Date of Issue:  February 2016  Report No. AC1604AW 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Report 
 

Education and Children’s Services 
 

Payment Controls in Children’s Social Work 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issued to: 
Angela Scott, Chief Executive 
Gayle Gorman, Director of Education and Children’s Services 
Richard Ellis, Director of Corporate Governance 
Bernadette Oxley, Head of Children’s Social Work 
Craig Innes, Head of Procurement 
Steven Whyte, Head of Finance 
Graeme Simpson, Children’s Services Manager 
Anne Donaldson, Service Manager 
Kay Dunn, Performance and Delivery Manager 
Anne MacDonald, Audit Scotland 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 193



 1 Report No. AC1604AW 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Children’s Social Work provides statutory services to children, families and young 
people in need of care and protection.  This includes, child protection, family supports, 
respite services, residential care, fostering, adoption and kinship care.  Some of these 
are delivered by the Service while others are purchased from external providers. 

To complement diagnostic work being taken forward by the Service, Internal Audit 
was asked to review the effectiveness of contracting and payment controls within 
Children’s Social Work.  The Service has developed an action plan and has mapped 
out existing processes.  A future business model will incorporate improvements 
identified by the Service and Internal Audit, to be taken forward via a programme 
managed approach.   

The historic absence of formal contractual arrangements, combined with the lack of 
a commissioning strategy and procurement plan for child care services has impacted 
on the Service’s ability to demonstrate best value and its control over the quality and 
cost of care provision by external organisations.  This has been recognised by the 
Service which is developing a strategy and intends to employ additional resources to 
put contractual agreements in place and have them recorded appropriately so that 
compliance can be monitored in the course of their term and new arrangements can 
be put in place when the contract term ends.       

The CareFirst system is key to managing records of service users’ needs and the 
care provided in order to meet them.  Although assistance and summaries of data 
held within the system were provided on request, Internal Audit testing has been 
restricted to a degree as a result of concerns raised by the CareFirst system owner 
in relation to data protection, resulting in restricted access to CareFirst data.  This 
matter has been discussed with Service Management and Legal staff in a bid to 
ensure Internal Audit has access in future to all information in accordance with 
Standing Orders.   

Improvement is required in the way staff collaborate in terms of procurement and in 
respect of the input to CareFirst of service user care packages and provider costs.  
When up to date and accurate, CareFirst can provide effective control over invoice 
payments, however for various reasons not all invoices can be processed via 
CareFirst.  The Service has agreed that the number of care invoices which bypass 
the system, and over which authorisation checks and controls provide less 
assurance, could be reduced. 

Although CareFirst can provide adequate payment control, the ability to vary monthly 
package cost in order to accommodate invoice differences increases the risk of 
incorrect payments being processed.  The procedures and authorisation measures 
which govern these are not always complied with, and variances require ongoing 
monitoring.  The Service has agreed to incorporate a review of these areas into its 
action plan.    

Page 194



 2 Report No. AC1604AW 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Children’s Social Work provides statutory services to children, families and young people 
in need of care and protection.  This includes child protection investigation and 
assessment, disability services, family support, respite care, residential care, fostering, 
adoption and kinship care.  Some of these are delivered by the Service while others are 
purchased from external providers. 

1.2 In response to concerns raised by the Service in respect of contracts in place and payment 
controls within Children’s Social Work, Internal Audit has been asked to review the 
effectiveness of controls in this area.  In this report, the term ‘contracts’ may include 
arrangements where there is no actual contract document, but where ongoing receipt of 
services implies a contractual arrangement with the care provider.    

1.3 Previous audits of Social Care Contract Arrangements (November 2011) and the Care 
First System (February 2015) have already highlighted some of the issues discussed in 
this report.  The Service has commenced a Care Management Transformation Project 
which it intends to complete by 31 March 2016, which will address these issues. 

1.4 Although assistance and summaries of data held within the system were provided on 
request, Internal Audit testing has been restricted to a degree as a result of concerns 
raised by the CareFirst Team in respect of potential data protection issues regarding 
access to data held on the CareFirst system.  This matter has been discussed with Service 
Management and Legal staff in a bid to ensure Internal Audit has access in future to all 
information in accordance with Standing Orders.   

1.5 In the course of the review, the Service has developed an action plan and has suggested 
that the area be audited again in both 2016 and 2017.  It has mapped out existing 
processes and a future business model is to incorporate improvements identified by both 
Internal Audit and the Service itself.  Further detail of this action plan is given throughout 
this report and in the Service’s responses.   

1.6 The factual accuracy of this report and action to be taken with regard to the 
recommendations made have been agreed with Bernadette Oxley, Head of Children’s 
Social Work; Craig Innes, Head of Procurement; and Steve Whyte, Head of Finance. 

Page 195



 3 Report No. AC1604AW 

2. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 Contracts and Procurement 

2.1.1 In October 2014 Social Work officers responsible for commissioning and contracts were 
transferred from the Service into Commercial and Procurement Services (C&PS), in order 
to ensure consistent management of procurement related activities across the Council.   

2.1.2 The Service has not tendered contracts or frameworks for Children’s Services for some 
time.  Since 1 April 2014 only one tender exercise has been completed, and no others 
have been commenced.  Although Contracts and Procurement Standing Orders allow for 
the Director of Social Care and Wellbeing, subject to the agreement of the Head of Legal 
and Democratic Services, to certify a purchase as being unsuitable for tendering, due 
either to the nature of the services required or the timescales involved, there is no formal 
record which shows where this option has been applied.  There is therefore a significant 
risk that Best Value is not being demonstrated through existing arrangements.   

2.1.3 Scottish Government guidance on the procurement of care and support services published 
in 2010 states that Services should have long term commissioning strategies, 
accompanied by more detailed tendering plans which cover a 3-5 year period.  There is 
currently no commissioning strategy in place for Children’s Social Work, and no record of 
existing services and contracts from which to draft a 3-5 year procurement plan which 
could begin to support such a strategy.  The Service has noted that it has begun to develop 
a strategy through Public Services Partnership work being undertaken with the third 
sector. 

2.1.4 The Service has started work with C&PS to risk assess and prioritise contracts with high 
operational risks.  This includes identifying contracts which require an urgent review and 
those which can be decommissioned at relatively short notice.  Work has also commenced 
to review areas of expenditure in which savings might be made.  However, without longer 
term strategic plans, it will be difficult to prioritise, schedule, and allocate responsibility for 
procurement between and within the Service and C&PS, in order to meet the Council’s 
and national procurement regulations.  Plans need to be developed by the Service in 
response to its identified needs, in support of its wider strategic intentions, and cannot be 
developed by C&PS in isolation.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service, in conjunction with C&PS, should ensure commissioning strategies are 
developed for Children’s Social Work. 
 
The Service, in conjunction with C&PS, should ensure procurement plans are developed 
for Children’s Social Work. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  In line with the Service action plan the service will perform a needs assessment 
and develop a commissioning strategy and procurement plan for the period August 2016 
to March 2019 in conjunction with C&PS.   
 
Implementation Date 
August 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
Performance and Delivery 
Manager (Kay Dunn); 
Social Care Procurement 
Manager (Alison Macleod) 

Grading 
Major at a Service level 

Page 196



 4 Report No. AC1604AW 

2.1.5 The Service does not currently know if contracts are in place for all areas of recurring 
expenditure.  Review of a sample of 43 payments identified that there were only contracts 
or national framework agreements in place for 7 of these.  C&PS was aware of and 
progressing arrangements in respect of 19, but was unaware of a further 17.   

2.1.6 In accordance with section 35 of the Procurement Reform (Scotland) Act 2014 all 
contracting authorities must keep and maintain a register of any contracts entered into as 
a result of a regulated procurement.  The Council’s contracts register should include all 
Social Care contracts, however the corporate register is still being developed by C&PS.   

2.1.7 Spend data has been issued to Budget Holders with the request that they advise C&PS 
whether spend is on or off contract and provide a copy of the contract where one exists.  
The Service has stated that although work had been done on this by the Service, 
resources initially anticipated from C&PS by the Service were not available.  As a result 
due to the demands of the task fewer than half of Social Work Budget Holders had been 
able to respond with the required detail.  Without complete information, C&PS cannot 
demonstrate that it has a clear understanding of contract coverage.  It will also be unable 
to demonstrate compliance with legislation which requires a register to be in place by April 
2016. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure Budget Holders provide C&PS with sufficient and timely 
detail to complete the contracts register. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  An urgent notice was issued to 33 budget holders.  A further notice was issued 
in respect of 15 returns still outstanding.  The Service is waiting for a further update from 
C&PS.   
 
Implementation Date 
September 2016 

Responsible Officers 
Performance and Delivery 
Manager (Kay Dunn); 
Social Care Procurement 
Manager (Alison Macleod) 

Grading 
Major at a Service level 
 

2.1.8 Once a contracts register is in place, and strategies identified, the Service can begin to 
work towards planning tendering activity in order to ensure all contracts remain up to date 
or are re-let at appropriate intervals.  It will need to ensure that appropriate supporting 
arrangements are in place to do so, including timely access to financial, legal and 
procurement related data and advice.  Historically this has not always been planned 
sufficiently in advance to ensure resources are available at the point they are required.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service, C&PS, Legal and Finance Services should work together to support the 
Service’s procurement plans. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Project teams will be established for each procurement exercise with clear 
allocation of responsibilities and requirements and a timetable showing where input is 
required to ensure efficient delivery of the procurement plan.  
 
Implementation Date 
September 2016.  
The procurement plan is 
contingent on the 

Responsible Officer 
Social Care Procurement 
Manager (Alison Macleod); 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

Page 197



 5 Report No. AC1604AW 

commissioning strategy 
being in place. 

Performance and Delivery 
Manager (Kay Dunn) 

2.1.9 Although providers of social care and support are required to be registered, and are 
reviewed by the Care Inspectorate on a regular basis, this only gives assurance over the 
quality of care: not contract compliance.  Social Workers will also routinely carry out 
reviews to ensure that individual clients’ needs are being met in accordance with their 
GIRFEC Child Plan, though again this will not provide assurance over contracts and 
agreed costs.   

2.1.10 There is currently limited contract monitoring in place, and the responsibilities between 
Social Workers, lead budget holders in Children’s Services and C&PS are not clearly 
delineated.  Without clear contracts in place, contract management will be limited in its 
effectiveness.   

2.1.11 The number of service providers is significant, and although each will need to be reviewed 
over the course of contracts put in place, it will be necessary to prioritise these reviews.  
A risk based system, as used for other areas by C&PS could be put in place to determine 
the required frequency of monitoring exercises for each provider.  This could be weighted 
to include factors such as cost, volume and Care Inspectorate ratings.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service, in conjunction with C&PS, should determine their respective roles and 
responsibilities for care contract management and monitoring, and ensure rolling risk 
based plans are in place for monitoring all providers. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  A specific action will be added to the Service Action Plan to ensure that contract 
management and monitoring roles are clarified.  Going forward these duties will be 
fulfilled in accordance with a risk based monitoring programme.   
 
Implementation Date 
December 2016. 
This is contingent on the 
completion of the Future 
State Model. 

Responsible Officer 
Performance and Delivery 
Manager (Kay Dunn); 
Social Care Procurement 
Manager (Alison Macleod) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.1.12 The Service utilises the CareFirst system for case management, and to provide controls 
over care and support packages’ authorisation and payments.  The Service has noted that 
a Contracts module for the CareFirst system was purchased, but was not taken forward 
following the transfer of contracts staff and responsibilities to C&PS.  C&PS has 
subsequently identified and procured alternative options for contract management. 

2.2 Payment Controls 

2.2.1 Contracts and Procurement Standing Orders require that a contract is in place for all 
supplies and services.  Under no circumstances may any officer of the Council accept that 
supplier’s or contractor’s own Terms & Conditions of Contract without first having referred 
those Terms & Conditions of Contract to the Head of Legal and Democratic Services for 
review and approval.  Without appropriate, tendered, agreed contracts in place the Service 
effectively has no control over the services delivered and the level of payments made, and 
a significant level of trust is placed on the supplier to provide services and charge 
appropriately.   

Page 198



 6 Report No. AC1604AW 

2.2.2 The absence of contracts also limits the ability of the service to obtain clear schedules of 
rates, restrict the ability of providers to vary charges, and set invoicing methods, 
frequency, descriptions, and periods.  This impacts on the level of assurance management 
can have over the accuracy and consistency of the payment process, and increases the 
number of variations required in invoice processing.  Recommendations have been made 
in section 2.1 above in respect of developing and implementing contracts.   

2.2.3 Financial Regulations state that Orders must be issued for all work, goods or services, or 
such other expenditure as the Head of Finance may approve.  For care services, following 
a needs assessment and production of a Child Plan by the Social Worker a service 
agreement will be set up on CareFirst, and authorised by a Team Manager.  A form of the 
agreement is sent to the care provider to identify the needs which should be met, and in 
effect this is the Order.   

2.2.4 In some cases there will be an agreed rate derived from e.g. national procurement 
framework agreements, however this is not always the case, or there may be components 
of the service package which are not covered by the relevant pricing structure.  In the 
absence of overarching contracts or framework agreements with the providers which 
specify the rates for each type or part of the services provided, it is important that costs 
are agreed in advance of service delivery.  Without such agreement, the Service may be 
obliged to pay more than necessary for the services delivered.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that in the absence of overarching contracts service 
agreements with providers clearly specify the agreed costs of the service. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  In accordance with the Service Action Plan, a provider briefing will be prepared 
in respect of the requirement to establish interim contracts where there is no overarching 
contract.  Interim agreements will detail agreed costs for the service provided and 
conditions on which these may vary within limits. C&PS are already working towards 
implementing a recovery plan, including discussion with providers and updating 
agreemeints.  New agreements will include relevant criteria.   
 
Implementation Date 
April 2017 
 

Responsible Officer 
Social Care Procurement 
Manager (Alison Macleod); 
Performance and Delivery 
Manager (Kay Dunn); 
Lead Budget Holders  

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2.5 When services have been delivered, suppliers will provide an invoice.  Prior to making 
payment, the Service must ensure these match the agreed services for the client held on 
CareFirst.  Only once this has been recorded can invoices be processed via CareFirst to 
the financial system for payment.  Payments for care are processed by the Social Work 
finance team in Corporate Governance.   

2.2.6 However, not all payments made by the Service are matched to specific service 
agreements on CareFirst.  Financial ledger data was downloaded from eFinancials, which 
showed that of £14.6 million payments processed during 2015/16 to 29 October 2015, 
only £4.7 million had been processed through CareFirst.  The remaining £9.9 million of 
payments had been processed through either Infosmart – the corporate invoice 
processing system for non-care invoices, or the foster payments database.   

Page 199



 7 Report No. AC1604AW 

2.2.7 Payments via Infosmart are processed by the payments team within C&PS.  Review of 
these payments highlighted that of the total processed via Infosmart, an estimated £6.5 
million was paid to suppliers which provide care services, and is therefore likely to relate 
to care provision.     

2.2.8 Whilst invoices which are not for the care provision of a specific client cannot be matched 
in CareFirst and should be processed through Infosmart, there is a risk that some which 
can may bypass CareFirst and be paid via Infosmart.  In such cases if the care is not 
matched off as paid, it could be paid again if invoices are subsequently submitted for 
processing via CareFirst.  There is also a risk that, if it is identified by Social Workers or 
the CareFirst Team that payments have not been matched, the Service might believe that 
care provision received has not been paid for, and therefore request a further invoice.   

2.2.9 Further review of a sample of 22 invoices from care providers which were processed via 
Infosmart showed that 4 were for fostering agencies, 4 were block funding arrangements 
for specified services, and 8 were funding non-specific service provision.  6 were for client 
specific care provision, and should therefore have been matched against care packages 
in CareFirst, if they had been available.  Of these, 3 were processed through Infosmart 
due to service agreements not being up to date on CareFirst.  The remaining 3 had 
appropriate packages set up on CareFirst, and therefore Infosmart should not have been 
used. 

2.2.10 There are no controls to prevent care invoices being paid by the payments team within 
C&PS through Infosmart.  How invoices are processed is largely determined by to whom 
/ to which office they are sent by the supplier.  In the absence of contracts which specify 
where invoices should be sent, the Service and C&PS will need to implement 
administrative controls to ensure care payments are only made via CareFirst. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service, in conjunction with C&PS should implement controls to ensure all care 
payments are processed via CareFirst. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  A development workshop took place in November 2015 and the ‘future state’ 
model should be established by February 2016. This will determine the action and 
timescales for implementation.  Payment types are varied and complex, but the Service 
aims to process as many payments as possible through Care First in future.  The 
Financial Services payments team will continue to pass payments without a purchase 
order back to requisitioners to process via CareFirst where appropriate, and is 
supporting services to ensure the invoice process is understood and adequate 
processes are in place. 
 
Implementation Date 
September 2016.  

Responsible Officer 
Performance and Delivery 
Manager (Kay Dunn); 
Financial Services 
Manager (Garry Stevens) 

Grading 
Major at a Service Level 
 

2.2.11 If there is an authorised purchase order, invoices are automatically matched and paid via 
Infosmart, otherwise they are sent to a manager within the relevant Service for approval.  
Variations were evident between post and authorisation levels.  For example, staff who 
had formerly been in an ‘acting up’ role to cover the Head of Service have continued to 
hold an unlimited approval level.  Authorisation levels have not been set in CareFirst, 
although approval of care packages is restricted to Senior Social Workers and above.  The 

Page 200



 8 Report No. AC1604AW 

Service does not have a list of delegated approval levels which staff and managers can 
consult in order to ensure authorisations are applied consistently.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that appropriate, consistent authorisation levels are 
established for approval of care packages and invoices, that officers are aware of them 
and that they are imposed by relevant systems. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  A report detailing a number of interim actions will be presented to the Process 
Workstream on 1 February 2016. If these actions are agreed the service will review the 
current authorisation controls, including a list of lead managers and authorisation levels.  
 
A call has been raised with OLM to determine whether they can adapt the CareFirst 
system to allow multiple authorisation levels, as the system will currently only allow one 
level of authorisation.   OLM are developing their next platform, which may take account 
of this request, although this is not yet available.  
 
Implementation Date 
September 2016: 
Contingent on Future 
State Model work.  
 
 
 
July 2017 (Dependent on 
OLM) 

Responsible Officer 
Business Manager – 
Children’s Services (Kate 
Mackay) 
Performance and Delivery 
Manager (Kay Dunn). 
 
Business Manager – 
Children’s Services (Kate 
Mackay. 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.2.12 The financial system has controls built in to prevent duplicate payments – the same invoice 
number cannot be used twice for the same supplier.  Whilst there is still a risk that 
processing staff may erroneously change the invoice number to allow the invoice to be 
processed, the chances of duplicate payments are reduced.  The payments team within 
C&PS also run AP Forensics software reports and investigate entries which look to be 
possible duplicate invoice payments.  This is done before the BACS run takes place and 
covers all transactions including those interfaced to e-financials.   

2.2.13 In February 2015, the Care First Audit report highlighted a duplicate payment of £140,000 
which was paid in error and had to be recovered. Out of the sample of 43 payments 
reviewed as part of the current audit, two potential duplicate payments were identified for 
a value of almost £190,000.  These had been processed via Infosmart, and authorised, 
but were corrected prior to payment being made.   

2.2.14 However, due to limitations in the interface from CareFirst, invoice numbers are not 
transferred in full: only the last 12 digits are interfaced.  As a result, e-Financials would not 
automatically highlight and prevent duplicate invoices where there are more than 12 
characters.  There is also an increased risk that payments team checks would not highlight 
such errors, particularly given care invoices are filed separately and narrative and other 
data transferred is mixed in terms of content and quality.  For example, not all care invoices 
processed through Infosmart will include a client reference and period.   

  

Page 201



 9 Report No. AC1604AW 

 

Recommendation 
The Service, in conjunction with Finance, should review the interface from CareFirst to 
ensure full invoice numbers are transferred to the financial system.   
 
The Service, in conjunction with Finance and C&PS, should review how invoice data 
input to the financial system, including narrative descriptions, can be standardised.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed. A call has been logged with OLM to increase the invoice length size within 
CareFirst.  
 
Agreed.  The Service will discuss with finance colleagues, as part of the Process 
Workstream, how they ensure a greater standardisation of invoice data.  
 
Implementation Date 
September 2016: 
contingent on Future State 
Model work 

Responsible Officer 
Business Manager – 
Children’s Services (Kate 
Mackay 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2.15 Two duplicate suppliers were identified within the random sample of 43 payments.  There 
is an increased risk in these cases, particularly where there are separate feeder systems 
and interfaces, of duplicate payments.   One of the potential duplicate payments noted 
above at 2.2.13 was against a duplicate supplier.   

 

Recommendation 
Financial services should review and rationalise supplier numbers to ensure there are 
no duplicates.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  AP Forensics can report on Master Supplier Data and potential duplicates 
within eFinancials.  A planned new upgrade of software early in the next financial year 
is anticipated to provide more reporting tools to look at this area.  
  
Implementation Date 
June 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Financial Services 
Manager (Garry Stevens) 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.2.16 The Social Work finance team are authorised to process invoices which exceed the 
authorised agreement on CareFirst by up to 10%, without further approval.  This enables 
staff to accommodate variances resulting from minor changes within a particular week for 
example, or due to differences in standard invoice periods.  Where care provision invoiced 
for a period is less than that agreed, invoices can be processed regardless of the degree 
of variance.  Where there are continual variances however, between agreed and actual 
care provision, care packages should be reviewed in order to ensure that commitment 
reports from the system provide data which enables expenditure to be forecast accurately.   

2.2.17 The systems and controls in place for invoice variations, and variations relating to 11 
Clients’ packages were reviewed and the following matters were identified: 

• There are no CareFirst system controls which enforce the need for a higher 
authority to approve payment of invoices where the variance exceeds 10%.   

• Invoices which exceed 110% of the agreed cost are frequently processed without 
further approval being sought.   

Page 202



 10 Report No. AC1604AW 

• There is a lack of guidance regarding what constitutes an appropriate variance, 
adequate verification and suitable higher approval and when this is necessary.  

• The narrative input to explain the cause and therefore validate the variance has no 
consistency and is frequently recorded in different fields.  

• Reports which show this narrative may not therefore provide for proper monitoring 
and control of variations. 

• There is a lack of evidence to demonstrate that variance monitoring reports are 
regularly reviewed and appropriate action is taken to justify and demonstrate 
approval of all variances processed on a consistent and timely basis. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should discuss the potential for invoice variation controls in the Care First 
System with software providers OLM.  
 
The Service should review existing policy, practice and monitoring for invoice variations 
processed in CareFirst to ensure that management has adequate assurance over 
CareFirst data and invoice payments. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  A call has been logged with OLM to request greater control over authorisation 
and variation limits as above.  In the meantime Business Objects reports will be used to 
monitor variation activity. 
 
Agreed.  A review of the procedure and practice relating to CareFirst invoice payment 
variations will be undertaken as part of a larger piece of work remodeling the way in 
which care packages are recorded, monitored and paid for. 
 
Implementation Date 
April 2016 
 
 

Responsible Officer 
Business Manager – 
Children’s Services (Kate 
Mackay) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2.18 CareFirst is not always being kept up to date, meaning that payment of invoices may be 
delayed.  The CareFirst team identified that where new packages or changes have not 
been set up and authorised, or rate adjustments not notified, there will be delays pending 
the changes being applied on the system – as payments cannot be matched and 
processed until this happens.  Data accuracy was also highlighted in the previous Care 
First internal audit report in February 2015.  Children’s Services has commenced the 
implementation of Reclaiming Social Work (RSW) which aims to resolve the issue by 
clarifying the role of Social Work and the Unit Coordinator to input packages and the 
Children’s Services Manager to authorise payment.  

2.2.19 In a sample of 14 CareFirst payments reviewed, 13 had an up to date, authorised service 
agreement recorded on CareFirst.  In one case however the agreement was not up to 
date.  This means there is a lack of evidence to support the payments made, and to 
demonstrate that clients’ needs are being appropriately met.   

2.2.20 It was noted that Social Workers often add to or append new agreements rather than 
replace existing service agreements on the system, which complicates the audit trail and 
increases the risk of CareFirst data being out of date and renders commitment reports 
inaccurate.  In two cases there was an overlap between care package start and finish 
dates.  

Page 203



 11 Report No. AC1604AW 

2.2.21 In the event of a new provider being used, there can be additional delays whilst the 
supplier is reviewed by C&PS, then set up on the payments system by Finance, before it 
can be set up on CareFirst.  Whilst there are important controls applied in this process, 
there is an increased risk of the payment and matching controls not being applied in the 
meantime.   

2.2.22 Failure to make a payment within 30 days of receipt of the invoice can result in the Council 
having to pay late payment interest and potentially having to reimburse the recovery costs 
of the creditor in accordance with the Late Payments of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 
1988 as amended.  Moreover, regular late payment can have a negative impact not only 
on the Council’s Performance Indicators but also on the Council’s business relationships 
with the suppliers.   

2.2.23 This could lead to pressure being placed on the payments teams to process care invoices 
through Infosmart, or to apply variations to CareFirst agreements, without waiting for 
approval from Social Workers.  Inappropriate payments may result.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should establish a process which ensures provider details, care details, and 
care costs are passed to the CareFirst Team by Social Workers in advance of or within 
a set period following a child’s placement. 
 
The Service, in conjunction with Finance and C&PS should explore options for 
rationalising the process for setting up new suppliers in CareFirst.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The Service in implementing RSW will ensure additional training and guidance 
is available for Unit’s to reinforce the criticality of Carefirst being kept up to date and for 
the Carefirst team to be notified within 2 workings if a new supplier is being used.  
 
Agreed.  A review of this process will be included in the development work currently 
ongoing to review financial systems and processes in children’s social work.   
 
Implementation Date 
March 2017, following 
implementation of RSW 
 
 

Responsible Officer 
Lead Service Manager 
Graeme Simpson; 
Business Manager – 
Children’s Services (Kate 
Mackay) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2.24 There are a number of block-funded agreements, where the Service pays for a specified 
level of capacity rather than actual care provided to specific clients.  For example the 
supplier may offer a number of rooms or beds, and keep these open for the Service to use 
at short notice, rather than charging per room or bed actually occupied.  In the absence of 
known contracts for this funding, it is difficult to demonstrate that value is being received 
under these agreements, or whether the Service might be able to request a refund for 
services paid for and not utilised.   

2.2.25 The CareFirst Team noted that where agreements can be recorded on CareFirst there is 
some variation in how this is done.  In some cases the cost of block-funded care provision 
will be divided between the current number of clients in receipt of the service – which may 
vary between periods; in other cases ‘dummy clients’ may be set up and costs allocated 
between these and real clients recorded in the system – which ensures the same cost is 
recorded against each client every period.  The Team noted that there can be difficulties 
applying a consistent method due to the way payments are structured – e.g. a per-room 

Page 204



 12 Report No. AC1604AW 

charge may be split if there is multiple occupancy, therefore there may not be a standard 
per-client charge.   

2.2.26 The variable cost per client method can cause difficulties as it requires regular variations 
to be processed on CareFirst in order to allow care packages to be matched and invoices 
paid.  There is a risk that such routine variations might mask problems with the level and 
cost of care provided under these agreements.   

2.2.27 Although the ‘dummy client’ option is administratively convenient, it means that there are 
fictitious records on the system.  There is a risk that this could result in overpayments in 
the event that the supplier incorrectly charges for both capacity and specific clients.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should review whether block-funded arrangements are necessary and 
appropriate.  Where there are alternative spot purchase arrangements, these should be 
explored.   
 
The Service should review controls over payments for block-funded care. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The Service in conjunction with CareFirst will utilise the contracts provision of 
CareFirst and review the appropriateness of “block funded contracts” via the review of 
all contracts. 
 
Implementation Date 
August 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Lead Service Managers 
(Graeme Simpson and 
Anne Donaldson)   

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2.28 Not all Children’s care costs are administered and paid through CareFirst.  Fostering and 
some Children’s residential services are managed outwith the system.  Fostering and 
Adoption payments to individual carers are controlled using an Access database.  Invoice 
payments are made by the Social Work finance team from this database via an interface 
to the eFinancials system.  

2.2.29 Payments for foster care being provided by external foster agencies are not administered 
through CareFirst, nor the Access database.  The Service stated that agencies apply a 
cost and volume discount to the number of children placed with them.  This adds 
complication to payments and the ability to process them through CareFirst.  Payments 
for these and other child services are verified by the service manager to the Weekly 
Resource Bulletin and / or monitored by Finance against anticipated spend commitments.  
This is an administrative resource intensive exercise due to variations in invoice narrative 
processed via Infosmart – the Assistant Accountant has to manually check a significant 
proportion of invoices every month to ensure all payments have been made appropriately.  
Data quality has been discussed at 2.2.14 above.    

2.2.30 In terms of cost, checks are retrospective – i.e. the payments have already been made by 
the point Finance checks them.  If these payments were recorded on and paid through 
CareFirst, subject to the implementation of recommendations discussed in the rest of this 
Internal Audit report, it would provide better and more consistent control over them.   

  

Page 205



 13 Report No. AC1604AW 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should set up service agreements and pay invoices for all Fostering and 
Residential Care through CareFirst.  
 
The Service should review options for improving control and assurance over payments 
to fostering agencies.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The Service intends to implement the Care Pay module of the CareFirst system 
during 2016 and intends that all fostering, adoption and kinship payments are made 
through this system by April 2017, except those relating to independent fostering 
agencies.   
 
Agreed. The Service in conjunction with CareFirst will further review the processing of 
payments to independent fostering agencies via Carefirst. 
 
Implementation Date 
April 2017 

Responsible Officer 
Lead Service Manager 
(Graeme Simpson);  
Business Manager – 
Children’s Services (Kate 
Mackay) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

 
 

AUDITORS: D Hughes 
  C Harvey 
  P Smith   

Page 206



 14 Report No. AC1604AW 

Appendix 1 – Grading of Recommendations 
 
 
GRADE 
 

 
DEFINITION 

 
Major at a Corporate Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss, or loss of reputation, to the Council. 
 

 
Major at a Service Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss to the Service/area audited. 
 
Financial Regulations have been consistently breached 
 

 
Significant within audited area 

 
Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls. 
  
An element of control is missing or only partial in nature.   
 
The existence of the weakness identified has an impact on 
a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.   
 
Financial Regulations have been breached. 
 

 
Important within audited area 

 
Although the element of internal control is satisfactory, a 
control weakness was identified, the existence of the 
weakness, taken independently or with other findings does 
not impair the overall system of internal control.    
 

 
 

Page 207



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Date of Issue:  January 2016   Report No. AC1609 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Report 
 

Aberdeen City Council 
Health and Social Care Integration 

Pre-Integration Financial Assurance 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issued to: 
Angela Scott, Chief Executive 
Judith Proctor, Chief Officer – Aberdeen City Health and Social Care Partnership 
Richard Ellis, Director of Corporate Governance 
Tom Cowan, Head of Joint Operations -  Aberdeen City Health & Social Care Partnership 
Steven Whyte, Head of Finance 
Anne MacDonald, Audit Scotland 

Agenda Item 5.3

Page 209



 

 1 Report No. AC1609 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Act 2014 requires all local authorities 
and health boards to integrate adult community health and social care services.  
Within Aberdeen City, it has been determined that this will be provided through an 
Integration Joint Board (IJB), formed primarily of representatives from Aberdeen City 
Council and NHS Grampian, and a wider non-voting membership. 

The delegation of functions to the IJB will be effective from 1 April 2016, at which 
point it will formally take over the direction of Health and Social Care services within 
Aberdeen City.  In 2015/16, a budget of £240 million was available within the Council 
(£106 million) and NHS (£134 million) for the provision of existing services within 
these areas.  The level of budget to be transferred to the IJB will be agreed in 
February 2016 through existing Council and NHS budget approval processes.   

Scottish Government guidance requires Audit Committees to obtain assurance over: 
• The finance provisions to be included in the integration scheme; 
• The plans for financial governance and financial assurance and risk; 
• That lessons have been learned from other integration projects; and 
• That the financial metrics to be used in future to assess whether integration 

has met its objectives have been identified and that a process for obtaining 
baseline data is in place.  

 
Internal Audit has sought to obtain this assurance in respect of aspects controlled 
and influenced by Aberdeen City Council.  A further report from NHS Grampian 
Internal Auditors will outline separate work undertaken in respect of those areas 
controlled and influenced by NHS Grampian, and will be shared with the Audit, Risk 
and Scrutiny Committee when it is available.   

Progress is being made towards implementation by the Chief Officer, reporting to the 
Council, NHS Board and Shadow Integration Joint Board (sIJB).  An Integration 
Scheme has been submitted to the Scottish Government and has been approved by 
the Cabinet Secretary.  It will be laid before Parliament and following the prescribed 
period the IJB will be legally established on 6 February 2016.  The draft includes the 
key finance requirements as set out by the Scottish Government.   

Key governance documents including Financial Regulations, the Risk Management 
Strategy, Asset Management Plans, and detailed resource plans, have still to be 
finalised.  The first two are in joint development across the former Grampian area, 
and will be in place prior to 1 April 2016.  The other plans are being developed locally 
to support the draft Strategic Plan, which has been prepared, and sets out a direction 
of travel for the IJB.  Until the detailed plans are complete, there is limited assurance 
that resources will be available for delivery of the Strategic Plan.  It is not anticipated 
these will be in place for the ‘go-live’ date of 1 April 2016, as the delivery of statutory 
requirements, of which these do not form a part, has been prioritised.   

Although the sIJB meets monthly, and receives updates at each meeting on various 
aspects of implementation, to date progress reports covering the whole programme 
have not been routinely provided, in a consistent format.  In December 2015 the sIJB 
agreed to receive a standard monthly report prepared using data collated by the 
Programme Management Office, which is intended to improve consistency of 
reporting.     

Lessons are being learned from developing partnerships across Scotland via the 
Chief Officers Group and Finance Leads networks, best practice is being shared, and 
joint pan-Grampian work is in progress.  However, a substantial element of trust is 

Page 210



 

 2 Report No. AC1609 

being placed on officers within the IJB and partners to work together towards the 
partners’ assumed mutual aims.  This is particularly relevant in respect of the budget 
setting process and in the event that a budget overspend should be incurred by the 
IJB.  There remains a risk to the partnership, and therefore to the Council, if delegated 
services cannot be delivered within the budget made available.  It is recognised that 
such risks exist within the current provision of the services and are managed by each 
of the Partners within their own budget monitoring and risk management 
arrangements. The Integration Scheme makes provision for dealing with potential 
budget overspends and if this process were to be unsuccessful the scheme also 
contains a dispute resolution process.  As highlighted by the Highland Partnership’s 
experience, as set out in the Scottish Government’s Guidance for Integration 
Financial Assurance document (May 2015), this may not be as straightforward as 
anticipated, though the integration model adopted is different.  Finance has stated 
that such risks will be mitigated by a due diligence process and via the budget 
monitoring arrangements put in place for the IJB. 

Whilst the sIJB has been provided with regular joint monitoring reports, at a high level, 
on expenditure against both NHS and Council budgets for 2015/16, and each partner 
has continued with its own budget monitoring arrangements, there has been no 
sharing beyond officers of the partners’ management accounts.  Council Committees 
have not been provided with detail on the NHS elements of the budget and 
expenditure to date.  Without access to this information, there is less transparency 
over the ongoing costs of partners and the IJB, which are likely to have an impact on 
the budget requirements going forward.  

It is a requirement of the Scottish Government’s Integration Resource Advisory Group 
(IRAG) guidance that all parties have had sight of relevant budget information from 
the other party and the underlying process for deciding them.  Officers from both 
partners continue to work together to develop the budget.  The ongoing budget setting 
process, which is building towards the February 2016 Full Council, is identifying all of 
the risks associated with the budget which will be provided to the IJB.  These will be 
incorporated into the Council’s budget setting report, and Finance intends to provide 
further assurance through a due diligence report outlining the key risks and 
assumptions. 

Although work is progressing on developing performance measures there has to date 
been no formal output from this workstream.  As a result, it is not possible to 
determine whether baseline data for these measures can be or has been obtained.  
It may therefore be difficult to provide assurance that Integration has met its 
objectives, beyond measuring whether or not as a whole it has remained within 
budget.  It may also prove more difficult to calculate accurate baselines if the data is 
not identified and collated in advance.  It is not planned that these will be determined 
prior to April 2016.   

The intention, per the Strategic Plan, is to deliver services on a locality basis, which 
(subject to consultation) will build upon existing GP clusters.  There have been no 
decisions made to date regarding the planned management and budget structure.  It 
is anticipated that there will be a mix of geographic and specialist budgets.  Budgets 
will need to be devolved to align financial and operational responsibility.  However, 
until the detailed resource plans have been completed, limited work can be done on 
devolving budgets to these localities.  It is not intended that this will be completed 
until after April 2016, and in the interim budgets will continue to be managed by 
existing budget holders.  Until new structures are in place, and budgets and 
performance measures are aligned with them, it will be more difficult to drive and 
demonstrate achievement of the IJB’s strategy.     

Page 211



 

 3 Report No. AC1609 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Act 2014 requires all local authorities and 
health boards to integrate adult community health and social care services.  Within 
Aberdeen City, it has been determined that this will be provided through an Integration 
Joint Board (IJB), formed primarily of representatives from Aberdeen City Council and 
NHS Grampian, and a wider non-voting membership. 

1.2 The delegation of functions to the IJB will be effective from 1 April 2016, at which point it 
will formally take over the direction of Health and Social Care services within Aberdeen 
City.  In 2015/16, a budget of £240 million was available within the Council (£106 million) 
and NHS (£134 million) for the provision of existing services within these areas.  The level 
of budget to be transferred to the IJB will be agreed in February 2016 through existing 
Council and NHS budget approval processes.   

1.3 In May 2015 the Scottish Government issued final guidance for Integration Financial 
Assurance.  The guidance places specific requirements on the Audit Committees of 
partner organisations within the pre Integration shadow period: 

1.4 Audit Committees are required to obtain assurance on the following: 

• The finance provisions to be included in the integration scheme; 

• The plans for financial governance and financial assurance and risk; 

• That lessons have been learned from other integration projects; and 

• That the financial metrics to be used in future to assess whether integration has met 
its objectives have been identified and that a process for obtaining baseline data is in 
place.   

1.5 The guidance recommends that Audit Committees are provided with a report on the 
assurance work carried out by the Health Board and Local Authority.  This report is to be 
produced jointly by the Health Board and Local Authority Chief Internal Auditors and 
should be available sufficiently in advance of delegation of functions and resources to 
allow consideration by the Audit Committees.  This assurance report is also to be shared 
with the Audit Committees of the IJBs, when established. 

1.6 This report is intended to provide assurance over the above areas in respect of aspects 
controlled and influenced by Aberdeen City Council.   

1.7 A further report from NHS Grampian Internal Auditors will outline separate work 
undertaken in respect of those areas controlled and influenced by NHS Grampian, and 
will be shared with the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee when it is available. 

1.8 The factual accuracy of this report and action to be taken with regard to the 
recommendations made have been agreed with Judith Proctor, Chief Officer – Aberdeen 
City Health and Social Care Partnership, and Steve Whyte, Head of Finance. 

 

  

Page 212



 

 4 Report No. AC1609 

2. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 Financial Governance, Assurance and Risk 

2.1.1 In order to provide assurance to the partner organisations, and to facilitate the smooth 
operation of the partnership it is important that clear, strong and effective governance 
controls exist for the establishment of the Integrated Joint Board (IJB).  Aberdeen City 
Council and NHS Grampian were required to produce an Integration Scheme – which sets 
out the agreement between partners; and a Strategic Plan which identifies how the 
resources will be used.   

2.1.2 The draft Aberdeen City Integration Scheme, closely matching the national model, was 
approved by Full Council in March 2015. Following consultation with Scottish Government 
officers a revised version was agreed and submitted to the Scottish Government in 
December 2015. The scheme contains clauses in respect of governance arrangements, 
including: board membership, delegated functions, financial governance (budgets, 
payments and monitoring) and risk management.  The scheme has now been approved 
by the Cabinet Secretary and will be laid before Parliament in January 2016.  Following 
the prescribed period the IJB will become legally established on 6 February 2016.   

2.1.3 The Board will be comprised of a total of 8 voting members comprising 4 Aberdeen City 
Councillors, and 4 NHS Grampian Board Members, ensuring an equal partnership.  This 
is reflected in the composition of the Shadow IJB (sIJB) which meets regularly to progress 
the Integration agenda.  Further non-voting members, including officers and third sector 
representatives, will be co-opted onto the Board.  The Chair will be appointed from 
alternating partners at regular intervals.  The sIJB has its own Standing Orders, which 
reflect relevant sections of the Integration Scheme and set out key aspects of the formal 
administration of meetings.   

2.1.4 There are however a number of areas where separate documents are referenced for more 
detail, or where the Scheme states that separate local agreement will need to be reached.  
These documents and agreements have yet to be finalised.  Financial Regulations are 
being drafted in conjunction with each of the partners and integration authorities within the 
Grampian area.  It is anticipated that these will have been drafted by December 2015.  
Similarly, a shared Risk Management Strategy is being developed across the three areas 
by Risk Managers from each authority and the NHS.  Following completion of this 
document, a local statement on risk appetite and management will be further developed.  
Local Asset Management plans are also still to be considered.   

2.1.5 In order to provide assurance over the operation of the IJB it is important the Financial 
Regulations, Risk Management Strategy and Asset Management Plans are finalised and 
agreed with partners in advance of 1 April 2016. 

 
Recommendation 
The Chief Officer should ensure the Financial Regulations, Risk Management Strategy 
and Asset Management Plans are finalised and agreed with partners in advance of 1 
April 2016. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Financial Regulations and the Risk Management Strategy are in line to be 
finalised by 1 April 2016.  Asset management plans are not statutorily required, and 
there is limited capacity to deliver these in advance, therefore it is not anticipated they 
will be delivered prior to delegation of powers to the IJB.  Existing processes will be 
relied upon until new plans are put in place.   
 

Page 213



 

 5 Report No. AC1609 

Implementation Date 
April 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Chief Officer 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.1.6 A draft Strategic Plan has been prepared, and was issued for consultation on 1 October 
2015, with the intention of agreeing the final Plan in February 2016.  It is anticipated that 
the Plan will be adjusted annually to take account of future changes planned by the IJB.  
It sets out high level themes and objectives: although it gives examples of ideas and 
potential initiatives associated with relevant national outcomes, it does not clearly specify 
plans, programmes or projects that the IJB intends to progress.  Performance and 
outcomes are mentioned, but there is no reference to how they will be measured.  The 
document notes an update is planned by 31 March 2016, supplemented by a Joint 
Commissioning Plan to show the intentions in more detail.  This may be late for providing 
direction and assurance over the IJB’s plans.   

2.1.7 Although key priorities have been listed, they are all ranked equally, and there is limited 
detail on the functions which will deliver them.  There is limited discussion of resources, 
other than the total current cost of delegated services.  As a result it may be difficult to 
assign resources and budgets on the basis of the plan alone.  This contrasts with 
statements in the Integration Scheme that the Strategic Plan would support business 
cases for the level of resources required by the IJB.   

2.1.8 Although officers stated that the budget is expected to be set to provide the same position 
as if services were not being delegated, there is a risk that without a detailed and costed 
Plan the IJB will have no case for additional resources to do what it wants to do, and will 
have to manage within the resources the partners elect to delegate.   

 

Recommendation 
The IJB should ensure the Strategic Plan is supported with documents detailing the 
proposed activities and anticipated costs and resources required for its delivery. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  However, it is not considered that this is required to meet the statutory 
handover requirements.  Detailed plans cannot be developed until the Strategic Plan 
has been agreed by the newly formed IJB.  A strategic planning group will form in Spring 
2016 to take this forward, and it is anticipated plans will take 6-12 months to develop.  
In the interim, budgets are being allocated on the basis of existing spending patterns.  
Change in the first year is intended to be transitional, rather than transformational.   
 
Implementation Date 
March 2017 

Responsible Officer 
Chief Officer 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.1.9 Under the Act, the IJB must be formally established by 1 April 2016 at which time it will 
become responsible for delegated functions.  The Aberdeen City Shadow IJB was 
established in January 2015.  It is intended that, subject to the relevant Scottish 
Government order, the delegation of functions to the IJB will be effective from 1 April 2016.   

2.1.10 The sIJB is regularly presented with reports on progress with integration, and agrees or 
notes the content and arrangements.  Although the Council’s Standing Orders, updated 
in October 2014, state the Health and Care Integrated Joint Board would be a Core 
Council Committee from 1 April 2015, the Orders of Reference are stated as “To Be 
Agreed By TLG/Council/NHS Board”, and there are no further updates demonstrating the 
specific powers delegated.  Orders of Reference need to be formally approved by Full 
Council.  The Service has stated that powers have not been formally delegated to the 
sIJB, and therefore it cannot agree actions on behalf of its partners: accordingly it is only 

Page 214



 

 6 Report No. AC1609 

asked to approve positions on taking forward the structures to support integration – not to 
direct functions and services which in due course will be delegated to the IJB.   

2.1.11 A timetable was set out at an early stage in order to identify the key milestones leading up 
to 1 April 2016.  Officers have provided updates on various aspects of delivery and via 
standing items on the sIJB agenda, including regular work plan updates, and Chief Officer 
reports.   

2.1.12 At the point the IJB takes responsibility for delegated functions, it will need to ensure 
relevant structures are in place, including management, staff, infrastructure, systems and 
data.  Whilst many functions will be able to continue as they currently operate, at least in 
the short term, there are likely to be management and operational issues which will need 
to be resolved.  The Service has stated that it only intends to put in place the necessary 
structures to meet the legislative requirements from 1 April 2016, and therefore reliance 
will be placed on existing arrangements for service delivery until new processes and 
governance arrangements have been developed and agreed by the IJB once it has 
formed.  Although workstreams have been identified, and funding set aside for a number 
of these, the sIJB has not received much information on progress with each.   

2.1.13 Risks to meeting the ‘go-live’ date are being managed through a risk register held by the 
Chief Officer.  The project risk register has been presented to the sIJB quarterly, and has 
been reported to the Council’s Audit Risk and Scrutiny Committee in September 2015.  A 
number of items have been given an ‘Amber’ status to demonstrate that there was a higher 
than acceptable risk of them not being achieved, but that this is being managed and 
mitigated.  More recent updates have included details of action and progress in addressing 
the risks, or progressing with implementation, however not every line with an ‘Amber’ 
status has an update, and the explanations are not regularly revised to demonstrate that 
changes have occurred as planned.  If progress is not being made, the risk to the 
programme will increase.  The sIJB has not regularly received consistent and 
comprehensive formal updates on progress with each of the workstreams.     

2.1.14 Aberdeen City Council’s Programme Management Office has recently collated data and 
developed a new format of programme plan in respect of progress towards implementation 
of the IJB.  This is intended to capture additional data regarding progress with each of the 
workstreams supporting delivery of the final outcome, and to provide more assurance to 
the partners that targets are being met.  It is planned that this will be provided to the sIJB 
monthly from December 2015.   

 

Recommendation 
The Chief Officer should ensure the sIJB and partners are provided with regular, 
consistent, detailed information regarding progress with all elements of the Integration 
plan.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Progress reporting to date has focused on those aspects of the programme 
necessary to meet the legislative requirements and the ‘go-live’ date.  The PMO 
approach is intended to provide a consistent overview of progress for the sIJB.   
 
Implementation Date 
Implemented 

Responsible Officer 
Chief Officer 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2 Lessons Learned 

2.2.1 Few localities have made any further progress than Aberdeen City with implementing 
arrangements for Integration, from which lessons may be learned.  The Chief Officer has 

Page 215



 

 7 Report No. AC1609 

close links with networks across Scotland via the Chief Officers Group, which meets bi-
monthly.  Similarly, Finance officers are taking part in meetings of the Integration Finance 
Leads Network set up by the Scottish Government.  As demonstrated by e.g. the shared 
work on Risk Management and Financial Regulations, the three partnerships within the 
former Grampian area have met on a number of occasions to share best practice, and to 
agree a common approach to issues which affect the whole area.  Work is also 
progressing in developing a North East Partnership Steering Group to coordinate cross-
partnership services across the area. 

2.2.2 Finance has noted that the “lessons learned” section of the Guidance issued for 
Integration Financial Assurance, based on the experience in Highland, was considered by 
Finance officers in drafting the finance section of the Integration Scheme.  

2.3 Budget Setting 

2.3.1 The Integration Scheme set out which areas of service were to be delegated to the IJB.  It 
naturally follows therefore that the sections of the budget allocated for these services 
should be transferred from partners to the IJB.  Reports presented to the Transitional 
Leadership Group in May and November 2014 outlined that it would be expected that the 
sections of the budget allocated for these services would be transferred from partners to 
the IJB, and also gave indicative budgets based on this assumption.   

2.3.2 The Integration scheme sets out that in the first year of operation, each partner will follow 
their existing budget setting process to develop a baseline for the cost of delegated 
functions.  Thereafter any variations to the baseline for delegated functions will be 
negotiated between the Chief Officer and the partners, based on business cases tied back 
to the Strategic Plan, and agreed by each partner in accordance with their normal budget 
setting process – by February each year.  As set out at 2.1.6-8 above, there may be 
difficulties in assessing priorities until the plans and resources required to meet them are 
more fully developed.   

2.3.3 It is vital therefore that the IJB and partners have assurance over each budget setting 
process (Council, NHS and IJB) to ensure that appropriate and adequate resources are 
in place to continue to deliver the existing functions in the short term, and that sufficient 
scope has been built in to the budgets, or can be through the budget process, to develop 
the functions in line with the IJB’s strategic intentions in the medium to long term. 

2.3.4 This audit can only provide assurance over the budget setting process followed by 
Aberdeen City Council.  No opinion is being expressed as to the adequacy of the 
resources transferred by partners – it is up to the partners, and members of the IJB, to 
determine whether or not this is the case, and to act accordingly.   

2.3.5 The Council has already delegated responsibility and budgets for Adult Social Care 
services to the Integration Chief Officer, therefore plans for this budget are already built in 
to the Council’s budget setting process.   

2.3.6 The Finance Service within the Council has commenced the 2016/17 budget setting 
process.  £1.5 million of savings were taken out during the 2015/16 budget setting 
process, following underspends in both 2013/14 and 2014/15 across Adult Social Care.  
Although there are substantial variances within budget headings, including £3.5 million 
anticipated overspend within Learning Disabilities, where agreed budget savings for 
service redesign are not being achieved; and £2.8 million underspend on Older People, 
Physical and Sensory Disabilities commissioned care; year to date budget monitoring (to 
October 2015) suggests that overall City Adult Social Care expenditure will be broadly in 
line with budget.  However, there are potential risks, as small variations in demand can 
have significant impacts on expenditure.    

Page 216



 

 8 Report No. AC1609 

2.3.7 Further savings are required from the 2016/17 budget, to balance a number of potential 
risk areas where increased costs are anticipated.  At 3 November 2015, around £2.8 
million of savings options, and £3.2 million of growth items had been tabled, and will be 
subject to further consideration and challenge through the Council’s budget process, 
alongside options presented for other Council Services.  The Social Care growth items 
are largely comprised of anticipated cost increases for commissioned services.  A number 
of savings have been built in to reflect the IJB’s share of planned corporate cost 
reductions.   

2.3.8 There is a risk to the Council if it agrees a budget for the IJB which is not affordable in the 
longer term, as this will impact on the Council’s ability to continue to provide other services.  
It may prove difficult to substantially alter the budget in future years once a baseline level 
has been committed to.   

2.3.9 Unless the IJB is given a budget which is sufficient to cover current or anticipated costs, it 
may not be able to continue providing services in the short term, or be able to invest in 
required changes for the future.  However, there needs to be an incentive for the IJB to 
provide efficient and economic services.  It should be required to meet a fair and equitable 
share of any resource impacts resulting from a reduction in grant aided expenditure from 
the Scottish Government, or unfunded increases in costs.  If it cannot do so, then there is 
a risk, through application of relevant clauses of the Integration Scheme that the partners 
will have to fund any overspend on the IJB annual budget retrospectively.   

2.3.10 In the first year, overspends would be funded by the original owner of the budget – i.e. the 
Council would fund any overspend in former Social Work budgets.  In future years it is 
likely that (unless one partner volunteers payment) an overspend would be shared in 
proportion to the total budgets originally transferred by each partner.  This means that the 
cost of an overspend in the former Social Care services may be part funded by NHS 
Grampian, and an overspend on former Health Care services may be part funded by 
Aberdeen City Council.   

2.3.11 It is unlikely that either partner will have budgeted for such an overspend, particularly if it 
arises under the other partner’s former operations.  Reserves may have to be utilised, or 
resources diverted from other activities which had been prioritised. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure adequate mechanisms are in place to ensure overspends 
are avoided or resolved amicably between the Partners and the IJB.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  It is considered that the Integration Scheme contains sufficient provision for 
reporting on budget monitoring and risks associated with spending pressures, setting a 
reserves strategy, and agreeing recovery plans in the event of an overspend.  Once 
budgets have been passed to the IJB it is intended that they no longer maintain their 
former identity of either Health or Social Care, therefore the risk to the Council should 
be seen as a risk that the IJB will overspend its budget not that the Council is being 
asked to fund an NHS overspend (or vice-versa that the NHS is being asked to fund a 
Council overspend).   
 
Audit Position 
There remains a risk to the partnership and therefore to 
the Council if delegated services cannot be delivered 
due to a budget shortfall.  Partners will then have to 
agree, or resolve via the provisions included in the 
Integration Scheme, how this is to be funded.  As 
highlighted by the Highland Partnership’s experience, 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

Page 217



 

 9 Report No. AC1609 

where difficulties and misunderstandings were 
experienced in respect of risk sharing, as set out in the 
Scottish Government’s Guidance for Integration 
Financial Assurance document (May 2015), this may not 
be straightforward.   

2.3.12 The sIJB has been provided with joint budget monitoring reports, at a high level, on 
expenditure against both NHS and Council budgets for 2015/16 in July 2015, and 
thereafter resolved to receive this information bi-monthly.  Variance notes have been 
provided for information, and the sIJB has been advised of the risks posed to current and 
future services and budgets as a result of increased costs and demand, and the 
assumptions on which forecasts have been based.   

2.3.13 The budget monitoring paper for September 2015 notes that Hosted Services provided 
across the Grampian area are not apportioned between each of the IJB’s responsible for 
them – instead the Integration partnership in which the Service is hosted is reporting the 
expenditure in full.  This has the potential to distort the budget monitoring information, 
particularly if these areas are subject to variances in forecast outturn.  As the split of 
services has not yet been confirmed, this anomaly cannot yet be resolved.  Similarly the 
‘large hospital services set aside’ for services provided by NHS Grampian have still to be 
determined.  Until these aspects have been resolved, the budget monitoring will not 
provide the whole picture of the IJB’s financial performance.   

 

Recommendation 
Finance, in conjunction with counterparts in Aberdeenshire, Moray and NHS Grampian 
should ensure that shared Grampian wide services are budgeted and monitored 
appropriately.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  This work is underway, being led by the Deputy Director of Finance for NHS 
Grampian.   
 
Implementation Date 
February 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Chief Officer 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.3.14 Budget monitoring for each partner has continued to be reported to the relevant 
committees within each organisation.  Figures for Adult Social Care reported to Finance, 
Policy and Resources Committee, and Education and Childrens’ Services Committee, 
include NHS resource transfer funding income, budgeted at £18 million.  This transfer has 
been netted out of the budget monitoring figures presented to the sIJB in order to avoid 
double counting.   

2.3.15 Although budget monitoring for Adult Social Care continues to be reported to Council 
Committees, details of current expenditure against the entire sIJB budget is not shared 
between the partners except to the extent it is reported to the sIJB.  Councillors therefore 
have had limited opportunity to view and understand the potential risk to Council budgets 
through the joint budget implications of Health and Social Care Integration.  In order to 
provide additional transparency it was recommended by Internal Audit that sIJB budget 
monitoring be presented to an appropriate Council Committee, however Finance has 
noted that due to the imminent changes an alternative approach to providing financial due 
diligence information will be pursued instead.   

2.3.16 In previous years a draft budget would have been provisionally set by December, with 
revisions and updates progressed through the normal process prior to seeking Full Council 
approval in February 2016.  Finance has noted that details of the anticipated Scottish 

Page 218



 

 10 Report No. AC1609 

Government funding settlement for the Council have still to be released, and therefore the 
required resources for achieving a balanced budget are still not known.  This may mean 
that only a final budget paper will be produced.   

2.3.17 It is a requirement of the IRAG guidance that all parties have had sight of relevant budget 
information from the other party and the underlying process for deciding them.  Given the 
sIJB has no formal powers to receive this information on behalf of the partners, in order to 
meet the requirements Full Council will need to be given information on the IJB’s budget 
setting process (from both NHS and Council funds).   

 

Recommendation 
Finance should ensure that Full Council is given details of the key assumptions and risks 
underlying the IJB budget from both partners including current expenditure patterns and 
budget pressures.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Key assumptions and risks will be incorporated into the Council’s budget setting 
report or a separate report to Council on the due diligence process on the budgets to be 
delegated by the Council and NHS Grampian. 
 
Implementation Date 
February 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Head of Finance 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.4 Performance Measures 

2.4.1 There is a set of 9 national outcomes, against which performance of the IJB will be 
measured.  It is intended that a suite of local indicators will be developed to complement 
these.   

2.4.2 Although work is progressing on developing performance measures there has to date 
been no formal output from this workstream.  As a result, it is not possible to determine 
whether baseline data for these measures can be or has been obtained.  Baseline data 
could be difficult to obtain if it is not measured in advance of changes.  It may therefore 
be difficult to provide assurance that Integration has met its objectives, beyond measuring 
whether or not as a whole it has remained within budget.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure performance metrics are developed and baselines recorded 
in advance of April 2016. 
 
Service Response / Action 
A number of performance measures are already in place and data is being collected in 
respect of existing services.  The Service is awaiting guidance from the Scottish 
Government on national performance indicators, agreement of the Strategic Plan, and 
approval from the IJB when it has formed, to determine the appropriate measures.  It is 
not planned that this will be in place prior to 1 April 2016. 
 
Audit Position 
There is a risk that without clear measures from the 
outset, it will be more difficult to drive and demonstrate 
achievement of the IJB’s strategy.   

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.4.3 The intention, per the Strategic Plan, is to deliver services on a locality basis, (subject to 
consultation) with alignment based on existing GP clusters.  There have been no decisions 
made to date regarding the planned management and budget structure.  It is anticipated 

Page 219



 

 11 Report No. AC1609 

that there will be a mix of geographic and specialist budgets.  The Service has stated that 
early proposals are still being discussed by officers, and it will ensure these are contained 
within the level of current financial resources.  It is important that budgets are appropriately 
split and responsibility is determined and assigned by the point the IJB commences 
delivery of services, in order to ensure budget holders can be appropriately held to account 
for financial performance.  This is also a requirement of the Scottish Government’s 
localities guidance.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should review how budgets are going to be devolved in advance of April 
2016. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Existing budget holders will continue to be accountable for budgets within the current 
management structure until any revised management structure is put in place.  It is not 
anticipated that the new management structure will be in place by April 2016.  It is also 
not anticipated that work to allocate budgets across Localities will be completed by April 
2016.  Work has commenced within Finance to give a broad indication of locality splits, 
but further development is required to determine how this will operate in practice.   
 
Audit Position 
Until new structures are in place, and budgets aligned 
with them, it will be more difficult to drive and 
demonstrate achievement of the IJB’s strategy.   

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

 
 

AUDITORS: D Hughes 
  C Harvey

Page 220



 

 12 Report No. AC1609 

Appendix 1 – Grading of Recommendations 
 
 
GRADE 
 

 
DEFINITION 

 
Major at a Corporate Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss, or loss of reputation, to the Council. 
 

 
Major at a Service Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss to the Service/area audited. 
 
Financial Regulations have been consistently breached. 
 

 
Significant within audited area 

 
Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls  
An element of control is missing or only partial in nature.   
 
The existence of the weakness identified has an impact on 
a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.   
 
Financial Regulations have been breached. 
 

 
Important within audited area 

 
Although the element of internal control is satisfactory, a 
control weakness was identified, the existence of the 
weakness, taken independently or with other findings does 
not impair the overall system of internal control.    
 

 
 

Page 221



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



Date of Issue:  January 2016  Report No. AC1612 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Internal Audit Report 
 

Finance 
 

Council Tax 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issued to:  
Richard Ellis, Director of Corporate Governance 
Steven Whyte, Head of Finance 
Wayne Connell, Revenues and Benefits Manager 
Anne MacDonald, Audit Scotland 

 

Agenda Item 5.4

Page 223



 1 Report No. AC1612 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Council Tax was introduced in April 1993 as a means for Local Authorities to collect 
contributions from households towards the cost of Local Authority services.  It is a 
property tax, with the amount set locally by Councils and charged according to the 
valuation band of the individual property.  Each of the 32 local Councils within 
Scotland is a valuation authority and responsible for appointing an Assessor who 
must in turn compile and maintain a Valuation Roll and a Council Tax Valuation List 
which places each domestic dwelling in one of eight valuation bands which reflect the 
market value of the property as at April 1991 and its physical state and locality as at 
April 1993. 

There can be exemption from Council Tax liability such as student residences and 
specific unoccupied dwellings and discounts are available for single occupancy 
residences, and in other circumstances.  Where appropriate the Council Tax bill will 
incorporate water and waste water charges, which are collected on behalf of Scottish 
Water. 

The Council administers Council Tax through the Academy system.  As at 31 March 
2015 there were a total of 113,875 live Council Tax properties within the Aberdeen 
City area and the net amount collected for Council Tax for 2014/15 was £105.5 
million, a collection rate of 95.4%.   

The objective of the audit was to ensure that billing and collection arrangements are 
robust and adequately applied. 

Appropriate procedures have been developed for managing all aspects of Council 
Tax and these were found to be operating well, with control being exercised over 
payments.  Recommendations to review and correct outstanding entries on the 
system suspense account, as well as those identified as part of the reconciliation 
between the Council Tax system, bank statement and financial ledger were agreed 
by the Service.  The Service has also agreed to undertake a reconciliation of property 
information to the Assessors information prior to the billing process. 

  

Page 224



 2 Report No. AC1612 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1. Council Tax was introduced in April 1993 as a means for Local Authorities to collect 
contributions from households towards the cost of Local Authority services.  It is a property 
tax, with the amount set locally by Councils and charged according to the valuation band 
of the individual property.  Each of the 32 local Councils within Scotland is a valuation 
authority and responsible for appointing an Assessor who must in turn compile and 
maintain a Valuation Roll and a Council Tax Valuation List which places each domestic 
dwelling in one of eight valuation bands which reflect the market value of the property as 
at April 1991 and its physical state and locality as at April 1993.   

1.1 There can be exemption from Council Tax liability such as student residences and specific 
unoccupied dwellings and discounts are available for single occupancy residences, and 
in other circumstances.  Where appropriate the Council Tax bill will incorporate water and 
waste water charges, which are collected on behalf of Scottish Water.  

1.2 The Council administers Council Tax through the Academy system.  As at 31 March 2015 
there were a total of 113,875 live Council Tax properties within the Aberdeen City area 
and the net amount collected for Council Tax for 2014/15 was £105.5 million, a collection 
rate of 95.4%.   

1.3 The objective of the audit was to ensure that billing and collection arrangements are robust 
and adequately applied.   

1.4 The factual accuracy of this report and action to be taken with regard to the 
recommendations made have been agreed with Wayne Connell, Revenues and Benefits 
Manager and Phyllis Kennedy, Council Tax and Recovery Manager. 

  

Page 225



 3 Report No. AC1612 

2. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 General 

2.1.1 Comprehensive written procedures which are easily accessible by all members of staff 
can reduce the risk of errors and inconsistency.  They are beneficial for the training of 
current and new employees and provide management with assurance of correct and 
consistent practices being followed, especially in the event of an experienced employee 
being absent or leaving. 

2.1.2 Council Tax written procedures are stored electronically on Enlight, an online web 
procedure manual provided and maintained by Destin Solutions.  The procedures cover 
processes from Valuation and Liability to Payments Processing and Appeals.  The written 
procedures are clear and comprehensive, although not up to date.  The Service advised 
that updating of the manuals was suspended whilst technical work is undertaken on the 
online web application.  However, the procedures satisfactorily covered all aspects of the 
processes to be followed, and staff are encouraged to raise questions with assigned 
mentors or Team Leaders.  The procedures update will be completed by end October 
2016. 

2.1.3 Before being given access to the Academy System, staff are required to complete a 
Statement on Viewing Accounts form.  This form advises staff that information may be 
viewed for business purposes only and disclosure of information to unauthorised persons 
will result in disciplinary action.  The form requires staff to detail their current and former 
addresses within Aberdeen City.  The Operations team then set up the user account so 
that the Council tax accounts associated with that name and those addresses cannot be 
amended by that user.  The account numbers are added to the form by the Operations 
officer responsible for inputting the data, who initials and dates the form to indicate that it 
has been actioned.  The form is then filed by the Operations team. 

2.1.4 Ten statement forms were reviewed.  All had been completed and appropriately signed, 
dated and initialled.  There are currently two versions of the form being used at the same 
time, one contains a simple declaration, and the other includes action boxes that are 
completed by Operations staff when setting up access to the system.  Three of the ten 
forms reviewed contained the action boxes. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that prospective Academy and URB users complete the most 
comprehensive version of the Statement on Viewing Accounts form. 
 
Service Response / Action 
The old Statement on Viewing Accounts Form has been removed.  The updated form is 
now the only form available to use.   
 
Implementation Date 
Implemented 

Responsible Officer 
Wayne Connell, Revenues 
& Benefits Manager 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.2 Liability 

2.2.1 The Grampian Valuation Joint Board (Assessor) holds a record of all domestic properties 
within Aberdeen City.  This information is passed to the Council Tax team to allow for the 
creation of properties and associated liable parties within the Academy system.  Any 
exemptions or discounts are applied, before Council Tax notices are produced by the 

Page 226



 4 Report No. AC1612 

system.  

2.2.2 Twice yearly, in March and October, a full extract of the Assessors database is provided 
to the Council Tax team.  This information is reconciled to the information contained within 
Academy matching the property reference, property banding and effective date.  Any 
mismatches are investigated and corrected. 

2.2.3 The Service advised that whilst a reconciliation was carried out in September 2014, 
problems with the annual billing process prevented the March 2015 review (see para 2.3.3, 
below).  The October 2015 reconciliation was completed on 9 November 2015 and signed 
off by The Council Tax and Recovery Manager on 11 November 2015. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that the Academy data is reconciled to the Assessors report 
regularly and before the annual billing process. 
 
Service Response / Action 
This is scheduled to be completed during February 2016 prior to Annual Billing. 
 
Implementation Date 
February 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Wayne Connell, Revenues 
& Benefits Manager 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.2.4 New properties and changes in banding throughout the year are notified to the Service 
through a report from the Assessors.  Ten amended accounts within the current financial 
year were reviewed and it was confirmed that all were timeous and appropriate, the new 
notices of liability were correct and issued within 28 days. 

2.2.5 Aberdeen City Council is compelled by statutory instrument (currently the Water & 
Sewerage Services to Dwellings (Collection of Unmetered Charges by Local Authority) 
(Scotland) Order 2014) to collect unmetered water and waste water charges on behalf of 
Scottish Water.  This is done by incorporating them into the Council Tax bills issued to 
customers.  The proportion of charges owed to Scottish Water is calculated by a formula 
(which is detailed in statute) and includes the deduction of a set collection fee, by the 
Council Tax & Recovery Manager.  This is confirmed by the Revenues & Benefits Manager 
and paid to Scottish Water in 12 monthly instalments, each preceded by a letter of advice 
showing the amount to be paid and the calculations.  The calculation for 2014/15 and 
2015/16 was reviewed and found to be arithmetical accurate.  The collection fee for 2015 
amounted to approximately £760,000.   

2.3 Billing 

2.3.1 Council Tax Bills are raised annually based on the domestic property banding.  The values 
attributable for each banding for 2014/15 are as follows, including charges collected on 
behalf of Scottish Water: 

 

Band Valuation  
(as at 1 April 1991) 

Council Tax 
£ 

Water 
£ 

Waste Water 
£ 

Total 
£ 

A Up to £27,000 820.26 126.78 147.12 1094.16 

B £27,001 - £35,000 956.97 147.91 171.64 1276.52 

C £35,001 - £45,000 1,093.68 169.04 196.16 1458.88 

D £45,001 - £58,000 1,230.39 190.17 220.68 1641.24 

E £58,001 - £80,000 1,503.81 232.43 269.72 2,005.96 

F £80,001 - £106,000 1,777.23 274.69 318.76 2,370.68 

G £106,001 - £212,000 2,050.65 316.95 367.80 2,735,40 

H £212,000 and over 2,460.78 380.34 441.36 3,282.48 

Page 227



 5 Report No. AC1612 

2.3.2 Per s.30 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, rates for the forthcoming financial 
year should be agreed by 11 March and published in a local newspaper within 21 days.  
Rates for 2015/16 were approved at a Full Council meeting relating to the Revenue Budget 
on 5 February 2015 and published in local newspapers and on the Council website shortly 
thereafter, in advance of the March deadline. 

2.3.3 The Operations team, under the Revenues Support Manager, is responsible for the 
Annual Billing process and ensuring that a Council Tax Demand Notice (bill) is issued to 
each domestic property within Aberdeen City per legislation.  The bills must be issued 
under the legislation “as soon as practical” after the rates are set and at least 14 days prior 
to the due date.  The due date of the full payment or first instalment was 1st, 5th, 15th, 20th 
or 28th April, depending on the method pf payment selected, and the notices were issued 
between 11th and 26th March.  The delay in printing was reviewed in Internal Audit report 
AW1601.  

2.3.4 Since the issue of annual bills in March 2015 the Service has confirmed that a new 
process, enabled through use of the bulk printing Paris Pro Print system, has been fully 
implemented.  This ensures that there is a four-way reconciliation between the Council 
Tax System, Paris Pro Print, the Design and Print Team, and prior to issue.  An officer 
with primary responsibility for supervising this during the year end process (Quality 
Assurance and Systems Liaison Officer) was appointed in November 2015. 

2.3.5 Customers may enrol to use the secure Self Service Facility which enables access to their 
account details.  Through this they can check their payment status, create or amend a 
Direct Debit mandate and opt for paperless billing.  If e-billing is requested a circumstance 
code is entered on the account in Academy indicating that no bill should be printed at year 
end. 

2.3.6 Thirty demand notices for properties liable for Council Tax in 2015/16 issued in March 
2015 were reviewed.  The amounts charged were in accordance with the rates applicable 
to the property banding, and accurate water and waste water charges had been applied.  
The property information matched the Assessor’s report.   

2.4 Reliefs 

2.4.1 A variety of Council Tax exemptions and discounts are available to qualifying properties.  
Applications need to be made in writing; an email stating the grounds for the application 
is acceptable unless further confirmation is required e.g. medical verification or proof of 
benefits.  Thirty accounts which had been awarded exemptions or discounts were 
reviewed and it was confirmed that they were accurately calculated, applied correctly and 
were adequately supported.  

2.5 Payments 

2.5.1 Council Tax customers are given the option to pay their liability in full on or before 1 April, 
or by instalment in ten payments from April to January inclusive.  All instalments, unless 
paid by Direct Debit on the 5th, 15th, 20th or 28th of the month, are due for payment on or 
before the first of each month.  If an instalment is not paid on or before its due date, the 
account will go into in arrears.   

2.5.2 Monthly instalments can be paid in cash, by cheque or by card at a Customer Access 
Point, Post Office or Paypoint site; online through the secure web payment facility; by 
direct debit or standing order; or by card over the dedicated telephone payment line or 
through the Customer Service Centre.  All income received is recorded within the Council’s 
Icon Cash Collection System, with payment details interfaced daily to the Academy 
System and the payers council tax account is updated.   

Page 228



 6 Report No. AC1612 

2.5.3 30 payments made during September 2015 covering all payment types were extracted 
from the ICON system and compared to the Academy System.  It was confirmed that they 
were reflected timeously in the correct account and accurately showed the payment type.  

2.5.4 Prior to July 2015 the management of rent and council tax payments was undertaken by 
one team within Corporate Governance.  This has subsequently been split into two distinct 
teams each with separate responsibilities for rents and council tax.  The Council Tax 
Payments Control Team was formed in November 2015 and is responsible for identifying 
and investigating failed direct debit payments and for managing the Council Tax suspense 
account. 

2.5.5 Failed direct debit (DD) payments are logged through the Icon cash receipting system 
when the “ARUDD” report is returned from BACS two to three days after the original 
payment was requested.  The Operations team posts these to the Academy system.  
Depending on the reason for the failure, a letter may be generated automatically (“refer to 
payer”) or will have to be produced by an officer via a workflow task (all other reasons, 
e.g. no such account).  Only one letter will be sent regarding a failed DD payment. 

2.5.6 If a DD payment fails, the next payment instruction will include the amount of the missed 
payment if this has not already been made.  If the payment fails a second time, the 
instruction will be cancelled and the full amount becomes due unless a new payment 
arrangement is agreed.  The returned direct debits for September 2015 was significant at 
over £125,000. 

2.5.7 Where a payment is received but cannot be attributed to a correct Council Tax account, it 
will be accepted and reflected in the Council Tax bank account and posted to a suspense 
account within Academy.  The Service advised that this account should be regularly 
reviewed, entries investigated and corrected through the ICON cash receipting system.    

2.5.8 As at 27 October 2015 the balance on the suspense account was over £34,000 and 
included transactions dating back to April 2014.  If transactions are not re-credited 
correctly an account may appear to be in arrears when in fact a payment has been made.  
The Service advised that the function was not being operated as fully as it should due to 
the team restructuring issues discussed in 2.5.4 above; however an officer in the 
Payments Control team has now been tasked with investigating and clearing transactions 
on a daily basis, although it is anticipated that the backlog will take time to clear.  A 
recommendation is included to track progress.  

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that transactions held in the suspense account are 
investigated and cleared on a regular basis.    
 
Service Response / Action 
This is being undertaken on a daily basis and the backlog will be completed by April 
2016. 
 
Implementation Date 
April 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Wayne Connell, Revenues 
& Benefits Manager 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.5.9 Council Tax refunds are created when a customer either pays more than their annual 
liability, or an exemption or discount is applied to an account part way through the year.  
The Academy system will automatically calculate a credit when a member of the Council 
Tax team updates an account, or payments made by a customer exceed the liability.   

Page 229



 7 Report No. AC1612 

2.5.10 As part of the annual billing process, credit balances are automatically transferred to the 
new financial year to be offset against liability.  However, should the customer request a 
refund, the balance will not be included in the bulk transfer of credits, and will be processed 
as a refund.  The refund process is initiated on URB, and will be processed on Academy.  

2.5.11 A sample of 10 refunds was reviewed and it was confirmed that they were correctly 
calculated, supported by documentation, appropriately authorised, and that the refund 
was made to the correct payee through BACS.     

2.5.12 The Corporate Debt Team is responsible for the recovery service for Council Tax Debt, 
Service Income Debt, Penalty Charge Notice Debts, Business Rates Debt and Housing 
Benefit Overpayments.  The contract for debt collection services was last awarded 
following a tender process in July 2013 to Scott & Co.  As part of the contract four Council 
Tax staff are based in Scott & Co’s office as part of a joint working project and four within 
Marischal College as well as the Council Tax Team who pursue Council Tax only. 

2.5.13 Customers agree to a payment plan of either 1 or 10 instalments, as discussed in 2.5.1 
above.  If a payment is missed a reminder letter is issued requesting payment of the 
missed instalment be made within 7 days.  If payment or a new payment arrangement is 
not made, the full amount outstanding becomes due for payment within 14 days of the 
date of issue of the reminder letter.  No further reminder is issued.  If there is no attempt 
to pay within the 14 days, a Summary Warrant application will be made (adding a 10% 
surcharge in terms of legislation) and the debt will be passed to Sheriff Officers via a 
system interface.  No notification of the granting of the Summary Warrant is made, as this 
is described in the initial reminder letter. 

2.5.14 Only two reminders will be issued in a financial year.  If a third payment is missed, even if 
payments have been made in the interim, no reminder will be issued and the debt will 
progress straight to the Summary Warrant stage. 

2.5.15 A sample of 10 accounts which had been subject to recovery action within the last 12 
months was reviewed.  All were being monitored and dealt with appropriately and 
timeously. 

2.6 Reconciliations 

2.6.1 Information from ICON (the cash receipting system), Academy and the financial ledger is 
input to a spreadsheet on a daily basis to allow for a monthly reconciliation to be 
undertaken by the Bank Reconciliations Team.  These reconciliations are then checked 
by an accountant. 

2.6.2 The September 2015 reconciliation was reviewed.  There were two variances reflected 
within the reconciliation, one between Academy and Icon and the other between the ledger 
and Academy.  Whilst both were less than £5,000, there was no explanation as to why the 
variance had arisen.  Accountancy advised that variances of this value are considered 
immaterial and are not investigated.  Whilst it is acknowledged that the variance is very 
small, when compared to the £13,000,000 collected in September 2015, the lack of 
understanding as to the reason for the variance could be concealing greater compensating 
variances. 

  

Page 230



 8 Report No. AC1612 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should investigate and correct any variances as part of the reconciliation 
process. 
 
Service Response / Action 
The Bank Reconciliation Team and the Revenues and Benefits Service will work 
together to investigate any variances.  This will commence straight away.   
 
Implementation Date 
September 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Wayne Connell, Revenues 
& Benefits Manager 
Richard Burnett, Income 
Support Officer 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.7 Bad Debts and Write Offs 

2.7.1 Per Financial Regulation 5.3.4, debts considered uncollectable up to the value of £10,000 
may be written off by authorised officers and up to £25,000 by the Head of Finance.  Debts 
valued over £25,000 must be reported at least annually to the Finance, Policy & 
Resources Committee for approval before they can be discharged.  Annual reports on 
Council Tax debts valued at less than £10,000 which have been written off should be 
submitted to the Committee for information.   

2.7.2 A Request Form to write off a debt must be fully completed by either a Council Tax and 
Recovery Assistant or Recovery Assistant and then authorised by a Team Leader.  Bad 
debts are accounted for in the Service budget by the Accounting team.  A sample of 4 
debts pending write off was reviewed.  All were fully supported and had been appropriately 
approved, and recovery action had been halted.  Since all 4 write off requests were made 
during the current financial year, none had yet been reported to Committee, as this is done 
annually in September. 

2.7.3 A provision is made within the annual accounts for bad Council Tax debts.  In 2014/15 this 
provision was £2.2 million.  Provision is made for bad debts in the annual budget by the 
Accountancy Team.  This is calculated by the Accountancy team by comparing the 
previous year’s collected cash figures as compared to the total Council Tax payable and 
the percentage increase in banding to estimate the shortfall between money owed and 
cash likely to be collected. 

2.8 Performance Monitoring 

2.8.1 Council Tax live property and collection statistics are monitored by the Council Tax and 
Recovery Manager and are submitted annually to the Local Government Benchmarking 
Framework.  The data submitted for collection statistics shows the net Council Tax 
collected as a percentage of collectable Council Tax.  Aberdeen City Council was reported 
as collecting 94.2% in 2013/14, the most recent year available for benchmarking, 
compared to an average of 95.2% for Scotland.  The Service reported this increased to 
95.2% in 2014/15 compared to a Scottish average of 95.4%. 

 
 

AUDITORS: D Hughes 
  M Beattie 
  L Jarvis   

Page 231



 9 Report No. AC1612 

Appendix 1 – Grading of Recommendations 
 
 
GRADE 
 

 
DEFINITION 

 
Major at a Corporate Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss, or loss of reputation, to the Council. 
 

 
Major at a Service Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss to the Service/area audited. 
 
Financial Regulations have been consistently breached. 
 

 
Significant within audited area 

 
Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls. 
 
An element of control is missing or only partial in nature.   
 
The existence of the weakness identified has an impact on 
a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.   
 
Financial Regulations have been breached. 
 

 
Important within audited area 

 
Although the element of internal control is satisfactory, a 
control weakness was identified, the existence of the 
weakness, taken independently or with other findings does 
not impair the overall system of internal control.    
 

 
 

Page 232



Date of Issue:  December 2015  Report No. AC1613 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Internal Audit Report 
 

Communities, Housing & Infrastructure 
 

Crematorium 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issued to: 
Angela Scott, Chief Executive 
Pete Leonard, Director of Communities, Housing & Infrastructure 
Richard Ellis, Director of Corporate Governance 
Mark Reilly, Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment 
Steven Whyte, Head of Finance 
Graham Keith, Performance & Development Manager 
Angus Beacom, Crematorium Manager 
Anne MacDonald, Audit Scotland 

Agenda Item 5.5

Page 233



 1 Report No. AC1613 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Following concerns raised over the recovery of baby ashes from Crematoriums 
across Scotland, the Scottish Government established an Infant Cremation 
Commission chaired by Lord Bonomy, which published its report on 17 June 2014.  
The report made a number of recommendations for change in relation to practice in 
order to maximise the recovery of babies ashes. 

The objective of this audit was to ensure that new practices which have been 
implemented at Aberdeen Crematorium as a result of the aforementioned report and 
subsequent recommendations, are working as intended and have addressed the 
concerns which were raised in the report. 

28 of the 64 recommendations made in the report required direct action from 
Aberdeen Crematorium.  Of these 21 have been actioned and changes to practice 
have been duly implemented.  6 require legislation to be passed at National 
Government level before they can be finalised while the remaining action requires the 
finalisation and publication of the National Cremation Investigation Report. 

Changes to practice at the Crematorium have been driven not only by the 
recommendations in the report but also by visits to other Crematoriums within 
Scotland and the adoption of ‘best practice’ observed.  Since adoption of these 
revised practices, all babies ashes to date have been recovered at the Crematorium. 

Procedures at the Crematorium are updated following any amendment to practice 
directed by National Bodies, meetings attended by Management with other 
Crematorium where improved techniques are discussed or following any recognised 
training which staff have attended.  Staff are encouraged at all levels not to deviate 
from the procedures but are also encouraged to challenge any practices in the 
Procedures which they feel are incorrect. 

It is important that at all stages, instructions from the applicant are followed and that 
these are appropriately recorded.  To this end a selection of cremations were 
‘followed’ from application to cremation.  Minor recommendations were made in 
regards to the recording of information within the current process.  These have been 
accepted and adopted in amended procedures at the Crematorium.  Additionally the 
Performance and Development Manager selects a random sample of cremations and 
follows these through from application to cremation every 6 months with the results 
being recorded on a database.  To date, no issues have been found. 

During a visit to the Crematorium, Internal Audit observed practices that were clear 
and logical.  Management within the Service have overseen, accepted and 
implemented a number of changes to core practice and methodology at the 
establishment and appear to be positive and accepting of the need for adaption and 
change where required.  While no guarantees can be given that an incident will not 
occur again in the future, the Service has taken significant steps in addressing the 
concerns which were raised and current practice should, as far as possible, minimise 
the likelihood of any recurrence of previous incidents. 

 

Page 234



 2 Report No. AC1613 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Following concerns raised over the recovery of baby ashes from crematoriums across 
Scotland, the Scottish Government established an Infant Cremation Commission chaired 
by Lord Bonomy, which published its report on 17 June 2014.  The report examined 
procedures at crematoriums and sought to establish good practice for future 
implementation to ensure that baby ashes could be recovered.  It also recommended 
changes and new bodies at a national level, to be covered by future legislation.   

1.2 The objective of this audit was to ensure that new procedures which have been put in 
place at the Crematorium are working as intended and that they have addressed the 
national concerns which were raised in 2014/15.  This involved establishing whether 
actions in response to relevant recommendations from the Infant Cremation Commission 
report have been implemented, changes to procedures have been effective, and 
appropriate records are being maintained. 

1.3 The factual accuracy of this report and action to be taken with regard to the 
recommendations made have been agreed with Mark Reilly, Head of Public Infrastructure 
and Environment, and Graham Keith, Performance & Development Manager.   

Page 235



 3 Report No. AC1613 

2. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Infant Cremation Commission Report 

2.1.1 The report from Lord Bonomy was published on 17 June 2014, and made 64 
recommendations.  Of these, 28 were relevant for individual crematoriums, with the 
remainder intended for action by the Scottish Government, NHS Scotland and 
professional organisations which support the cremation process.   

2.1.2 A number of the recommendations related to ensuring that the physical procedures 
regarding the cremation of babies be aligned with best practice which was demonstrated 
at other crematoriums demonstrating higher rates of ashes recovery.  This has been 
reflected in the Service’s procedures.   

2.1.3 Due to the different techniques which were to be employed it was recommended that risk 
assessments should be carried out and that health and safety guidelines would have to 
be updated to reflect these new techniques.  Internal Audit was able to verify that the new 
procedural guidelines in place at the crematorium contain reference to safe handling of 
equipment in light of the new techniques, that risk assessments for staff have been carried 
out, and all staff currently involved in cremations have signed documentation to confirm 
they have read and understood the procedures and guidelines.   

2.1.4 The report recommended that a new policy statement be produced which should include 
a commitment to the sensitive treatment of baby ashes and that this should be published 
and made available to the general public.  It was also recommended that this policy be 
passed to Funeral Directors and healthcare staff to be included in guidance which can be 
given to families.  The Service confirmed that the policy which has been produced and 
approved at Committee in March 2015 has been passed to both Funeral Directors and the 
NHS for distribution and inclusion in materials which can be given to families.  Additionally 
the policy has been published on Aberdeen City Council’s website which contains links to 
specific procedures relating to the cremation of babies.  This has been included to allay 
fears of malpractice in the cremation of babies and to provide clarity over the process. 

2.1.5 Recommendations as to the treatment of ashes were also made, specifically that ashes 
must not be scattered unless at least 14 days written notice has been given by the 
applicant of the deceased.  Application forms have been amended to include a section 
which specifically makes mention of the fact that ashes will be scattered in the Garden of 
Remembrance where ashes have not been collected or no written instruction has been 
received within 8 weeks of the cremation.  It was also recommended that forms make 
clear that there is a chance that no ashes will be recovered.  The amended forms in use 
make this clear. 

2.1.6 All documentation relating to cremations must now be retained for a minimum period of 
50 years.  There are currently 17 years of documents retained and the Service confirmed 
that they would comply with the requirement to retain all documentation for the required 
50 years.  The Records Management Officer is currently investigating options for more 
efficient long term retention of these records: scanning of the documentation is being 
investigated as this would provide a more space effective solution.  Currently paper 
records are held at the crematorium.   

2.1.7 A further recommendation required that Local Authorities facilitate, where requested, 
discussions between themselves and families of the deceased to discuss potential 
memorials.  The Service confirmed that discussions had been held with the Stillbirth and 
Neonatal Death Society (SANDS) and one parent who had asked for discussions to 
commence.  Consideration is being given to construction of a memorial although this has 
been delayed until after the publication of the National Cremation Investigation Report, 

Page 236



 4 Report No. AC1613 

which commenced in June 2014 led by The Right Honourable Dame Elish Angiolini DBE 
QC.  This National Investigation intends to investigate all cremation cases lodged with 
them and provide parents with an individualised response.  Evidence is being analysed 
and witnesses interviewed throughout 2015. 

2.1.8 Of the 28 applicable recommendations from Lord Bonomy’s report, it was reported to 
Committee on 18 March 2015 that 14 had been completed, 5 were in progress and 9 
required legislation before they could be implemented.   

2.1.9 Of the 5 in progress, 4 have since been completed whilst the remaining one is awaiting 
the publication of the National Cremation Investigation Report in order to allow all parents 
affected by the cremations of babies at Aberdeen Crematorium to discuss a potential 
memorial.   

2.1.10 Of the 9 which were awaiting legislation, 3 have been implemented, and 3 have been 
progressed as far as possible and await the implementation of legislation before the 
process can be finalised.  The remaining 3 require legislation: specifically the passing of 
the Burial and Cremation Bill (Scotland) which was recently introduced to the Scottish 
Parliament and will require to be discussed and amended prior to being implemented.   

2.2 Records 

2.2.1 It is important that instructions from cremation applications are carried through to the 
instructed action.  A sample of 6 cremations were examined to determine if the records 
which were present were full and complete and able to be traced from application to 
records of collection or scattering of ashes.   

2.2.2 In all cases forms were fully completed and the instructions on the application forms were 
mirrored in the schedules for the day at the crematorium.  As per the recommendations 
contained within Lord Bonomy’s report a senior member of staff within the Crematorium 
ensures that all details are correct prior to proceeding with the cremation.  A ‘yellow 
identification card’ has been produced which is required to be signed by a senior 
crematorium staff member to say that everything is in order and the cremation can 
proceed.  In all instances this card had been signed. 

2.2.3 The card additionally contains boxes for signatures to confirm that the ashes have either 
been collected or scattered in accordance with the applicant’s wishes.  Again in all cases 
the cards had been fully completed. 

2.2.4 Requests for cremation times are usually received from Funeral Directors and confirmed 
following a check of available times and from this the initial Daily Schedule is compiled at 
the crematorium.  The actual application forms for cremation and any supporting 
documentation is received at the Bereavement Services Office.  For the 6 examples 
selected all applications and supporting documents were present.  Once all of the 
information which has been received has been verified as correct an Operator Sheet is 
produced based on the information from the application forms and the Daily Schedule.  
Following this a confirmation sheet is produced which confirms that a further check has 
been performed between the applications, Operator Sheet and Daily Schedule and that 
all information is correct. 

2.2.5 Confirmation sheets had been completed for the 3 days which were chosen in which the 
6 cases were present.  The BACAS system which the Service uses generates a unique 
reference number for each cremation and this is entered on to the ‘yellow card’ and also 
on the Operator Sheet, and should additionally be added on to the Daily Schedule sheet.  
The Operator and Daily Schedule sheets are kept together at the Crematorium and the 

Page 237



 5 Report No. AC1613 

Daily Schedule sheet is used as a working paper to record actions taken in conjunction 
with the ‘yellow card’. 

2.2.6 It was noted that on 2 occasions the unique BACAS generated number had not been 
transferred to the Daily Schedule while on a further occasion the Daily Schedule had not 
been annotated to confirm that ashes had been scattered, although the ‘yellow card’ had 
been updated with this information.  It would provide greater assurance if all records were 
fully completed, as in the event of the ‘yellow card’ being mislaid and the ashes having 
been already disposed of, full assurance could not be gained as to what had happened to 
the ashes. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that BACAS unique reference numbers are present for all 
records on Daily Schedule Sheets. 
 
The Service should ensure Daily Schedule Sheets are always updated to confirm that 
the instructions for ashes have been complied with.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The above recommendations have been implemented and the procedures 
added to the Crematorium’s Operational Procedure Guidelines.   
 
Implementation Date 
Implemented 

Responsible Officer 
Angus Beacom, 
Crematorium Manager 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.3 Procedures 

2.3.1 Following on from the recommendations in Lord Bonomy’s report officers from Aberdeen 
City Council visited Seafield Crematorium in November 2013 to observe techniques, 
specifically the cremation and recovery of baby ashes.  These techniques were 
implemented promptly thereafter at Aberdeen Crematorium.  Officers then visited 
crematoriums in Inverness, Craigton and South Lanarkshire in May 2014 to further 
observe and share practice.  It was subsequently reported to the Communities, Housing 
and Infrastructure Committee in March 2015 that since the new procedures were 
implemented, to date all ashes from baby cremations have been recovered.   

2.3.2 Detailed procedures have been drafted and are held at the crematorium which detail all 
aspects of the cremation process.  This document is described by the Service as a living 
document in that it will be updated following any amendments to procedures or change in 
practice.  Following changes, all staff sign to state they have read and will comply with the 
specific instructions which are given in the guidance. 

2.3.3 In addition to the instructions at the crematorium, draft instructions for the completion and 
checking of forms have recently been drawn up for staff at the Bereavement Services 
Office.  These are still subject to consultation before they are finalised and issued to all 
staff.   

2.3.4 The Service has been proactive in ensuring that procedures and techniques are of a high 
standard.  An audit of practices at the crematorium was commissioned in July 2015 from 
the Federation of Burial & Cremation Authorities (FBCA), a professional organisation of 
which the majority of crematoriums in the United Kingdom are members.  The purpose of 
the audit was to provide technical guidance and to audit procedures and techniques 
currently in place and being practiced.  The FBCA visited the crematorium in September 
2015, and provided a report on 12 October 2015.   

Page 238



 6 Report No. AC1613 

2.3.5 The report noted that staffing levels at the crematorium were sufficient and that staff were 
appropriately certified to operate the equipment.  The equipment onsite was additionally 
noted as being of a high specification.  It was observed that equipment was being used in 
an effective and efficient manner with the operators demonstrating a comprehensive 
understanding.  Advice was offered and concluded in recommendations at the end of the 
report with regards to minor alterations when cremating infants in order to maximise 
recovery of ashes. 

2.3.6 The Service has confirmed that these recommendations have been incorporated in to 
revised Procedural Guidelines as of October 2015 and that practices have also been 
amended. 

2.3.7 In addition to the assurance which can be taken from the FBCA audit, during a visit to the 
Crematorium, Internal Audit were given a walkthrough of the processes from the removal 
of the coffin in the Service area to the storage of ashes and it was noted that the process 
was clear, logical and in keeping with the procedures described in the guidelines. 

2.3.8 It is important that all documentation is present, with application forms fully completed and 
instructions as to the treatment of ashes complete, prior to cremation.  One of the 
recommendations from Lord Bonomy’s report related to ensuring that a senior member of 
staff at the crematorium could satisfy themselves that all information was present and 
correct before commencement of the cremation.  Prior to any cremation either the 
Manager or a senior member of the crematorium staff confirms that all paperwork is 
present and they sign the ‘yellow card’ which has a unique identification number on it, to 
confirm that they are satisfied the cremation can commence. 

2.3.9 It was observed that this ‘yellow identification card’ is used to identify either boxes of pre 
24 week foetuses, baby coffins or adult coffins and is present with the coffin or boxes and 
is placed in a card holder on the cremator during cremation.  On completion of the 
cremation the remains are transferred to a further machine (except the ashes of babies) 
for further reduction and the card is placed in a cardholder on that machine.  Finally the 
ashes are then placed in an urn to which is attached a pre-printed label containing the 
unique identifying number which is also present on the ‘yellow card’.  The urn and the 
‘yellow card’ are transferred to a storage room to await collection or scattering.  This 
ensures that the ashes can be identified at any time.  

2.3.10 Whilst the Service records all actions taken electronically (on the BACAS system), this is 
only completed at the point the ‘yellow card’ and any supporting documentation is returned 
to the Bereavement Services Office - following collection or scattering of the ashes.  In the 
interim there may be a risk of loss or damage to the card, which could mean loss of this 
information.  To mitigate against this loss, the Service might consider updating the 
electronic records at this point in the process, or storing the ‘yellow cards’ separately from 
the ashes.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should consider updating electronic records at this point in the process, and 
storing Urns and identification cards separately to mitigate against the risk of any 
physical loss. 
 
Service Response / Action 
The updating of the electronic Cremation Register records at the Crematorium 
following the final outcome of the ashes has been considered.  This would mean 
increasing the number of officers accessing and updating the Cremation Register and 
this may compromise the control and accuracy of the record keeping.  As this is an 
extremely important task, it has been decided that the updating of this register will 
remain under the control and responsibility of the Bereavement Services Registrar.  

Page 239



 7 Report No. AC1613 

 
To mitigate the physical loss/damage of the Yellow Instruction Card, the final outcome 
of the ashes will also be added to the Daily Schedule as per the previous 
recommendation at 2.2.6.  This procedure has been implemented and added to the 
Crematorium’s Operational Procedure Guidelines.   
 
Implementation Date 
Implemented. 

Responsible Officer 
Angus Beacom, 
Crematorium Manager 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.4 Future Assurances 

2.4.1 It is important from a reputational perspective and also from the perspective of having due 
respect for the general public in what will be a difficult time for them, to ensure that future 
practices at the Crematorium are of a consistently high standard. 

2.4.2 The Federation of Burial and Cremation Authorities (FBCA) and the Institute of Cemetery 
and Crematorium Management (ICCM) have both been tasked with overseeing 
cremations of babies and non-viable foetus’s and are to provide Crematoriums with 
advice.  Both the Crematorium Manager and the Performance and Development Manager 
attend meetings of both groups on a regular basis where issues are discussed and best 
practice is shared which is gleaned from all crematoriums across Scotland.  This 
information is then shared with staff at the crematorium and written in to the procedural 
documentation. 

2.4.3 The Procedural Document is additionally described as a live document and staff are 
encouraged to challenge anything in the document where they feel it may be inaccurate, 
although they are not encouraged to deviate from the procedures in the document.  Staff 
along with their mentors are to attend training on a regular basis which will be facilitated 
by the FBCA and they are encouraged to share procedures and any new techniques with 
Management and other staff and for this to be incorporated in to the procedural 
documentation. 

2.4.4 Additionally the Performance and Development Manager selects a random sample of 10 
to 15 cremations every 6 months and follows the procedure through from application to 
cremation to ensure that actions taken were correct and that ashes have either been 
collected or scattered in accordance with the applicants wishes.  The Performance and 
Development Manager confirmed that were any issues to be discovered during this testing 
then additional random samples would be checked and procedures amended if 
necessary.  Records of audit checks on random samples are maintained on a database.  

2.4.5 The Service has to date implemented all procedures which it is capable of doing without 
additional legislation.  Practices have been amended at the Crematorium which have led 
to the recovery of all ashes from baby cremations.  Staff are undergoing continuous 
training and the Procedural Manual is being updated on a regular basis with the most 
current techniques.  Additionally the Service has requested and received an independent 
audit from the FBCA to gain additional assurances over techniques being practiced at the 
Crematorium. 

2.4.6 While it is not possible to gain 100% assurance that the current culture within the 
Crematorium will prevent any incidents in the future, the Service has taken relevant and 
timely actions to address the concerns raised by Lord Bonomy’s report.  The practices 
witnessed during Internal Audit’s visit to the Crematorium suggested a culture which is 
reactive and accepting of change where required. 

 

AUDITORS: D Hughes, C Harvey and D Henderson 

Page 240



 8 Report No. AC1613 

Appendix 1 – Grading of Recommendations 
 
 
GRADE 
 

 
DEFINITION 

 
Major at a Corporate Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss, or loss of reputation, to the Council. 
 

 
Major at a Service Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss to the Service/area audited. 
 
Financial Regulations have been consistently breached. 
 

 
Significant within audited area 

 
Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls. 
  
An element of control is missing or only partial in nature.   
 
The existence of the weakness identified has an impact on 
a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.   
 
Financial Regulations have been breached. 
 

 
Important within audited area 

 
Although the element of internal control is satisfactory, a 
control weakness was identified, the existence of the 
weakness, taken independently or with other findings does 
not impair the overall system of internal control.    
 

 
 

Page 241



Page 242

This page is intentionally left blank



Date of Issue:  February 2016  Report No. AC1611 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Internal Audit Report 
 

Communities, Housing & Infrastructure 
 

Sheltered Housing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issued to: 
Pete Leonard, Director of Communities, Housing & Infrastructure 
Richard Ellis, Director of Corporate Governance 
Donald Urquhart, Head of Communities & Housing 
Steve Whyte, Head of Finance 
Graham Souter, Housing Manager 
Anne MacDonald, Audit Scotland 

Agenda Item 5.6

Page 243



 1 Report No. AC1611 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In January 2013 a report on the Housing for Varying Needs Review was presented 
to the Housing & Environment Committee.  This gave details of proposed future 
usage for all Sheltered and Very Sheltered Housing complexes within the City based 
on projected future needs for various types of housing.  A brief summary of each 
complex was given, including the number of apartments contained within each 
complex, and a scoring matrix was used to identify priorities for change.   

The objective of this audit was to review the implementation of revised arrangements 
following the January 2013 report.  The Service has not progressed with 
implementation as originally set out, which means that many of the assumptions and 
plans are no longer appropriate and will have to be reviewed.  Financial and staffing 
implications have not yet been fully identified, and progress is difficult to measure due 
to the way in which costs have been recorded.   

The Service intends to bring forward a report to the Communities, Housing and 
Infrastructure Committee no later than May 2016 outlining lessons learned and 
recommendations for the way forward, and a clear implementation timetable.  The 
Service will work with Finance to ensure the programme has a clear budget which 
can be monitored at a detailed level to provide assurance over costs and progress 
with each housing complex.   

Page 244



 2 Report No. AC1611 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 In January 2013 a report on the Housing for Varying Needs Review was presented to the 
Housing & Environment Committee.  This gave details of proposed future usage for all 
Sheltered and Very Sheltered Housing complexes within the City based on projected 
future needs for various types of housing.  A brief summary of each complex was given, 
including the number of apartments contained within each complex, and a scoring matrix 
was used to identify priorities for change.   

1.2 The objective of this audit was to review the implementation of revised arrangements 
following the January 2013 report.  Internal Audit has consulted with the Housing Manager, 
Senior Housing Officer, and Finance Partner to obtain evidence and explanations in 
respect of progress with implementation of the project.  

1.3 The factual accuracy of this report and action to be taken with regard to the 
recommendations made have been agreed with Graham Souter, Housing Manager. 

Page 245



 3 Report No. AC1611 

2. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 Progress 

2.1.1 A report was presented to the Housing & Environment Committee on 15 January 2013 
entitled ‘Housing for Varying Needs Review’.  The purpose of this report was to inform 
Committee of assessments which had been performed on each Sheltered and Very 
Sheltered Housing complex and to suggest future use for each complex, in light of 
significant variances between current provision and demand, and forecasts of future 
demographic changes which were anticipated to impact on demand for various types of 
accommodation.  However, no final decision has yet been made regarding the usage of 
all of the properties listed. 

2.1.2 Committee approval was obtained to let properties within 10 Sheltered Housing 
developments as Amenity Housing.  Amenity Housing differs from Sheltered Housing only 
in respect of the requirements for provision of warden and emergency call services.   

2.1.3 A subsequent report was presented to Committee on 12 March 2013 which gave details 
of specific actions which the Service intended to undertake for the following 2 years: 

• Upgrade a maximum of 5 specified Sheltered Housing complexes to Very 
Sheltered Housing 

• Decommission a maximum of 2 specified Sheltered Housing complexes to 
mainstream housing.  

2.1.4 The main complex at Provost Hogg Court was to be converted from Sheltered Housing to 
Very Sheltered Housing with the cottages which are attached to the complex to remain as 
Sheltered Housing.  Differences between Sheltered Housing and Very Sheltered Housing 
include the need to have 24 hour onsite provision of a Warden and to provide a meal.  
Meals may be brought in, but the preference is for them to be prepared onsite in an area 
suitable for the preparation and storage of foodstuffs taking into account health and safety 
requirements. 

2.1.5 The Service confirmed that they have not been able to complete the conversion to Provost 
Hogg Court due to uncertainty surrounding ownership of an area of the building which was 
formerly used to provide day care services.  The Service has stated that the Property 
Service has been contacted in order to establish ownership of this area of the building, as 
work cannot start to convert the area to a food preparation area to enable meals to be 
provided onsite until this matter is resolved.  

 

Recommendation 
The Service, in conjunction with the Property Service, should ensure the conversion of 
Provost Hogg Court is completed timeously. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Issues regarding the legality of the HRA funding the upgrade to allow the main 
complex to become very sheltered have been resolved.  Plans agreed and contractors 
to start on site in January 2016 for completion by the end of this financial year. 
 
Implementation Date 
April 2016 

Responsible Officer 
New Projects Officer 
(Kenny Paterson) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.1.6 Over 19 months later, no decisions have been made regarding the remaining 4 buildings 
originally identified for conversion to Very Sheltered Housing between 2013 and 2015 
following completion of Provost Hogg Court, and therefore no work has commenced.  The 

Page 246



 4 Report No. AC1611 

Service has confirmed that progress in this respect has been limited to property surveys 
to identify whether or not the existing kitchen facilities are suitable for the storage and 
preparation of foodstuffs.   

2.1.7 The Report to Committee in March 2013 identified Smithfield Court as being the first 
Sheltered Housing property to be decommissioned and returned to mainstream housing.  
The Service has confirmed that this has been completed.   

2.1.8 A further 11 properties were listed as options for decommissioning to mainstream housing 
or to be converted to Amenity Housing following the completion of Smithfield Court, of 
which one was to be selected and progressed between 2013 and 2015.  The Service has 
stated that it does not wish to commence work on further properties until it has confirmed 
current demand for the different types of property.  This calls into question whether the 
data obtained in January 2013 is still relevant, meaning that further analysis and decisions 
may be necessary.   

2.1.9 There is a risk that further delays in progressing with the planned upgrades and 
decommissioning will result in further reduced confidence in the data obtained to support 
these plans.  This in turn is likely to result in additional delays. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should consider whether or not the proposals contained within the Report 
of January 2013 should be revised in light of current demands. 
 
The Service should ensure that any planned changes to proposals are reported to 
Committee. 
 
The Service should ensure that if no changes are required, an option from the March 
2013 report is selected and progressed for decommissioning timeously.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The initial phase has allowed for hard evidence to be gathered as to the costs 
and timescales for the upgrading to very sheltered or the part-decommissioning to 
amenity or full decommissioning to mainstream.  Whilst continuing with the initial 
recommendations is still an option it would be prudent to confirm whether or not the 
original assessments are still valid and whether or not the recommendations are still 
appropriate.  In addition, it would be beneficial to review the impact of continuing with a 
phased approach.  The intention is to bring forward a report to the Communities, 
Housing and Infrastructure Committee no later than May 2016 outlining lessons learned 
and recommendations for the way forward. 
 
Implementation Date 
May 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Housing Manager 
(Graham Souter) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.1.10 Plans for progressing upgrades and decommissioning were never formally scheduled, 
beyond ‘2013-2015’ as stated in the report.  Without a set timetable, there is increased 
risk of project slippage.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should develop a timetable to expedite the conversion of identified 
properties.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  A firm timetable would be beneficial and also provide residents with a degree 
of certainty.  This has not been possible to date with the phased transformation of the 

Page 247



 5 Report No. AC1611 

blocks in the initial implementation phase.  This will be covered in the report to the 
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Committee by May 2016. 
 
Implementation Date 
May 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Housing Manager 
(Graham Souter) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2 Staffing 

2.2.1 With the planned changes of use for properties there is likely to be an impact on staffing 
requirements.  Staffing is currently provided via a contract with Bon Accord Care which 
provides the requisite staff at each site.  Details of this contract including the number of 
staff and the number of years the contract runs for were sought from Finance on the advice 
of the Service but no response to this request has been received to date. 

2.2.2 The Service confirmed that there has been minimal movement of staff as only one building 
has been decommissioned from Sheltered Housing to mainstream housing.  As the review 
progresses and further changes to use of buildings commences there is likely to be a 
further impact on staffing.  The Service has suggested that staffing requirements are likely 
to largely balance out, as although there will be less requirement for staff where Sheltered 
Housing complexes are decommissioned, this will be balanced out by the requirement for 
additional staff for complexes which have been upgraded to Very Sheltered Housing.  
There will also be an additional requirement for staff through the increased use of telecare 
systems which will require Responder Wardens.   

2.2.3 The Service confirmed that there have been no net savings to the staffing budget and 
where staff have no longer been required at complexes they have been reallocated to 
other posts.  Although it is too early to be sure of the overall effect on staffing requirements 
due to the possible change of planned usage of buildings it is of concern that the Service 
does not have any detailed plans of the proposed or anticipated effect on staffing levels 
and costs.  Having such plans in place would enable the Service to more accurately 
determine the levels of staffing required and would be a driver in determining future 
contractual agreements.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that a detailed prediction of staffing levels is undertaken and 
any forecasts from this are used in future planning for budgeting, staffing levels and 
negotiations with Bon Accord Care. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Discussions are ongoing with Bon Accord Care regarding the impact on their 
services since initial implementation.  Bon Accord Care are a key partner in the review 
and the direction of travel and will provide critical information for the planned report to 
the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Committee by May.  
 
Implementation Date 
May 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Housing Manager 
(Graham Souter) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.3 Income and Expenditure 

2.3.1 It is important to monitor project costs to ensure that these remain within budget, and to 
provide a financial overview of progress with implementation.  Without specific monitoring 
of the project costs there is a risk that costs may be allowed to escalate unchallenged and 
that expenditure will not match actual progress, which may lead to deficits in the future.  

Page 248



 6 Report No. AC1611 

Underspends may also highlight a lack of progress with planned work, or resources 
committed to projects which do not currently require them.   

2.3.2 Information was sought from the Service and Finance in respect of budgets for the 
proposed work.  It was confirmed that the work is paid for from the capital budget for 
Housing.  There is however no specific monitoring of costs in respect of the upgrade and 
decommissioning projects.  Costs for this are collated along with expenditure incurred on 
improvements to properties to meet revised Sheltered and Amenity housing standards.  
The Accountant confirmed that project costs specifically related to the project are not 
easily identified from the ledger.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service, in conjunction with Finance, should ensure that detailed monitoring of 
project costs is regularly undertaken and reported. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  There would be no costs involved in the decommissioning to amenity standard. 
Costs associated with full decommissioning can be ascertained at the outset with the 
exception of void rent loss. Upgrading to very sheltered is managed through the capital 
improvements team and is monitored by the project officer.  The Project Lead, New 
Projects Officer and Finance Partner will review recording of expenditure to ensure costs 
are regularly monitored and reported. 
 
Implementation Date 
April 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Housing Manager 
(Graham Souter) 
New Projects Officer 
(Kenny Paterson); 
Finance Partner 
(Helen Sherrit) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.3.3 Where works are able to be undertaken in-house by departments then this should be the 
preferred option in order to reduce costs.  The Service confirmed that all works had been 
performed in-house with the exception of the provision and installation of the telecare 
system.  Confirmation of this was not however able to be obtained from Finance without 
a detailed examination of the ledger due to the way in which expenditure is recorded.  

 

Recommendation 
The Service, in conjunction with Finance, should consider how costs are recorded in 
order to aid identification of specific expenditure. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.   
 
Implementation Date 
April 2016 

Responsible Officer 
New Projects Officer 
(Kenny Paterson); 
Finance Partner 
(Helen Sherrit) 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.3.4 While complexes are decommissioned or have their usage changed they may be 
unoccupied, leading to a loss of rental income for that period.  The Service confirmed that 
an estimate of £10,000 per annum had been used, based on average rental lost over a 
four week period for conversions to Amenity Housing.  This same figure was used in the 
March 2013 report.  This had been arrived at by calculating the number of terminations 
the previous year at transitional blocks (complexes which are having apartments 

Page 249



 7 Report No. AC1611 

converted from one use to another), the average time taken to complete the conversion 
and the average weekly rent.  However, the Service noted in its report to the Communities 
Housing and Infrastructure Committee in March 2015 that the equivalent void rent loss 
from Smithfield Court was £151,398, which is substantially in excess of previously 
reported figures.  If this is replicated in future projects, due to further delays, there is a risk 
of substantial income loss through voids.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should identify a realistic cost for anticipated voids as a result of the 
conversion programme and ensure Committee is advised. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The projected void rent loss for Smithfield Court was based on a fairly unique 
situation.  The building had a significant level of voids at the time, approximately 1/3 of 
the complex was to transfer to the Clashieknowe facility resulting in only 18 residents 
requiring to be rehoused.  Future void rent loss projections would be based on the 
lessons learned from decanting a relatively small number of residents.  Void rent loss 
projections for full decommissioning in the same manner as for Smithfield Court does 
not appear affordable and this will be included in the proposed report to Committee in 
May. 
 
Implementation Date 
May 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Housing Manager 
(Graham Souter) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.3.5 It is important that the Service, while progressing with planned changes to the use of 
buildings, is seen to be addressing concerns which may be raised by tenants.  Throughout 
the proposed changes the Service has consulted with tenants in order to address 
concerns, although they have reported that no changes have specifically been made to 
the program as a result.   

2.3.6 There have been changes to the proposed use of buildings however: the Service has 
stated that the Communities, Housing & Infrastructure Committee determined that 
Sheltered Housing tenants should not be housed in the same complexes as mainstream 
housing tenants.  The Service has been asked to provide details of this decision being 
minuted, but has so far been unable to do so.  This reduces the ability of the Service to 
decommission parts of Sheltered Housing developments to mainstream housing in 
advance of full decommissioning.  As a result there are likely to be further delays, and 
potentially additional costs through lost rental income through properties being held void 
until all properties in a development have ceased to be occupied by Sheltered Housing 
clients.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should confirm with the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure 
Committee whether it is appropriate for parts of Sheltered Housing developments to be 
decommissioned to mainstream housing. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Committee debated the proposals and whilst satisfied that transition to amenity 
was a reasonable and realistic shift whereby the client group was unlikely to cause 
significant differences in lifestyles already evident in sheltered accommodation, this was 
unlikely to be the case where full decommissioning was being progressed.  Committee 
was anxious to protect existing residents from any nuisance, distress or alarm by 
allocating vacancies to a client group likely to be substantially different from current 
residents.  Committee members concerns and requirement for a sensitive allocation 

Page 250



 8 Report No. AC1611 

policy expressed in the debate is not reflected in the minuted decision.  Full clarity will 
be provided in the report to Committee in May. 
 
Implementation Date 
May 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Housing Manager 
(Graham Souter) 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.3.7 The Service has committed to compensatory payments and reimbursements for additional 
expenditure incurred in respect of tenants moving from the affected properties.  
Reimbursements include payments for removal costs, flooring, mail redirection, internet 
and phone connection charges, in addition to a set compensatory payment of £1,500.  A 
report to Housing & Environment Committee in August 2013 suggested that the maximum 
reimbursement should be in the region of £3,100 per tenant based on previous relocations. 

2.3.8 Following the decommissioning of Smithfield Court from Sheltered Housing to mainstream 
housing 18 of 19 tenants incurred average costs of £2,722 each, which is within the 
anticipated cost range.  The total maximum estimated charge for Smithfield Court was 
predicted to be £58,900 while actual total costs were £49,000.   

 
 
 

AUDITORS: D Hughes 
  C Harvey 
  D Henderson   

Page 251



 9 Report No. AC1611 

Appendix 1 – Grading of Recommendations 
 
 
GRADE 
 

 
DEFINITION 

 
Major at a Corporate Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss, or loss of reputation, to the Council. 
 

 
Major at a Service Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss to the Service/area audited. 
 
Financial Regulations have been consistently breached. 
 

 
Significant within audited area 

 
Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls. 
  
An element of control is missing or only partial in nature.   
 
The existence of the weakness identified has an impact on 
a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.   
 
Financial Regulations have been breached. 
 

 
Important within audited area 

 
Although the element of internal control is satisfactory, a 
control weakness was identified, the existence of the 
weakness, taken independently or with other findings does 
not impair the overall system of internal control.    
 

 
 

Page 252



Date of Issue:  January 2016  Report No. AC1608 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Report 
 

Public Infrastructure and Environment 
 

Trade Waste 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issued to: 
Pete Leonard, Director of Communities, Housing and Infrastructure 
Richard Ellis, Director of Corporate Governance 
Mark Reilly, Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment 
Peter Lawrence, Waste and Recycling Manager 
Steven Whyte, Head of Finance 
Anne MacDonald, Audit Scotland 

Agenda Item 5.7

Page 253



 1 Report No. AC1608 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, local authorities have a statutory 
obligation to collect waste if requested to do so.  Aberdeen City Council provides 
waste and recycling collection services for businesses in Aberdeen.  In addition the 
Council leases and sells bins, and compostable bin liners.  The Commercial Waste 
budget for expenditure in 2015/16 has been set at £811,228, with the corresponding 
budget for income set at £1,746,896 to realise a net surplus of £935,668.   

The objective of this audit was to consider whether adequate control is in place 
covering income and expenditure, that appropriate agreements and other paperwork 
is in place, and that accounting arrangements are robust.  Whilst there are controls 
in place, a number of recommendations for improvement have been made, and 
actions agreed with the Service.   

In contrast to Financial Regulations, which state that wherever possible money should 
be collected prior to service delivery, charges to trade waste customers are largely in 
arrears.  Approval from the Director and Head of Finance is required for such 
arrangements, which the Service will seek to obtain.   

The Service intends to replace a number of database and paper-based processes 
with a new Waste Management System.  It is anticipated that this will provide better 
management information to provide assurance over the accuracy of charges made 
on the basis of estimates, and facilitate reconciliation of services provided with 
income received to ensure full recovery can be demonstrated.   

Maximum and minimum charges for trade waste are approved by Full Council 
annually as part of the budget setting process, leaving the Service with the option to 
reduce charges where it considers it appropriate to attract business.  There is 
currently limited data or evidence in support of these adjustments.  The Service will 
review costs to verify that reductions remain affordable and appropriate, and ensure 
consistent evidence is retained of agreement to individual reductions. 

No costs are charged for collection of waste from Council premises, therefore there 
may be less incentive for them to reduce waste.  Finance has stated that the cost of 
internal trading outweighs the potential benefits.  The Service is keen to obtain more 
detailed financial data in order to better demonstrate Best Value, and will engage with 
Finance to identify how this can be obtained.     

A 25 year contract with SITA commenced in 2000, for management of the Council’s 
landfill sites, civic amenity sites and treatment facilities.  SITA negotiates contracts 
for the sale of recyclates and, under the present contract, remits approximately 10% 
of its income to the Council.  The contract is being renegotiated to develop facilities 
and services that will allow the Council to fulfil statutory obligations, implement policy 
and provide improved services to householders and businesses.   

The Waste Contracts Manager committed to further expenditure with SITA of 
£265,000 per annum, without seeking Committee approval in compliance with 
Standing Orders, or ensuring this was built in to the budget in advance.  The Service 
will ensure future contract changes are approved appropriately and that budget 
implications are considered timeously.   

There is currently no record maintained of expected against actual payments to SITA, 
although variances would be identified through the budget monitoring process.  The 
Service will introduce a mechanism to provide additional assurance over the accuracy 
of invoices before they are paid.   

Page 254



 2 Report No. AC1608 

There are currently no checks on the accuracy of charges to the Service for fuel.  The 
Service, in conjunction with Fleet, will implement a reconciliation between charges 
and receipts, and in the interim will remind drivers that premium fuel should not be 
used. 

There is currently no stock control system covering bins and parts held at Waste 
depots.  The Service will implement stock controls to provide assurance over these 
items. 

 

Page 255



 3 Report No. AC1608 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 Under the Environmental Protection Act 1990, local authorities have a statutory obligation 
to collect waste if requested to do so.  Aberdeen City Council provides waste and recycling 
collection services for businesses in Aberdeen.  The collections provided include glass; 
mixed recycling for paper, cardboard, plastic containers and metal tin cans; food waste 
recycling; general waste and special collections.  In addition to the collection services, the 
Council leases and sells bins, and sells compostable bin liners.  

1.2 Aberdeen City Council has a 25 year contract with SITA, which commenced in 2000, for 
accepting deliveries of waste from the Council, and for receiving and managing the waste 
deposited at civic amenity sites.  The contract also covers SITA’s management of the 
Council’s landfill sites, civic amenity sites and treatment facilities, and the maintenance 
and operation of the plant listed in the contract.  SITA also negotiates contracts for the 
sale of recyclates and, under the present contract, remits approximately 10% of its income 
to the Council. 

1.3 The Council is in the process of renegotiating the contract with SITA to develop facilities 
and services that will allow the Council to fulfil statutory obligations, implement policy and 
provide improved services to householders and businesses.  This may also lead to the 
Council receiving more of SITA’s income, whilst bearing more of the base costs.  SITA 
would be expected to pass on any cost savings to the Council. 

1.4 The Commercial Waste budget for expenditure in 2015/16 has been set at £811,228, with 
the corresponding budget for income set at £1,746,896 to realise a net surplus of 
£935,668.   

1.5 The objective of this audit was to consider whether adequate control is in place covering 
income and expenditure, that appropriate agreements and other paperwork is in place, 
and that accounting arrangements are robust.  The factual accuracy of this report and 
action to be taken with regard to the recommendations made have been agreed with Mark 
Reilly, Head of Public Infrastructure and Environment, and Peter Lawrence, Waste and 
Recycling Manager.   

Page 256



 4 Report No. AC1608 

2. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 Income 

2.1.1 Aberdeen City Council has several streams of income in relation to the collection of 
commercial waste.  In addition to providing waste and recycling collection services for 
businesses in Aberdeen, compostable bin liners are sold, and bins are leased and sold.  

2.1.2 The majority of the Service’s income comes from the uplift of wheeled bins and recyclates 
for which each trade customer has an agreement with the Council.  Some customers are 
billed monthly, and others are billed quarterly, whilst some may receive monthly invoices 
for one service, and quarterly invoices for another.  Monthly bills are charged in arrears, 
whilst quarterly bills are charges which are partly in advance and partly in arrears. 

2.1.3 The Council’s Financial Regulations are integral to its governance arrangements.  
Adhering to the Regulations ensures that all financial transactions of the Council are 
conducted in a manner which demonstrates openness, integrity and transparency.  

2.1.4 Paragraph 5.3.1 of Financial Regulations states that:  “Wherever possible monies owed 
should be collected prior to the supply of the goods and services…  Where a service or 
business need exists invoicing in arrears is permitted, however this should be clearly 
documented and approved by the Director, and the Head of Finance should be notified so 
that appropriate accounting treatment can be applied to that area of Service.”  

2.1.5 The arrangements for the collection of income in arrears are historical, and the Service 
cannot confirm whether or not they were approved by the Director and Head of Finance.  
This means that the Service is unable to provide assurance that they are operating in 
compliance with Financial Regulations.   

2.1.6 As charges are based on a pre-agreed level of service, invoices could be raised in 
advance.  Although credits are applied for missed collections, this could be administered 
more efficiently through a reduced frequency of billing.  This would need to be balanced 
with any impact on cashflow and customers.   

2.1.7 Where the Council is requested to uplift special collections from trade customers, most 
common items are listed on a charging schedule, and payment is taken when the request 
is received.  In the case of alternative items, a Supervisor will visit the customer to view 
the items to be uplifted, and to estimate the length of time to complete the job, and 
thereafter a quotation is provided.  The price is not adjusted to reflect the actual time taken.  
The accuracy of the charge made is, therefore, dependent on the load not being altered 

Recommendation 
The Service should review billing arrangements for trade waste customers.  If an 
element of billing in arrears is agreed, the necessary approval of the Director and Head 
of Finance should be obtained per Financial Regulations. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The Service has previously explored the option of utilising Direct Debits as a 
means of obtaining pre-payment and to ensure that the service can operate flexibly in 
a competitive environment, however it has not been possible to implement this to date.  
The Service will therefore seek approval to invoice in arrears. 
 
Implementation Date 
April 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

Page 257



 5 Report No. AC1608 

between the Supervisor’s visit and the uplift, and on the accuracy of the Supervisor’s 
estimate of the time required to complete the job.   

2.1.8 Although job cards are retained, they are not used to record actual hours, and there is 
currently no routine monitoring of cost against cost estimates for special uplifts to 
determine the accuracy of the estimation process, or to ensure costs are being recovered.   

2.1.9 Charges are raised by invoice in arrears, therefore it should be possible for the charge to 
more accurately reflect the actual work done, rather than the original estimate.  However, 
as discussed above charging in arrears is contrary to the principles set out in Financial 
Regulations.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service in conjunction with Finance should review the charging system for 
extraordinary uplifts.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The new Waste Management System can be configured to record actual 
activity much more simply and efficiently than the current paper-based approach. 
 
Implementation Date 
June 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.1.10 To ensure the proper stewardship of Council funds, all Services should have assurance 
that all income due to them for the goods and services provided is received, and that it is 
accounted for correctly.  There are weaknesses in control over income for commercial 
waste services.  Where requests are made for special collections of items listed on the 
schedule of charges, payment is taken electronically at the customer contact centre.  
Payment for all requests for bins and bio liners, and for the collection of any items not 
listed on the schedule of charges is administered within the Service.  The completed job 
cards are returned to administrative staff, and the details are logged in the Service’s 
database which holds all of the details required to raise the invoices.  An account slip is 
completed and passed to the officer responsible for raising invoices as notification that an 
invoice should be raised.  However, there is no reconciliation of job cards issued with 
invoices raised or with income posted to the Service’s ledger codes from the contact 
centre.  The Service is therefore not obtaining assurance that invoices have been raised 
or payments received for all chargeable services provided.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should implement reconciliations between records of work completed, work 
invoiced, and income received, to ensure that income has been received for the 
provision of all goods and services. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The new Waste Management System can be configured to manage this.   
 
Implementation Date 
September 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area  

2.1.11 The database contains details of all Commercial Waste collections, and information 
contained within the database forms the basis of all invoices.  The process for raising 
debtors’ invoices for routine collections of Commercial Waste is initiated by administrative 
staff whose assumption is that the information contained within the database is complete.  

Page 258



 6 Report No. AC1608 

Reliance is placed on the system to produce an accurate and complete request for 
invoices to be raised.  

2.1.12 No checks are performed to ensure that invoices are being requested either timeously or 
for the correct amounts, and there is no reconciliation of expected income with the income 
received.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should introduce checks to ensure the accuracy and completeness of all 
invoices raised. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The new Waste Management System can be configured to make this activity 
straightforward. 
 
Implementation Date 
September 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area  

2.1.13 Charges for trade waste are approved by Full Council annually as part of the budget 
setting process.  These are however detailed as maximum and minimum charge levels.  
The Trade Waste Co-ordinator, and the Trade Waste Officer therefore have some latitude 
to reduce charges to trade waste customers as a lever to try to retain or attract business.  
However, there has been no comparison of the cost of uplifts for trade waste against the 
level of charges set, therefore there is insufficient data to demonstrate that this makes 
sound commercial sense.  The Service has noted that historically there have been 
difficulties separating out costs for trade and residential waste, and that plans are being 
progressed to analyse these costs in more detail. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should review the cost of uplifts against charge rates, and determine 
whether or not it is appropriate for reduced charges to be offered to either attract or 
retain customers. 
 
The Service should develop a framework to provide a clear audit trail on decisions made 
to adjust individual charges.  
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.   
 
Implementation Date 
June 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.1.14 The Council’s Waste Service collects waste from other Council properties.  The cost of 
this service, other than services provided to the Housing Revenue Account, is absorbed 
entirely by the Waste Service, and not passed on to individual Services occupying these 
properties.  This could impact on incentives for internal customers to reduce the amount 
of waste they are producing, or for them to dispose of waste correctly.   

2.1.15 This also means that the total cost of each Service is likely to be under-reported.  The 
CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP) states that the total cost of Services 
should be recorded, and this includes all expenditure attributable to the service/activity, 
including employee costs, expenditure relating to premises and transport, supplies and 
services, third party payments, transfer payments, support services and depreciation.   

Page 259



 7 Report No. AC1608 

2.1.16 Finance has stated that the cost of internal trading outweighs the benefits, that estimated 
allocations are completed annually to comply with SERCOP, and no issues have been 
raised by External Auditors in this respect.   

2.1.17 The Service however is keen to collect and utilise more detailed financial information in 
order to demonstrate commercial viability, and drive efficiencies.  More comprehensive 
data could improve the ability of the Service to demonstrate Best Value and to develop 
fully informed business cases for change.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should identify its financial management information requirements, and in 
conjunction with Finance, develop a plan for its delivery.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.   
 
Implementation Date 
June 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.2 Expenditure 

2.2.1 During the audit, sixteen payments were tested.  With the following exceptions, the results 
of testing were considered satisfactory.  

2.2.2 Expenditure on fuel totalling £37,000 was charged to the Commercial Waste budget in 
2014/15.  Fuel cards are used throughout the Service.  Each vehicle has been allocated 
a fuel card, and the driver is expected to obtain a receipt, and to submit it to the 
administrative staff in Waste where the details are logged on a spreadsheet.   

2.2.3 Invoices for fuel are received and paid by Fleet without verification.  Recharges are carried 
out by journal entry to the ledger system, details of which are provided to the Service by 
the Accountant.  The accuracy of charges to Commercial Waste is however not checked 
against the spreadsheet maintained by administrative staff.  There is, therefore, a risk of 
incorrect payments being made and not identified.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should periodically reconcile fuel charges against fuel receipt records.  
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Data is now being obtained from Fleet to do so.   
 
Implementation Date 
Implemented 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2.4 Review of fuel invoices highlighted a number of regular instances of premium fuel and car-
wash facilities having been used.  Although these were not material sums in relation to 
the overall cost of fuel supplied, these demonstrate additional costs incurred which may 
have been avoidable.   

  

Page 260



 8 Report No. AC1608 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure drivers are aware that only standard fuel should be used for 
Council vehicles.  
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.   
 
Implementation Date 
January 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2.5 The Service has a Service Level Agreement with Fleet Services which states that Fleet 
must notify the Service of the cost of rechargeable repairs to vehicles before the work is 
carried out.  This arrangement is intended to afford the Service the opportunity to control 
its costs by identifying and addressing any obvious causes.  E.g. if there are certain drivers 
who are frequently damaging vehicles, they may offer training in a bid to redress the issue.   

2.2.6 However, notifications and subsequent recharges from Fleet are not always timely, which 
means the Service has difficulty managing the budget for vehicle repairs.  This recharge 
mechanism is at variance with the practice operated by the Waste Service, and advocated 
by Finance, for internal service provision as discussed at 2.1.13-15 above.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service, in conjunction with Finance should review the Fleet charging mechanism 
and budget allocation to services for non-contract repairs.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  This is currently being reviewed as part of the Fleet finance work stream.  A 
project team is in place to take this forward.   
 
Implementation Date 
June 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Head of Public 
Infrastructure and 
Environment 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.2.7 In order to manage the contract with SITA for waste disposal facilities, the Waste 
Contracts Manager has been granted unlimited authority to approve SITA invoices.  In 
November 2013 the Manager committed the Council to expenditure of £265,000 per 
annum in respect of a management fee for new facilities at The Grove Nursery Household 
Waste and Recycling Centre (HWRC) from 28 January 2014 until a variation to the SITA 
contract had been worked out and agreed.  He also committed the Council to payment 
towards staffing and security costs of £19,500, which exceeds the amount of £15,000 
originally requested by SITA.  

2.2.8 Commercial and Procurement Services has confirmed that the commitment to SITA with 
reference to the new HWRC should have been authorised by Committee – not by an 
individual officer. 

2.2.9 The Service has stated that the additional costs were included as a pressure in the budget 
which was approved by Full Council.  However, this was omitted from the budget in 
2014/15.  Costs, which the Service described in their growth bid as a contractual obligation 
rather than new services, have been included in the budget for 2015/16.   

  

Page 261



 9 Report No. AC1608 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure new contracts are approved at the correct level. 
 
The Service should ensure budget resources are available for all contracts before 
seeking approval for their commencement. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.   
 
Implementation Date 
Implemented 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Major at a Service Level 
 

2.2.10 The Waste Contracts Manager is responsible for authorising all payments to SITA.  
However, there is no mechanism for controlling these payments other than the Contracts 
Manager manually reviewing the list of invoices paid to ensure that no duplicate payments 
are made.  The authorisation process is further complicated through application of 
corrections, rebates and credits.  In the absence of the Waste Contracts Manager, it would 
be difficult for another officer to verify an invoice prior to authorisation of its payment.   

2.2.11 A record of expected payments under contract, against which invoices received could be 
checked, would provide more assurance over the accuracy of these payments.   

 

Recommendation 
A record of expected and actual payments to SITA should be maintained.   
 
The payments should be analysed regularly to ensure they are in line with expectations. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The Service does monitor expenditure on the Waste Management Service 
Contract closely through the Monthly budget management processes and outturn 
projection.  A further mechanism will be introduced as recommended. 
 
Implementation Date 
January 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

2.2.12 The Trade Waste Co-ordinator raised a concern that purchase orders raised by 
Supervisors in the purchasing system (PECOS) are sent to multiple individuals for 
authorisation.  As well as being inefficient, there is an inherent risk with this process that 
orders may be authorised by someone who does not have sufficient knowledge of or 
authority over the budget and purchase being approved. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ask ICT to review the settings within PECOS which are causing the 
purchase orders raised by Supervisors to be sent to multiple authorised signatories for 
approval. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.   
 
Implementation Date 
January 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

Page 262



 10 Report No. AC1608 

2.3 Stock 

2.3.1 Financial Regulations require adequate records to be kept in order to maintain control over 
stock.  There are stocks of bins and parts at the depot at Potterton, but there is no stock 
system or record of stock movements.  As a result it is not possible to confirm the existence 
or value of the stock at any particular point in time.  In the absence of such controls there 
is an increased risk of loss or theft of items not being identified and addressed.    

 

Recommendation 
The Service should implement a stock control system. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.   
 
Implementation Date 
April 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Waste and Recycling 
Manager 

Grading 
Significant within audited 
area 

  

AUDITORS: D Hughes 
  C Harvey 
  A Taylor   

Page 263



 11 Report No. AC1608 

Appendix 1 – Grading of Recommendations 
 
 
GRADE 
 

 
DEFINITION 

 
Major at a Corporate Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss, or loss of reputation, to the Council. 
 

 
Major at a Service Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss to the Service/area audited. 
 
Financial Regulations have been consistently breached. 
 

 
Significant within audited area 

 
Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls. 
  
An element of control is missing or only partial in nature.   
 
The existence of the weakness identified has an impact on 
a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.   
 
Financial Regulations have been breached. 
 

 
Important within audited area 

 
Although the element of internal control is satisfactory, a 
control weakness was identified, the existence of the 
weakness, taken independently or with other findings does 
not impair the overall system of internal control.    
 

 
 

Page 264



 

Date of Issue:  February 2016  Report No. AC1601 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit Report 
 

Recruitment & Selection 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Issued to: 
Richard Ellis, Director of Corporate Governance 
Gayle Gorman, Director of Education and Children’s Services 
Ewan Sutherland, Head of HR and Customer Service 
Euan Couperwhite, Head of Policy, Performance and Resources 
Steven Whyte, Head of Finance  
Mike Lawson, HR Manager 
Anne MacDonald, Audit Scotland 

Agenda Item 5.8

Page 265



 

 1 Report No. AC1601 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
In the period January to July 2015 the Council advertised 831 Council jobs through 
TalentLink.  This resulted in 6,855 applicants registering over 14,300 applications.   
 
In order to ensure that the risks of failing to comply with legislative requirements 
when recruiting new employees, it is important to that robust procedures are in 
place and that these are complied with.  The objective of this audit was to consider 
whether all Services are complying with procedures relating to recruitment and 
document retention, and that recruitment is being undertaken in the most efficient 
manner. 

In order to do this, Internal Audit reviewed the Council’s procedures and tested a 
total of 47 recruitment exercises.  In addition, 10 secondments, 10 teacher incentive 
payments, and 10 higher duty payments were reviewed.  This identified a number of 
variations from established procedures and recommendations have been made, as 
detailed in the body of this report, to either improve compliance or review the 
procedures in place.  Management’s responses to these recommendations have 
generally been positive with action planned to take effect up to the end of March 
2016 to address the issues raised.  Where recommendations have not been 
agreed, management’s responses are considered by Internal Audit to be 
proportionate.  

One area of particular concern relates to Education allowing staff to commence in 
post before completion of all pre-employment checks.  Although a risk assessment 
is undertaken, this does not comply with corporate policy and could, in certain 
circumstances, result in additional costs to the Council and issues with its insurance 
premiums / excesses.  It has been recommended that the Service be required to 
comply with policy on these matters.  However, the Service accepts the risk, as 
identified in the report, of continuing current practice, stating that this helps address 
the issues of curriculum delivery resulting from the unacceptably high number of 
teacher vacancies in Aberdeen.  

Page 266



 

 2 Report No. AC1601 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 To assist Services in complying with the Council’s Recruitment and Selection 
procedures, the recruitment process is managed using the COSLA hosted national 
recruitment portal and vacancy management system TalentLink.  When a post is created 
on TalentLink, a unique portal ID is generated by the system.  Details pertaining to the 
job and the applicants, short leets, interview times, and email correspondence are held 
within the system.   

1.2 From January to July 2015 there were 831 Council jobs advertised through TalentLink.  
This resulted in 6,855 applicants registering over 14,300 applications.  A more detailed 
breakdown can be viewed in Appendix 2. 

1.3 The objective of this audit was to consider whether all Services are complying with 
procedures relating to recruitment and document retention, and that recruitment is being 
undertaken in the most efficient manner. 

1.4 The factual accuracy of this report and action to be taken with regard to the 
recommendations made have been agreed with Mike Lawson, Human Resources 
Manager, and Euan Couperwhite, Head of Policy, Performance and Resources in 
Education and Children’s Services. 

Page 267



 

 3 Report No. AC1601 

�� ��������	
��	��������
�����	

2.1 Written Procedures 

2.1.1 There is a current Service Agreement Recruiting and Resourcing which details the roles 
and responsibilities of Services and the Recruitment Team in the recruitment process.  

2.1.2 The agreement is supported by guidance notes related to the recruitment and selection 
process.  The main document is Managing Recruitment and Selection which provides 
the step by step guidance from identifying a vacancy through to filling the post. 

2.1.3 The Managing Recruitment and Selection document is dated June 2010 and states 
“These guidelines need to be continually reviewed and updated to take account of legal 
requirements and developments in what is widely regarded as being best recruitment 
and selection practice.”  The document also references a number of statutory acts and 
regulations that govern the process, which are no longer current.  This would indicate 
that the document has not been updated since 2010.  Procedures should be reviewed 
regularly to ensure accuracy and compliance with statutory obligations.  

 

Recommendation 
The Service should review and, where applicable, update information in the Managing 
Recruitment and Selection document, and should consider how often and by whom 
this document is reviewed in the future. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The review is underway with the aim of ensuring that recruitment and 
selection guidance is tailored to customer needs and can more easily be updated and 
developed when necessary. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Keith Tennant) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.1.4 It was noted that a number of the Service’s guidance documents are not dated, do not 
have any form of version control, and do not contain details of the author.  There is also 
a lack of consistency in the description of the documents, with some being referred to as 
a protocol, procedure or guidance, whilst others have no designation.  To allow staff to 
be confident that documents are current, and to be able to contact someone with any 
queries, the documents should be annotated to provide this information.  In order to 
ensure clarity, a consistent approach should be adopted in the naming of documents. 

 

Recommendation 
Documents being published for use should be dated with an author’s name or post, 
and the next proposed review date. 
 
The Service should ensure consistency when classifying documents as policies, 
procedures, protocols.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  For version control, HR already now states a review date and version number 
on policies and procedures and although the document to which this recommendation 
refers is guidance rather than policy it is nonetheless good practice to apply the same 
standard to management guidance notes for the reasons stated above.  The updated 
version of, and any future updates to, our recruitment and selection guidance will 
follow this standard.  This will extend to including the author’s name and post as 

Page 268



 

 4 Report No. AC1601 

recommended.  
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Keith Tennant) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.1.5 Accessible, comprehensive and up to date written procedures can reduce the risk of 
errors and inconsistency.  They are beneficial for the training of current and new 
employees and provide management with assurance of correct and consistent practices 
being followed, especially in the event of an experienced employee being absent or 
leaving.   

2.1.6 At present, there is no procedure manual for recruitment team staff, although they do 
receive on the job training from others within the team.  This has resulted in variations in 
working practices, as found in the file naming conventions and paperwork completion 
such as the recruitment checklist.  Whilst there is no suggestion that this has impacted 
on the provision of the recruitment provision, it could lead to inefficient practices or 
mistakes being made. 

 

Recommendation 
A staff procedure manual should be created and issued to staff.  
 
An agreed document, filing and naming convention should be agreed and followed. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  A new Development Team has been created within the HR Service Centre.   
Part of their remit will be to develop guides/flowcharts for each of the transactional 
teams to support staff development and improve customer service. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.1.7 Due to restrictions on storage space, personal files and supporting documentation are 
generally held electronically in PDF format as one electronic document with no indexing 
of individual documents.  The recruitment paperwork is also scanned and filed in folders 
held on the HR part of corporate servers.  The lack of a mandatory or fixed structure has 
meant that files, folders and documents vary within the recruitment team.  Documents 
can be duplicated and in some cases the folder structure or naming convention makes it 
difficult to determine if all the documents are present without opening each of them to 
check.  Whilst it is recognised that a new system would have financial implications, the 
Council does have document management system capability, and it may be that this 
could be adopted at a lower cost.  However, should the current procedure be retained, it 
is important that it is formalised and applied consistently.  

 

Recommendation 
The Service should formalise and ensure consistency in the current system, and 
consider whether a document management system would provide benefits. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Initial discussions took place with ICT several months ago around storage of 
records and we will ask for an update on any recommendations in this respect.  In the 
meantime, will look to create a protocol which allows (as far as possible) consistency 
in the current system.  This may not always be achieved given the variety of different 
sources of information and systems/versions sent from (e.g. preferred candidates and 
managers). 

Page 269



 

 5 Report No. AC1601 

 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader/ICT 
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.2 New Posts 

2.2.1 When wishing to change their staffing complement, Services should comply with 
“Approval Process – Changes to Establishment” (October 2014) procedure.  A written 
business case must be prepared and then agreed with both Finance and HR before a 
vacancy can be advertised.  This process should also be followed where a temporary 
position is to be made permanent or where the total FTE is to be increased.  Between 
January and July 2015, two teaching and seventeen local government additional posts 
were created and advertised. 

2.2.2 A review of the process followed for the teaching posts and seven of the local 
government (LG) posts found that business cases were present for the LG posts but not 
for the teaching posts.  Both HR and Education advised that staffing in schools is part of 
the DSM scheme which allows schools the flexibility to determine the teaching and 
management posts appropriate to their establishment.  This arrangement for educational 
establishments is, however, not reflected in the approval process. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that the Approved Process – Changes to Establishment 
accurately reflects the approval process for all Services. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The above procedure will be updated accordingly to reflect actual practice. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Karen Templeton) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.2.3 The business cases that support the creation of a new post are held by the Service’s HR 
Business Partners, rather than centrally in a single location.  To allow for greater visibility 
of the business cases to all HR staff involved in the recruitment process these should be 
filed in one area. 

 

Recommendation 
The business cases should be filed electronically within the Recruitment electronic 
filing system. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  However, not all business cases result in a recruitment process being carried 
out e.g. changes to establishments or job titles which affect existing staff or structure.  
All business cases have involvement from Business Partner Team’s and they should 
forward those which have staffing implications to the HR Service Centre.  Where these 
impact on appointments, a copy should be saved to the personal file of the appointed 
person/s. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
Business Partners / HR 
Team Leader  
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

 

Page 270



 

 6 Report No. AC1601 

2.3 Compliance With Procedures 

2.3.1 In the period January to July 2015, 294 local government (LG) and 73 teaching staff 
were appointed by the Council.  Compliance with Managing Recruitment and Selection 
guidance was considered for a sample of 30 LG and 17 teaching new starts.  Whilst, in 
general, the recruitment and selection process is working well there are some areas that 
could, even if only happening occasionally, lead to legislative repercussions or 
reputational risk.  The following paragraphs provide detail of these and 
recommendations to address them. 

2.3.2 The post criteria are reflected in a job profile, which replaced previously used job 
descriptions and person specifications.  This document mirrors the Council’s 
organisational behaviours and includes measurable minimum requirements for the job.  
For teaching posts, Education are still using the old format of job description and person 
specification.  Within the person specification there are 19 essential criteria, of which 
only 2 are clear and easily measured.  If the new job profile is a corporate format then 
this should include teaching staff to ensure consistency throughout the organisation.  
The minimum requirements should also be easily measurable to ensure that it can be 
fully demonstrated within the application or interview process.  

 

Recommendation 
Education should use the corporate job profile template for teaching posts. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Recruiting managers must ensure that they use the correct recruitment 
documentation and up-to-date formats. HR Business Partner for Education & 
Children’s Services will reinforce this requirement to the E&CS senior management 
team. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Business Partner  
for E&CS (Kirsten Foley) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.3.3 TalentLink is used to manage and record each step of the recruitment process, and 
allows for the automatic notification of successful and unsuccessful candidates.  If a 
candidate is unsuccessful at any stage of the recruitment process, a reason for rejection 
can be recorded on TalentLink.  A selection of rejected candidates within the sample of 
vacancies reviewed, did not have a reason reflected on the system.  Whilst not 
mandatory within the system, to ensure consistency of information given to candidates 
when requesting further information, and to minimise the risk of challenge, reasons 
should be recorded.     

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that reasons for rejection are recorded on TalentLink. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Recruiting Manager should update on system and this requirement will be 
reinforced to recruiting managers.  While the HR Service Centre receives very few 
queries from candidates, any such request for feedback is passed to the Recruiting 
Manager to deal with which they are able to do by referring to their candidate 
assessment records. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

Page 271



 

 7 Report No. AC1601 

2.3.4 Within the sample reviewed was an agency member of staff working within the Council 
who was appointed to a permanent position.  The recruitment process was not followed 
and no proof of identity, right to work in the UK or qualifications obtained, nor were any 
references sought.  As the recognised employer it is incumbent on the Council to ensure 
that it has all the necessary information and confirmations prior to appointing someone 
to post.  This may also be reflected in the appointment of other agency staff.     

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that this employee provides the relevant information for 
retention on the personal file. 
 
The Service should review the appointment of other agency staff and confirm that the 
required documentation is held or arrange for it to be obtained. 
 
The Service should ensure that appointing Services are aware that all appointments to 
vacant positions follow the agreed process. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The case mentioned above refers to an appointment made in Communities 
Housing & Infrastructure who have an approved business case which allows for the 
conversion of agency workers to staff for certain categories of work.  In all cases whilst 
we may not advertise as a vacancy, we would expect to have all of the post offer 
documentation in place.  This requirement will be reinforced to relevant recruiting 
managers. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
Business Partners / HR 
Team Leader  
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.3.5 The job profile of one of the posts reviewed required that applicants hold a minimum of a 
degree qualification.  The candidate appointed to the post did not meet this criteria, and 
should have been rejected prior to the interview stage.  The Service, when contacted, 
stated they had not focused on this element when recruiting.  As part of the recruitment 
process the Service is required to review and where necessary amend the job profile 
prior to advert, therefore the requirement for a degree should have been removed prior 
to advertising thereby ensuring a more equitable recruiting process.  Minimum 
requirements should always be considered as part of the applicant assessment process, 
and Services should seek advice from HR when wishing to appoint someone who 
doesn’t meet the criteria.    

2.3.6 A job evaluation is undertaken prior to the creation of a post to determine the salary 
scale appropriate to the qualifications and tasks required of the role.  In this case, HR 
has confirmed that removal of the degree qualification did not impact on the salary grade 
of the post. 

 

Recommendation 
Services should be reminded to review and amend, where appropriate, job profiles 
prior to advertising a vacant post.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  This is a standard question on the Recruiting Advertising Form (RAF) which 
seeks confirmation from the Recruiting Manager that the job profile has not changed 
since last advertised.  This should be easier to manage/control when the RAF is on 
YourHR (the Council’s online HR portal) so managers have to complete each step of 
the process before a job can be submitted for advertising.  HR will also include this 

Page 272



 

 8 Report No. AC1601 

requirement when refreshing the online recruitment and selection course as it relates 
to the steps before advertising and when uploading recruitment flowcharts on the 
intranet.  In the meantime, the requirement to review the job profile and job 
requirements prior to advertising will be reinforced to Recruiting Managers. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Business Partners / HR 
Team Leaders / YourHR 
(Tracy Runcie / Dorothy 
Morrison) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

 

Recommendation 
Services should be reminded that only applicants that meet the minimum criteria 
should be interviewed, and if minimum criteria are to be bypassed advice and approval 
should be sought from HR. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The importance of this will be reinforced to Recruiting Managers.  HR will 
also include this requirement when refreshing the online recruitment and selection 
course as it relates to shortlisting. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 

Responsible Officer 
Business Partners / HR 
Team Leader 
(Tracy Runcie / Dorothy 
Morrison) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.3.7 The UK government requires that employers obtain and retain a copy of documents that 
prove an employee’s identity and eligibility to work in the UK.  Failure to comply can 
result in civil penalties.  The Council’s procedures set out the documents that will satisfy 
the minimum requirements to satisfy both these requirements.   

2.3.8 Of the new appointments reviewed, proof of right to work in the UK had been obtained 
when required, however sufficient proof of identity was not obtained in two instances.  
Whilst it is the interviewers’ responsibility to obtain and copy the documents, the lack of 
adequate documents should have been identified by HR when completing the 
recruitment check list.  

 

Recommendation 
Services should be reminded to refer to the acceptable document list for proving a 
candidates identify. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The HR Service Centre will update documentation to make this clear to 
Recruiting Managers. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that staff completing the recruitment checklist understand 
what is required of them. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The HR Service Centre will update documentation to make this clear to 

Page 273



 

 9 Report No. AC1601 

Recruiting Managers.  In addition, once the appointments process has been added to 
YourHR, there will be required fields to complete which will prevent parts being missed 
out inadvertently. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader / 
YourHR (Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.3.9 With the exception of the instances in para 2.3.8 the remainder of the sample tested had 
the required level of proof copied and filed in the HR folders.  However, per Border 
Agency guidelines it is also a requirement that those taking the copies “check that the 
documents are genuine, that the person presenting them is the prospective employee, 
the rightful holder and allowed to do the type of work on offer”.  By doing these checks 
the Council will have an excuse against liability for a civil penalty.   

2.3.10 To aid this checking process the Border Agency has published a Right to Work Checklist 
which provides a step by step guide on what to check and to show that those checks 
have been carried out.  It also records the date the documentary evidence checks have 
been carried out, which is also a requirement.   

2.3.11 Currently all documents returned by the interviewing service should be accompanied by 
a signed interview return slip, on which the interviewing manager indicates the required 
documents that are being passed to HR.  However, this slip does not provide 
documented assurance that the required checks have actually been carried out.  It is 
noted that in some other local authorities the covering form often has a declaration, to 
the effect that the proof of identification and right to work, have been confirmed as 
relating to the candidate who attended the interview. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should introduce a process whereby the interviewing Service certify that 
the documents provided relate to the actual candidate interviewed in accordance with 
the Border Agency right to work checklist.. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The HR Service Centre will update documentation to make this clear to 
Recruiting Managers and include a ‘sign off’ section.   
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.3.12 Interview panel members are required to complete an assessment form for each 
candidate interviewed.  This is the documentary evidence of the interview and 
subsequent decision making process.  A review of assessment forms for the sample 
selected found a variation in completeness and quality of information.  To protect staff in 
the event of a complaint being made, it is important that the information reflected in the 
assessment form is robust and would stand scrutiny from an independent review.    

 

Recommendation 
The Service should provide guidance on completion of candidate assessment forms.   
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The assessment form included in the recruitment and selection guidance is 
only an example form to cover all levels/types of Council roles.  It is not mandatory to 
complete this version and indeed recruiters use a variety of different assessment 
forms for recording candidate performance and suitability.  These are usually tailored 

Page 274



 

 10 Report No. AC1601 

to the type of role being recruited to.  While it is not our intention to introduce a 
standard assessment form for all posts, we will reinforce within the revised recruitment 
guidance the need for recruiters to record adequate information on their interview 
assessment forms for future reference and include advice about how to use such 
forms.  HR will also include this requirement when refreshing the online recruitment 
and selection course as it relates to interviewing 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leaders 
(Keith Tennant / Dorothy 
Morrison) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.3.13 Salary placement guidance indicates that new staff should be placed on the first point of 
the salary scale for the post unless consultation has been had with HR to place on a 
higher point.  There were five instances in the sample tested where new staff were 
placed on a higher scale point but there was no evidence that HR had been consulted.    

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that Salary Placement guidance is complied with. 
 
The Service should retain reasons for higher placement on an employee’s personal 
file. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed in part. The guidance will need to be updated to reflect current practice, which 
is to give Recruiting Managers discretion about the salary placing they wish to offer 
new recruits without the need to refer to HR if they wish to offer beyond the first scale 
point.  Recruiters need this flexibility in order to compete for and recruit the best 
candidates and we need to be able to speed up the process where possible.  With this 
discretion, they do not need to justify salary offers above the first scale point and 
therefore there would be no need to retain reasons for salary offers in employee files 
as that would only create an additional and an unnecessary step to an already 
bureaucratic process.  
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leaders 
(Karen Templeton) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.3.14 Whilst there is an element of discretion with salary placement of local government staff, 
GTC registered staff have a nationally agreed salary placement process.  This is based 
on length of qualifying service after full GTC registration.  HR should use an assessment 
form to record the qualifying service which may have been achieved within another 
authority or different country, however for the 17 teaching new starts that were reviewed 
no salary assessment forms were held within the employees personal file, although all 
had been placed on a point commensurate with length of service.  Whilst no errors were 
found, the form is there to ensure that a consistent and correct process is followed and 
that staff are always placed on the correct salary point. 

 

Recommendation 
The salary assessment form should be completed and retained within the employee’s 
personal file. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Assessments are undertaken, these will be filed in the employee’s personel 
file.  The HR Service Centre’s Recruitment Team will undertake this going forward. 

Page 275



 

 11 Report No. AC1601 

 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
Team Leaders 
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.4 Chief Officials 

2.4.1 The recruitment and selection of Chief Officials is not covered in the Managing 
Recruitment and Selection procedure and the Service is currently drafting a set of 
procedures to cover this.  The main differences in the process are: the use of an external 
agency to advertise, and an assessment centre evaluation prior to interviews.  The 
interview panel composition is decided by an Appointments Committee and is made up 
of Councillors who make the decisions supported by non-voting HR staff along with 
subject experts. 

2.4.2 Within the period reviewed during the course of the audit, there were two appointments 
to chief official posts.  All relevant paperwork was present for both appointments 
although as highlighted in paragraph 2.2.3, above, this is not held centrally. 

2.4.3 Candidate assessment forms had been completed by the panel and scores, percentages 
and gradings were recorded on some of the forms.  There was, however, no legend to 
indicate whether each question was identically weighted, or whether application forms 
formed part of the assessment.  There was no overall assessment summarising the 
decisions of the panel to evidence the final decision. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should consider including a template within the proposed Chief Official 
recruitment procedures to summarise and consolidate the scores recorded on each 
candidate assessment sheet. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Elected Member Appointment Panels are already given a standard interview 
assessment form to help them assess candidates.  This allows them to assess how 
candidates perform when delivering their opening presentation and also how they 
answer each of the questions they ask each candidate.  Example ‘answers’ are 
provided to assist Panel members. The Panel arrive at their selection decisions 
through open discussion and after hearing feedback from how candidates performed 
at the Assessment Centre.  The Panel are not required to score candidates in order to 
rank them, hence the reason why this facility does not exist within the evaluation form.  
There are no plans to introduce a scoring system so therefore it is not intended to take 
this recommendation forward. 
 
All relevant paperwork is either held by Legal or HR so it can be easily located if 
required.  Going forward, to provide clarity about the precise location of recruitment 
paperwork for Chief Officer appointments, HR will retain the paperwork.   
 
Implementation Date 
N/A 
 

Responsible Officer 
N/A 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.5 PVG 

2.5.1 The Council’s “Protecting Vulnerable Groups Scheme and Police Act Disclosure 
Protocol” document details its obligations and guidance for compliance with legislation.  
It includes a flowchart showing the process to be followed in the recruitment and 
selection assessment, where a PVG has been identified as a requirement for the post.   

Page 276



 

 12 Report No. AC1601 

2.5.2 It is recognised as good working practice for a current certificate to be obtained prior to 
the preferred candidate taking up post, however the guidance from the Education and 
Children’s Service allows for line managers to undertake a risk assessment and where 
appropriate allow for the employee to commence before the certificate is obtained.  The 
protocol covers the requirement for a risk assessment where a received PVG is not 
clear.  However, neither this protocol, the Managing Recruitment Selection, or the Policy 
and Guidance on the Recruitment of Ex-Offenders makes any mention on the process 
for risk assessments for PVG required posts to allow a new start to take up post before 
the certificate has been received.  Due to the very nature of the posts requiring a PVG to 
be carried out it is essential that all procedures that are being allowed should be fully 
documented to ensure that staff within the recruitment and selection process are fully 
aware of their responsibilities. 

 

Recommendation 
The Council’s agreed procedures regarding staff taking up a PVG assessed post prior 
to the certificate having been received should be fully documented and made available 
to those undertaking recruitment and selection. 
 
Service Response / Action 

Agreed.  All appropriate recruitment documentation relating to PVGs should be held 
on file for reference purposes.  This requirement will be reinforced to Recruiting 
Managers who are responsible and accountable for the recruitment decisions they 
take and for ensuring they provide a safe working environment for the people for 
whom they have a duty of care.   
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officers 
Recruiting Managers / HR 
Team Leader (Tracy 
Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.5.3 During the review of Education appointments it was identified that risk assessments 
were being undertaken to determine whether or not staff could take up a post prior to 
completion of all pre-employment checks.  The Service has advised that no appointment 
can be made to a teaching post without a GTCS registration being in place, and that 
approval through the PVG process is mandatory before GTCS registration is granted.  
The Service advised that newly qualified and, therefore newly GTCS registered, 
teachers, as well as teachers who have been PVG checked by a previous employer, 
may be employed to work in a school before a PVG check relating to their employment 
with Aberdeen City Council is obtained, provided a risk assessment is completed and 
measures such as team teaching are put in place to ensure that staff are not left to work 
alone with children until a satisfactory PVG record obtained.  

2.5.4 The Senior Insurance Officer was contacted to ensure that this practice did not invalidate 
the terms and conditions of the Council’s Public Liability Insurance Policy or Fidelity 
Guarantee.  On seeking advice from the Council’s insurance providers, the Senior 
Insurance Officer advised that whilst the insurer wouldn’t withdraw cover in situations 
where the complete recruitment checks (eg up to date PVGs) hadn’t been done, in the 
event of a claim there would be no defensibility and very high legal costs.  For an 
insurer, claims defensibility is paramount as it will restrict the amount payable under their 
insurance policies – the insurance premium the Council pays is a direct reflection of the 
assessment of the risk that the Council poses to the insurer. 

2.5.5 Any actions by an employee for which full employment checks had not been carried out 
which resulted in an injury to a member of the public or pupil or any monies being 
misappropriated would be added to the Council’s claims experience, and would result in 
an increased premium in the following year as a result of the poor risk management.  

Page 277



 

 13 Report No. AC1601 

Any excess under the policy would be payable directly by the Service (estimated for 
2016/17 to be £50,000 per claim). 

2.5.6 The Senior Insurance Officer has, as a result of the above, recommended that this 
practice is stopped with immediate effect to prevent the Council being exposed to 
potential large losses / claims and reputational damage. 

2.5.7 The current guidelines require a list of checks to be undertaken prior to appointment to a 
post, and as such all Services should adhere to these guidelines.  Should these not be 
considered fit for purpose these should revised and agreed through the correct 
Corporate process. 

 

Recommendation 
The Education Service should be instructed to comply with Managing Recruitment and 
Selection Guidelines and ensure that all checks are undertaken prior to a new member 
of staff taking up an appointment. 
 
The Service should provide updated guidance to schools to reflect the risk 
management practices which are in place to ensure that teaching staff are employed 
under controlled circumstances. 
 
Service Response / Action 

The Service accepts the identified risk of continuing current practice, as this helps 
address the issues of curriculum delivery resulting from the unacceptably high number 
of teacher vacancies in Aberdeen. 
 
The Service will provide specific guidance to schools to reflect the risk management 
practices put in place to ensure that teachers are employed under controlled 
circumstances during the period of difficulty in recruiting to teaching posts. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officers 
Head of Policy, 
Performance and 
Resources Education and 
Children’s Services 
(Euan Couperwhite) 

Grading 
Major at a Corporate Level. 

2.5.8 Disclosure Scotland requires that all responsible bodies maintain a policy on the secure 
handling, use, storage, retention and destruction of disclosure information.  The Council 
has a policy based on the model template issued by Disclosure Scotland; this document 
is in addition to the protocol.  

2.5.9 The protocol states that the Council “do not keep Disclosure information on an 
individual’s personal file.  It is kept securely, in lockable, non-portable storage 
containers” whilst the Policy states that the Council “do not keep disclosure information 
on an individual’s personal file other than the top portion only, and any conviction or 
vetting information is destroyed (shredded).”  Currently the top portion is scanned and 
held electronically within the employee’s personal file.  As there is a spreadsheet 
maintained with the salient information from the certificate, which is in accordance with 
the Disclosure Scotland legislation, there appears no valid reason for retaining any part 
of the paper certificate.  There is also a risk that as part of the scanning process the 
whole document is copied and retained on file.  

Page 278



 

 14 Report No. AC1601 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that the protocol is in accordance with the policy. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Reminder to be issued to HR Service Centre team to check if previous PVG 
is provided as ID (e.g. address), also when we are processing them that vetting 
information is removed.  Services also to be advised not to retain copies of such 
documents on site where they have been provided at interview – scan, send to HRSC 
and shred. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should review policy with regard to keeping any part of the certificate. 
 
Service Response / Action 
This is our agreed process and will continue to retain on file.  The Care Inspectorate 
undertook an audit recently and were looking for these on file to ensure that we had 
been the interested party named on certificate.  This is important to evidence that we 
would be notified of any conviction or consideration for barring. 
 
Implementation Date 
N/A 
 

Responsible Officer 
N/A 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.5.10 It was also noted that some schools and Services are also keeping copies of a 
candidates PVG certificates received as part of any previous employment.  Disclosure 
Scotland do not differentiate between current or previous certificates within their model 
retention policy and it is Internal Audit’s opinion that the policy covers any certificate, 
unless clarification has been received by HR from Disclosure Scotland.  Services have 
stated that the older certificates are being held, not as proof of disclosure, but as part of 
the identity checks.  However, a PVG Certificate is not an approved form of identity 
under Home Office legislation. 

 

Recommendation 
Unless the Service can provide a valid reason for retaining any disclosure certificates 
that has been verified with Disclosure Scotland then all should be destroyed in 
accordance with the model policy. 
 
Services should be reminded that they should not retain any copies of certificates and 
should destroy them in a secure manner. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  Services to be advised not to retain copies of such documents on site where 
they have been provided at interview – scan, send to HRSC and shred. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

 

Page 279



 

 15 Report No. AC1601 

2.6 Recruitment Panels 

2.6.1 The composition of recruitment panels for LG and teaching appointments is specified in 
the Managing and Recruitment Selection document.  Whilst the local government 
requirement is a minimum of two staff, one of which should have line management 
responsibility for the post, the recruitment panel for a teaching post varies according to 
the grade of the post. 

2.6.2 Along with the composition of the panel, the document states that “As a purely interim 
measure therefore, Services must ensure that at least one of the selection panel has 
been appropriately trained and one of those persons must be the chair,” the document is 
dated June 2010 and does not state what the interim period is.   

 

Recommendation 
The Service should review and, where appropriate, update the Managing and 
Recruitment Selection document.    
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  A review of the recruitment and selection guidance is already underway to 
ensure it reflects existing and of course best practice, and allow some degree of 
flexibility where appropriate.  Recruitment is a daily activity and due to the large 
number of people involved in the process it is not feasible nor practicable to require all 
members of selections panels to be fully trained before they interview, otherwise it 
would cause significant delays to a recruitment process which we need to make faster 
where possible.  Having said that, it remains critical that at least one of the selection 
panel are fully trained to oversee the process and ensure that it is carried out fairly and 
properly in accordance with the Council’s procedures and guidelines.  Until such time 
as those yet to be trained have undergone training they must familiarise themselves 
with the Council’s guidelines, in particular their legal and equality duty.  The revised 
guidance will include this requirement.  
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader 
(Keith Tennant) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

2.6.3 In all but the recruitment of primary school teachers, the recruitment panels for the 
appointments reviewed during the course of the audit were as per the guidance.  In the 
appointment of primary school teachers, the recruitment panel should be composed of 
the Head Teacher of the school and two Management Team members (from another 
school if necessary).  Eight primary school appointments were not composed of the 
correct panel.  In all cases the Head Teacher and one Management Team member 
conducted the interview.  Panel compositions for teaching posts are not covered under 
SNCT guidelines but have been devolved to LNCT.  The LNCT website does not have a 
local agreement on panel members.  

 

Recommendation 
The Service should consider whether to enforce the panel composition for primary 
school teachers or amend it to reflect current practice. 
 

Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The HR Business Partner for the education service will confirm the position 
with senior management which we expect will be to update the recruitment guidance 
to reflect existing practice.  In future all interview panels will consist of two staff 
members. 
 

Page 280



 

 16 Report No. AC1601 

Implementation Date 
March 2016 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader / HR 
Business Partner   
(Keith Tennant / Kirsten Foley) 

Grading 
Important within audited 
area 

2.6.4 Of the 45 appointments reviewed (excluding Chief Officials), the panel members on 9 
interviews are not currently recorded on the training database as having completed 
Recruitment and Selection training.  Some staff when contacted indicated that they had 
attended training in the past but this does not appear to be reflected in the database.  As 
this is the only record of who has attended training, it cannot be fully confirmed whether 
it is the database that is incomplete or that staff have not been trained.  

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that all staff undertaking interviews are aware of the 
training requirement.  
 

Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The requirement for all recruiting managers to undergo recruitment and 
selection training will be reinforced during the induction (onboarding) stage which is 
currently under significant review.  Regarding training records, we will look at how we 
can utilise YourHR (our online HR portal) to improve recording. 
 

Implementation Date 
March 2016 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader / 
YourHR 
(Dorothy Morrison) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.7 Secondments 

2.7.1 Where short term vacancies arise the Service may wish to offer up the opportunity as a 
secondment, allowing a member of staff to fill the vacancy but still retain their ability to 
return to their substantive post at the end of the vacancy.  The Council has a 
Secondment Procedure (revised June 2015) which details the required process that 
should be followed in such instances.  It requires that the Council’s recruitment process 
be followed for filling the post although it is possible to restrict the pool of employees 
who can apply.  Such positions can be placed on TalentLink or advertised on the Zone.  
As at 10 August 2015, there were 54 staff in seconded posts per the HR system: 4 to 
external bodies, 8 teachers and 42 Local Government posts.  

2.7.2 To check compliance with the Secondment Procedures a sample of 10 local government 
and 8 teaching posts was reviewed.  Six of the sample had been managed through 
TalentLink, which has an audit trail of the advertising and recruitment process.  The 
remaining 12 had been advertised through The Zone or by internal emails to relevant 
staff.  The supporting documentation varied between post resulting, in some instances, 
in an incomplete audit trail of the process. 

 

Recommendation 
TalentLink should be used to manage all secondment recruitments.  
 

Service Response / Action 
This is not feasible due to the design of the online national recruitment portal.  Whilst 
Talentlink should be used to advertise secondment opportunities available to all 
Council employees, the system does not have the capacity to advertise secondment 
opportunities where application pools are restricted.  As identified above, it is possible 
to ring fence secondment opportunities to certain pools of staff where it is appropriate 
to do so (e.g. where the skills and qualification requirements are contained within a 

Page 281



 

 17 Report No. AC1601 

specific service or team; for staff development/succession planning; to achieve a 
smooth transition and where speed is of the essence).  In such cases, other methods 
of advertising the opportunity and inviting applications or expressions of interest are 
put in place.  Once noted interests in the opportunity are gathered, a competitive 
selection process is expected.  Services will be reminded of the need to retain records 
of secondment appointments. 
 

Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Business Partners 
(Kirsten Foley) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.7.3 The Secondment Procedures do not indicate any rules regarding the pay grade that a 
member of staff taking on a secondment should be placed on.  However, it does require 
that the normal recruitment process is followed.  The Managing Recruitment & Selection 
procedures and the Guidance on Salary Placement state that new employees should be 
placed on the first point of the post’s pay grade.  Any decision to offer a higher rate 
should first seek advice from HR.  Of the 18 tested only 3 had been placed above the 
first point, but no indication was present that this placing had been discussed with HR.  If 
Services do not seek advice from HR there could be instances of inequity between 
services and staff. 

 

Recommendation 
Where a secondment is to be placed above the first point of the new grade then it 
should be authorised by HR. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed in part.  The guidance will be updated to reflect current practice, which is to 
give managers discretion about the salary placing within the higher grade they wish to 
offer when appointing secondees.  This discretion is necessary in order to offer a 
salary which is commensurate with the higher duties and level of responsibility.  For 
example, the difference between the max of one grade and the first point of the next 
grade can be minimal.  Under this discretion, managers are not required to refer to HR 
if they wish to offer beyond the first scale point.  
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leaders 
(Karen Templeton) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.7.4 As part of the secondment process a secondment agreement should be prepared and 
signed off by the employee, and their current and new line manager.  This document 
provides details of the position, salary, length of secondment and the obligations on both 
sides.  It also provides assurance regarding the employee’s right for returning to their 
substantive post.  Three teaching posts and one HR post secondment did not have this 
information held on the employee’s personal file. 

2.7.5 Whilst Teaching secondments are governed by SNCT guidelines, and not by the 
Council’s secondment procedures, there is still a requirement to complete the 
responsible authority’s paperwork.  When the Service was contacted regarding the three 
staff who had no agreement they confirmed that paperwork should be in place and 
arranged for this to be completed and passed to HR.  The Acting Service Manager also 
confirmed that the Service had issued instructions at the beginning of August 2015 to all 
line managers reminding them as to the paperwork required in such circumstances. 

2.7.6 HR advised that they did not consider the appointment as a secondment rather it was a 
member of staff filling a higher duty vacant post for a fixed period of time elsewhere in 

Page 282



 

 18 Report No. AC1601 

the Service.  It was also stated that the post had been advertised by email internally and 
the person would return to their substantive post at the end of the work. 

 

Recommendation 
HR should ensure that the secondment process is adhered to. 
 
Service Response / Action 
This was an unusual arrangement that is not covered by the secondment agreement, 
although there are obvious similarities which explains why it may appear that the 
required secondment arrangements had not been followed.  An existing G13 position 
post has been converted to a G14 position within the same team for a fixed term 
period to take the lead on a significant corporate project.  At the end of the fixed term, 
the post will revert to a G13 post.  This opportunity was restricted to the team.  So, 
although the person appointed has technically been seconded to take this lead role, it 
is in effect an extension of her substantive role, albeit with additional responsibilities, 
and it would not have been appropriate to put the usual secondment arrangements in 
place (e.g. the “parent” and “host” manager who need to agree the terms of the 
secondment is in effect the same person),  
 
Implementation Date 
N/A 
 

Responsible Officer 
N/A 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.8 Higher Duty Payments 

2.8.1 The Guidance on Higher Graded Duties Payments provides details on the procedures 
that should be followed when making such payments.  It states that the payment should 
be used as a short term measure to deal with issues including long term sickness 
absence, temporary additional duties and continued service delivery during a recruitment 
process.  The timescale for such payments should not exceed six months, unless an 
extension is approved by the Head of HR&OD.  The opportunity should be circulated to 
all relevant employees and that any payment is based on the first point of the higher 
graded post. 

2.8.2 The HR system (PSE) does not hold information regarding the position that the higher 
graded payment relates to.  This information is recorded on the authorisation form that is 
submitted through the Head of HR&OD.  This form also shows the new grade at which 
the employee will be paid for undertaking the duties. 

2.8.3 As at 12 August 2015, there were 68 members of staff in receipt of higher duty 
payments.  Of these, 30 were set up to last beyond the 6 month limit, with 9 due to last 
over 12 months. It was also found that 12 had been placed at a higher scale point that 
point one of the higher grade. 

2.8.4 While the forms provide reasons as to why the higher duty payment is required, they do 
not provide reasons why the 6 month normal maximum is being exceeded and why a 
recruitment process, or secondment process is not being followed.  It also does not 
provide a reason for the employee being placed above the first point of the higher grade.  
If, as the guidance states, “the higher graded duty arrangement should NOT be used as 
a substitute for normal recruitment procedures to fill a post”, and “the payment is based 
on the first point of the higher graded post” the reasons for either of these being 
exceeded should be detailed on the form. 

Page 283



 

 19 Report No. AC1601 

 

Recommendation 
All higher duty authorisation forms should include a section which allows for an 
explanation as to why the six month period is exceeded or placement above the first 
point on the scale to allow for HR to assess the validity of the request.  
 
Service Response / Action 
Partially agreed.  This would also apply to Temporary Responsibility P’s (for 
Teachers).  Looking at a YourHR Development for this which would prompt further 
information and/or restrict period or flag up when being extended.  When extending a 
higher duty arrangement, we expect managers to explain the reasons under the 
section entitled ‘Justification for Recommendation’.  To ensure managers use this 
section to justify extensions beyond 6 months we will change the title to ‘Justification 
for Recommendation or Extension Beyond 6 months’ (or words to that effect).  Please 
refer to response at 2.7.3 regarding salary placings for secondments 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader / 
YourHR (Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.8.5 Sample checking of the personal files of 15 of the staff receiving payments found that 3 
did not have a higher duty form on file, although a letter had been issued to the 
employee notifying them of their entitlement to the payment.  The lack of an 
authorisation form removes the internal control that all such payments are being paid 
legitimately. 

 

Recommendation 
The Service should ensure that an authorised form is present to support all payments 
made, and it is filed in the personal file. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  There is sometimes a time lag in this being added to the file.  The HR Service 
Centre generate the letter and pass Higher Graded Duties form to the payroll team for 
processing.  They may undertake calculations on the form and at month end 
information is scanned to file. 
 
Implementation Date 
Implemented 
 

Responsible Officer 
N/A 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.8.6 The guidance also requires that “details of higher graded duties should be circulated to 
relevant employees” to allow them to register their interest.  Where more than one 
employee registers an interest then the line manager should either interview then 
appoint, allocate the duties on a percentage split, or on a rota basis.  For the sample 
tested, no paperwork was being held with the authorisation form to demonstrate this 
procedure had been followed, and Services, although stating they had followed the 
process, could not easily support the decisions with any documentation.  To provide a 
full audit trail of the process and ensure that staff are all being treated equitably, the 
paperwork and emails relating to the process should be submitted with the authorisation 
form and filed in the personal file. 

 

Recommendation 
The paperwork relating to the offering and filing of the higher duty post should be 
submitted with the authorisation form and filed in the personal file. 
 
Service Response / Action 

Page 284



 

 20 Report No. AC1601 

Agreed.  While this is a service based decision, HR will remind services to retain 
records for a prescribed period where a higher graded duties payment has been 
awarded following a competitive selection process.  The Higher Graded Duties 
Authorisation Form could be used to evidence the process used to select the recipient 
of the higher duty payment so HR will look at redesigning the form accordingly.  It is 
also expected the higher duty payments process will become fully automated as part 
of developing YourHR for automating such HR processes. . 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Team Leader / 
YourHR (Tracy Runcie) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

2.9 Teacher Incentive Payments 

2.9.1 In an attempt to increase the number of teachers applying and taking up posts, and to 
retain them once they have started, the Council agreed in 2013 to introduce a 
Recruitment and Retention Incentive payment for Teachers.  A protocol was issued 
detailing the principles and provisions of the scheme.  As at 31 July 2015, the following 
number of payments had been made under the scheme: 

 

LOCATION 13/14 14/15 15/16 Total 

ACADEMY 3 4 0 7 

PRIMARY 12 20 1 33 

TOTAL 15 24 1 40 

2.9.2 As the protocol states “the purpose of the scheme is to attract additional teachers to the 
city” it would be appropriate that each advert highlight the fact that an incentive payment 
is available in order to encourage applicants.  Testing of 10 payments made between 
January 2014 and April 2015 found that 4 had not been advertised, and that the 
incentive payment had only been offered after a preferred candidate had been chosen.  
The only way to possibly attract more applications would be to advertise the payment to 
attract those applicants.  This principal would also hold true for the newly introduced Key 
Worker Housing scheme.  

 

Recommendation 
Education should ensure that any incentive scheme should be highlighted within the 
request for a job to be advertised. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The incentive scheme only applies in restricted circumstances.  It is only 
payable where there have been a number of unsuccessful attempts to fill teaching 
posts, or where the preferred candidate will only accept the offer if the incentive 
payment is to apply.  Routinely advertising the incentive scheme within adverts for 
teaching posts could therefore be misleading and raise false candidate expectations.  
 
The availability of the scheme will usually be included in the advert if it is known in 
advance that it will apply, but it would be inappropriate to advertise the scheme in bulk 
adverts for multiple schools.  Nonetheless, the relevant HR Business Partner will 
discuss this further with Service to explore ways of promoting the scheme in teaching 
adverts without guarantees (alongside Key Worker Housing) as a means of improving 
our pool of job applicants. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Business Partner 
(Kirsten Foley) 

Grading 
Significant within audited area 

Page 285



 

 21 Report No. AC1601 

2.9.3 The Council’s Scheme of Delegation (updated February 2015) states, under Head of 
Education Services, “13) To offer recruitment and retention incentive payments for hard 
to fill teaching posts.”  A sample of 10 of the payments made was tested to ensure that 
they had been appropriately authorised.  Five of the payments had been authorised by 
the Director, two by an acting Head of Service, and three did not have the authorising 
form present in the employee’s personal file. 

2.9.4 The protocol sets out five principals under which an incentive payment should be 
offered.  However, the authorisation from does not indicate under which of the principles 
the payment is actually being offered.  To show that payments are only been made 
where one of these principals has been met, it should be recorded on the authorisation 
form.   

 
 

Recommendation 
An authorisation form detailing the reason for the incentive payment should be 
submitted in all cases and filed in the personal file. 
 
Service Response / Action 
Agreed.  The relevant HR Business Partner to discuss further with Service to look at 
method of approval/evidence for file in relation to incentive payment. 
 
Implementation Date 
March 2016 
 

Responsible Officer 
HR Business Partner 
(Kirsten Foley) 

Grading 
Important within audited area 

 
 
 

AUDITORS: D Hughes 
  M Beattie 
  G Flood   

Page 286



 

 22 Report No. AC1601 

Appendix 1 – Grading of Recommendations 
 
 
GRADE 
 

 
DEFINITION 

 
Major at a Corporate Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss, or loss of reputation, to the Council. 
 

 
Major at a Service Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an appropriate 
internal control which could result in, for example, a material 
financial loss to the Service/area audited. 
 
Financial Regulations have been consistently breached 
 

 
Significant within audited area 

 
Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls. 
  
An element of control is missing or only partial in nature.   
 
The existence of the weakness identified has an impact on 
a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.   
 
Financial Regulations have been breached. 
 

 
Important within audited area 

 
Although the element of internal control is satisfactory, a 
control weakness was identified, the existence of the 
weakness, taken independently or with other findings does 
not impair the overall system of internal control.    
 

 
 

Page 287



 

Date of Issue:  February 2016  Report No. AC1601 

Appendix 2  TalentLink Statistics from 1 January - 12 August 2015 
 

Organisation Name Level 2 
Total 

Adverts Open Closed 
Closed / 

Filled Unfilled Withdrawn Cancelled Applicants 
Jobs with 
No Apps 

Education Culture and Sport 452 147 60 158 78 7 2 5,545 50 

Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure 82 46 4 32    1,791 1 

Officer of Chief Executive 9 3 1 5    258 3 

Corporate Governance 78 20 3 50 5   2,554 2 

Social Care and Wellbeing 80 37 3 29 7 1 3 1,394 2 

Housing and Environment 130 68 5 57    2,818 4 

  831 321 76 331 90 8 5 14,360 62 

 

POSITION TYPE        

 

Total Of 
Job 

Number 
Casual
/Relief Full Time 

Job 
Share Part Time 

Term 
Time Full 

Time 

Term 
Time Part 

Time 

Education Culture and Sport 452 17 90  55 231 59 

Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure 82 2 55  17 2 6 

Officer of Chief Executive 9  8  1   

Corporate Governance 78  61  17   

Social Care and Wellbeing 80  66  14   

Housing and Environment 130  123 1 6   

 831 19 403 1 110 233 65 

 

P
a
g

e
 2

8
8



 

 1 Report No. AC1601 

 
 

CONTRACT TYPE 

 

Total Of 
Job 

Number Permanent Casual/Relief 
Fixed 
Term 

Permanent 
& 

Temporary 

Permanent 
& 

Temporary 
& Casual 

Summer 
Student Supply 

Education Culture and Sport 452 356 16 78 1   1 

Enterprise Planning and Infrastructure 82 65 2 9 4 1 1  

Officer of Chief Executive 9 8  1     

Corporate Governance 78 48  28 1    

Social Care and Wellbeing 80 56  16 8    

Housing and Environment 130 107  21 1    

 831 640 18 153 15 1 1 1 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

8
9



Page 290

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk & Scrutiny 
 
DATE  9 March 2016 
 
DIRECTOR  N/A  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Outstanding Internal Audit Recommendations 

Pre 2015/16 
 
REPORT NUMBER N/A 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 This report advises the Committee of progress Services have made 
with implementing recommendations agreed in Internal Audit reports 
issued by PWC.   

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Committee is requested to review, discuss and comment on the 
issues raised within this report and the attached appendices. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report. 

4. FOLLOW UP OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

4.1 The details relating to recommendations made previously by PWC, 
which were due to be implemented by the end of December 2015, 
are shown in the attached appendix. 

5. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
David Hughes, Chief Internal Auditor 
David.Hughes@aberdeenshire.gov.uk 
(01224) 664184 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 291



 

2 
 

Outstanding Internal Audit Recommendations          Appendix A 
 

Report Title Date 
Issued 

Recommendation and Risk 
Rating 

Update Responsible 
Officer 

Original 
Due Date 

Revised date 

Community 
Centres 

Apr-14 Risk Rating – Medium 
The Council should take action to 
ensure that all leased community 
centres sign up to the new lease and 
management agreement. If 
necessary, payment of the 
Development Grant should be 
withheld until signed lease and 
management agreements are in 
place. 

A report was taken to Communities, 
Housing and Infrastructure 
Committee in February 2015 
recommending that the development 
grant was held for those Centres yet 
to sign up.  The Committee did not 
accept this recommendation and a 
further report is expected to go to 
CHI on this issue at a future date.  
The further delay is in order to allow 
Committee Conveners to discuss the 
issue.   
 
Update as at January 2016:  
The report is scheduled to go the 
March 2016 meeting of the Audit, 
Risk and Scrutiny Committee. 

Service 
Manager, 

Communities 
and 

Partnership 

31-Dec-14 Previously 
advised 

31-Oct-15, 
then 

31-Jan-16 
 

Now 
31-Mar-16 

Complaints 
Handling 

Sep-14 Risk Rating – Low 
A complaints handling training 
package should be developed and 
included as mandatory training for 
any staff members involved in 
complaints handling. Management 
could consider utilising SPSO 
training materials as an alternative to 
developing a bespoke training 
package. 
These training materials should form 
a part of the induction process for 

Procedural improvements are being 
implemented before rolling the 
training out across the organisation, 
so that all council employees are 
being trained using a consistent 
corporate approach. 
 
An online interactive learning (OIL) 
course has been developed and as 
recommended, the content is based 
on the SPSO training material.  The 
OIL course will form part of the 

Customer 
Experience 

Officer 

31-Dec-14 Previously 
advised 

31-Dec-15 
 

Now  
31-Mar-16 

P
a
g

e
 2

9
2



 

3 
 

new joiners. 
Refresher training should be 
mandatory for all staff members 
involved in the complaints handling 
process. This should include a 
reminder of best practices in 
complaints handling, and details of 
new or updated procedures. 

corporate training programme which 
will commence once a complaints 
web form is launched, providing a 
corporate method for all council 
officers to logging Frontline 
Complaints.  Development of the 
online form is currently ongoing.  
Face to face training will then also 
be undertaken with frontline teams to 
reinforce the procedures and 
coaching provided to responding 
officers to improve the quality of 
responses.  These actions are 
planned to commence before the 
end of 2015.  
 
Update as at January 2016: 
Complaints handling training has 
been undertaken with a range of 
services over the last few months 
and will be rolled out on a wider 
scale once a corporate procedure for 
logging complaints is in place.  This 
is to be achieved through the use of 
an online form which will be 
launched by the end of the financial 
year.  A Complaints Handling Toolkit 
has been developed and is now 
available on the Zone to support all 
members of staff in complaint 
handling.  The resources in the 
toolkit are designed to support best 
practice as outlined by the Scottish 

P
a
g
e
 2

9
3



 

4 
 

Public Services Ombudsman 
(SPSO).  It provides policies, case 
studies, procedural checklists and 
other useful templates that should be 
used to deal with complaints. 

ALEOs Tier 2 
review 

Feb-15 Risk Rating – Medium 
All monitoring officers will be advised 
that they are required to undertake 
suitable training and to make use of 
expertise available in the Council, as 
determined by management, to 
enable them to fully execute their 
duties as set out in the Following the 
Public Pound guidance. 

Progress with this recommendation 
is under discussion between the 
Service and Internal Audit. 

Team Leader, 
HR&OD 

 

31-Dec-15  

Carefirst Feb-15 Risk Rating – Medium 
1.  Management should assign 
responsibility for reviewing and 
actioning the unmatched 
transactions report. Management 
may consider creating a dedicated 
role for this task as it would benefit 
from a technical understanding of 
CareFirst, knowledge of the 
Council’s financial arrangements 
with suppliers and all client groups. 
2.· Agreement will be reached on the 
criteria/ parameters to be used for 
deciding whether transactions 
should be investigated or not. The 
unmatched transaction report will be 
modified by the CareFirst Team to 
ensure it only includes the 
transactions for assessment before it 

 
1. The identification of a dedicated 
person with relevant experience 
remains outstanding, however, 
some data tidy up work has been 
undertaken by the CareFirst Team 
which will result in fewer unmatched 
transactions being created.  Will be 
picked up as part of the Care 
Management Transformation 
Project. 
2. As for 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Head of Joint 
Operations 

 
Update for 

March 2016 
Committee: 
This work 

stream will sit 
with the 

Integrated 
Social Care 
Partnership 
Responsible 
Officer will be 
Lead Service 

Manager 
(Older 

People). 

30-Jun-15 31-Mar-16  
On completion 

of Care 
Management 

Transformation 
Project 

 
Update for 

March 2016 
Committee: 

Progress has 
been further 

delayed by the 
long term 

absence of a 
service 

manager 
resulting in the 

lead for the 

P
a
g

e
 2

9
4



 

5 
 

is issued to the individual 
responsible for reviewing and 
actioning. 
3.· Dummy invoices will be 
processed in CareFirst to remove 
illegitimate transactions. This will not 
impact actuals (which are reported 
through e-Financials) and will allow 
for accurate commitment reporting. 
The individual responsible for the 
unmatched transaction report should 
also be responsible for this task. 
4.· To ensure temporarily suspended 
care packages do not accrue costs, 
the person responsible for reviewing 
and actioning the unmatched 
transactions report should enter 
variances to offset the amount. A list 
of users who are not closing care 
packages as per the guidelines 
should be issued to Service 
Managers for appropriate action. 
5.· The completed unmatched 
transaction report should be 
reviewed and signed off by the 
responsible person’s line manager 
on a monthly basis. 
6.· Consideration will be given to 
separating the roles of those who 
assess and manage frontline client 
needs and those who are sourcing 
the supply of care and subsequently 
recording the care on the 

 
 
 
3. As for 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. As for 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. As for 1 
 
 
 
 
6. This issue is part of the new 
Planning and Development 
Manager’s workload and discussions 
are being held across the various 
sections to ensure that this is 
actioned. 

project having 
to cover 

operational 
services. 

P
a
g
e
 2

9
5



 

6 
 

system.  

IT Asset 
Management 

Feb-15 Risk Rating – Low 
A repair function will be built into the 
specification of the new IT Service 
Management Tool, in order to enable 
ACC to identify repair trends. This 
will allow reports to be run to see if 
there are particular assets which 
have high repair costs. 

Implementation awaiting signing of 
contract due early January 2016. 
 

IT Manager 31-Dec-15 30-Apr-16 

IT Disaster 
Recovery 

Feb-15 Risk Rating – Low 
System Owners should consider and 
document the risk of not testing their 
systems during disaster recovery 
testing of the data centre. IT will 
ensure that they request and retain 
copies of risk assessments prior to 
all future IT Disaster Recovery 
exercises 

Disaster Recovery (DR) testing 
rescheduled due to Data Centre 
Migration using recommended DR 
approach. 

IT Manager 30-Nov-15 30-Apr-16 

Service review Feb-15 Risk Rating – High 
The definition, requirements and 
timeliness of a review under the 
Care Management Standards should 
be re-communicated to Care 
Workers via team meetings. 

This issue has been discussed with 
service managers and team leaders 
at a service development day on 6 
July with instructions to action the 
advice given by PWC immediately.  
Reviews form part of the Care 
management transformation project 
that is currently being undertaken by 
the planning and development 
manager in OP services.   

Chief Officer, 
Health and 
Social Care 

 
Update for 

March 2016 
Committee: 
This work 

stream will sit 
with the 

Integrated 
Social Care 
Partnership 
Responsible 

28-Feb-15 31-Dec-15 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 2

9
6



 

7 
 

Officer will be 
Lead Service 

Manager 
(Older 

People). 

Services 
review 

Feb-15 Risk Rating – High 
1. Management should formally 
assess the staffing issues within 
SC&W and consider increasing the 
resource budget if appropriate. 
2. The following reports should be 
run on a monthly basis and 
distributed to the relevant teams who 
will action the closing or 
reassignment of the activities: 
a. A report detailing open activities 
which have no open service 
agreement. and; 
b. A report detailing open activities 
which are not assigned to the care 
worker who is 
currently assigned the care package. 
 

1.  Management has assessed the 
staffing issue with service managers 
and team leaders.  Since the audit 
managers have carried out a 
recruitment drive and made changes 
to the scheduling of reviews within 
work loads.  Work is ongoing to 
define levels of reviews that are 
appropriate to the activities being 
carried out. 
2. On-going piece of development 
work. Some data tidy up has already 
been undertaken and it will be 
concluded in the processes that form 
part of the Care Management 
transformation project. 
 
Update for March 2016 Committee: 
Two of the four overdue 
recommendations have been 
implemented but progress has been 
further delayed by the long term 
absence of a service manager 
resulting in the lead for the project 
having to cover operational services. 

Team 
Manager, 

Performance 
Management 
and Systems 
Development 

Officer 
 

Update for 
March 2016 
Committee: 
This work 

stream will sit 
with the 

Integrated 
Social Care 
Partnership 
Responsible 
Officer will be 
Lead Service 

Manager 
(Older 

People). 

20-Jun-15 31-Dec-15 
 
 

Services 
review 

Feb-15 Risk Rating – Medium 
Users should be instructed to record 
all reviews in the CareAssess form. 

This will be picked up as part of the 
Care management transformation 
project that is currently being 

Team 
Manager – 

Performance 

31-Aug-15 31-Dec-15 

P
a
g
e
 2

9
7



 

8 
 

This electronic form allows 
observations to be created and has 
reporting functionality. 

undertaken by the planning and 
development manager in OP 
services. Action currently on hold 
pending outcome of above. 
 

Update for March 2016 Committee: 
Form has been completed and 
waiting on completion of the care 
management review. 

Management 
and Service 
Managers 

ICT 
Governance 

May-15 Risk Rating – Medium 
The strategy will include the 
commitment to implementing an 
Enterprise Architecture governance 
framework and have the support of 
the corporate management team.  
Including this commitment in the ICT 
strategy would reduce this risk to a 
low rating. 

Following appointment of new Head 
of Service, IT and Transformation 
Service in May, a broader review of 
all relevant strategies has 
commenced with revision over the 
next 3-6 months.  Revised date of 
March 2016 to allow time for all 
relevant stage approvals.   
 
Update as at January 2016:  
The Digital Strategy is going through 
the governance process prior to next 
Finance Policy and Resources 
Committee cycle. 

Head of IT and 
Transformation 

31-Mar-15 31-Mar-16 

Section 75 
Planning 

Apr-15 Risk Rating – Low 
Heads of Service will appoint an 
appropriate ‘point of contact’ for their 
service with responsibility for 
responding to requests regarding 
Section 75 agreements. 

The review of the Development 
Management Service is proceeding 
and the implementation of the 
agreed Action Plan for Improvement 
commenced in January 2016.  This 
includes improved case 
management discipline to achieve 
clarity, consistency of good practice 
and timely outcomes.  This will apply 
to Section 75 processes and will 

Head of 
Planning and 
Sustainable 
Development 

30-Sep-15 31-Mar-16 

P
a
g

e
 2

9
8



 

9 
 

provide appropriate contact 
information for each case.  In parallel 
with this process, discussions with 
Aberdeenshire Council are 
proceeding in relation to the review 
and refinement of the SLA relating to 
the involvement of its Development 
Obligations Team, with a view to a 
conclusion in March 2016. 

Roads 
Construction 
Consent 

May-15 Risk Rating - Low                                                                                                                          
On initial acknowledgement of the 
application, if a full and complete 
roads construction consent 
submission is received from the 
consultant or developer, 
management have indicated that 
they will commit to providing a 
response to the application within 
four weeks. In delivering action 3.01, 
management will look to link the 
system for roads construction 
consent to the e-planning system 
currently used for planning 
applications by the Council. 

A new system to deal with Planning 
and Building Standard application is 
in the process of being purchased 
and introduced, with a current 
timescale for going live of end 2015. 
The incorporation of RCC into that 
system would follow and would be 
projected for end of first quarter 
2016. 

Transportation 
Manager 

31-Jul-15 31-Mar-16 

Compliance 
with the Public 
Records 
(Scotland) Act 

Jun-15 Risk Rating – Low 
Management will develop a Register 
of Information Sharing Protocols as 
a resource for staff to consult for 
clarity on the circumstances and 
types of information that can and 
cannot be shared internally.  
Management will finalise updating 
the Council’s Data Protection policy 

Revised Data Protection Corporate 
Policy & Procedures were approved 
by the Finance, Policy & Resources 
Committee 15th September 2015.  
However, owing to staff absence / 
shortage, redevelopment of the Data 
Protection pages on the Zone 
(including development of an 
‘Information Sharing’ section to 

Information 
Governance 
Officer  

30-Sep-15 Previously 
advised 

TBC 
 

Now  
31-Jan-16 

P
a
g
e
 2

9
9



 

10 
 

with consideration given to the 
possibility of streamlining the 
existing Data Protection procedures. 
Management will ensure the new 
policy is subject to regular, ongoing, 
review for compliance with current 
legislation and alignment with good 
practice 

include the publication, from existing 
Legal Services records, of a Register 
of Information Sharing Protocols) 
has been delayed.  
 
Update as at January 2016:  
The Revised Data Protection 
Corporate Policy & Procedures are 
due to be published on The Zone by 
22 January.  A Register of 
Information Sharing Protocols (ISPs) 
has been completed and is due to be 
published on The Zone, with links to 
the individual ISPs, by 29 January. 
 

Compliance 
with the Public 
Records 
(Scotland) Act 

Jun-15 Risk Rating – Advisory 
Management are advised to review 
procurement policies and 
procedures and mode contract 
language to ensure that those 
engaging with the Council are 
contractually obligated to comply 
with the Council’s information 
management standards. 

Commercial & Procurement Services 
are, as part of the Procurement 
Achieving Commercial Excellence 
(PACE) Improvement programme, 
reviewing procurement policies and 
procedures and will mode the 
appropriate contract language to 
ensure that those engaging with the 
Council are contractually obligated to 
comply with the Council’s 
information management standards.  
The revision of the Standing 
Orders/Financial Regulations is key 
to finalisation of this programme and 
it is expected that the revised 
Standing Order will be tabled at 
Council meetings in December and 
January respectively for Aberdeen 

Head of 
Procurement 

30-Sep-15 
 
 

Previously 
advised 

31-Jan-16 
 

Now  
31-Mar-16 

P
a
g

e
 3

0
0



 

11 
 

City and Aberdeenshire Councils.  
 
Update as at January 2016:  
Both authorities would like the 
Standing Orders to be part of the 
overall governance reviews and this 
has delayed the tabling at Council.  

Therefore, the revised SOs will be 

tabled at meetings in March 2016. 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

0
1



Page 302

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee 
 
DATE  9 March 2016 
 
DIRECTOR  N/A 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Internal Audit Reports – Follow-up of Agreed 

Recommendations 
 
REPORT NUMBER N/A 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED Yes 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 This report advises the Committee of progress with implementing agreed 
recommendations contained in reports issued in relation to the 2015/16 
Internal Audit plan and any additional work undertaken.   

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Committee is requested to review, discuss and comment on the issues 
raised within this report and the attached appendices. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report. 

4. PROGRESS WITH IMPLEMENTING AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS 

4.1 Appendices A and B show progress made by Services with completing 
agreed Internal Audit recommendations, based on assurances received 
from officers tasked with their implementation and independent checks 
where appropriate.   

4.2 Where these have not been completed by their original due date, reasons 
are provided along with the grading applied to the recommendation in the 
original Internal Audit report.  An explanation of the gradings used is shown 
at appendix C.   

5. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
David Hughes, Chief Internal Auditor 
David.Hughes@aberdeenshire.gov.uk 
(01224) 664184 

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 303



 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

 

POSITION WITH AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS AS AT 29 FEBRUARY 2016 
 

 
SUMMARY 

 
The following table provides a summary of progress being made by Services with completing agreed recommendations.  The total not fully 
complete, which had an original due date of before 31 January 2016, is 1.  Full details relating to progress, on a report by report basis, are 
shown in appendix B.   

 

 Recommendations Grading of Overdue 
Recommendations 

 

 
 
SERVICE 

Agreed in 
reports 

shown in 
Appendix B 

Due for 
completion 
by 31.10.15 

Confirmed 
complete 

by Service 

New in 
November 

2015 to 
January 

2016 

Confirmed 
complete 

by Service 

Not fully 
complete 

by original 
due date of 

31.01.16 

 
 

Major 

 
 

Significant 

 
 

Important 

 

Cross Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Communities, Housing 
and Infrastructure 

7 1 1 5 5 0 0 0 0 

Corporate Governance 20 2 2 2 1 1 0 1 0 

Education and 
Children’s Services 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 

Total 27 3 3 7 6 1 0 1 0 

P
a
g

e
 3

0
4



 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

 

POSITION WITH AGREED RECOMMENDATIONS AS AT 29 FEBRUARY 2016 
 

 

 
Report 
Number 

 
Report Title 

 
Date 
Issued 

Number of Recommendations 

Agreed in 
Report 

Due for 
implementation 

by 31.01.16 

Confirmed 
Implemented 

by Service  

Not implemented 
by original due 

date 

Grading of 
overdue 

recommendations 

COMMUNITIES, HOUSING AND INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

AC1603 Council House Rent 
Setting 

July  
2015 

4 3 3 0 0 
 

AC1613 Crematorium November 
2015 

3 3 3 0 0 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

AC1601
AW 

Council Tax Billing 
2014/15 

July  
2015 

2 2 2 0 0 

AC1602 Payroll System  October 
2015 

3 0 0 0 0 

AC1606 Creditors System November 
2015 

6 2 1 1 1 Significant 
 

 
The overdue recommendation (graded “significant within audited area”) was due to be implemented by the end of December 2015 and 
relates to the Service ensuring that all staff complete required training in data protection and information security.  The Service has stated that 
the courses are taking longer to complete than anticipated and, due to experiencing a busy period of processing, this will take longer for the 
Team to complete.  In view of this it is anticipated that training will be complete by April 2016. 
 

AC1614 Risk Management November 
2015 

9 0 0 0 0 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

0
5



 

 

APPENDIX C 
 

Grading of Recommendations 
 

 
GRADE 
 

 
DEFINITION 

 
Major at a Corporate Level 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an 
appropriate internal control which could result in, for 
example, a material financial loss, or loss of 
reputation, to the Council. 
 

 
Major at a Service Level / 
within audited area 

 
The absence of, or failure to comply with, an 
appropriate internal control which could result in, for 
example, a material financial loss to the Service/area 
audited. 
 
Financial Regulations have been consistently 
breached. 
 

 
Significant within audited area 

 
Addressing this issue will enhance internal controls.  
 
An element of control is missing or only partial in 
nature.   
 
The existence of the weakness identified has an 
impact on a system’s adequacy and effectiveness.   
 
Financial Regulations have been breached. 
 

 
Important within audited area 

 
Although the element of internal control is 
satisfactory, a control weakness was identified, the 
existence of the weakness, taken independently or 
with other findings does not impair the overall system 
of internal control.    
 

 
 
 

Page 306



 

    
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

A
u
d
it
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

 

 

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

 

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 E

x
te

rn
a

l 
R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
  

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

 

Agenda Item 6.3

Page 307



In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 

 

 

2
 

 In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 

 T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 b
ri
n
g

s
 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

is
k
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

u
d
it
. 
  

A
t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ta

n
d
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 a
g

e
n
d
a
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

p
o
n
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 
  
  

O
n
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w

it
h
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

it
h
 t
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

s
 s

ti
ll 

s
o
m

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 a

w
a

y
. 

 I
n
 m

o
s
t 
c
a
s
e
s
, 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
ie

c
e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 h

a
s
 a

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

in
te

re
s
t 
in

. 
 C

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 M

a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
 (

in
te

ri
m

 a
u
d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
) 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 u
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

w
o
rk

 (
e
.g

. 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
/o

r 
s
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

) 
to

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
  
 W

h
e
re

 

s
u
c
h
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
, 

w
e
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a

te
 f
o
r 

th
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
t 

n
o
t 
c
lo

s
e
 i
t 

o
ff

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ri
ly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
  
 

 A
n
n
e
 M

a
c
D

o
n
a
ld

  

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
  

Page 308



 

3
 

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

  

A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

1
 

In
te

ri
m

 
In

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
m

o
re

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

ra
u
d
 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
 (

N
F

I)
 d

a
ta

 

m
a
tc

h
in

g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
, 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

s
h
o
u
ld

 p
u
t 
p
la

n
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 

m
a
tc

h
e
s
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
. 
 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

re
c
o
g

n
is

e
s
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
. 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

ra
u
d
 T

e
a
m

 

M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

b
e
c
a
m

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

N
F

I 
in

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

. 
 W

o
rk

 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 p

u
t 

n
e
w

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

m
a
tc

h
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 

q
u
ic

k
ly

 a
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

 

3
1
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

T
h
e
 h

ig
h
 r

is
k
 c

a
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
, 
th

e
 i
n
it
ia

l 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

w
h
e
re

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d
 i
s
 i
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 l
o
w

 r
is

k
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 

b
e
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e
d
. 
In

 t
o
ta

l,
  

3
0
%

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 c

a
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
ra

ll,
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 2

0
%

 o
f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

m
a
tc

h
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
 

s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

 w
a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

O
n
 a

 m
o
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 n

o
te

, 
a
 

s
in

g
le

 p
e
rs

o
n
 d

is
c
o
u
n
t 

m
a
tc

h
in

g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.
  
T

h
is

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 9

7
3
 

e
rr

o
rs

 f
ro

m
 3

,2
0
0
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
m

o
u
n
te

d
 t

o
 £

4
0
5
,7

5
9
 i
n
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
te

rm
s
. 
 P

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t

o
 i
s
s
u
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

ill
s
. 

W
h
ile

 t
h
e
 s

in
g

le
 

p
e
rs

o
n
 d

is
c
o
u
n
t 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e
d
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l,
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 b

e
e
n
 

s
lo

w
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

N
F

I 
d
a
ta

 m
a
tc

h
e
s
. 
  

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 j
u
s
t 

c
o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 N

F
I 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
 A

u
d
it
 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
’s

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 d
u
e
 i
n
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
6
. 
 

In
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 m

ix
e
d
 

re
s
u
lt
s
, 
I 

w
o
u
ld

 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
 a

 f
u
lle

r 
re

p
o
rt

 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

n
e
x
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 

Page 309



 

4
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

2
 

In
te

ri
m

  
T

h
e
 F

ra
u
d
 a

n
d
 C

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 t
o
 

s
ta

ff
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

. 

  

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
. 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e
  

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

  

T
h
e
 F

in
a
n
c
e
, 

P
o
lic

y
 &

 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 1

5
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

h
e
 “

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 F

ra
u
d
, 

B
ri
b
e
ry

 &
 C

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
”.

 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

o
llo

u
t 

a
n
d
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

 

 

3
 

In
te

ri
m

  
A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
, 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 

A
R

S
C

 w
it
h
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

 s
u
m

m
a
ri
s
in

g
 

fr
a
u
d
/s

u
s
p
e
c
te

d
 f
ra

u
d
 

c
a
s
e
s
, 
w

h
is

tl
e
b
lo

w
in

g
 

c
a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

re
a
c
h
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
ri
b
e
ry

 A
c
t.
 T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
y
 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 
a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

A
R

S
C

  

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
e
g

a
l 

&
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 i
n
 J

u
n
e
  
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r.

  
 

C
a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
6
 

4
 

In
te

ri
m

  
R

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

B
ri
b
e
ry

 A
c
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

R
is

k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

3
1
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

n
e
w

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 f
ra

u
d
, 
b
ri
b
e
ry

 

a
n
d
 c

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

ra
u
d
 

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 f
ra

u
d
, 
b
ri
b
e
ry

 

a
n
d
 c

o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

Page 310



 

5
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

e
v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 

    

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

L
e
g

a
l 

&
 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

B
o
d
y
’s

 c
h
e
c
k
lis

t 
a
n
d
 s

e
lf
-

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

U
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
w

ill
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 

m
it
ig

a
te

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

lo
s
s
e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 f
ra

u
d
, 

b
ri
b
e
ry

 o
r 

c
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
 

th
e
 b

ri
b
e
ry

 a
c
t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
k
e
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 

y
e
t 

to
 s

ig
h
t 

a
n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 

ti
m

e
lin

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 s

e
lf
-e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t.
 

5
 

In
te

ri
m

  
P

la
n
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

fo
rm

a
lis

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f
o
r 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

le
c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

. 

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 f
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

IT
 a

n
d

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 

 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

la
n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 2

6
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
. 
T

h
e
re

a
ft
e
r,

 a
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 

n
o
w

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
. 
T

h
e
 

A
p
ri
l/
M

a
y
 2

0
1
6
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

c
y
c
le

 w
ill

 s
e
e
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
, 

w
it
h
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

to
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
6
. 

W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g

 

th
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 a

u
d
it
 

(M
a
rc

h
 t

o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
) 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
. 
 

    

Page 311



 

6
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

6
 

In
te

ri
m

  
A

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

re
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
'A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

s
' 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e
. 

'A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 P

e
rf

o
rm

s
' i

s
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 w

h
e
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

d
a
ta

 b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 A

 

re
fr

e
s
h
 i
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 t
o
 r

e
a
p
p
ra

is
e
 t

h
e
 

m
e
th

o
d
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
 

a
n

d
 P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 

 

3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

 

A
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 

fo
r 

th
e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
‘A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

s
’ 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 

a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
2
0
1
6
. 

 

W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g

 

th
e
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 a

u
d
it
 

(M
a
rc

h
 t

o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
) 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
. 
 

  

7
 

In
te

ri
m

  
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
 

re
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
o
rs

 

re
c
o
rd

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 a

 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r.

 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 r

e
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

d
 (

6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

fo
r 

A
u
g

u
s
t 

a
n
d
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

. 
 S

ig
n
 

o
ff

 o
n
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 s

e
n
io

r 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t.
 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 &

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

 

3
0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

T
h
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 

re
c
o
n
c
ili

a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 
y
e
a
r 

h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

a
n
d
 

s
ig

n
e
d
 

o
ff

 
b
y
 

a
 

s
e
n
io

r 

m
a
n
a
g

e
r.

 

      

T
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

in
te

ri
m

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 a

u
d
it
. 

Page 312



 

7
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

8
 

IC
T

 
A

 n
e
w

 I
C

T
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
 I

n
 d

u
e
 

c
o
u
rs

e
, 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 P

M
O

 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 

R
is

k
: 

u
n

ti
l 

a
 n

e
w

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

is
 p

u
b

li
s
h

e
d

, 
a
 

p
e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
 c

o
u

ld
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 i
s
 n

o
t 

ta
k
in

g
 a

 l
o

n
g

-t
e
rm

 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 I
C

T
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
  

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

n
e
w

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
, 
IT

 a
n
d
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 

M
a

y
, 

a
 b

ro
a
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 h

a
s
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
v
is

io
n
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
3
-6

 m
o
n
th

s
. 
 

T
h
e
re

a
ft

e
r,

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

IT
 a

n
d

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

) 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

A
 d

ra
ft

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
. 
  

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 i
n
te

ri
m

 

a
u
d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

9
 

IC
T

 
T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 o

p
te

d
 t

o
 

e
n
te

r 
a
 j
o
in

t 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

e
x
e
rc

is
e
 w

it
h
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 c
e
n
tr

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 a

 t
h
ir
d
 p

a
rt

y
. 
 

R
is

k
: 

d
e
li

v
e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 

s
o

lu
ti

o
n

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e
 

c
o

m
p

le
x
, 
w

it
h

 

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
y
 o

n
 t

h
ir

d
 

p
a
rt

ie
s
. 
 T

h
is

 m
a
y
 g

iv
e
 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
D

a
ta

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

ro
m

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

n
e
w

 o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 m

o
d
e
l 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
e
n
d
 o

f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
6
, 
w

it
h
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 

u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

a
 f

u
ll 

3
 

m
o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
. 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
6
 

A
 n

e
w

 d
a
ta

c
e
n
tr

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
  

B
ri
g

h
ts

o
lid

 

w
it
h
 b

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 a

n
d
 

D
u
n
d
e
e
. 

A
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
s
 

n
o
w

 i
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 
  

  

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 i
n
te

ri
m

 

a
u
d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

Page 313



 

8
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

ri
s
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
, 
th

e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 

a
n

 i
n

te
ri

m
 d

a
ta

 c
e
n

tr
e
 

a
n

d
 i

n
c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
o

s
ts

. 
  
 

IT
 a

n
d

 T
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

1
0
 

IC
T

 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 o
f 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 

p
la

c
e
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
s
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 I

C
T

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
e
a
m

. 

R
is

k
: 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

d
e
la

y
e
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 I

C
T

 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 c

o
n

s
tr

a
in

ts
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
p

e
ti

n
g

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
ill

 

b
e
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 f
o
r 

w
id

e
r 

IT
 a

n
d
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d
 w

e
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 o

u
r 

s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
 c

a
p
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

 o
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 

a
n
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

IT
 a

n
d

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

) 
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

F
o
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

is
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 

O
u
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 i
n
te

ri
m

 

a
u
d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
 

s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 

IT
 p

ro
je

c
ts

. 
  

1
1
 

IC
T

 
T

w
o
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

R
e
c
o
rd

s
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 

a
re

 u
n
d
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t;
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

la
s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

. 

B
o
th

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
. 
 

R
is

k
: 

a
s
 w

it
h

 a
n

y
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
it

 m
a
y
 t

a
k
e
 t

im
e
 

T
h
is

 t
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 "

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

R
e
c
o
rd

s
 L

if
e
c
y
c
le

" 
d
o
m

a
in

 o
f 

o
u
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 
  
 A

 p
ilo

t 
is

 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 w

it
h
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
fr

o
m

 

w
h

ic
h
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

e
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

u
s
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 

F
o
r 

in
it
ia

l 
p
ilo

t 

w
o
rk

: 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
. 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
n
d
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
 

fo
r 

fu
ll 

ro
ll-

o
u
t 

w
ill

 

b
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 o

n
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
ilo

t.
 

A
 M

a
s
te

r 
D

a
ta

 M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
a
t 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 
P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 3

 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 i
n
te

ri
m

 

a
u
d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

Page 314



 

9
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

to
 b

e
c
o

m
e
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e
d

. 
c
o
u
n
c
il.

 

R
e
c
o

rd
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

 

1
2
 

IC
T

 
E

m
a
il 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

rn
e
t 
b
o
rn

e
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

  
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

re
fr

e
s
h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t

o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
. 

R
is

k
: 

a
s
 p

e
o

p
le

 g
ro

w
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
ly

 t
ru

s
tf

u
l 

o
f 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 

c
o

n
v
e
n

ie
n

c
e
 o

f 
n

e
w

 

te
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
, 
th

e
y
 m

a
y
 

b
e
c
o

m
e
 l
e
s
s
 c

a
u

ti
o

u
s
 i
n

 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
ir

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t.
 

      

T
h
is

 t
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 "

C
u
lt
u
re

, 
T

ra
in

in
g

 

&
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
" 

 d
o
m

a
in

 

o
f 

o
u
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 r
e
fr

e
s
h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

a
 w

id
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
 c

u
lt
u
re

, 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

R
e
c
o

rd
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

in
tr

a
n
e
t 
(t

h
e
 Z

o
n
e
) 

a
n
d
 

re
g

u
la

r 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 

ta
k
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
m

in
d
 s

ta
ff

 o
f 
th

e
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
c
u
ri
ty

. 
  

O
n
g

o
in

g
  
 

Page 315



 

1
0
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

1
3
 

IC
T

 
W

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

d
a
ta

 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 e
n
d
, 

a
n
d
 d

u
ri
n
g

 a
n
y
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a
l 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

 n
e
e
d
 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

c
a
re

fu
lly

 t
h
e
 

d
is

a
s
te

r 
re

c
o
v
e
ry

 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
a
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
te

s
ti
n
g
 

re
g

im
e
 i
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
. 
 

R
is

k
: 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 

tr
a
n

s
it

io
n

a
l 

p
e
ri

o
d

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 d
a
ta

-c
e
n

tr
e
s
, 

th
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e
 a

b
o

u
t 

c
o

n
fi

g
u

ra
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

re
c
o

v
e
ry

. 
 

  

D
is

a
s
te

r 
R

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 (
D

R
) 

is
 

b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 

b
o
th

 t
o
 

m
in

im
is

e
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
e
n
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

ro
b
u
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
e
s
te

d
 a

t 
re

g
u
la

r 

in
te

rv
a
ls

 a
ft

e
r 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 

IT
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r.

  

J
u
ly

  
2
0
1
6
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
ts

 f
ro

m
 A

to
s
 t

o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 

B
ri
g

h
ts

o
lid

 D
a
ta

c
e
n
tr

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t,
 

it
 h

a
s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

in
 t
h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

D
a
ta

 C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 

m
o
v
e
d
 D

R
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
to

 

D
u
n
d
e
e
 d

a
ta

 c
e
n
tr

e
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 
c
o
n
fi
g

u
re

d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 S

to
ra

g
e
 

a
n
d
 B

a
c
k
u
p
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
o
re

ti
c
a
lly

 

c
a
n
 b

e
 r

e
s
to

re
d
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 o

r 
D

u
n
d
e
e
 i
f 
re

q
u
ir
e
d

 

a
t 

s
h
o
rt

 n
o
ti
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
x
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 D

a
ta

c
e
n
tr

e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 i
s
 t

o
 

c
o
n
fi
g

u
re

 D
R

 a
t 
D

u
n
d
e
e
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f

o
r 

fi
rs

t 
m

a
jo

r 
te

s
ti
n
g

 

in
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
. 
  
 I

n
 t

h
e
 

m
e
a
n
ti
m

e
, 
re

g
u
la

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 t
e
s
t 

re
s
to

re
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
te

rn
a
lly

. 

   

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 i
n
te

ri
m

 

a
u
d
it
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

Page 316



 

1
1
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

1
4
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

S
h

a
re

d
 S

e
c
ti

o
n

 9
5
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

t 

T
h
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 h
a

v
e
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 f

o
r 

1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 
 A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

t 
th

a
t 

p
o
in

t.
  
 

R
is

k
: 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

c
o

v
e
r 

a
ll
 t

h
e
 c

ri
ti

c
a
l 

fa
c
to

rs
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
A

ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 b

o
th

 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 e
.g

. 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
, 

a
ll 

c
o
s
ts

, 

g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
y
. 

  

      

T
h
e
 
re

v
ie

w
 
w

ill
 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 

p
e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
b
o
th

 c
o
u
n
c
ils

 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
, 

ta
k
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 
th

e
 
e
x
te

n
t 

to
 
w

h
ic

h
 
b
o
th

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
y
 

a
re

 
d
e
ri
v
in

g
 

v
a
lu

e
 

fr
o
m

 
th

e
 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
t.
 

 
In

it
ia

l 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 

w
it
h
 
th

e
 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
in

 

S
IC

 a
n
d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 f

o
llo

w
e
d

 

u
p
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

to
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

in
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

&
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

3
1
  

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

A
 

re
p
o
rt

 
w

a
s
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 

th
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 

P
o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

o
n
 

3
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
. 

T
h
is

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

S
h
e
tl
a
n
d
’s

 
in

te
n
d
e
d
 

p
la

n
s
 

to
 

re
c
ru

it
 

a
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

9
5
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

w
it
h
 
 
e
ff

e
c
t 

fr
o
m

 
A

p
ri
l 

2
0
1
6
. 
 

In
 

th
e
 

in
te

ri
m

, 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

w
o
u

ld
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

S
h
e
tl
a
n
d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
 o

ff
ic

e
r,

  
 

T
h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

o
v
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

b
y
 e

v
e
n
ts

. 
  

N
o

 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti

o
n

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

. 

Page 317



 

1
2
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

1
5
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

o
s
it

io
n

 

T
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ta

s
k
 a

h
e
a
d
 i
n
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

s
h
o
rt

fa
ll 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 i
ts

 5
 

y
e
a
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
. 
 

R
is

k
: 

th
e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 n

e
e
d

 

to
 d

e
li

v
e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 m

a
y
 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

d
e
li

v
e
ry

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
. 
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

it
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 

th
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 

5
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 

T
h
is

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
ri
n
g

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
s
tr

a
n
d
s
 o

f 

w
o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

e
.g

. 
s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
, 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

b
u
d
g

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

. 
 

 

W
o
rk

 
is

 
w

e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 

to
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

th
e
 

2
0
1
6
/1

7
 

a
n
d
 

in
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 

5
 

y
e
a
r 

b
u
d

g
e
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

to
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g

 
th

e
 

E
x
te

n
d
e
d
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

T
e
a
m

 
in

to
 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

e
n
s
u
re

s
 

th
a
t 

a
ll 

o
p
ti
o
n

s
 

a
re

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

in
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

a
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

to
 

d
e
a
l 

w
it
h
 

fu
tu

re
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
. 
  

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i

s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 

in
 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

b
u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e
, 
in

 

c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

T
e
a
m

 &
 E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

 

  

U
p
d
a
te

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 i
n
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 

O
n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 
a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t,
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
rs

 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

 o
n
e
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
d
g

e
t 
fo

r 

2
0
1
6
/1

7
. 
 P

la
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

 e
a
rl
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

2
0
1
7
/1

8
 b

u
d
g

e
t.
  
 

W
e
 w

ill
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 
in

 o
u
r 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
. 
 

Page 318



 

1
3
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

1
6
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 

L
o

n
g

 t
e
rm

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

  

L
o
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 h
o
ri
z
o
n
 

s
c
a
n
n
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

ill
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

p
la

n
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 g

iv
e
 a

 m
o
re

 

ro
u
n
d
e
d
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
e
. 
In

 

a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

lin
k
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

m
a
d
e
 w

it
h
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

p
la

n
s
. 
 

R
is

k
: 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

d
if

fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 a

ri
s
e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 e

v
e
n

ts
 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 L

o
n
g
 

te
rm

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
lo

n
g
 t

e
rm

 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

is
 

a
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g

e
d
 

a
n
d
 

w
ill

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
. 

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e
, 
in

 

c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

T
e
a
m

 

U
p
d
a
te

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 i
n
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
6
 

S
e
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

o
in

t 
1
5
  

S
e
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

o
in

t 
1
5
 

1
7
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

  

A
L

E
O

s
 

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
ro

u
n
d
 o

f 
h
u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 t
a
k
e
n
 

p
la

c
e
 w

it
h
 a

 p
la

n
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

o
n
 a

 s
ix

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 

R
is

k
: 

th
e
 b

e
d

d
in

g
 i
n

 

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

n
e
x
t 

ro
u
n
d
 
o
f 

h
u
b
s
 
w

ill
 
ta

k
e
 

p
la

c
e
 b

y
 3

0
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

s
o
 

w
h
ils

t 
th

e
 

fo
rm

a
l 

h
u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

m
a
y
 

b
e
 

e
v
e
ry

 
6
 

O
n
g

o
in

g
 

H
u
b
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 t
a
k
e
 

p
la

c
e
 o

n
 a

 6
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

6
. 
 A

t 

th
a
t 
p
o
in

t 
th

e
 h

u
b
s
 w

ill
 e

x
te

n
d
 

to
 T

ie
r 

2
 A

L
E

O
s
. 

W
e
 a

re
 o

b
s
e
rv

in
g

 h
u
b
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

u
r 

In
te

ri
m

 R
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 

2
0
1
6
. 

Page 319



 

1
4
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

p
e
ri

o
d

 m
a
y
 b

e
 t

o
o

 l
o

n
g

 

a
n

d
 m

o
m

e
n

tu
m

 l
o

s
t 

s
o

 

th
a
t 

it
 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 t

im
e
 

b
e
fo

re
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
 i

s
 i

n
 

p
la

c
e
. 
  

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

m
o
re

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 i
n
 

th
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
e
ri
o
d
 u

n
ti
l 

e
v
e
ry

b
o
d

y
 i
s
 u

p
 t

o
 s

p
e
e
d
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
te

e
th

in
g
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
rt

e
d
 

o
u
t.
 

m
o
n
th

s
, 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
a
re

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

in
 

th
e
 

in
te

rv
e
n
in

g
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

o
n
 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 

a
n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

p
la

n
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 

n
e
x
t 

o
n
e
. 
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 
a
re

 
a
im

in
g
 

to
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
n
d
 

ro
b
u
s
tn

e
s
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

s
. 
  

H
e
a
d

 o
f 

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
8
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

  

H
e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
  

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

o
v
in

g
 

a
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 b

o
a
rd

 w
it
h
 

e
ff

e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 

a
n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 t
a
k
in

g
 

p
la

c
e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 
h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 

fo
r 

s
o
m

e
 

ti
m

e
 

to
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

w
h

ic
h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 

s
IJ

B
 

a
n
d
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

. 
 

T
h
is

 
w

ill
 

c
o
n

ti
n
u
e
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 

w
h
a
t 

is
 

a
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

 w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
t.

  
A

 w
o
rk

 

p
la

n
 
is

 
in

 
p
la

c
e
 
w

it
h
 
re

g
u
la

r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 

o
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

b
e
in

g
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

s
IJ

B
. 

 
T

h
e
 

te
a
m

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 

1
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
 

T
h
e
 s

IJ
B

 m
e
e
ts

 o
n
 a

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
 

b
a
s
is

 (
s
ix

 t
im

e
s
 a

 y
e
a
r)

. 

 A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
n
 A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

e
e
t 
fo

u
r 

ti
m

e
s
 a

 y
e
a
r.

  
 

P
la

n
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 a

p
p
o
in

t 
a
 

c
h
ie

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
e
 o

ff
ic

e
r.

  
In

 t
h
e
 

in
te

ri
m

 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 

(N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
) 

w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

o
le

. 

 O
n

g
o

in
g

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

  

Page 320



 

1
5
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

R
is

k
: 

th
e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

o
a
rd

 

is
 u

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

y
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0
1
6
. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
re

g
u
la

r 

e
n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 S

h
a
d
o
w

 

In
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 J

o
in

t 
B

o
a
rd

 

(s
IJ

B
) 

a
n
d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
. 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

to
 

g
e
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 

o
f 

th
e
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
D

e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
. 

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r,

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

H
e
a
lt

h
 &

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
  

In
te

rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

D
a
v
id

 H
u
g

h
e
s
, 

C
h
ie

f 
in

te
rn

a
l 

a
u
d
it
o
r 

(A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

 

1
9
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

  

M
a
ri

s
c
h

a
l 
S

q
u

a
re

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 

In
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
, 
th

e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y
 m

it
ig

a
te

 r
is

k
s
 

b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 

re
n
ta

l 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
  
  

R
is

k
: 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 

ra
ti

o
n

a
le

 f
o

r 
o

ff
e
ri

n
g

 

E
a
c
h
 

re
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 

a
 f

u
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

w
h

ic
h
 
w

ill
 
e
x
a
m

in
e
 
th

e
 
c
a
s
e
 

fo
r 

p
ro

c
e
e
d
in

g
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
 
a
n
d
 
w

ill
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 

s
ta

te
 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

ri
s
k
s
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 i
t.
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

T
e
a
m

 

U
p
d
a
te

 b
y
 3

1
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

la
n
s
 t
o
 

re
v
ie

w
 a

 s
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 a

u
d
it
  

Page 321



 

1
6
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

P
o

in
t 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

a
g

re
e
d

/ 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

 

A
g

re
e
d

 T
a
rg

e
t 

d
a
te

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

  
O

u
tc

o
m

e
  

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
a
c
k
s
 

tr
a
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y
  

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 T

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
a
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 e

x
p
la

in
s
 

th
e
 t
y
p
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

re
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
it
 

w
is

h
e
s
 t

o
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

lly
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

 

 

Page 322



 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk & Scrutiny 
 
DATE  9th March 2016 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Progress Report regarding Leased Community 

Centres signing up to the new Lease & 
Management Agreement 

 
REPORT NUMBER CHI/16/022 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED      Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
This report advises the Committee of progress against the Outstanding 
Audit Recommendations in relation to Leased Community Centres. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
The Committee is requested to  
 
1) Note the Report 
 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report. 

 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
Background 
 
The PWC Audit Report recommended that all Leased Community 
Centres should sign up to the new lease and management agreement 
and if necessary, payment of the Development Grant should be 
withheld until these signed agreements are in place.  
 
A report was taken to Communities Housing and Infrastructure 
Committee in February 2015 recommending that the development 
grant was withheld for those centres not signing up. The Committee did 

Agenda Item 6.4

Page 323



2 
 

not accept this recommendation and a follow up report is expected to 
be taken to Communities Housing and Infrastructure. 
 
During the period from February 2015 to the point of writing this report 
the Community Centre Liaison Officer has been in regular 
communication with the Leased Centres with a view to them signing up 
to the new lease and management agreements, which are co-
dependent. 
 
The current position, as at the point of writing this report, is that the 
following 5 Leased Centres, out of the 23, are not signed up to the new 
agreements: 
 
Community 
Centre 
 

Reason for not signing 
 

Comments 
 

Airyhall The Management Committee can’t see 
any benefits in moving to the new 
agreements.  
 

The Management Committee 
would be happy to sign the new 
management agreement now, 
and then sign the new lease 
when their current lease expires 
in March 2019. 
 

Danestone The Management Committee can’t see 
any benefits in moving to the new 
agreements do not view the matter as a 
priority. 
 

The Management Committee’s 
current lease expires in July 
2040. 
 

Ferryhill The current Chairperson of the 
management committee is an Elected 
Member and the Management 
Agreement does not allow Elected 
Members to hold an office bearer position 
within the Management Committee. 
 

The Management Committee’s 
current lease expires in 
November 2019. 
 

Hanover The Management Committee do not wish 
to sign the new lease until the flooring in 
the main hall is replaced. Under the 
terms of the current lease this is a 
Council responsibility, as landlord, and 
the Management Committee, as tenant, 
has requested that the Council replaces 
the hall floor.  The Council has not 
carried out this work due to budgetary 
constraints and priorities for repairs. 
 

The Management Committee’s 
current lease expires in March 
2018. 
 

Kingswells The Management Committee is still 
reviewing their position regarding the new 
style lease agreement and cannot see 
any advantage for them to move to the 
new lease. 
 

The management committee’s 
current lease expires in March 
2018. 
 

 
Current position and future actions for resolution: 
 

Page 324



3 
 

There have been an increasing number of operational issues arising 
with the implementation of the Lease and Management Agreement 
concerning the Leased Centres that have signed up to the new 
agreements.   
 
Therefore Officers in Communities & Housing and Asset Management 
are working in partnership with the Leased Centres to identify issues 
requiring attention in the current agreements as well as identifying how 
we can develop our partnership to ensure maximum community 
benefit.  

 
We are jointly planning a workshop to involve all leased centres, likely 
to be held in February 2016, with the ultimate aim to move towards fit 
for purpose agreements that all parties will accept; as well as looking at 
supporting maximised community use of the assets. 
 
Officers will update both the Communities Housing and Infrastructure 
Committee and Audit, Risk & Scrutiny Committee with respect to 
progress. 

 
 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 

 
There are two risks arising: 
 

1. We fail to reach an agreement and the status quo remains 
2. Leased Centres currently not signed up to the new Lease and 

Management Agreements are currently not subject to 
compliance monitoring. 

 
Mitigation: 
 

1. The partnership approach should improve relationships and 
therefore we have a better chance to come to a mutually 
acceptable position on the agreements as well as working 
together more effectively to enhance community impact 

2. The 5 Leased Community Centres not signed up to the Lease 
and Management Agreements have returned their PVG 
declarations so they are complying with the terms of the 
management agreement in this high risk area, as previously 
identified as a risk by the PWC report. 

 
 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Jo Mackie 
Service Manager – Communities and Partnership 
Jomackie@aberdeencity.gov 
07808083321 

Page 325



Page 326

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk and Scrutiny 
 
DATE  9 March 2016 
 
INTERIM DIRECTOR  Richard Ellis 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Annual Accounts 2015/16 – Action Plan and 

Key Dates 
 
REPORT NUMBER CG/16/016 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED     Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

The purpose of this report is to provide Elected Members with high 
level information and key dates in relation to the 2015/16 Annual 
Accounts including linkages to the plans and timetables of the Council’s 
External Auditors. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

It is recommended that the Committee note the contents of this report. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no financial implications arising as a result of this report. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
There is a statutory requirement for the Council to produce both draft 
and audited Annual Accounts within certain timescales and to a high 
standard. This is a major task which requires co-operation and input 
from a large number of people across all services of the Council. It is 
only with the commitment of all staff that these high standards and 
deadlines can be met. 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

5.1 The Annual Accounts 2015/16 will summarise the Council’s 
transactions for the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 and its 
financial position at the year end 31 March 2016.  They will be 
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
(IFRS) based Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom (the Code), the Service Reporting Code of Practice 
(SeRCOP) and in accordance with The Local Authority Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2014.  There are no changes to either of the 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 327



 

2 
 

aforementioned Codes in 2015/16 which will have any significant 
impact on the Annual Accounts. 

 

5.2 There are a number of key dates and these are summarised as 
follows:- 

 

31 March 2016 End of the financial year 2015/16 

March – Sept 2016 Information from Group Entities (including ALEO’s) 

17 June 2016 Public Notice for the Public Inspection Period to be issued 

27 June 2016 Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee to consider the draft 
Annual Accounts 

30 June 2016 Statutory deadline for the Proper Officer to sign the draft 
Annual Accounts, submit to the Auditor and publish on the 
website 

1 – 21 July 2016 Public Inspection Period for the draft Annual Accounts 

30 July 2016 Deadline for submission of the Whole of Government 
Accounts (WGA) to the Scottish Government 

27 September 2016 Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee to consider and aim to 
approve the audited Annual Accounts for signature 

27/28 Sept 2016 Signing of the audited Annual Accounts by the Proper 
Officer, Chief Executive and Council Leader 

28 September 2016 Deadline for submission of the signed audited Annual 
Accounts to the Auditor 

Early October 2016 Deadline for submission of the audited WGA to the Scottish 
Government (date to be confirmed) 

31 October 2016 Statutory deadline for the publication on the website of the 
signed Annual Accounts & Audit Certificate, related Auditor 
report and accounts of all subsidiary bodies 

16 December 2016 Deadline for submission of the audited Charitable Trust 
Annual Accounts to OSCR 

5.2.1 31 March 2016 

  Transactions relating to goods and services received or provided by 
the Council by 31 March 2016 should be recorded in the 2015/16 
financial year. 

 
  To facilitate an efficient year end closure, deadlines have been put in 

place in relation to ordering goods and services, posting/authorising 
payments, raising invoices and making accruals for material items. 
These key dates along with relevant guidance have been 
communicated throughout the Council by messages on the Zone, and 
meetings between accounting staff and budget holders. 

5.2.2 March – September 2016 

The Council is required to consider its interests in all types of entity and 
prepare Group Accounts which incorporate the material transactions 
and balances of those entities identified as subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures. A number of the entities included are also referred to as 
ALEO’s (Arm’s Length External Organisations).  Throughout this period 
there are a number of deadlines for these entities to provide 
management accounts, draft financial statements with detailed working 
papers as necessary and audited Annual Accounts. 

Page 328



 

3 
 

5.2.3 17 June 2016 and 1-21 July 2016 

The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 defines the 
notice period, the inspection period, the deadline for submission of an 
objection to the accounts and the information which must be made 
available for inspection.  The latest date by which the public inspection 
can start is 1 July and a public notice must be issued by 17 June, 
giving at least 14 days’ notice before the start of the inspection period. 

5.2.4 27 June 2015 

The Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee will receive the draft Annual 
Accounts 2015/16, including the Annual Governance Statement and 
Remuneration Report for consideration prior to submission for audit.  
The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 requires 
that a committee whose remit includes audit or governance meet to 
consider the unaudited accounts as submitted to the auditor no later 
than 31 August.  As the body charged with governance it allows you 
the opportunity to take ownership of the accounts, to review them such 
as to be satisfied with their completeness hence effectively “sign off” 
the governance statement before they are submitted for audit. 

5.2.5 30 June 2016 

  The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 only 
requires the draft Annual Accounts to be signed by the Proper Officer 
(Head of Finance) prior to submission to the Auditor.  The Regulations 
also require publication of the unaudited Annual Accounts, as 
submitted to the Auditor, on the Council’s website until the audited 
accounts can replace them. 

5.2.6 27 September 2016 

 The Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee will receive the audited Annual 
Accounts for consideration.  The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) 
Regulations 2014 require that the committee aim to approve these 
accounts prior to their signature by the Proper Officer, Chief Executive 
and Council Leader having regard to any report made on the accounts 
and any advice given by the Proper Officer or the Auditor.  The 
committee will also receive the external auditor’s “Annual Report to 
Members and the Controller of Audit on the 2015/16 audit” for debate 
and consideration. This report sets out the auditor’s finding and 
conclusions from all audit activity undertaken during the year, highlights 
the significant issues arising from the audit of the financial statements 
and informs Elected Members of the proposed audit opinion in advance 
of the accounts being certified. 

5.2.7 31 October 2016 

 The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 set out the 
requirements for publication of the audited Annual Accounts by 31 
October, including the signed accounts and audit certificate and all 
auditor reports relating to those signed accounts.  In addition, the 
Council must publish the accounts of its subsidiaries either on its 
website or through a link to the relevant page on the company’s 

Page 329



 

4 
 

website.  All published documents have to be available for at least five 
years. 

 

5.3  Audit Scotland’s “Annual Audit Plan 2016/17” is also presented to this 
meeting and Elected Members should note that the Accounting 
Manager and her staff have already engaged with the external audit 
team as part of planning for the production of the accounts and the 
audit thereof.  This engagement will continue throughout the accounts 
and audit processes.  This will ensure that any issues arising with the 
accounts are highlighted and dealt with promptly and that information 
provided to the auditors is relevant, timely and of a suitable standard to 
enable them to carry out their work efficiently and effectively. 

5.4  Local Authority Charities 

 

5.4.1 There is a requirement for full compliance with the Charities Accounts 
(Scotland) Regulations 2006 which means that a full audit is required 
for all registered charities where the Council is the sole trustee 
irrespective of the size of the charity.  The Accounts Commission has 
appointed the current auditor of the Council as the auditor of its 
relevant charities. 

 
There are a number of statutory provisions in relation to record keeping 
and preparation of accounts for such charities as well as the duties of 
charity trustees in relation to accounting records. The Local Authority 
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 also make provision for such 
bodies in a number of areas.  

 
Taken together this effectively means that separate accounts and audit 
opinions are required for charities and this is subject to the same 
requirements and timetable as detailed above for the Council’s 
accounts. 

 
5.4.2 Subsequent to the submission of the 2014/15 audited charity’s 

accounts, the Council received notification from The Scottish Charity 
Regulator (OSCR) highlighting an omission from the notes to these 
accounts, stating “In addition to the income and expenditure there 
should be full information for the balance sheet of each charity.  The 
notes should be amended to include this information next year.”   

 
 It is important to understand that this omission relates only the notes to 

the accounts and in no way affects the main financial statements or the 
numbers contained therein. 

 
The Regulator is prepared to accept the accounts for 2014/15 but 
requires that this matter be brought to the attention of all the charity 
trustees. 

 
Therefore, in addition to highlighting the matter to this committee, the 
omitted note will be prepared and issued to all councillors with an 
explanatory letter from the Head of Finance.  
 

Page 330



 

5 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
Improving Customer Experience – 
No direct impact arising from this report. 
 
Improving Staff Experience –  
No direct impact arising from this report. 
 
Improving our use of Resources –  
No direct impact arising from this report. 
 
Corporate –  
There is a statutory requirement to produce both draft and audited 
Annual Accounts.  The publication of these demonstrates the Council’s 
proper stewardship of and accountability for the public funds with which 
it is entrusted. 
 
Public –  
This report may be of interest to the public as it provides information on 
preparation and publication of the Annual Accounts and related public 
inspection dates. 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

There are no direct risks arising from this report. 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 None 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Sandra Buthlay, Accounting Manager 
sbuthlay@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522565 

Page 331



Page 332

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Audit, Risk & Scrutiny 
 
DATE  8th March 2016 
 
LEAD OFFICER  Angela Scott 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Overview of Local Government 2015 
 
REPORT NO: CG/16/038 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To provide the Committee with an overview of the Council’s position 
with respect to the recommendations in Audit Scotland’s report “An 
Overview of Local Government in Scotland 2015”. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
The Committee is asked to: 

 
a) consider the attached position statement with respect to the 

recommendations in Audit Scotland’s report “An Overview of Local 
Government in Scotland 2015”; and 
 

b) agree that the issues identified are being addressed within broader 
improvement programmes, or to instruct further actions as 
appropriate. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no direct implications arising from this report. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are significant implications for the work programmes themselves, 
including long term resource planning and decision making.  These are 
not, though, dependent on this report. 

  

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 333



5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1 Audit Scotland undertakes an annual review which identifies issues 
which it considers Scotland’s local authorities should be addressing.  
The report and recommendations are directed towards each of 
Scotland’s 32 local authorities.  Each of the local authorities having its 
own local context, the recommendations vary in their applicability. 

 
5.2 The 2014/15 report has been considered by the Council’s Audit, Risk & 

Scrutiny Committee.  The Committee referred the recommendations to 
the consideration of CMT to determine whether actions, over and 
above those already in place or planned, were required. 

 
5.3 The attached position statement draws comments and inputs from a 

variety of colleagues. 
 
5.4 For each of the recommendations, commentary is provided advising 

that appropriate arrangements are in place or that improvement actions 
have already been identified and are being implemented.  Monitoring of 
the improvement actions will be integrated within current and 
developing scrutiny arrangements. 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
As per “Implications”, the impact of the improvement and 
transformation programmes for resource planning and workforce, which 
are included within the attached statement, will clearly be significant.  
The impact of this report is to strengthen awareness and governance of 
the issues raised by Audit Scotland so that risks are assessed and 
controlled. 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

The Committee’s formal consideration is one element of ensuring, and 
demonstrating, risk awareness.  Any significant risks highlighted by 
Audit Scotland should be included within appropriate risk registers, if 
not already recorded. 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
 Overview of Local Government in Scotland 2015, Audit Scotland 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Martin Murchie 
Office of Chief Executive, tel 01224 52008 
mmurchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

  

Page 334



An Overview of Local Government in Scotland 2015 – Recommendations for Elected members 

 Recommendation Comments / Actions Date Lead Service Area Link to BV Audit Improvement 

1. Assess whether they have 

appropriate knowledge and 

expertise, in areas such as 

assessing financial and service 

performance, to carry out 

their role effectively. They 

should review their training 

needs and request the training 

and support they require to 

help them consider options, 

make decisions and scrutinise 

performance; 

 

Training needs are assessed and training is 

given on an ongoing basis.  Over the last 12 

months a revised programme of training on 

scrutiny and risk has been delivered to 

members of the Audit, Risk & Scrutiny 

Committee and is now being rolled out to all 

members.  Risk Management training was 

offered on 2nd November and Procurement 

training also delivered on 7 December.  

Scrutiny of Shared Services is to be provided 

in 2016. 

 

A comprehensive elected member 

development programme for 2016/17 is in 

place.   ALEO training is taking place on 22 

March 2016.  Currently Financial Capability 

training and Treasury Management has also 

been arranged, with more to be added to 

the development programme for 2016. 

 

2017 development dates have been 

arranged for Elected Members, 

development for these dates is still to be 

decided. 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Organisational 

Development 

 

2. Ensure that council officers 

provide high-quality financial 

and performance information 

to support effective scrutiny 

and decision-making. This 

includes having relevant and 

The 2015 Best Value Audit noted that 

financial management in the Council is 

sound and it has a robust medium-term 

budget-setting process in place. 

 

i. Increase the impact of the Finance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Accounting,  Budget 

holders and all staff 

 

 

 

 

• Implement plans to refocus 

performance measurement on 

outcomes 

 

• Ensure clear links between the 

performance information 

P
a
g
e
 3

3
5



up-to-date performance data 

and making good use of 

benchmarking.  Performance 

information should also be 

clearly reported to the public 

to help them understand their 

council's performance; 

 

Framework; 

ii. Continue to streamline and strengthen 

our capital financial management 

processes; 

iii. Strengthen feeder systems that transfer 

information into the financial system 

including data, information and 

controls; 

iv. Strengthen financial information, for 

example by continued development of 

Business Objects. 

 

A review of current performance reporting 

is ongoing, linking to work to establish the 

“Golden Thread”.   

 

The Council’s policy priorities, included SIP 

and capital projects, are reported regularly 

to CMT, Admin Leaders and the FP&R 

committee for scrutiny and information. 

Dec 2015 

 

April 2016 

 

 

Dec 2016 

 

 

 

Dec 2016 

 

 

 

May 2016 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

submitted to members for 

scrutiny and the council's 

strategic plans 

 

3. Ensure that councils, when 

developing their priorities, use 

local socio-economic data and 

work with service users and 

local communities to 

understand their needs and 

explore ways of meeting 

them. Council budgets should 

then be targeted towards 

agreed priorities, including 

those designed to prevent or 

reduce service demand in 

future; 

1. Strategic Assessment (SA) - 

Community Planning Senior Analyst has 

been employed to complete a SA for 

Aberdeen City.  SA is supported by data 

analysts and researchers from partners. 

There will be both partner and 

community consultation exercises, 

designed through partnership and the 

strategic assessment will be used to 

identify citywide priorities, support the 

new SOA and target Participatory 

Budgeting opportunities. 

 

Feb 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHI 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Review how the political 

priorities of Aberdeen: the 

Smarter City, the SIP, the City 

Region Deal and the City Centre 

Masterplan are linked through 

to service plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g

e
 3

3
6



 2. Budgeting for Outcomes - We will 

build on our budget process and 

implement Outcome Budgeting. 

 

Building on Priority Based Budgeting, 

the Council’s pilot “Budgeting for 

Outcomes” approach uses CIPFA 

guidance and wide research nationally 

and internationally.  It builds on the 

development of outcome maps linking 

outputs, activities and inputs and uses 

evidence from performance 

information, stakeholders, cost drivers 

to refocus resources to priorities.  

Outcome budgeting pilots have been 

run in 5 varied service areas and an 

overarching pilot has commenced 

concentrating on staff, customer and 

resources.   

 

Findings of the initial pilots have been 

generally positive with comments from 

service managers including: “Would 

definitely use this tool again”; “gaps in 

performance identified”; “shines light 

on specific activities”. 

 

Next steps are identified as follows: 

• Link overall outcome approach to 

refreshed Strategic Plan as an 

overall prioritisation tool; 

• Document end to end process; 

• Collect performance information 

Feb 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Accounting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

3
7



from pilots in a consistent way and 

make recommendations for 

improvement; 

• Finalise work on pilots and develop 

champion role; 

• Roll out to further services. 

 

Work on outcome budgeting has been 

deferred during the 16/17 budget 

setting process and is due to start again 

soon.  It is now an integral part of the 

Use of Resources Programme and 

Finance Service Plan.  

 

3. Participatory Budgeting - The 

Community Planning Aberdeen Board 

agreed: 

i. the establishment of a “participatory 

budgeting” Steering Group with 

representation from key 

stakeholders; 

ii. the re-allocation of budget 

underspend into a Participatory 

Budgeting “pot” to allocate. 

 

Following the above:- 

a) Training was delivered to CPA 

partners from PB Partners as part of 

a Scottish Government Support 

Package; 

b) Finance Policy &Resource 

Committee allocated £100,000 

under spend towards PB 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

tbc 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHI 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g

e
 3

3
8



methodology for youth work in 

Tillydrone, Seaton, NorthField Total 

Place and Torry.  All school age 

young people, living in the areas, 

participated in voting events; 

c) PB Partners are conducting an 

evaluation; 

d) Further PB opportunities could arise 

from Fairer Aberdeen and the HRA. 

PB partners will support delivery 

and evaluation.  Best practice will be 

established and presented to the 

CPA Board to consider wider 

implementation. 

 

4. Strategic Planning - The Council 

has refreshed its Strategic Business Plan 

(February 2016). The Plan reflects the 

Council’s agreed priorities and builds on 

a suite of corporate strategies, each of 

which is based on an analysis of socio-

economic data.  Resource allocation, 

including budgeting, follows the 

planned activity to deliver these 

priorities.  Throughout 2016/17, work 

will continue to update and align 

strategies with priorities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2016/17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CG / OCE 

4. Ensure that they consider all 

practical options for delivering 

services to meet the needs of 

service users and local 

communities, within the 

resources available. They 

As part of project proposal governance,  a 

more robust option appraisal approach has 

been built in to the gateway review process 

and is a fundamental part of the business 

case development.  All options are 

considered, scored and measured against 

Ongoing PMO  

P
a
g
e
 3

3
9



should consider carefully the 

benefits and risks related to 

each option and make sure 

they receive information 

about the impact of the 

option they choose, including 

monitoring the risks 

associated with change; 

 

the business need, desired outcomes, 

benefits and risks to allow an informed 

decision to be made. 

 

Through the Programme Management 

approach, currently being developed further 

within the council, decisions on proposals 

and business cases will be made in 

conjunction with the current programmes of 

work and existing resource requirements, in 

order for all impacts and interdependencies 

to be considered and realised as part of the 

decision making process. 

 

That approach is also adopted as part of the 

change control process. 

 

Benefits are identified as part of the 

business case development, which are 

linked to the business need and/or strategic 

outcome that the business case is trying to 

achieve.  The project planning process 

builds on this to develop benefit realisation 

dashboards.  Benefits dashboards can be at 

programme and/or project level as 

appropriate.  Robust monitoring, challenge 

and reporting of benefits and outcomes is 

currently being looked at as part of our 

change activity governance review. 

5. Ensure that their council has 

financial plans covering the 

short term (1-2 years), 

medium term (3-5 years) and 

Through further analysis of the economic 

position and linking budgeting to outcomes, 

we will strengthen our long term financial 

planning process. 

Feb 2017 

 

 

 

Accounting plus budget 

holders and all staff 

 

P
a
g

e
 3

4
0



longer term (5-10 years). 

These plans should set out the 

council’s financial 

commitments, identify any 

challenges with the 

affordability of services and 

set out clearly how the council 

ensures its financial position is 

sustainable over an extended 

period; 

 

 

Financial plans are currently in place.  The 

2015 Best Value Audit noted that the 

Council has “recognised the need for long-

term financial planning by setting out the 

social and economic factors likely to impact 

on its financial plans up to 2050. This long-

term view of the challenges ahead will 

provide a useful context for considering the 

impact of potentially difficult decisions 

ahead.” 

 

The Council’s long term financial plan has 

been developed. 

 

 

6. Review their council’s 

governance arrangements 

following significant changes 

in staff, management and 

political structures. This 

includes ensuring their current 

management teams have the 

skills and capacity to provide 

effective leadership and 

management of finances, 

services and improvement 

programmes, and having 

succession plans for when 

senior managers retire or 

leave the council; 

 

1. A full governance review is underway.  

This will review the Council’s risk and 

governance systems, based on the 7 

CIPFA principles of good governance. 

The end result will be an Aberdeen City 

Council Constitution, including: 

• Revised Standing Orders/Scheme of 

Delegation 

• Reviewed reporting procedures to 

achieve consistency and compliance 

• Reviewed and revised system of risk 

management 

• Reviewed and revised elected 

member development programme, 

including induction 

• Review of ALEO monitoring 

arrangements. 

 

March 

2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Fully implement arrangements 

for enhanced scrutiny of ALEOs 

through the governance hub. 

 

• Ensure the necessary 

organisational capacity for 

transformation is in place in 

readiness for anticipated 

budget reductions 

 

• build on the use of cross-party 

groups to help maintain 

political consensus and 

commitment to the council's 

long-term priorities 

 

 

• build further elected member 

P
a
g
e
 3

4
1



2. Officers are fully implementing and 

monitor the revised governance 

arrangements for ALEOS as agreed by the 

Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee.  The 

ALEO Governance Hub has now met 

twice under the new arrangements, with 

the next cycle of meetings being held in 

May 2016. In addition to commencing 

scrutiny of tier 2 ALEOs, the Hub will now 

meet quarterly, with the subsequent 

cycle scheduled for August. The 

performance of the Hub will be 

considered as part of the Governance 

Review being taken forward by 

Corporate Governance. 

 

3. The Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee 

have considered reports on the Health & 

Social Care services pre-integration 

financial assurance. 

 

4. Our Performance Review and 

Development framework enables us to 

identify skills, competency and 

knowledge gaps and the training and 

development required to bridge those 

gaps. 

 

5. Our corporate strategic workforce plan 

and individual directorate workforce 

plans (see 7. below) set out strategies 

and actions to source our future leaders 

including an ambitious and innovative 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sept 2015 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

ALEO Governance Hub 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IJB / Internal Audit 

 

 

 

 

HR 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HR 

 

 

 

and staff engagement in the 

change programmes. 

P
a
g

e
 3

4
2



internal development programme (called 

“Aspire” ) to tackle succession at senior 

management level. 

 

6. A more robust programme management 

approach has been introduced for SIP 

and Capital Plan delivery, monitoring and 

reporting all major programmes of work 

giving the senior management visibility 

of progress, interdependencies, issues 

and risks.  A review is currently underway 

to build on this and establish appropriate 

governance and methodology for all 

change activity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

 

PMO 

 

 

 

7. Ensure their council has a 

comprehensive workforce 

strategy to help manage the 

impact of staff reductions. The 

strategy should ensure that 

the council retains the ability 

to make changes and 

improvements, and is 

equipped to meet increased 

demand for services in the 

context of financial 

constraints. 

 

A 5 year corporate strategic workforce plan 

has been produced which is updated 

annually and presented to Council when it 

approves its annual budget. It is an essential 

component of the Council’s Integrated 

planning framework including financial 

planning, improvement planning and 

workforce planning. Our plan sets out how 

we will continue to attract, develop and 

retain the right number and quality of 

employees we need with a strong focus on 

improving how we do business. Our 

workforce plan is regarded as an “exemplar” 

by the Improvement Service.  

 

Each directorate has its own workforce plan 

aligning workforce requirements to the 

corporate Business Plan and their own 

Ongoing HR • Consider the capacity and 

capability required to deliver 

the strategic priorities against 

the recruitment challenges 

experienced in the North East.  

P
a
g
e
 3

4
3



service plans. These workforce plans 

forecast future service demands, analyse 

workforce demand and supply, include 

action plans to bridge any current or 

anticipated workforce gaps and explain how 

success against those actions will be 

measured.  A summary of each Directorate’s 

analysis of current and future trends and 

resourcing/development needs is included 

in the corporate strategic workforce plan. 

 

We will develop succession plans for key 

occupational groups within our workforce 

i.e. hard-to-fill, business critical posts. 

 

We will increase the number of young 

jobseekers (e.g. school-leavers, apprentices 

and graduates) we employ to fill gaps. This 

will include increasing the number of 

apprenticeship/trainee schemes, 

placements in support of our Aberdeen 

Guarantee pledge, school pupil placements 

and exploring the possibility of becoming an 

accredited SVQ Training Centre, possibly as 

a shared arrangement with Public Sector 

Partners. 

 

We will ensure that a more cost effective 

investment in recruitment and/or training 

and development is made with a long-term 

objective; 

 

We will create potential career paths for 

P
a
g

e
 3

4
4



internal staff and retain talent. 

 

Key Worker Housing Scheme introduced 

whereby the Council has made available a 

limited supply of Council-owned flats for 

providing temporary accommodation for 

key workers to assist with recruitment and 

relocation 

 

We will tackle the critical shortage of 

primary teachers through long term, 

sustainable solutions - Internal staff offered 

the opportunity to retrain as primary 

teachers through sponsorship by Aberdeen 

City Council. 15 employees started the 

course in 2015. (Note: It is hoped the 

Council, will be in a position to offer the 

same opportunity in September 2016) 

 

We will plan for succession for leadership 

roles – 12 more aspiring leaders have been 

added to the Aspire Future Leaders 

Programme which is in its second year.  

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

4
5



Page 346

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9.1

Page 347

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 370

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9.2

Page 371

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 376

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 377

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 380

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 381

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 386

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 387

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 388

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 26 November 2015
	2.2 Workplan
	2.3 Decision Tracking Sheet
	2.4 Minute of the Corporate Health and Safety Committee of 28 August 2015
	2.5 Minute of the Corporate Health and Safety Committee of 27 November 2015
	2.6 ALEO Governance Hubs - Report by the Interim Director of Corporate Governance
	CG16027ALEO Governance Schedule Dec 2015 - revised ARSC March09 Roderick MacBeath
	CG16027Aberdeen Sports Village 7 December 2015  R-MacBeathARSC March09
	AECC 8 December 2015
	CG16027Bon Accord Care 8 December 2015 R-MacBeath ARSC March09
	CG16027Sport Aberdeen 14 December 2015 R-MacBeath ARSC March09

	3.1 Internal Audit Progress and Performance - Report by the Internal Auditor
	3.2 Internal Audit Plan 2016/17 - Report by the Internal Auditor
	3.3 External Audit Progress Report - Report by the External Auditor
	3.4 External Audit Plan 2015/16 - Report by the External Auditor
	4.1 Scottish Public Services Ombudsman Complaint Recommendations - Report by the Interim Director of Corporate Governance
	5.1 Cross Service - ALEO's - Report by the Internal Auditor
	5.2 Adult Social Work/Integration Joint Board - Social Work Tendering - Report by the Internal Auditor
	5.3 Health and Social Care Integration Pre-Integration Financial Assurance - Report by the Internal Auditor
	5.4 Finance - Council Tax - Report by the Internal Auditor
	5.5 Crematorium - Report by the Internal Auditor
	5.6 Housing - Sheltered Housing - Report by the Internal Auditor
	5.7 Public Infrastructure and Environment - Trade Waste - Report by the Internal Auditor
	5.8 Cross Service - Recruitment Procedures - Report by the Internal Auditor
	6.1 Internal Audit Recommendations Outstanding pre 2015/16 (PWC) - Report by the Internal Auditor
	6.2 Internal Audit Follow Up on Recommendations Against the 2015/16 Audit Plan - Report by the Internal Auditor
	6.3 External Audit Outstanding Recommendations 2014/15 - Report by the External Auditor
	6.4 Leased Community Centres - Progress Report - Report by the Director of Communities, Housing and Infrastructure
	7.1 Annual Accounts 2015/16 - Action Plan and Key Dates - Report by the Interim Director of Corporate Governance
	8.1 Overview of Local Government 2015 - Report by the Chief Executive
	9.1 Cross Service - Time Sheets - Report by the Internal Auditor
	9.2 Windows Replacements - Report by the Internal Auditor
	8.2 Window Replacement Cover Report V2
	8.2 Windows Rep AC1603AW Amended v2
	160309 AR&S Committee - Window Replacements (v2) - Appendix D - Redacted.doc


